Generating social
value across the UK.
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From purpose to social value

PIC is a specialist insurer
which has become aleader
in the UK pension risk
transfer market by focusing
on our purpose: to pay the
pensions of our current and
future policyholders.

For cver a decade, PIC has been a significant
investor in areas like social housing, renewable
energy and the UK's universities. These
investments, which are typically sourced
privately, provide the cash flows we need to
match our liabilities at maturities when publicly
available debt is simply not available.

Focused on our policyholders

Palicyholder Day, Personally engaging
London 2022 with our policyholders
Read more an pB Read more on pé

Significant social value backing our pension payments

Supporting the West Investing £83 millionin the
Midlands rail franchise London Borough of Newham

Read more on p13 Read more on pl13

For mare information visit
www.pensioncorporation.com
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Highlights
Key financial highlights

Solvency Il ratic

225% 168%

2022 2021

Premiums

£4,095m -;700m
2022 2021

Market consistent embedded value

£5,617Mm oo

Other highlights

Policyholder satisfaction

99.6% o5

2022 2021

Total valve of sustainable assets’

£10.3bn 3500

2022 2021

Employee pride in working for PIC

89% 90%

2022 2021

IFRS profit before tax

£1,240m 303

2022 2021

Financial investments

£41.0bn -

2022 2021

Assets held to meet solvency and risk margins

£8.8bn -

2022 2021

1 "sustainable assets” is defined on page 44

2022 2021
Gender pay gap

%
10.2% 18.4%
2022 2021

In May 2022, Fitch Ratings affirmed PIC‘s A+ (Strong) Insurer
Financial Strength rating.

A+

Recent awards:

Our clients include:
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PIC at a glance

Our purpose is to pay the pensions of our
current and future policyholders.

Key outcomes of our purpose

Policyholders
Pensions for life; excellence in
customer service

Employees
Stimulating, fair, and rewarding workplace

Key suppliers

Partnership model of engagement

Capital providers
Growind store of value expected to
provide secure, long-term returns

Our culture
Our customers are our priority

We value oll cur stakeholaers and work hard 1o provide
exceptional service to cll our customers [policyholders,
trustees, and sponsors). We listen and are responsive
to their requirements.

For rrore information, see 'Our people
and culture’ section ps0

Qur values

Providing security

We are committeq to managing risk aond
providing long-term stability ana financial
secarity for our customers. We protect custorrer
data. Qur strong, conservatively managec
balance sheet and low-risk portfolio ensure
resilience agoinst difficult economic events

Embracing new ideas

We pride ourselves on going things cifferently,
being adaptable enough to operate successfully
N any environreent ang match any challenge.
We 8o beyond existing ways ¢f thinking 1o come
Jp with innovative, personalisec solutions

Being a team

We know the benefit of working together asa
team. We respect, valde ond nurture our people In
terms of both their development cna enpagement

Society

Active engagement in public debates arouna
purposefdl, long-term investment in the
economy and stakeholder capitalism

Economy

Significant investmments in urban regeneration,
social housing, and areas that balance
intergenerational equity

Environment

Increasing investments into renewable energy,
with concurrent reduction in exposure to
carbon-producing industries

Striving to be the best

We provige sector-leqgaing expertise,
aiming for excellence in everything we do.
We listen careully, are not afraid o learn
and crallenge ourselves, ard aelver g
consistently nigh-guality offering

Doing the right thing

Cur pelicyholders cre our custormers for life,
which is why our strong ethos arouna aoing
the right thing is so important to Js. We believe
that fairness ara honesty really count

2 Pension Insurcnce Corporation Group Limited | Annucl Report and Accounts 2022



Creating long-term social value
What PIC does

We provide tailored pension insurance buyouts and buy-ins
to the trustees and sponsors of UK defined benefit pension
schemes. We back the pensions of our policyholders with
investments that are both secure and sociclly beneficial.

302,200

policyholders insured

Our investment portfolio

PIC has a diverse portfolio and primarily invests in publicly
available fixed income assets, including £28.2 billion invested
in government debt and carparate debt, (FY2021: £36.6 billion)
to match our projected pension cash flows. PIC also invests

in secure, long-term, privately-sourced debt to match
pension payments at maturities in future decades, for
exampie when public debt is not available, including

in the sectors shown below.

Purposeful investments and creation

of long-term social value

Pensions for our growing policyhotder base are backed by
a purposefulinvestmeant strategy. This strategy prioritises
the managaement of key risks, including Environmenr+al,
Social and Gavernance ("ESGY) risks, as intedral to paying
the pensicns of our policyholders over the coming decades.

Investments with a [asting impact on current and future
generations in areas incluaing renewable energy, social
housing, and national infrastructure are socially beneficial
outcomes of our focus on our purpose. Excellence in
customer service and balanced stakeholder relationships
are fundamental to our approach.

For more infarmation on our investments,
please see pades p26-33

| have a very good impression of PIC.
Your customer service is very good.
You always provide complete and
thorough information about our
pension and where the money is
invested and this information is
important to know.”

Suresh Saggar
PIC policyheider, 2022
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Our geographic footprint

Generating social value
across the UK.

PIC secures UK defined benefit pensions schemes, moving the
pension promise into the security of the insurance regulatory
framework, ensuring pensioners get their full benefits.

The maps on these two pages give insight into PIC’s social
and economic impact on the UK, which is a consequence

of our primary business activity.

The map below shows the value of the pension payments
we make to our direct policyholders (44% of our total
number of policyholders). These payments are broken
down by the countries of the UK and the nine

English regions.

Key
W Number of policyholders 2022

B Fensions paid (buyouts) 2022 Scotland

9218
£56m

Northern Ireland

1,206
£7m

North West

14,887
£104m

£1,756m

total pensions paia {buyouts and
buy-ins) 2022

West Midlands

14,500
£95m

Wales

6,140
£52m

South West

11,633
£96m

South East

23,831
£214m

North East

4,629

£28m

Yorkshire and
the Humber

11,162
£63m

Pensions paid over 10 years
(buyouts and buy-ins) 2013-2022

East Miclands E£57dm
Fast of England E£1,343m
London £1,187m
North East £336m
North West £1,074m
Northern Iraland £71m
Scotiand £612m
South East £2,377m
South West £1,009m
wWales £394m
West Midlands £995m
Yorkshire and the Humber £602m

£10.6bn

total pensions paid (buyouts
ana buy-ins) 2013-2022°

East Midlands

7,825

East of England

15,143

£67m

£116m

London

12,963
£100m

T Totai paid 1o pelicyholders from 2013 anwards Amo.nts poid befcre 2022 have becn adjusted for infiatan

Pension Insurance Carporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022




Delivering long-term socially
beneficial outcomes across the UK

Our investments secure more than the pensicens of our
palicyholders They're helping to support fevelling up by
providing social housing and renewable energy, regenerating
our cities, ana benefiting cenerations to come acress the UK,
with rrgre than £8 Lillkun invested in the English redions outside
Londoen, as well as Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.

These socially beneficial, privately sourced investments are
presented on the map below, broken down in total by the
countries of the UK and the nine English regians. We will
publish detailed metrics, Including relative GDP weighting, in
i farthcoming thoueht loadership poper am our inives Linenly,

For more information visit
www.pensioncorporation.com/
purposeful-investments

£11,424m

total UK direct investments

Scotland

£685m

Funding retirement living
in St Albans

Senior Living Investment Partners,

o partnership between PIC and
Oclupus Redl Estate, invested
£115 million in its first retirement
caommunity investrrent via a joint
venture with Elysian Residences.

Read more on p32

Northern Ireland

£329m

£897m

Yorkshire and

the Humber
North West

£1221m £76Im

East Midlands

£515m

Wales West Midlands

£642m £919m

South West

£752m

E105 million invested in
aNet Zero carbon office

in central Manchester

Let to the Government Property
Agency, the office will support the
move of civil service roles from
London to Manchester.

Read more on p12

East of England

£888m

London

£2,403m

£1,412m

Funding housing for the
London Borough of Newham
("LBN")

PIC invested £83 million to fund the
construction of 161 homes, as part
of LBN's housing strategy, which
seeks to gctively manage the
financial ond socicl implications
of the area’s housing shartfall.

Read mecre on p13
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Policyholder journey

Our policyholders, all
former members of
UK defined benefit
pension schemes

or their dependants,
are central to

our business.

Everything we do is designed to pay their
pensions. We take on our policyholders
following a buyout transaction agreed
by the trustees of their pension scheme.

From pension
scheme member...

The trustee signs a buyout transaction, which
transfers all risks, assets, ona policyholder
obligations to PIC.

What differentiates us

The quality of service PIC provides to transitioning
pension fund members is a key focus for the PIC
managemeant tea. The transition includes

the development of a soecific communication
schedule so that members are «ept fully
informed about ther impending transfer,

Pension insurance buy-in

Aninsurance policy Bought by trustees to
cover some or all of the scheme's future
pension payments. ltis then held as an asset
of the scheme, which remains in place. PIC
rrakes regular payments 1o the scheme to
cover the benefits securea - the administration
responsibilities stay with the trustees.

PIC Pension scheme

Assets &
ligbkilities

Member

Pension insurance buyout

Arinsurance policy bought by trustees

that covers alf the scraeme’s fuilre pans on
payrnents. The scheme is wouna o, Individual
PIC policies are 1ssuea to the merrbers, and
we pay their benefits cirectly to them. We also
take on the future aoministration.

PIC stands out positively as a business
due to its strong focus on values and
ability to connect with policyholders.”

Investors in People Report, 2022

Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022

PIC Pension scheme
Assets &
liabilities

Policy
holdar Member



..Via a transition
period...

Once the trustees have informed the
meambers about the transaction, we
introduce ourselves to them in a series of
communications, giving an overview of PIC
and explaining the process.

What differentiates us

All relevant communications are in plain English:
we hold tne Platinum Crystal Mark frem the Plain
English Campaign and the Service Mark of
Distinclion from the Institute of Customer
Service (*|Cs.

Your customer telephone
response time is outstanding!
Quality service froma
quality company.”

PIC policyholder, 2022

For more informeitinn visit
WWWw.pensioncorporation.com/
licyholders/new-to-pl

...to PIC
policyholder

We genuinely seek to do things better
for our policyholders.

What differentiates us

We hold events across the country, and online,
where our policyholders can meet with, and
guestion, senior management about the company
which pays their pension.

Every event allows Us to directly engage with
our policyholders.

s Policyholders are invited

s A mixture of entirely complimentary online
and in-perscn events across the UK, packed
full of Interesting and helpful nformation

» Updates frorm our senior leadership team

s Celebrity guest speaker and o choice
of complimentary services gt our
Policyhelder Days

s VWe're aager to listen and ready
1O answer questions

Read more about our policyholder
events cn p8-2 and how and why we
engage with our policyhoiders on p38

I've been with PIC for

many years. They haven’t

let me down once. | would
recommend them to anyone.”

PIC policyholder, 2022
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Policyholder and client case studies

Personally engaging with 50+
our policyholders. ———

policyholder events held to date

PIC's in-person policyholder events
programme resumed in 2022. In 25,000+
addition to the virtual sessions held

in previous years, we recommenced
ovur lunches and whole-day events 1 o+

attendees

in locations across the UK. Our

policyholders were once again

able to reconnect with fellow locations across the UK
policyholders and ex-colleagues in

a convivial and informative setting.

Highlights from the programme this

year included updates from the PIC

executive team, a keynote speech Before my pension transferred to PIC, | didn’t
by Sir Steven Redgrave and some have a clue about who was looking after it.
fun including complimentary The situation has completely changed since

PIC became responsible. PIC keeps us well
informed and is very good at explaining
everything to us, including how they are
safeguarding our pensions and how the
investments they make support them.
When you are my age, you want to be
informed about these things!

massages and manicures.

My wife and 1 have been regular attendees of the PIC
policyholder events - the 2022 London Policyhaolaer Day was
our fourth. We've always been very impressea with them and
enjoy finding out what the company has been doing, It's o very
enjoyable aay, but importantly it's a very iInformative day os
well. One of the best parts of the day for us is meeting people
that we useda to know and work with, as well gs making new
friencis with people that were part of the same scheme. | usea
torun the sports ana socicd clubs at EM), so it s great to be able
to continue the community feel during these events. We also
love hearing from the guest speakers who proviae helpful and
inspirational stories that stay with us long after the event.

PIC 15 a very gooa cormpany. They seem. to be very sustainable
nthelr approach to looking after oJdr pensions ana looking,
after the invesir-ents as well, The investrments are vary
worthwhile, lke the one in Newham where they are building
161 flats with social and afforaabie houosing being included.
There's a great need for it, so 1it's lovely to see that's what the
investments are in and that we can actually see that there's
geod being aone with cur pension fund money to help those
wha desperotely need it The foct thot you are helping

the younger generation is fontastic pecause they are aur
future It were to aescribe PIC in three words, | would wse
fartastic, reliable anc very helpful.

Manuel Badillo
Former member of the EMI Group Pension fund
and proud RIC policyholder since 2014

8 Pension insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annuol Report and Accounts 2022



For more inforrmatinn visit

www.pensioncorperation.corm/
policyholders/events

PIC is such a ‘user friendly’
company. | tell others how
approachable everyone is, and
that your documents are easy
to read and understandable
and your talks are informative
and enjoyable. Not one

bit boring!”

Jacqui Butcher
PIC policyholder, Policyholder
Day 2022

| think the service at PIC is
very good. It's very efficient.
When | have had the need to
ring customer services they've
always been able to answer
my queries then and there.”

Clive Thomson
PIC policyholder, PIC Policyholder
Day 2022

This policyholder event

is excellent and shows

how much you value pecple
who have their pension
with you, which I don't
think is done by any other
pension crganisation.”

PIC Policyholder Day 2022
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Policyholder and client case studies continued

Long-term client
relationships in action.

in February 2023, PIC
announced a ¢.£175 million
buy-in with the trustee of
the IM| 2014 Deferred Fund
covering 1,378 pension

fund members.

This is PIC's sixth transaction with the fund and
covers the last remaining tranche of IMI pension
Iakilities, This transaction takes the total liabilities

sponsored by IMI plc, which have been insured This transaction is the culmination
by PIC, to £1 billion since 2018, through ¢ seres

of partial buy-in transactions. This demonstrates _Of our long-term de'ris_kingjoyrn%y to
PIC’s ability to build long-term partnarships insure the Fund’s pension OblIEdtIO'nS.
based on high levels of customer service We have now insured the benefits
and adaptadiity. for all our members. We're delighted
that we have been able to complete
this final transaction with PIC, with
whom we have a long-standing and
successful relationship, and who were
able to be flexible to meet the specific
circumstances of this deal in 2022.
We had confidence in PIC’s ability
to continue providing high-quality
customer service to Us and
our members.”

Greg Croydon
Chair of the Trustee to the Fund
February 2023

c.E1bn

liabilities insured in total

e Pansion insurance Corporation Group Limitea | Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Generating social value

Providing risk transfer solutions for
trustee boards creates long-term
social value.

The pensions we take on through buyouts and buy-ins are backed by
assets that have a lasting impact on younger and future generations.

By delivering on our purpose, our peortfolio, which now stands at
£41 billion, helps make the economy greener and regenercites cities,
provides social housing and supports university education.

Total UK
£1 .an direct i‘:nf:astmen’cs2 £o.3 bn
invested in social housing' £11 .4bn invested in utilities'

£1.0bn £1.5bn

invested in invested in urban
renewable energy’ regeneration

£1.5bn

1 Market value as at 31 December 2022, invested in the UK's
2 Totol omount invested to date. education system!’
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Generating social value continued

PIC's private investments

benefit a range of stakeholders,

from our policyholders who
are our customers for life,

to younger generations and
communities across the UK.

The First Street
Development is an
example of how this

works in practice.

In September 2022 PIC adreea to
Irvast £105 million to forwara fund

a new 130,000 square foot Net Zero
office, to be let to the Governrment
Property Agency {"GPA") for 25 years.
The new site, which unaerlines the
Government's commitment 1o levelling
Jp, will house approximately 2,500 civil
servants, including over 700 roles
which will be relocated from London
to Manchester as part of the Places
for Growth intiative,

The move of civil service roles to
Manchester is expected by the
Government tc generate £31 million in
economic benefits for the city, due
toincreased footfall and spending
from staf”.

For more information on
our Private investments
please see p26-29

The First Street development
is part of the Government
Hubs Programme which

will provide a smaller, better
and greener estate, which
supports the Government’s
ambition to reach Net Zero
carbon emissions by 2050.”

Clive Anderson
GPA’s Director of Capital Projects

12 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Key benefit for
policyholders.

Long-term investments

N property infrastructure
denerate low-risk, long-term
cash flows that pay our
oolicyholders’ pensions.

Socially valuable outcomes
of our investment

Purposeful investments
e The Board has oversight of PIC's
investments to ensure alisnment with our
purpose and strategy, and to promote the
long-term interests of the company ana
the intarests of PIC’s policyholders.
Through PIC’s specialist commitieeg, the
Investment and Crigination Committeg,
investment aetails are reviewed and the
social benefits considered.
e This investment will serve the wider
Manchester community and provide
security to cur policyholders.

Benefits of construction

» 70% of on-site jobs sourced locally at the
very start of construction.

* Younger genergticns are supported
through collaboration with six local
schools and colleges. Initiatives include
careers fairs, school visits and workshops
1o explore the different career paths on
offer within constructicn.

Ongoing benefits

e The First Street Manchester office will
openin 2025 and will be home 1o ot least
four different Government cepartments.
it will be one of tne largest nubs for
cross-Government collaboration

outside Londen.

Expected to generate £31 millicn

N economic benefits for the city.




PIC invests £83 million
in regeneration lease,
funding housing for
London Borough

of Newham

In March 2022, PIC made an £83 million
investment in partnership with the
London Borough of Newham {“LBN"),

to fund the construction of 161 homes.
As part of LBN's housing strategy, which
seeks to actively manage the financicl
and social implications of the area’s
housing shorttall, the invesbinenl will
fund the regeneration of a brownfield,
inclustrial site near London City Airport.
The site will permanently re-horne

local families, with up to 50% of the
properties intended to be affordable
housing, generating considerable social
value. Reef Group are the developers.

LBN’s housing strategy will not only
provide secure, good-guality housing
for residents currently in temporary
accommodation, but also provide
LBN with a rental income which helps
address their averall funding shortfall,
as well as o stock of well-maintained,
environmentally friendly properties
for decades to come.

Closing this transaction with PIC
dllows us to move ahead with
this key policy initiative. We are
delighted to have PIC working
with us on this project as they
have the expertise and the focus
to make the project a success
over the coming decades,
bringing considerable social
value to the Borough.”

Councillor Terence Paul
Lead Member for Finance
& Corporate Services at.
Newham Council

Supporting the West
Midlands rail franchise
with £102 million of
financing for new

rolling stock

In Qctober 2022, PIC announced it would
provide £102 million of delst financing to
support the delivery of new rolling stock
to Corelink Rail Infrastructure Limited
("Corelink”), which will lecse the trains

to the operator of the West Midlands

rail services.

The rolling sluck will conslst of two new
electric multiple unit fleets to be built
by Alstom, based in Derby, and one
new diesel multipie unit fleet already
built by CAF, based in Newport. The
units are scheduled to enter service
progressively in 2022 and 2023,

The transaction reprasents PIC's first
rolling stock infrastructure decl, The new
Corelink fleets will heln the West Midlands
operator to relieve overcrowding on its
lines, improving services for passengers.
New rail technology delivers significantly
enhanced energy efficiency compared
with the trains being replaced. The
optimised fleet of electric and diesel-
powered trains also produces significantly
lower levels of noise and exhaust gas
pollution, and as part of the investrnent,
Corelink has committed to cngoing
reporting on a comprehensive list of

ESG criteria.

Corelink is pleased to have
successfully compieted the
refinancing of its term loan
facility. The support that PIC
have provided is essential to
dllow Corelink to continue the
delivery of rolling stock for use
on the West Midlands network
which vitimately translates in
an improved travel experience
to passengers. We look forward
to continuing this long-term
partnership with PIC and thank
them for their support.”

Giorgiana Wegener
Asset Manager Director,
Infracapital, on behalf of Corelink

691-8L1d
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Chairman’s statement

Long-term value growth.

| am deeply impressed
by how much you can see
and feel the enthusiasm
for working at PIC.”

Firstly, let me say how privileged | am to succeed
Jon Aisbitt as Chairman of this tremendous
business, and to follow in his footsteps.

Jon maace an gutstanding contribution at ¢ crucial phase in
PIC’s growth, ensuring that our Governance Risk Managerment
Framework and internal controls have matured at the same
pace as that growth, and we all thank him for this and wish
nirm well for the future,

As fwrite this in January 2023, nobody a year ago predicted
the macro influences that have led to o peried of extreme
volatility and uncertainty in the financial markets: war in
Hkraine; the abrupt end to an easy money regime managed
by cantral banks; the aelaved conseauences of Brexit; and
considerable political disruption.

The conseguential rapia rise in Inflation and nominal interest

rates has ariven recessionary fears and the cost-of-living crisis.

Specifically, moverrents inreal yields on gilts exacerbated
market volatility curing the auturmn and PKC managed its asset
portfolic to ensure the continuing secdrity of policyholaers,
the maintenance of solvency capital ratios, and good returns
for our owners, | am pleased that the combination of our
inherently resilient business model, the clarity of our purpose,
and our experienced and talented management team have
ensureq tre business continues o thrive.

The results for the year ending 31 December 2022 are
strong. PIC ended the year with a solvency ratio of 225%
(FY2021: 168%), and adjusted operating profit of £388 million
(F¥2021 £533 milllon).

As the pension risk transfer market becomes significantly
bigger with implicaticns for aur own growth, we neea to
continue to build the organisation without losing our very
closa focus on operational resilience, incluaing rraintaining
the centrality of our policyholders to the business, ona the
quclity of our customer service,

As part of this, during 2022 the Board approved an evolution
of PIC's strategic objectives tc.

s Deing a "secJre ang sJstanable business”
e Dhaing a "responsible corporate citizen”; and
s crsuring "lang-term volue growth”

14 Pension Insurance Cerporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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A key part of achieving these objectives is ensuring that we

have the right peopic and capabilities in place. So, during the £388 m

year the Board focused on executive succession with a view

to further strengthening PIC’s leadership team, bringing in

the skills, experience, and knowladge needed for PIC to grow IFRS adjusted operating profit

approprintely Palicyhnldors have always heen central to
our purpose, and the new Consumer Duty regulation
crystalises some actions for the Board.

Over recent years the Board has spent considerable time ° s

encaging with the business on the Environmental, Social and 225 /o %

Governance {"ESG”) agendaq, both at a corporate level and s}

by looking at the practical implications for our portfolio as we ,5,

enact our pian to become Net Zer’o. This strong‘focus onr ESG Solvency ratio %

has been supported by the Board’s ESG Committee, which 2

helped ensure thot all other Boord committeas have ESG ®©

embedded into day-to-day dovernance. 8
3

Finally, as | have transitioned into the business, | have spent 8

a significant amount of time talking to PIC employees. | have

been deeply impressed by how much you can see and feel

the enthusiasm for working at the company. Partly thisis g2

due o the real social vaiue being created — and the link b

that employees can see between their roles and real 3

world outcames - and partly it's down to the exciterment

of working in a company that is growing and evolving,

My impression so far is of a challenging and fulfilling m

workplace for our employees. 8
3
s

I relish the challenge of helping guide PIC's future development. o
g

David Weymouth =

Chairman %
=
wv
g2
i
3

Our strategic objectives
Secure and sustainable business Responsible corporate citizen Long-term value growth
Optimise internal and Ensure our behaviours reflect Generate attractive returns over
external resources. our values, the lifetime of the business,

Reud mure about our strategic objectives on p20-21



Chief Executive Officer’s review

Focusing on our purpose.

Our long-term approach

to relationships underpins

a significant amount of !
new business.”

Tracy Blackwell
CEO

In a year of significant change for the economy and
particularly for defined benefit pension schemes, our focus
on our purpose, which is to pay the pensions of our current
and future policyholders, has stood us in good stead.

We enced the year with o rebust balance sheet, very high
customer satisfaction levels, and ¢ huge market opportunity
before us. Our purpose ensures that we always protect our
balance sheet ana prioritise risk management, as well as
helping us evolve our investment strategy as we seck cash
flows to match future pension payments, which stretch
decades into the future. As a business with ¢ very long-term
outiook, we seek to develop ongoing relatiaonships with our
clients and investment partners, a theme which 1s noticeable
in this year's results.

In February 2023 we announced the largest bulk annuity
transaction to date, the £6.5 killion buy-in of two pension
schemes sponsored by insurance company RSA, The
landmark deal includea very compiex stracturing
considerations ta accorrmodate the Schemes’ existing
longevity and asset swaps, paving the way for other, simiiar
rransactions. The aegl ties in with our business plan, ana
following full implementation of the fransaction PIC's
solvency ratio woula be in excess of 200% on a pro-forma
basis, bases on 30 December 2022 market conditions,

The deal was ariven by the rise in gilt yieias during 2022.
During the first half of the year this meant that defined
penefit ["DBE") pension schemes were becaoming ketler
fundeao and closer to Ceing able to buy out even before
the Liapility Drven Investment (LD ¢rs s,

However, the rapid increase in yields following the mimi-
buaget’, even where they fell back somewhat in the following
weeks, haa the overall effect of significantly reducing scheme
aeficits, bringing forward by several years trustees’ de-risking
plans, This has resulted in an exciting pipeline of new business
for 2023 and beyond.

Group highlights

PIC remains ideally placed to help trustees secure their
members' benefits. In terms of capital availabiity, we

ended the year with a very strong solvency ratio of 225%
(F¥2021:168%), with the increase largely driven by returns
from the in-force book alongside favourable economric
moverrents. We also rentain providers of excellent customer
service for policyholders, with sctisfaction levels of 95.6%

at year end (FY2C21: 99.6%).

As aresult of the strength of the balance sheet, and as
part of the Company’s long-term business plan, the Board
proposea an inougJdral dividend of 7.50 pence per ordinary
share o the Group's sharehoiders.

Ancther notable effect of the rnise in gilt yvielas this year has
been areduction in the size of our portfolic to £41.0 Billion
[FY2021: £51.1 bilhan).

However, because cur assets ana liabilities are gesignea to
move in the same direction, tne rise in gilt yieics also reducea
ourinsurance ligbilties, which stooo ot £33.0 billon at year
end (FY2021: £47.0 billion} ana we remain well positionea to
pay all cur future obligations.
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During the year we made pensions payments of £1,756 million
{FY2021: £1,594 million), with more than £10 billion’ in total paid
to our policyholders to date.

Since our first transaction, we have been given
responsibility for paying the pension benefits
of almost 400,000 scheme members,

Policyholder care

One of the unique things about PIC is that we arrange events
across the country for our policyholders to hear directly from
us about how we are securing their pensions. We've been
running these types of events since 2071, and with more than
25,000 attendees so far, they are very popular. For obvious
reqsons the in-person events haven't happened over the
past couple of years. 5¢ it was with real pleasure that | was
able to speak at our London Policyholder Day in November.
Transparency and accountability in the relationship between
financiai institution and the customer is crucial not only to
the long-term resilience and profitability of the institution
itself, but if replicated acress financial services, to the
wellbeing of the economy and society more generally.

Purposeful investments

Our long-term approach to relationships undearping a significant
amount of new business, as well as the sourcing of privately-
sourced debt investments. During the year we completed new
business volumaes of £4.1 billion (FY2021: £4.7 billion), with one of
the most significant transactions being the completion of our
third buy-in with the British American Tobacco ("BAT") Pension
Fund, insuring approximately £250 million of liakilities,

Since 2019, when we agreed innovative future terms

during the initial £3.4 billion buy-in, we have now nsured

all £4.1 bitlion of BAT pension liabilities. In total, we have
now completed 75 repeat transactions with trustee clients,
covering £15 billion of liabilities and the benefits of over
90,000 scheme members.

On the asset side, we have to date invested £11.4 billion

in UK direct investments, including a fourth investment of
£40 million in secured debt issued by mhs homes, a social
housing provider based in Kent, taking the total invested in
them to £130 million since 2076. This long-term partnership
has suppoerted the development of well over 1,000 properties
in the county. In 2022 over 20% of our privately-sourced debt
investments were to cur existing partners. See page 31 for
more detail.

£1,756m £41.0bn

During the year we initicted several projects, including an
investment of £130 million as cornerstone investors in the
UK's largest urban regeneration project, in the Wirral, and

a £102 millicn invastment to fiinance new rolling stock for the
Wwest Midlands Rail Franchise. We also started work on our
first retirement village, the initial develogment in our joint
vanture with Octopus Keal Estate. I'm proud that FIC 18
helping solve the UK's housing crisis through the funding

of accommodation for people across the demographic
spectrum. See pages 32 and 33 for more detail.

Social value

The scale of our investments mean that we are increasingly
heing recognised for cur growing impact across the country,
and the social value these investrnents generate. This is Qlso
important for our employees, with 84% of them seeing the
positive impact of their work on society. 89% of employees
are proud to work for PIC (FY2021: 90%).

The quality of our people is of the utmost importance to

us, not least in light of the considerable market growth we
expect over the coming years. So, we were vary pleased to
be awarded ‘Investors in People — Silvar' during 2022, a year
inwhich we brought on board a new Chairman, a new Chief
Operations Officer, a new Chief People Officer, and 156

new employees. We also continued our focus on cur talent
pipeline and it’'s pleasing that almost 5% of cur employees
are now part of our early careers prograrmmes, including
our graduates, apprentices and interns.

Finally, I'm delighted that we donated £1.5 million to cur
charity partner, Independent Age, to help them support clder
people struggling during the cost-of-living crisis. See poge 53
for more details.

Outlook

I'm very confident about the cutlook for the business. With a
low-risk portfolic, PIC is a countercyclical business that is in a
strong position to help trusteas move their members' benefits
to the protection of the insurance regulatory framework. The
axpected flows of assets and liabilities out of defined benefit
{"DB") pension schemes and into companies ke PIC over
coming years will change the face of the country.

Tracy Blackwell
Chief Executive Officer

99.6%

Pensions paid

1 Total paid to policyholders from 2013 onwards. Amounts paid before
2022 have been adjusted far inflation,

Overall portfolio size

Policyholder satisfaction
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Business model

Delivering value for our stakeholders.

The purpose of PIC is to pay the pensions of our current and future policyholders.
As we secure pensions, one outcome is the generation of long-term
shareholder returns.

How we create value

Operate the business

Cur employees are fundamental to the successful operation of our business. Exhibiting the PIC values, we provide
innovative solutions, comprehensive risk management, and deliver excellent customer sarvice.

Originate and manage investments

Liakilities are taken warking with ocur investment partners through cur purposeful
on from defined Investrent strategy, we seek secJre assets that create social
benefit pension value and match our licbilities for decades ta come.

scheme trustees and
sponsors. PIC licises
with trustees,
understands the

o T i Manage PIC’s purpose is to
scheme, ana ransition h i f
! ) Take on Mhrb and pa pay the pensions o
determines a price to liabifities liabilities i : Iﬁ our current and future
fake ofi the scheme labi and assets policynolder policyholders.
ligbilities. We receive pensions

a premium for taking
on the liakitities. We
hedge the longevity,
nterest rate anc
inflation variakility to
establish more
certain outgoings,
which we then match
with purposeful public
and privately sourced
assets, funasa by the
premium paid.

We strive to pay
accurately and
or time and provide

Raise and manage capital the highest levels of
custamer service,

Capitalis raised from equity and debt investars. Having paia our
palicyholaer commitments, surplus capital is releasea back to
the capital provicers, or is reinvested. We seek to provide
attractive risk-adjusted returns while retaining a heaithy buffer
in excess of regulatory reauirements

Manage third party relationships

Through our Third 2arty Managemrent anc We seek te maintain cpen ana constructive relationships
partnership model, we mgintair strong relaticnships with regulators and policymakers.
with our key suppliers.

Reaa more cbout our stratedic abjectives on p20-21
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Our stakeholders

...the value delivered

Policyholders

We secure our policyholders’ pensions through
purposeful investments and comprehensive risk
management. We strive {0 pay pensions
acecurately and on time, delivering excellent
customer service, reflected in policyholder
sulisfuction level of 99.6%.

Defined benefit
pension scheme
trustees and
SPONSOrs

We take an innovative and flexible approach to
rensinn risk tronsfer fransgctions with trustees,
sponsors and their advisers to provide tailored
solutions that meet the transaction’s needs.

Society

In pursuit of our purpose, we are a significant
investor in the economy. We create social value
and provide investment in urban regeneration,
social housing and renewable energy for the
benefit of generations to come, balancing
intergenergtional equity. What makes sense for
society helps PIC achieve its long-term aims.

Climate change considerations are increasingly
integrated throughout the organisation’'s
decision-making processes.

See pages 26-33 for more infarmation on our
investrments that provide value for society.

Regulators and
policymakers

We seck to maintain open and constructive
relationships with regulators and golicymakers,
and ensure that we have a secure and
sustainable business.

Counterparties
and investment

We have g partnership model of engagement
with our outscurced providers and key suppliers,
astablishing long-term partnerships, working

partners together on key topics such as climate
change risk.
Employees We provide the opportunity for our employees

to work in a stimulating, fair and rewarding
workplace. We strive to create o diverse
and collaborative workforce focused on our
purpose, where 89% of employees are proud
towork at PIC.

Capital providers
(debt and equity)

Returns for our capital praviders are generated
over the long term.

As policyholder abllities fand the prudent margins
held above them) run off, excess capital emerges.
At FY2022, we held £8.8 billion of excess assets

to cover solvency and prudent margins that will
generate future cash flows which can be returned
to capital provigers or reinvested in the business
to fund future growth.

For more on outcomes for cur stukeholders, plegse see the
Stakehoider engogement section on p38-3% and see the
Section 172 statement on p40-43

For more information visit

www,pensioncorporatien.com/investors

What differentiates PIC?

Customer service

Central to our culture is our focus

on customer service. We value all

our stakeholders and work hard to
provide an exceptional service to all
our customers (policyholders, trustees
and sponsors). We listen to und ure
responsive to their situation and needs.

People

PIC employs highly skilled individuals
who all work to deliver ¢ common
purpose, supported by a culture of
innovation and a strongd set of values.
PIC has always invested heavily in
making our workplace an attractive and
rewarding place to work. We succeed by
employing high guality individuals and
then providing the support mechanisms
to allow them to grow.

Reputation

PIC prides itself on its reputation.

Our reputation means that our
policyholders, clients, employees and
partners, current and future, can be
sure that they will be cealing with o
company grounded in strong values,
delivering value for its stakehaolders.
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Our Strategic objectives

Fulfilling our purpose.

Our strategic objectives are
designed to guide the business to
fulfil our purpose, which is to pay
the pensicns of our current and
future policyholders. This means we
pricritise excellent customer service,
underpinned by a strong balance
sheet, long-term value creation, and
a purposeful investment strategy.

Strategic objectives that reflect our ambitions
in fulfilling our purpose

During 2022, we reviewed our strategic objectives to
ensure that they reflected cur culture and values as

we seek to fulfil our purpose. Subsequently, the Board
approved an evolution of PIC's strategic objectives

from “financial strangth and cost efficiency”; “returns”,
“reputation and conduct”; ana “growth and focus” to
"secure ond sustainoble business”; being o “responsible
corporate citizen”; and ensuning “long-term vaive growth™

Our three strategic objectives highlight our ambition for
long-term value growth, ensuring that we behave as
raesponsible corporate citizen in pursuit of this ambition,
and provide a secure and sustainable business for

our stakeholdars.

In pursuit of these strategic objectives, PIC follows a
three-pillar approach to our strategic risk management
Qims of “providing sufficient financial resources”;
“effective ana resilient operations™ and "meeting
external expectations”. More information on these
strategic aims can be found in our risk management
section, pages 64-71.

We use key performance indicatars (“KPIs") to measure
our progress in pursult of our strategic objectives. We
keep our KPis under constant review to ensure they
rermain relevant and informative. Qur cdrrent KPIs are
set out on pages 22-23

Secure and
sustainable business

Optimise internal and external resources.
PIC provides iong-term security for our policyholders
by being a sustainable business for the duration of
our commitments to our policyholders. This means
being efficient in what we do, and conducting
business in line with our risk appetites. We put

the returns that we earn back into the business,
investing in line with our purpose inlong-term
sustainable assets, allowing us to support
generctions of future policyholders.

Responsible
corporate citizen

Ensure our behaviours reflect our values.
At PIC, we want to do the right thing in the right
way. By acting in line with our values in pursuit of
our purpose, we behave as aresponsible corporate
citizen, This goes beyond the actual payment

of pensions, but further to ensure that our
policyholders receive the highest leveis of service,
clear communications, and helpful engagement
from PIC. We aiso consider the impacts of our
activities on society, considering all aspects of
Environment, Social and Governance {“ESG").

Long-term
value growth

Generate attractive returns over

the lifetime of the business.

PIC’s purpose is to pay the pensions of our current
and future policyholders, which means investing
for the long term. We do this by investing in
purposeful assets, providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns cver the long-term.
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Performance in 2022
s Maintained a robust
solvency ratio throughout
the year, with surplus
funds of £4.0 billion
in excess of solvency
copital rempiirements
e £8.8 billion of assets held
in excess of best estimate
liabilities.
In May 2022, Fitch affirmed
PIC's Insurer Financial
Strength rating at A+’
{Strong) and PIC’s long-term
Issuer Default Roting at A
both with a 'Stable’ outlook.

Performance in 2022

¢ Continued to provide
excellent custormer service
to cur policyholders. 99.6%
of cur policyhclders
expressed overdl|
satisfaction with

our service levels.

As well as holding the
Institute of Customer
Service's ServiceMark with
Distinction, PIC achieved
the “Investors in Pecple
Silver Standard”.

e C.£17 millon donated to
charity on behalf of PIC and
its employees.

The Board signed off PIC's
Sustainability Strategy

Qur focus in 2023
s Continuing to originate

and broaden our range
of purposeful assets that
odd social value while
generating attractive
retirms

Continuing tc review

the changing Solvency |l
regulations and how these
may be applied to PIC's
business model and
capital allocation and
management.

OQOur focus in 2023
e Continue to engape with

our pelicyholders through
a 2023 events programme
to be held throughout the
UK and virtually; see the
Policyholder Day case
study on page 8.

Develop our partnershins
with Women in Banking
and Finance and Red Start
Eclucate.

Formally incorporate the
FCA's new Consumer Duty
regulation as it applies to
our policyholders.

Risks and opportunities

See pages 66-71for our
key risks and how we
manage these.

Daveloprment of long-term
partnerships to originate
purposeful assets, securing
the pensions of policyholders
for years to coma,

Preparing the business

in anticipation of the
implementation of the
reforms to the Solvency i
regulatory regime.

Risks and opportunities

See pages 66-71 for our
key risks and how we
manage these.

Increase social value by
investing in line with our
nurpose, in retirement villoges,
regenerction leases and other
built envirenment initictives.

Progress our sustainabifity
strategy which looks ot ESG
matters as they relate to all
our stakeholders.

Link to stakeholders

Regulators
Trustees

Counterparties

Link to stakeholders

Policyholders
Regulators

Trustees

Performance in 2022

e Maintained disciplined

pricing, consistent with

long-term Internal Rate

of Return targets.

Completed £4.1 billion of

new business premiums

over 2022, meaning we
have now secured the

benefits of 302,200

policyholders.

s Monaoged ourin-force
nortfolio and experienced
limited downgrades within
the portfolio during the
year. We have also had no
defaults in the portfolio,

Our focusin 2023
s Continuing to drow the

business by supporting
trustees through buy-ins
and buyouts, with a very
healthy pipeline of
potential new business.
Strategically allocating
capital whera we can
generate attractive
returns.

Paying an inaugural
dividend to our
shareholders.

Risks and opportunities

See pages 66-71 for our
key risks and how we
manage these.

Strong pipeline of new
business, largely driven by
market conditions over 2022
resulting in more schemes in
an improved funding position,
prompting sponscrs to
consider de-risking sconer
rather than loter.

Continuing to transact with
previous clients as they arc
assured of the service that
we provide.

Link to stakeholders

Capital providers

Employees
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Key performance indicators

Medasuring our success.

PIC Solvency Il ratio’ (%)

The Solvency il ratio is a regulatory capital measdre thot
demonstrates the Company’s financial strength.

Performance

PIC’s solvency ratio has improved to 225% (20271 168%)
primarily due to favourgble market moverments and returns
from the in-force book. Our capital pasition has improved
despite turbulent market conditions and continues to
represent security for our policyholders whilst positioning
us well to take advantage of the opportunities presented n
the pension risk transfer (“PRT”) market in the coming year.

Adjusted equity own funds
(“AEOF™) {Em)

AEOQF is a shareholder view of PIC Solvency | Own Funds
after deducting hybrid debt and removing the impact of
transitional measdras on technical pravisions and risk margin.

Performance

AEOF was broadly stable at £5,852 million {Z021: £5,888 million)
as the benefits of writing new business and returns from the
in-force book were largely offset by market movernents. As we
hedge interest rate risk on the overall solvency balance sheet
and AEQF does not include the risk margin or Sclvency Capital
Reguirement, itis impacted differently by interest rate
movements as o result,

Adjusted operating profit before
tax?? ("AOPBT”) (Em)

AQPBT reflects the IFRS result relating to core business activities,
alangside certain managerent choices and decisions around
those activities, which incluces the writing and managerrent of
pension insurance contracts ana the management of risk threugh
reinsurance. This metric excluoes investment related variances,

Performance

AOPBT has decreased to £388 mithon (2027 £533 million).
Underlying profits improved in the year mainly driven by higher
returns on surplus assets and writing new business. This was
more than offset by favourable assumption changes which
increasea AOPBT in 2021 but which were not repeatea in 2022,

1 unaudited

Return on equity? 3 (%)

Return on equity is @ measure of the roling 12-month IFRS profit
after tax as ¢ percentage of overage IFRS equity (excluding
our Restrictea Tier 1 {"RT17) notes;

Performance

Return cn equity improvea o 21.7% (2021: 7.3%) due to higher
profit after tax in the year. This was ariven by higher new
business profit and returns on surplus assets, as well as
favourabie investment relatec variances, partly offset by
favourable assumption changes which increasea profit after
tax in 2021 but which were not repectea in 2022,

2 Wewill be refreshing our -SRS-based KPIs next vear to reflect the introduction of '“RS 17 Gur 2022 KR s are pubiished on the existing 'FRS 4 basis
3 Alrernative performance metncs "APMs”] are discussed in mere detal in the Chief Financial Officer’s review on poass 56-63.
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Market consistent embedded
value (“MCEV")' (Em)

MCEV is o measure of the present value of future after-
tax profits plus adjusted net osset value less an allowance
for the cost of capital and the market value of debt.

Performance

MCEV increased to £5.617 million (2021: £5,027 million)
primarily driven by the benefit of writing new business,
returns from the in-force book and favourable

market movements.

Expense ratio?*? (%)

The expense ratio is o measure of the operating efficiency
of PICG and reflects annualised operating and investment
expenses as a percentage of closing financial investments.

Performance

The ratio increased to 0.60% {(2021: 0.39%). The majority of
this increase was driven by @ 20% reduction in asset values
because of higher interest rates, alongsice higher expenses
to support growth.

Policyholder satisfaction (%)

Policyholders are asked to provide a satisfaction rating for
PIC's customer service. This metric shows the percentage
of customers surveyed who gave PIC a satisfied or very
satisfied rating. We monitor this percentage to ensure we
continue 1o deliver outstanding policyhoider service.

Performance
We gre pleased that our score remains high which evidences the
excellent quality of service we are delivering to ocur policyholders.

Customer focus (%)

Employees are asked, as part of an annual employee
engagement surveay, whether they believe PIC is "always
seaking to understand and meet customer needs”.

We began measuring this KPI from 2019.

Performance

These figures show the percentagde of employees who
believe PIC is customer focused. This demonstrates that as
we continue to build the organisation, policyholders remcin
central to our business. See pages 36-37 for more details.
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Origination market

PIC had a good year transacting

new pension insurance business, with
£4.1 billion of new business completed,
including five repeat transactions with
existing clients, representing c.£700
million of liabilities.

| think it's fair to describe 2022 as a huge year for aefined

benefit ("DB") pension schemeas. From the outside, the major

story of the year would, of course, be the severe market
dislocation caused by DB schemes’ use of Liabllity Driven
Investment stratedies ("LDIs"). LDIs have been a way for
underfunaed pension schemes to better manage their
assets te help them achieve higher levels of funaing, whilst
protecting themselves ogainst the risk of declines in asset
value relative to their liabilities.

But this is only part of the story, even though the
psychological impact of being in the eye of the storm: will
encourage more trustees to seek to buy out their schemes
ovar time. In fact, gilt yields were rising during the whole
year, effectively unwindimg a decade's worth of fallirg
and depressed yields in fess than 12 months.

The effect of historically low gilt yielas was persistently
underfundea DB schames, which forcea them to rely on their

Market trends

Total defined benefit pension
liabilities insured through
buyouts and buy-ins since 20082

£233bn

Assets held within UK defined
benefit pension schemes'

£1.4tn

We are known for our
strong relationships with
our trustee clients.”

Jay Shah
Chief Origination Officer

sponsors for aaditional funding to fill their deficits. The rise in
vields has had a momentous effect on funding — at year end
2022, DB schemres were on average ¢.20%* better funded than
they were at the start of 2022 with aggregate funding levels
approaching 90%? of buyout. Many schemes are much better
funded than this, with a number funded above buyout levels.

In fact, it is estimated that about 20%? of schemes can now
afford to complete a pension insurance buyout without
recourse to additional funding from the sponsor. This is at
least double the number? at the end of 2021. This lays the
foundation for what is expected to be a signitficant increase
N the size of the pension risk transfer market over the coming
years, with up to 250,000% pensicn scheme members
expected to bacome policyholders of life insurance
companies aver the next 12 months alone.

But this rise should not be surprising if you consider that DB
scheme liobilities fell by about E7 trillion during 2022 - they
now stand at ¢ £1.4 trillion, comparea with c.£2.4 trillion at
the end of 202712 This chande has a couple of impacts on

the Iife Insurance sector. The first is that each transaction

in the pension risk transfer market will, on a kke-for-like basis,
appear smaller. 5o, if the liabilities for a scheme ot the ena
of 2021 was £1 billion, for tne same scheme 't might be about
£600 - £700 mrillion ot the ena of 2022, But we expect this will
be more than compensated by the larger numrber of pension
scherres that can afforc to buyout.

Decline in defined benefit
pension scheme liabilities
during 20222

c.42%

2021: £205bn 2021 £1.7¢n
1 PPFE 7800 Index, December 2022.

2 LCP data, January 2023

3 PIC estimate

4 XPS DB:JK Tracker, February 2023.
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Over the last 15 years, insurcnce capacity has always met

or exceecded pension scheme demand, meaning that trustees
could come to the market more or less whenever they wanted
to. This dynamic is likely to reverse over the next three years
and the challenge for insurers is to scale up capacity,
something we are confident the industry is capable of doing,
whilst the challenge for trustees is to ensure that they are
properly prepared tor a transaction.

One of the continuing themes within the market has been
repeat transactions as a result of ongoing relationships
between trusteas and insurance companies. One of our
transactions during the year was ¢ buy-in covering the final
tranche of £250 million of liabilities within the British American
Tobacce Nension Fund. At the time of the original boy in,
covering £3.4 billion of llabilities in May 2019, the trustees
planned ahead and pre-agreed terms for future transactions,
allowing attractive pricing in difficult market conditions. This
deal was followed by a second £400 miltion buy-in in July 2021,
also covered by the innovative terms. PIC has now insured all
£4.1 billion of fund liabilities, covering the pensions of over
10,000 members.

PIC is well known within the industry for having strong
relationships with our Lruslee clients, and a result of this
approach has been 75 deals done with existing clients. This
represents about 30% of our total nurmber of transactions,
with over 90,000 members and about £15 billion of llabilities.

The other therne of note in the pension risk transfer market

has been the continued focus on Envircnmental, Sccial and
Governance {"ESG”) factors by trustees. This has moved beyond
a singular focus on environmental factors to include the creation
of social value through ¢ purposeful investment strategy. We
haove had particular nterest from trustees about our regional
presence, including the creation of jobs on our developrment
sites, as we document throughout this report.

I ook forward to a busy, productive pericd in the pension
risk transfer marke®.

Jay Shah
Chief Qrigination Officer

PIC completes c.£600 million buyout
of House of Fraser Beatties & Jenners
Pension Scheme

In June 2022, PIC concluded a pension insurance buyout with
the Trustee of the House of Fraser Beatties & Jenners Pension
Scheme {the "Scheme”), insuring ¢.£600 millicn of liabilities.
The transaction covers 3,850 deferred members and

5,050 pensioners.

The Scheme's principal employer, House of Fraser (Stores)
Limited, went into administration on 10 August 2078, The
Scheme entered Pension Protection Fund {"PPF”) assessment
on 31 August 2018 following the voluntary liquidation of the
remaining employer.

Since then, the Trustee completed thorough preparatory
work and evaluated the options availgble to secure member
benefits over the long term. Following this process, the
Trustee was satisfied that insuring the benefits with PIC

was the best outceme for the Scheme's members.

In addition, the terms negotiated by the Trustee mean
members whose pensions have been reduced as @ result of
the insolvency are expected to get an uplift to their pension.

We are pleased to have been able to secure this
buyout with PIC, which means members will receive
higher benefits than they would have under the PPF.
The buyout will also provide thousands of members
with certainty and long-term security for their
benefits. We see this as a very successful outcome
following the challenges caused by the insolvency,
and would like to thank PIC and our advisers who
helped us achieve this result.”

Steve Sargent
Chairman of the Scheme
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Investments

Qur purposeful investment strategy is
designed o do one thing: provide secure,
long-term cash flows te allow us to pay
the pensions of our policyholders over the
coming decades. It is a source of pride to
me and the whole team that we are able
to generate considerable social value as
we back our policyholders’ pensions.

The main story of 2022 is the reassertion of reality into
markets that have been distorted by monetary policy over
recent years, Gilt yielas have risen through the year, and
after the mini-budget rose to levels not seen since the Global
Financial Crisis. Although they subseguentiy declined, the net
effect is the substantiat unwinding of 15 years of monetary
policy. We've also seen inflation come rearing back, ana ¢
widening of credit spreads ana volatile asset values.

Overall portfolio size Total value of

£41.0bn

sustainable assets

£10.3bn

We have had a strong
year in developing our
investment capabilities.””

Rob Groves
Chief Investment Officer

We started the year confiaent in the portfolio due to
deliberate defensive positioning of our portfolio, designea
to ensure that our assets are positioned to withstand
potential economic headwinds. Due to this positioning, we
saw limited downgrades within the portfolio during the year.
we have also had no defaults in the portfolio. By contrast,
the return of risk to the markets megns we saw maore
opportunities to invest on a risk adjusted basis in secure,
high-auality assets than we have scen since the pandemic,
and these opportunitics have supported pricing for new
pension risk transfer business.

As the busineass continues to grow, we have been further
avolving the operational capabilities of the investment team,
builaing on the strong foundations that we have laid cver the
past decade ana more. Our existing operational capabilities
stood us in very good stead during last autumn's LDH crisis.
Whilst we den't invest in the LD funds which were at the
heart of the crisis — which were very much a product used by
defined benefit ["DB”) schemes - we do use aerivatives to
help us more closely match our assets to our future pension
cash flows, including removing foreign exchange risk where
we have invested outside the UK, and for inflation proofing
the portfolio. These investments meant that during the crisis
we were required to post more collateral, but we were able
o manage these operational challenges well and, indeed
our portfolio performed restiently.

Amount invested in the UK's
education sector to date

>£3.0bn

2021: £51.1bn 2021: £13.8bn

2021: £2.9bn
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Qur evolving capabilities were focused on two main areds
during the year. We completed the in-sourcing of ocur UK
listed credit portfolio, which is now managed by our own
team, reflecting our increased capabilities and scale. We
have also continued to develop our ability to directly source
secuJre long-term cash flows through investment in the built
environment and infrastructure sectors, what are loosely
termed productive assets, Our aebt origination team

has continued to perform well, including through the
development of long-term relationships with borrowers
such as long-standing partner mhs homes, and we have also
increased our capabilities in the growing Build-to-Rent and
regenergtion lease sectors. We are now significant players
in these sectors from o standing start three yaars ago.
There is more datail an our productive asset invastmaents

on page 31

Financial investments

At o portfolio level, rising gitt yields have two main impacts
for a specialist insurer like PIC, or a DB pension scheme, which
have large holdings of gilts. The main one is that the value of
aur future pension liabilities measured today is reduced,
because we expect to earn a higher rate of return on our
bond investments. Second, the value of our investments
also falls. The difference between specialist insurers and DB
schemes is that because insurers closely match ossets and
liabilities, assets and liabkilities broadly move in tandem, So
whilst our portfolic of financial investments was £41.0 billion
{FY2021: £511 billion} ot yvear end, cur insurance liabilities
declined to £33.0 billion {FY2021: £47.0 billion).

The majerity of our portfolio is invested in investrment grade
corporate debt and UK governmrent bonds. 91% of the
portfolio was rated investment grade {(FY2021% 94%).

As noted above, we have an extremely limited exposure

to consumer cyclical ndustries, and 50.1% (FY2021: 49.3%)

of the portfolio was invested in financial, utilities and
nan-cyclical consumer industries. In our view, these sectors
are better placed to cope in an economic downturn as

we seek to protect value and the cash flows which pay

our policyholders’ pensions. However, it is important to note
that, as long-term buy and hold investors, we invest with the
whole economic cycle in mind. This means that over a time
horizon of decades we expect to see several recessions, so

we are very focused on risk management within the portfolio.

It alsc means that we need the courage of our convictions
through the tough economic environments we expect over
that time period. No single counterparty, other than the UK
Government, represented more than 3.0% of the partfolio
{FY2021:1.5%).

Environmental, Social and Governance {"ESG”) investment
factors remain a key focus for the investment team as we
source new investments and manage existing holdings. We
have continued to map the carbon footprint of the portfolio
and we published our first Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures ("TCFD”) report during the year.
However, it is in our built environment that we have made
considerable progress, for example with our investment in
new, electric rolling stock, and the development of ¢ new
industry-leading ESG framewark far our Built Environment,
sector investments, such as the First Street development
in Manchester (see case study on page 12).

Overall, we have had a strong year in developing our

investment capabilities and in the investments that
we have made, ond | lock forward to 2023,

Rob Groves
Chief Investment Officer
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Investments continued

Corporate securities and private investments split Financial investments by asset class

by industry sector (31 December 2022)
Market Mar<et

value valle

2022 2027 2022 7021
Sector {Em) {Em) % %
Financial 5,558 7,039 25.6 255
Utilities 2,947 3,669 13.6 13.3 £41 Ob
Consumer, non-cychcal 2,326 2859 10.8 W05 . n
Communications 1922 2567 8.9 33
Energy 423 534 2.0 19
Consumer, cyclhcal 884 727 4.1 256
Industrial €93 817 3.2 30
Basic materials 343 500 1.6 1.8
Technology 1,207 1547 56 56 .

- Debt securities - Government 32.0%
Diversified 43 &0 0.2 02 Deb — - i 36.9%
Quasi-Governmeant 22 127 o1 05 e tsecur|.t|.e5 - ojrporul ¢ bt
Other 5,250 T2 24.3 258 Debt securities - Private investments 16.0%
Total 21628 27648 100 100 Equity release mortgages 2,5%

Mortgage backed and other asset backed securities 0.6%
Participation in investment schemes 2.8%
Deposits with credit institutions 2.2%
Corporate securities and private investments split Corporate securities and private
by country/region of issuance investments by rating
Market Market
value value
2022 2021 2022 2021
Country (Em} (Frm) % %
UK 9,794 14,058 45.3 509
us 6,666 8,013 20.8 290
Europe {ex UK) 3,500 3,797 16.2 13.7 £21 -6bn
Rest of world 1,668 1,780 77 &4
Total 21,628 27648 100 100
AAA 6%
AA 15%
A 37%
aes N . . BBB 40%
Corporate securities and private investments split
BE or below 1%
by currency
Unrated 1%
Market Varket
value value
2022 2021 2022 2021
currency (Em) (Em) % %
GBP (E] 12,621 17,270 58.4 562.5
JST (%) 8,155 2400 37.7 340
FLR{€) 801 523 3.7 33
A= a1 35 0.2 0.2
Totai 21,628 27648 100 100
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Breakdown of private investments by sector in 2022

£2.05bn

Social Housing 23%
Financials 18%
us PP 16%
Regeneration Leases 10%
Commercial Property 9%
Education 7%
Transport 5%
Build-to-Rent 5%
Other 3%
Government Guadrdhteed 2%
Utilities 1%
Not for Profit 1%

The socially beneficial power
of pensions

Collaboration with, and support of some of the
communities in the greatest need, forms an essential part
of work ccross all our developments. For a second year
we supported Lifeshare’s Christmas Project in Manchester.
Lifeshare offers homeless people and those In crisis a
place to find hot meals, companionship, medical and
persanat care, shower facilities, veterinary care, and other
amenities with the aim to reduce isclation and bring
people todgether.

The whole team behind our New Victoria Build-to-Rent
development in Manchester, which topped out in July this
year, donated use of the location, as well as volunteers
and supplies to Lifeshare, to make sure the homeless
community in Manchester had somewhere to go during
the Christmas period. A financial donation from the team
of £14,000 also meant that Lifeshare was able to extend
its weekend broakfast provision well into the New Year.

Helping to make this Lifeshare Christmas Project happen
at the New Victoria Build-to-Rent developrment were VINCI
Building, Muse, PIC, Chroma, Walker Sime, HAALO, WSP
and John Sisk.

in the Midlands, Court Collaboration and PIC are building
One Egstside, a ground breaking Build-to-Rent project in
the heart of Birmingham which will be the region’s first
official residential skyscraper at 51 storeys. Over 300 new
jobs involved during the construction will be created and
Court are committed to sourcing these roles from a
diverse range of local residents. They're alsc working with
Birmingham City University to launch the Spire Academy,
which will provide work experience, paid internships and
jobs on this scheme and others.

Court led the way in the Food SOS campaign in
conjunction with the Birmingharm Mail and rgised more
corporate donations through its supply chain than any
corporate organisation to date, which Graham Browne,
Editor of the Mall called: "A true example of business
coming together to help feed our citizens in times

of hardship”
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Investments: Built environment assets

PIC is investing for the long term,
backing the pensions of ocur
policyholders with debt and equity
investments that generate considerable
social value. Our built environment
assets are in sectors including Build-to-
Rent, Long Income, Social Housing and
University Accommodation, and

Senior Living. In total we have invested
£1.47 billion in these types of assets.
More details an how PIC invests in these

Spread of PIC commitment across all asset types

£1.47bn

assets can be found in the table below. Social housing and university accommodation 30%
Bulld-to-Rent 40%
Longincome 22%
Senior living 8%

Deal type/sector

Build-to-Rent

Longincome

Sociol housing and
university accommodation

Infrastructure

Structure PIC acqguires the land PIC acguires the PIC proviaes debt PIC provides debt
and forward funds the  land and funds the funding for highly rated  funaing for highly ratea
developrnent of the cdevelopment. On counterparties to allow  counterparties to allow
residentiat units with completion, the local them to progress them to initiate projects.
a view to owning and adthority/government developments
operating the assst bady enters into an and retrofitting
over the l[ong term, index-linked lease of existing units.

of up to 50 years.
Examples Institutional investrment  The funding PIC provides PIC is able to offer PIC's investments are

in this sector will be
beneficial for renters
as they see the
professionalisation of
building management.
For example with the
Manchester New
Victoria development.
See case study on
poge 32.

can unlock wider urban
regeneraticn projects,
such as in the Wirral.

Qur long-term focus
means that we expect
very high building and
environmental
standards.

deferred drawdown to
counterparties, saving
interest payments.

For example, 1IN
investments like those
in mhs homes and
the University of York.
See case studies on
page 33

helping organisations
such as the West
Midlandis rail service
reduce their carbon
oJtput, and increase
their focus on

ESG 1ssues.

Responsible
for building
maintenance

PIC

Local authority

Housing Association
ana student
accommoddation
aperator

The cwner of the project
or assats

Qver

1,100

jobs created across the portfolio
with more than 54% on average

being local labour

Qver

49

apprentices/trainees supported
to date

2,432

apartments under construction

and 12,000m? office space under
construction
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A significant percentage of the portfolio
is invested in what is known as productive
assets, such as urban regeneration,
renewable energy, and the UK's universities.

PIC has a purposeful investrent strategy, which is designed
to provide the cash flows to allow the company to pay our
policyholders’ pensions for decades te come.

A significant percentage of the portfolio is iInvested in what
15 known as productive assets, such as urban regeneration,
renewable energy, and the UK's universities.

These types of investrnents have the advantage of providing
us with stable and secure cash flows to match specific liability
payrments at maturities decades into the future, when publicly
listed debt is not available. Under the insurance regulatory
framework, Solvency |l, we are obliged to cash flow match

all our future projected pension payments by the month, so
sourcing these types of cash flows is crucial to us fulfilling

our purpose.,

At the same time, these types of investments create
significant social value. For example, we currently have

more than 1,000 people working on our censtruction sites
across the UK, including at our £130 million development in the
Wirral, we've funded enough social housing 1o accommodate
more than 130,000 people, equivalent to the population of
Watford: and we are driving up ESG standards for developers,
including through our market-leading frarmework created for
our Manchester First Street development.

Cur £20C millicn Build-to-Rent project in the centre of
Birmingham, announced in Novermber, will create over

300 new jobs. We also have plans with the developer, Court
Collaboration, to create o student ccadermy, which is intended
to allow hundreds of local students to develop their skills and
knowledge with the aim of improving their future employment
prospects. The programme will include work placements and
on-site course opportunities and experience.

We evolve the camposition of the portfolio and new sectors for
this year include the development of a retirement community
in St Albans In a joint venture with Octopus Real Estatas and
Elysian Residences, as weall a £102 million investment in new
rolling stock to support the West Midlands rail franchise.

As in previous years, we have worked in partnership with our
existing counterparties, such as mhs homes, a social housing
provider based in Kent. In October we announced a fourth
investment, of £40 million, in its secured debt, taking our
total investment to £130 million as part of our long-term
partnership to address the housing crisis. The partnership is
funding the development of well in excess of 1,000 homes in
the areq, helping alleviate the housing crisis.

We also continue to be flexible ond innovative in heiping
our countorpartios address thoeir needs. Tor examplo, in
October, we invested £50 million in debt issued by the
University of Bath. The funds are refinancing an existing
loan, but this allows the university to focus on the quality
of education provision, develop their world-leading research,
and continue to improve the student experience. PIC
wos chosen os the university’s preferred partner for

the transaction based on our ability to provide a 50-year
maturity. We have a growing reputation to be able to
meet borrowers' needs, including long tencrs, deferrad
drawdowns, and lending in multiple currencies.

During the year, we sourced £362 millicn of Equity Release

Mortgages (“ERMs"), which are another good match for our
long-term lickilities, and help diversify the portfolio. At year
end we hod invested £1.0 billion {FY2021: £11 billion) in ERMs.

We made privately sourced debt investments of £271 billion in
the year. This included sectors such ¢s higher education, with
£150 million invested in the period, and social haousing, with
around E470 million invested in the pertod. In total, we have
invested £3.6 billion in social housing and more than £3.0 billion
in the UK's education sector.

We alse invested more than £300 million in Build-ta-Rent, and
more than £300 million in long income in the year, and now
have £1.47 billion in total invested in projects like these which
help regenerate our cities.

At 31 December 2022, £10.3 billion (FY2021: £13.8 billion),
is now Invested in sustainable assets.
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Investments: case studies

PIC and Octopus Real Estate
to build £115 million retirement
community in St Albans

In November 2022, Senior Living Investment
Partners, o partnership betwesn PIC andg
specialist reqal estate lender and investor Octopus
Real Estate (“Octopus”) announced its first
retirement community investment via a joint
venture with Elysian Residences. The joint venture
has acguirea a nine-acre site with planning
consent to develop 124 residences in an
Integrated Retirement Community ("IRC")

in How Wouod, in St Albans, Hertfordshire,

Senior Living Investment Partners aims to house up
10 2,000 people In the coming years across ten IRC
developments. The communities developed will
have strong ESG credentials, targeting o BREEAM
“Excellent” rating and delivering apprenticeship
opportunities te local yound pecple.

IRC developments ease pressure on the NHS
through the provision of on-site care facilities and
wellbeing amenities, which promote a healthy
lifestyle for oloer resiaents. It is estimated that
zach personin ¢ later living aevelopment saves
the NHS and social services ¢.£3,500 per year.

Developing more retirement
communities at pace presents a
brilliant opportunity for investors,
operator parthers, those approaching
or in retirement, and for the UK and

the Government’s Levelling Up

agenda. This first investment via our
partnership with PIC has the prospect
to deliver both strong returns for our
stakeholders and strong impact returns
by combatting some of the UK's biggest
problems, not least the housing crisis
and pressures on health services.”

Kevin Beirne
Head of Retirement Living,
Octopus Real Estate

New Victoria, Manchester

As developments such as PIC's first Build-to-Rent
scheme — New Victorio in Manchester - approach
completion, it's becoming clearer how Build-to-
Rent will become an integral part of UK hoJdsing
delivery and economic growth.

During the first vear of construction, the oward-
winning developrment, which is helping regenerate
a key part of the city centre, injected £50 million
into Greater Manchester's economy throueh local
employment and the scurcing of maternals by our
development partners.

Once complete, New Victoria witl comprise 520

new residential acpartments and over 7,000 square
feat of amenity space.

520

new residentiatl
apartments

7,000

square feet of
amenity space

We are delighted to be working with PIC
and Octopus Real Estate to provide a
much needed integrated retirement
coemmunity in St Albans. PIC is at the
forefront of driving change, embracing
new ideas and identifying innovative
solutions in the pensions industry..we
see our partnership putting customers
front and centre, continuing to innovate
for the benefit of both customers and
society, and working hard to serve

all key stakeholders, including the

local community.”

Gavin Stein
CEQ of Elysian
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PIC increases investment in
mhs homes, taking total to
£130 million as part of our
long-term partnership to

address housing crisis

In October 2022, PIC made its fourth investrment of
£40 million, in secured debt issued by Kent-based
sacial housing provider mhs homes.

FIC's first debt investment in mhs homes was a
£40 millien transaction to provide over 400 new
properties, signed In 2016, with a further two
transactions totalling £50 million in 2017 and 2021,

mhs homes provides and mandages ovear
9,500 homes in the Thames Estuary with the
majority being general needs, ard houses
over 25,000 tenants.

The funding will go towards new homes and will
help improve existing homes over the next five
years, helping imprave energy efficiency and
reducing fuel poverty for tenants,

We are delighted to have completed
this fourth transaction with PIC. This
funding will help provide over 600 new
properties in Medway and surrounding
areas. The flexible arrangements
agreed with PIC meet the requirements
of cur business plan and provide the
long-term funding to match our
aspirations. Our ultimate ambition

is to help end the housing crisis in
North Kent by providing safe and
sustainable homes.”

Bruce Shelmerdine
Group Finance Director, mhs homes

University of York

A flagship University of York student
accommodation campus has reached
completion, creating 1,480 bedrooms across 18
accommodation blocks for the increasing student
population. The L1660 millien investrnent, which PIC
funded In 2018, has now been handed over to

the University.

The new accommodation aligns with the
University of York's development mastarplan,
helping to address demand for much-needed
student housing.

A sustainable approach to construction has been o
key driver of the build, with GRAHAM deploying an
innovative use of Modern Methods of Construction
("MMC") and adopting an off-site modular sclution
throughout the construction programme. Using MMC
brings significant benefits, Including enhanced
quality, accelerated construction programmes,

and reductions in energy use and waste.

This meant that the key structures could be
constructed in a controlled environment, where
energy was used more efficiently than traditional
on-site building through the reduced use of mains
energy and fuel-hungry generators. The MMC
programme enabled the first accommodation
block to impressively top out after only 26 days.

Throughout the build, project partners consistently
worked and communicated with the local
community as the development progressea.
During the project, GRAHAM created 11
cpprenticeship opportunities and 13 work-
experience placements on-site.

£160m

investment

For mare information visit
www.pensioncorporation.com

purposeful-investments
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Transition and client management

What is transition and client management?
Transition management is the process of transferring

a pension scheme and its members to PIC following a
buyout. Once the contract has been signed, PIC's tronsition
management team works with trustees and advisers to
aesign a process transferring pension scheme members

to PIC, as our policyholders for life. Far buy-ins, the team
locks after the ongoing relationship with the trustee, which
nomany coses can cover multiple buy-ins conducted over
many years. For these transactions, bulding long-term
relationships is central to @ strong and lasting partnership.

Successfully transitioning ¢ scheme is aependent on
several factors, ncluding reconciting and verifying data
across the scheme membership, successful collaboration
and communication with trustees and their advisers,
and strong project management and teamwark. The
process, depanding on the size and complexity of the
scheme, can take from several months to several years,

Tha priority throughout is ensuring that individual members
continue to receive their payments and are fully informed
at all stages of the trans:tion. Each transition follows

a comprehensive plan, which establishes the requirad
governance and includes regular checkpoints 10 report

on prodrass.

We are delighted to have completed this
transaction in unsettling times. Yell and the

Plan’s Trustees worked closely together for many
yedars to improve the Plan's funding levels and by

working with PIC, we were able to act quickly to
secure our members’ futures. PIC has a proven
track record and an excellent reputation for
customer care, which we have experienced
first-hand, and ’d like to thank them for helping
us achieve this excellent outcome.”

Chair of Trustees

John Reeve of Finsbury Trustee Services Limited,
Trustees for the Yell Pension Plan

September 2022

1 Cumulative figures

Key aspects of transition and

client management

s Manoge the transition of schemes to PIC, including

hulicing relationships with PIC's clients, their advisers

and internal departments

Ensure that PIC and its clients meet their cbjectives

as set out in the buyout contract

Ensure PIC cdapts the funaing of members’ pensions

following any benefit changes made by the trustee

» Guide trustees, company representatives, consultants
and administrators thraueh the post-cantract
transition process

+ Manage relationships with all stakeholagers and PIC's
thira party suppliers to ensure a successful scheme
transition, within agreed tirnescales and budget

» Work with the scheme’s trustees to ensure that the

scheme’s mempers (and PIC's future policyhoiders)

receive an excellent experience throughout the

transition, based on clear, timely communications,

management of aeadlines, and progctive, high-quality

cusiomer service

Ensure that data transitioned into PIC's aperating madel

is accurate, complete and gppropriately protected

Adapting to our clients” needs

At PIC our focus is on fostering long-term client
relationships and delivering first-class client experiences,
This is evidenced through the 75 aeaqls that have been
done with repeat clients. This is equal to 90,000 members
and £15 billion of liabllities

A key tenet of the PIC offering is the ability to listen and
respond to the neceas of our trustee clients. During 2022,
many schemes looked to PIC to help them transition their
schemes in a reduced timeframe, without compromising
on guaiity or attention to detail. The experience of
trustees and pension scheme members during this crucial
phase s a key focus for PIC and its managernent team.
Progress on each scheme’s transition is formally reported
on at every PIC Board meeting and we are proud that our
clients consistently rate PIC highly on customer care,
service and maonagement.

34 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annuai Report and Accounts 2022



Overview of our client portfolio

Qur clients include:

50

schemes in transition during 2022, covering

130,000 £18bn

members, and of liabilities, which are
expected to transition
into the business

75

deals done with repeat clients, equal to

90,000 £15bn

members and of liabilities

393,000

total number of pensions insured since 2006

302,200 259

number of total schemes secured
policyholders insured
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Customer care

At PIC, high standards of customer

care run throughout the organisation.
We are proud that our purpose is to pay
the pensions of cur current and future
policyholders and that this purpose
dictates the way we approach all
aspects of our business.

Taking care of our policyholders

Policyhoiders come to us following o buyout and rely on PIC

t0 pay their pensions consistently and accurately. Ensunng

our policyholders get the night outcomes s our number one
priority and we are proud to be recognised as one of the leading
custamer service providers by the Institute of Customer Service
("1CS"), a reputation that we have built and maintained over
many years.

PIC has shown that it is committed to
improving its customer service offering and
customer outcomes...PIC's strong ethos of
serving their customers is the reason that
they continue to demonstrate leadership.”

Jo Causon
CEOQ of the Institute of Customer Service,
ServiceMark with Distinction gssessment

Ensuring our policyholders
receive the right outcomes
is our number one priority.”

Lance DelLuca
Chief Operating Officer

Customer service benchmarking

To ensure we regularly benchmark ourselves on our customer
service pravision, PIC works with the ICS. As an important

oart of this partnership, PIC participates in their ServiceMark
assessment — a national standard recognising ¢n crganisation’s
achievement in Customer Service. Having attained the ICS's
standard ServiceMark accreditation in 2015, PIC has hela the
ICS’s highest accreditation - the ServiceMark with Distinction —
since 2077, PIC is one of only 22 companies natienally to hald

a Distinction.

The results of PIC’s 2022 ServiceMark survey cenfirmed that our
focus on cJustomer service is recognised through the experience
of our customers and empicyees. Both continued to rate PIC
above Distinction standard. Palicyholaers also scored PIC on
avergge 8% higher than other UK companies for key measures
such as Customaer Ethas, Emotional Connection, and Ethics.

Our service principles
Qur service model is simple and 1s based
an three principles:

Respona to cach customer’s indivicaal
needs, including those who need
aaditional suppart

We make it gquick and easy for
cur customers o deal with us

We focus on quality cutcorres

These principles help rmake it easy for our customrers
to trust us to deliver on our pPromises.
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Partnering with Capita Pension Solutions (“Capita”)
PIC's award-winning administration services are provided by
Capita. The PIC team work very closely with Capita ond have
invested time and rescurce into designing o bespoke service
modal that meets PIC’s high standards of customer care

and includes industry-leading service and contract aspects.
Together with PIC's customer care team they operate

as ong department providing ¢ dedicated, high-quality

customer experience.

The individuals that make up our service team at Capita are
carefully chosen so that they are the right fit for PIC. They share
PIC's values, complete PIC training, and even take partin our
ServiceMark assessments as ‘PiC’ employees.

PIC has comprehznsive canttols inpluce lononilor and
maintain the excellent levels of service we expect. These
include access to all Capita administration systems and
allows PIC to seamlessly compiete random file and call
reviews. Our partnership with Capita results in high standards
of quality across the board and fast response rates when

our customers contact us.

Quality performance in 2022;

51.7%

Net Promoter Score
Service:
>98%

(-]

Enquiries answered in
3days

7 secs

Average call answer time

99.6%

Satisfaction rate from
customer surveys

99.4%

Calls answered
in 30 secs

Working with vuinerable customers

Locking after the needs of vulnerable customers is important
to PIC. Understanding these needs and being alert to changdes
in individuals” circumstances is of paramount importance to
us and cccordingly we have ‘Board Champions” for key areas
like vulnerable customers and customer service - making
sure quality and consistency of service permeate throughout
the Company.

As part of our ongoing commitment to our policyholders,

we undertook several initiatives dunng 2022 designed to
make things easier for vulnerable customers. These included
overhauling our corporate and policyhelder websites to
make them more accessible for vulnerable customer groups,
by introducing text size control and improving navigation, as
well as Improved styling and colour schames tor the visually
impairad. These enhancements led to our corporate site
being graded level AA in the Worldwide Web Consortium’s
Web Accessibility Initiative {"WAL),

In addition, we have further developed our customer service
team to include a vulnerable customer officer and the full
team receives specialist training focused on helping and
understanding the needs of vulnerable customers.

Above ali, we are keenly aware that vulnerability can mean
different things to different people. It can come and go as short
and long-term circumstances change for example at times of
beregvement or with long-term deteriorating health conditions.

We believe in grect customer service for everyene, regarciess of
their circumstances. We therefore have a large scale, company
wide project underway to ensure we are leading the way in
making sure our customers, including those that need more
support, get the best possible service.

Industry-leading policyholder events

Our policyholder events are ¢ key feature of our customer
sarvice offering and are recognised throughout the industry.
We are the only insurance company in our sector to hold such
events, because we believe in meeting the people whose
pensions we lock after. PIC employees are required to attend
at least one event every two years and that applies from our
graduates right up to our Board members. Attending these
informal lunches and Policyholder Days helps to keep our
customer service ethos alive, connecting day-to-day roles

to the Company purpose in a meaningful and tanaible way
for our ernployees.

wWe were pleased to be able to reintroduce cur popular
face-to-face events during 2022, while continuing to host ¢
virtual session for thase that prefer to engage with PIC from
the comfort of their homes. In total, PIC held six events during
2022, hosting nearly 2,000 of our policyholders ¢t a number
of different locations. Policyholders enjoyed meeting up with
former colleagues, alongside some hospitality and, at our
full-day session in London, enjoyed a motivational talk from
our guest speaker Sir Steve Redgdrave. PIC executives and
employees were also on hand to provide an update on the
Company and answer any guestions that our customers
may have abaut how their pensions are safeguarded.

Lance DeLuca
Chief Cperating Officer
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Stakeholder engagement

Ouvur stakeholders.

A key part of fulfilling PIC’s

purpose is balancing the needs and
requirements of all the Company’s
stakeholders. Over the next six
pages we explain what this means
in practice.

Policyholders

See more on how we engage with our policyholders
during their policyholder journey on p6-7

What matters to them

e Secure pensions

s Pensions paid on time

e Clear, honest communications

s High-quality customer service and transparent outcomes

* That the gssets backing their pensions create social value
and benefit younder and future generations

Why we engage

s Policyhalders are our key stakeholder group, yet they do
not sign the initial transactions - we therefore waork hard to
build trust in our Company. Ongoing engagement is
consistent with proviaing good customer cutcomes and
helps us continue to Improve our customer service

How we engage

e Our policyholaers are able to engage with us through
the communication method which suits them best

e Allrelevant communications are Crystal Marked by
the Plain English Campaign

¢ Our policyholders are invitea to unigue, complimentary
events, where they can meet ana question PIC's
manadgement in a relaxed and enjoyable setting — now
back in-person

2022 outcomes

» Institute of Customer Service feedback based on
policyhalder feedback places PIC as the most highly rated
insurer in the country for customer service

Shortlisted for two Institute of Customer Service Awards
25,000+ people have attenaec a PIC Policyhaolder Day
since our first one 1N 2011

Defined benefit pension
scheme trustees

What matters to them

s Long-term thinking and a partnership approach
s Focus on social value

s Ability to transact in difficult markets

& Innovative and flexible approach

Why we engage
s Trustees are the stokeholder group who transact with PIC,
ensuring security for their members pensions

How we engage

e Fach pension risk transfer transaction is managed by a

dedicated team ot PIC

We seek to structure transactions that solve the specific

issues faced by each Trustee Board

e The transition of scheme memibers is given the same level
of care ond attention as the original transaction

e PIC's buy-in trustae clients receive ragular spdateas, as well
as close engagement on key 1ssues, such as ESG

2022 outcomes

e Since ouwr first deal, PIC has insurea the lives of over
290,000 scheme members

» Trustee clients have returned to insure 75 deals with us

» These deals have covered the benefits of over 90,000
scheme members and liabilities of £15 billicn

Regulators and
policymakers

What matters to them

» Policymakers have been engaged 1n the process of
legislative and regulatory reform for financial services

» QOur main regulator, the Prudential Regulation Authority’s
“PRAM primary objective is policyhcolder protection, closely
aligned to PIC’s purpose

Why we engage

s Ongoing engagement with policymakers helps them
understand the issues faced by financial services
companies and develon their approach, especially around
investment in proaJctive assets that create social value

s Working closely with the PRA I1s key to fulfilling PIC's purpose
ang strategy

How we engage

e PIC actively participates in poblic policy debates
affectung the financial serv.ces sector, as well as the
econormy more generally

e PIC seeks to maintain an open, proactive dialogue
with regulators

2022 outcomes

» PIC has engaged extensively with the Treasury and cther
Parliarmentary stakeholders on the issues of Sclvency  reform,
as well as Superfunos, and the Financial Services & Markets Bill

e PIC has also engaged with the PRA on Solvency Il refarm,
Including on its QIS exercise

EL] Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022




Employees
Please see more information on employment
policies and engagement on p52

What matters to them

e A stimulating and engaging workplace

¢ Recognition for teamwork and individug! excellence
» Mootrong purposce and the creation of social value
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The ability to act proactively to meet customer needs
Ability to develop knowledge and skilis alongside
expert colleopues

Why we engage

e PIC's employees are a critical stakeholder group for the
sheenes mne Farire gronth of tho Company

e Investing in our people, including in early-stage careers,

is a key focus for management
9
How we engage 3
¢« Purpose, culture, and values are o strong focus at PIC and Key Q_
are embedded in all employee communications . ]
» Regular business updates, including Town Halls, and the SUppllerS g)
PIC Company Away Day focusing on culture ©
¢ Annucl employee surveys, both internal and conducted 3
by third parties, such as Investors in People What matters to them %
s Ongoing commitment to #10000BIlackinterns and * Long-term portnership approach 2
LGBT Great
Why we engage
2022 outcomes » We work closely with ocur cutsourced partners to o
e PIC awarded “lnvestsrs in People — Silver” during 2022 deliver the right o_utcoma_es TECross our stolkehcalder base lﬁ
e Almost 5% of PIC employees are part of our early careers . OUT partners proyld_e bus_mess critical services, such as . 3
programmes, including opprentices, interns and graduates policyholder administration, and asset management services
e« Our gender pay gap figure of 10.2% is below the financial
services indicative average of 26.5%' How we engage o
» We have recruited 156 employees in the year  We work closely and collaboratively with our 2
» 89% of employees tock part in the 2022 survey, with results outsourced partners a
demonstrating that our customer focus remains the » We maintain a close focus on paying inveices within o
number one priarity for our people 30 business days g
2022 outcomes ‘3"
¢ 39% of invoices received during the year from suppliers e
Privqte[y sourced debt were paid within 30 business days (FY2021: 92%) &
counterparties and the
private rental sector Shareholders and 5
Investment partners debt holders I
What matters to them 3

s | ong-term partnership approach, including addressing
key challenges, such as environmental standards

e Ability to partner with a lender which shares o strong
purpose and focus on the creation of social value

What matters to them

¢ A purposeful business, focused on protecting the balance
sheet and long-term value creation

e Timely, transparent communication with the lecdership team

* Ongoing engagement on key business issues and risks

Why we engage

e We work closely with debt counterparties and other
investmeant partnears to source secure, long-term cash
flows to back pensicn nayments over decades

¢ These investments help provide competitive pricing for
pension risk transfer transactions, as well as increasing

Why we engage
e Qur eguity and debt providers invest the capital that
enables the business to grow on a secure, focused basis

the overail security and value of the portfolio How we engage
s We provide clear, transparent and timely communications
How we engage that help investors understand our purpase, strategy and

business model

» Business updates are communicated regularly to providers
of capital, including via tha Regulatory News Service
{"ENS") and on our website

e Key shareholders nominated directors sit on the Board

o We meet and speak regularly with debt holders and have
an annual debt holder conference call

¢ We seek to shape transactions that meet specific neods

¢ A partnership approach means ongoing engagement
over many years with counterpartias and development
partners, increasingly resulting in follow-up transactions

2022 outcomes
s In 2022, over 20% of our privately-sourced debt investments

were to our existing partners 2022 outcomes

s At year end 2022, PIC had a solvency ratio of 225%, with
adjusted operating profit of £388 million
1 Industry-wide figures as at October 2021, latest avalable.
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Section 172 statement

Promoting the long-term
success of the Company.

This section ocescrilbes how our Directors have performed
their duty under section 172 {1} of the Companies Act 2006
("s.172") and also forms the Directors’ statement required
under section 414C2ZA of the Companies Act 2006. 5172 sets
out a series of matters to which the Directors must have
regard in performing their duty to promote the success of
the Company for the benefit of its members and other
stakeholders in the long term,

The factors set out In s.172 are not only considered at Bedrd
level, they are embeaded throughout the culture at PIC
{see maore on pages 2 and 50 to 55),

Our stakeholders and our engagement
Understanding the needs of our different stakeholders
cnables the Board to take proper account of stakeholder
impacts and interests in decision making, The Board
recognises that considering the impact of decisions on
each stakeholder group will help the Directors to deliver the

Qur Boord interacts with stokeholders through airect
engagement and an open dialogue, as well as through
information provided by senior management. Further

information on why and how we engagde with our stakeholders
and examples of principal decisions taken by the Board during

the year can be found on pages 42 and 43 and within the
Corporate Governance report on pages 90 and 91

The Board focuses on the Group’s purpose, of paying

the penstons of our current and future policyholders, as it
considers genarating long-term value, With the increasing
focus on the relationship between stakeholder interests
and governance, we take increased care to ensure such
considerations are documented and they stay at the
forefront of the Boara's attention.

Company's strategy in ine with the wider PIC Group, and will
promote the long-term sustainable success of the Company
and the Group. As aresult of this approcch, PIC has a strong
focus on the social benefit of its investments.

Further information on our approach to stakeholder engagement and 5172 matters can be found here:

Qur business See page 2

Consequences of key decisions

. Chairman’s statement
in the long term

See pages14tc 15

Business model See page 18
Employees Our culture and vaiues See pages 2 and 50 to 55
Fostering the Company’s business Customer care See pages 36 to 37
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others Stakeholder engagement See pages 38 to 39
Community Stakeholder engogernent See pades 38 to 39

Qur Environmental, Social ana

Environment Governance (“ESG”) approach

See pages 44 to 55

Corporate Governance introduction See pope 73
Whistleblowing See page B9
High standards of business conduct
Moaern Slavery Act See page 89
Anti-bribery and corruption See page B9
Investors Stakeholaer engagement See pages 38to 3%
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The Board has o duty under 172 of the Companies Act
2006 to promote the success of the Company, and in
doing so, the Board must have regard to a number

of key matters in its decsion making.

For more information plecse see p42-43

The Executive team receive

training on Directors' duties

to ensure awareness of the
Board's responsibifities

Boara papers include a Our Board continually engages
table setting out 5172 factors with key stakeholders
and relevant information
relating to them Read more on pages 94-95
Board
information

$.172 factors considered in

the Board’s discusstons on
strategy, including how
they underpin long-term

Qur Board ensures that there is
proper consideration of
the potential impacts of

. 1ts decisions
value creation
Board strategic
discussion
The Board ensures that 5172 The Executive team provides
factors are token into information on a timely basis
Consideration in its and assurance where
decision making appropriate
Board
decision
The Board is provided with Actions are taken as a result
updates and information on of Board engadement and

the cutcomes of its decisions dialogue with key stakeholders
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Section 172 statement continued

In 2022, the Board made decisions in respect of a wide variety
of topics. The following are some examples of how the Board
considers the s.172 principles in its deliberations.

Customer programme

$.172 considerations

In July 2022 the FCA published its new “Consumer Duty”
Rules and Guidance applicable from July 2023, which
introduce a new consumer principle, new cross-cutting rules
and four new customer outcome expectations. The Boara
and management had put in place a project team which is
focusing on the implementation of the new Consumer Duty.

The need to foster relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

Customers clways were, and continue to be, at the heart
of all Board considerations. Moreover, custormer experience
and good customer outcomes are at the forefront of PIC's
decisions and in our purpose. The new Consumer Duty
rules will impoct activities across PIC and our policyholder
cperations and the Board decided to have an overarching
Customer Programme which will cover the already existing
initictives around Vulnerabte Custormers, Policyholder
Communication and any further improvements arising
from the new Consumer Duty rules.

High standards of business conduct

The Customer Programme demonstrates that customers
always were and continue to be at the heart of PIC’s purpose
and all Board's considerations. The Board recognises the
importance of this pregramme. It approved animplementation
plan for the new Consumer Duty in October 2022, and is
providing close oversight ana scrutiny of its implementation.
Regular updates were given to the Boara and this work will
continue 1IN 2023. Additionally, the Board appointed Stuart King
as the new Consumer Duty Champion. Stuart has already
formed o group of Independent Non-Executive Directors

who will collaborate ciosely with Management on the
implementation of the new Consumer Duty.

Outcomes and actions
The Customer Programme will ensure that PIC continues
e that it deliver

Ace fram
Furthermo
ved servic
Vulnerable Customers and overall improved pelicyholde
communications to ensure these are unde
hetpful for policyholders in taking their decisio

Retirement community in St Albans

$.172 considerations

Senior Living Investment Partners, a partnership between PIC
and specialist real estate lender and investor Octopus Real
Estate, has made its first retirement community investment
via a joint venture with Elysian Residences. The joint venture
has acquired a nine-acre site with planning consent to
develop 124 residences in an Integrated Retirement
Community, In How Wood, in St Albans, Hertfordshire.

Promote the long-term success of the Company

and the interests of PIC’s policyholders

PIC has a purpoeseful investment strategy, through which
the Company backs the pensions of its policyholders over
decades with secure, long-term assets. As part of that
strategy, in March 2022, the Board approved the addition of
o 'Senior Living Proposal’ as an appropriate new asset class
and subsequently, PIC committed £115 million to builaing the
retirernent community in St Albans.

Senior Living Investment Partners aims to invest in retirement
communities which will house up to 2,000 people in the
coming years across ten integratea cevelopments.

Environment and community

The Group is committed to ensuring that its investments,
where possible, hove o social benefit. This means that the
Company has invested significant sums in sectors which
seek 1o address the lack of accommoaation ir the UK across
the demographic spectrurr. This includes addressing the
needa for temporary accommodation to aid those at risk of
homelessness, providing social hausing, and Buila-to-Rent,
as well as retirement living

QOutcomes and actions
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Key to the 5,172 principles

Likely conseguences of decisions in the long term
The interests of the Company's workforce

The need to foster relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

independent Age

$.172 considerations

The cost-of-living crisis means that pensioners living in
poverty will struggle even more. The Group is committed to
giving back to society and making a paositive contribution to
communities for a social benefit, especially as we can assist
those in our policyholder demographic who are more likely to
be severely impacted by the crisis as they are not easily able
to increase their income.

Environment and community

In September 2022, the Board agreed to make a substantial
dongtion of £1.5 million to our charity partner Independent
Age, with £500,000 used to fund new rcles over the next two
years, and £1millicn to match the Crisis Fund of £1 million,
allowing Independent Age to help 50 organisations in total.

As part of this decision, the Boaird was provided with
inforrration and data relating ta the cost-of-living crisis and the
increased demand for Independent Age's services. The Board
understood how Independent Age would use the funding to
reach those most in need, but also how the decision supported
the Group’s responsible investment strategies.

The likely consequences of any decision

inthe long term

Independent Age already works hard to tackle poverty and
the inegualities resulting from poverty across the UK. its
dedicated helpline, kite marked infoermation and advice,
community services, grants fund and policy, and influencing
work combine to address the issues of inadeguate iIncome,
the shock of unexpected costs, the lack of community
connection, and the dangers of inadequate housing.

Through our donation, independent Age will be able to help
older people in the local communities through the cost-of-
living crisis, but also via helplines through increasing the
number of advisers taking calls and therefore reducing
phone waiting times.

The Board considered the long term-sustainability of such a
dongtion in relation to the financial targets of the Group, but
also assured by Executive Management, upon review of
independent Age's latest Annual Report, that the donation
remained appropricte

Outcomes and actions

The long-term conseguence of cdonating £1.5 million to

Independent Age would help a minimum of 20,000 older

people and th
cyholder

Age's helpline numk

a number of a

luding benefits
real long-term difference

Impact of operations on the community
and environment

High standards of business conduct

The need to act fairly between members
of the Company

Insourcing capabilities

$.172 considerations

PIC's rapid and significant growth over recent years has
allowed the Group to start realising scale benefits and
increase its capabilities in support of its ambitious long-term
poals. As part of the long-term strategy, the Board, through
the Investment and Origination Committee approved the
insourcing of the GBP corporate bond portfolio thot was
previously managed by an external investment manager.

The likely consequences of any decision

in the long term

The insourcing of PIC's external GBP credit partfolio will
enable PIC to access larger asset opportunities given the
Company’s larger presence in the bond markets and the
ability to better risk manage the pertfolio by being able to
reqact to opportunities at speed and at scale, which would be
valuable to dealers looking to place larger blocks of bonds.

As part of the decision, the directors reviewed the proposal and
agreed that PIC could improve the decision-making process
during market downturn, thus facilitating a more sustainable
company. The directors scrutinised the information in relation
to the operational and system impact as well as the financial
impact on tha balance sheet.

Interests of the Company’s employees

The insourcing arrangement has provided PIC employees
within the Investment tearm with new opportunities to use
their existing skilis by creating a clearer career path as
employeas have the cpportunity to be involved in the
public sicle of credit.

A larger and well-structured research team with access
to baoth public and private markets will enable the Group
to attract and retam the right talent in an increasingly
competitive market.

Foster relationships with suppliers

PIC had fostered a positive relationship with the external
manager over many years and both parties agreed that the
insourcing arrangement was in the best interest of the Group
whilst the external manager can continue to provide support
and specialist advice as and when required.

Outcomes and actions

PIC hos created several recruitment opportunities,
retained tatlent within the existing team and has
also increasadits capabitities o react quickly to
maitk

conditions.
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach

ESG with purpose.

PIC’s purpose

PIC’s approach to Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG”) issues is closely
aligned to our purpose of paying the
pensions of our current and future
policyholders. The long-term nature of
our business, including the consideration
of risks as they apply to our stakeholders,
are intrinsic to a responsible ESG strategy.

With a portfolic of £41 billion, the investrments we make to
secure the pension payments to our policyholders means
we must consider the impact and value of our \nvestment
aecisions from both a financial and non-financial perspective.

This section covers PIC's approach ta ESG factors and how
we interact with them as a responsible corporate citizen.

Further infarmation on cur approach te ESG can be founa in
our 2022 ESG report,and detailed information on our climate
disclosures is published in PIC's 2022 Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures {"TCFD”) report.

Far more information see our

TICED report and ESG report online ot
Www.pensigng¢orpordtion.com

PIC’s systainable assets

PIC's sus runcnble assets represent €.25% (£10.3 billion) of our overcill ;_nor tfoho. we define sustoinabile assets as those
rate a bui anc 3MiC e Y e, A focus

aships

created, Lmd th(L wider social value of the investment. \Nhera bc_lIunu:- -3 Comp:or‘msed
case-by-case basis through our ESG governonce structure and ensure the company 1s included on o fm_ua list within
our Engagement Strategy.

Key outcomes of our purpose Qur values
Environment Key suppliers Z;?S:;;E izi:ri\ggb?s t
Employees Capital providers 5:5:32:: 5:;1:%;:_;
Policyholders Society Being a team
Economy
Read more on p2-3
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Environmental factors

¢ Greenhouse gas and carbon
(IR RS TINr

Pollution

Energy efficiency

Deforestation

Biodiversity

Waste and water management
Sustainability

Qur approach to

the environment

PIC's commitment to the environment
covers improvements througsh the
environmental standards of our
investment portfolio and the
envirgnmental performance

of our business operations.

wWe recognise our influence as
investors in enabling changes that
can make a positive difference to all
stakeholders across the economy
and societles, and we have a two-fold
cpproach to this, Our investments
team carries ocut comprehensive

ESG analysis of the investments in our
portfolio and, as part of the ongoing
management of these investments,
ansures long-term stewardshio
actions include engagement

with relevant counterparties.

Maore detail on these areas can
be found in the following pages,
including o case study on PIC's
beaspoke methodology for
assessirg the ESG credentials

of our built environment portfalio.

Signatory and supporter of:

ESG factors and our approach

Social factors
e Consideration of all stakeholders
e Cuslumer sulisfaction
s Employee engogement
and retention
e Impact on the local community
e Cultural and gender diversity
s Fair pay and taxes

Our approach

to society

Social facters, or PIC’s contribution
to society, can be recognised in

the working environment we create
and through the social value of our
investrnents in the economy, in
particular those that are made as
part of our direct, private portfolio.
More detail on the sociat and
economic impact of our investments
can be found on pages 4-5 (Qur
geographic footprint) and pages
30-31(Built environment section).

At PIC, we are committed to
providing an empowering and
intellectually stimulating workplace,
where our employees are given the
freedom to excel both individually
ond collectively. Our culture and
values guide our actions and ensure
the outcomes of our purpose. On
pages b0-52 we discuss PIC as an
ernployer, what it’s like to work with
us and how we factor in areas that
are important to ocur employees,
such as diversity and inclusion and
employee engagement.

This year, we were proud to launch
our Sustainability Stratepgy, which
focuses on creating long-term social
value for all our stakeholders. Mare
information on this can be found in
our ESG report.

Governance factors

» Principles for running a business
* InTcgrity of corporote actions

e Internal cudit and cccountability
= Diversity of the Board

e Fair profit

e Bribery, corruption and
whistleblowing

Qur approach

to ESG Governance

PIC's approach to long-term value
creation 1s incorporated into the
Group's ESG strategy and overseen
by the Board-level ESG Committee.
The Board has delegated day-to-day
implementation of the ESG strategy
to various senior management
figures within PIC, including the
Chief Investment Officer, the

Chief Risk Officer and the Head

of Responsible nveasting.

Furthermore, PIC has an ESG
Oversight Forum which meets monthly
1o discuss corporate and investrment
related ESG-relevant matters, to
provide additional scrutiny of ESG
factors as they apply to the business.,
The Forum is chaoired by the Head of
Responsible Investing and comprises
15 senior representatives of various
business functions of which three cre
members of the Executive Committee.

During 2022, the Group made good
progress on its journey to Net Zero,
securing Board approval for a
Transition Timeline to attain Net

Zero, which focuses on actions to
decarbonise our portfolio. In addition,
PIC published its first ESG Policy and
standalone Stewardship Policy.

For more information on PIC's
governance (see Corporate
Governance section on page 80
onwards} and ESG governance can
be found on pages 110 and 1M as well
as in the ESG Report on our website.
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Environment.

As along-term investor and provider

of pensions, managing climate and
environmental risk is firmly embedded
into our business. While we know there
is more to do, in recent years we have
taken action to align our processes more
closely to external standards and have
made significant progress towards

our various targets, including become
Net Zero by 2050.

PIC is a member of, or signatory to, several climate related
initiatives within the financial services industry, recognising
that collective action is reguired to make meaningful change,

United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
{"UN SDGs")

Financial services companies have an important role

to play in meeting both gicbal and local challenges of a
changing environment. The UN SDGs set out 17 gocls to
alleviate poverty ana protect the planet. Qut of these, PIC
has a focus on 10 geals that hove relevance to our business
and purpose. These are goals 3 (Good Health and wWell-
Being), 4 (Quality Education), & (Clean Water and Sanitation),
7 {Affordable and Clean Enerayl, 9 {industry, Innovation ang
Infrostrocture), 10 (Reaucirg Inggualities), 11 {Susta nable
Cities and Comrmunities), 12 {Responsible Consumption

and Preduction), 13 (Climate Action) and 15 {L fe on -and}
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United Nations Principles of Responsible
Investment {(“UN PRI’}

PIC and its externcl asset managers are signatories to the
N PRI and are committed to six principles as they relate
to our portfolio of fixed incame and credit investments:

1. To ncorporate ESG issues into investment analysis and
decision-making processes

2. To be active owners and incorporate ESG issues
into our ownership policies and practices

3. To seck appropriate disclosure on ESG issues
by the entities in which we invest

4. To promote acceptance and implementation
of the Principies withir the invastmeant industry

5. To waork together to enhance effectiveneass
inimplamenting the Principles

6. To report on activitios and progress towards
implementing the Principles

Net Zero Asset Owners Alliance (“NZAOA”)

Created in recognition that institutional investors collectively
have an important role to play in fostering the energy
transition the world needs. Members have committed:

1. To transitioning their investment portfolios to Net Zero
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions by 2050 consistent
with a maximum temperature rise of 1.5°C above pre-
incustrial levels;

2. To establishing intermediate targets every five
yvears to; and

3. Toregularly report on progress.

The Alliance s conveneda by the United Nations Environment
Programme (“UNEP"} and the UN PRI.

Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD"})

We publicly support the TCFD and published cur first TCFD
report in 2021. We adree with the TCFD that financial markets
need clear, comprehensive, high-guality infermation on

the impact of climate change. This includes the risks and
opportunities presented by rising temperatures, cimate
related policy, and emerging technologies. The Financial
Stability Board crected the TCFD to improve and increase
reporting of climate related financial information.

Association of British Insurers (“ABI”} Climate
Change Working Group and Roadmap

Developed by the ABI, the Climate Change Rcadmap has set
industry targets to address climate change and help the UK
reach Net Zero by 2050, The ABI plan has several consumer-
facing elements alongside o host of behind-the-scenes
suggastions on investment and underwriting. The Roadmap
is reviewed and refreshed every year in line with scientific
evidence to ensure it stays in line with the Government
strategy to reach Net Zero by 205C. The ABI Climate

Change Working Group helps facilitate implementation

of the Roadmar by the industry.

Case study: First Street
Manchester (Net Zero carbon

in operation)

In September 2022, PIC invested £105 million in First
Street Manchester, a Grade A office development let
to the UK Government Department for Levelling Up,
Housing and Communitias, that will be Net Zero carbon

in operation, achieved through compliance with GPA
Desion Grade.

The new site will house approximately 2,500 civil
servants, including over 700 roles which will be
relocated from London to Manchester as part of the
Places for Growth initiative. The move of civil service
roles to Manchester is expected by the Government to
senerate £31 million in economic benefits for the city,
due to increased footfall and spending from staff,

The building has been designed as first rate’ in reiation
to embodied energy and its energy in use performance.
The design and performaonce of the building will be
rated BREAMM "Excellent”. The building will be receiving
a minimum of 5.5 stars, using the NABERS UK to ensure
itis on a Net Zero carbon trajectory in operation. To
meet these Net Zero credentials and lower the carbon
footprint, the building has been designed as follows:

e Asolid fagade to reduce solar gain and hence
energy demand for internal cocling

o Additional insulation in the solid fagade to help
improve the thermal performance of the building
and reduce heating losses

s« Natural cpen panel ventilation to the workplace by
using opening panels within the fagade, reducing the
energy requirement by removing the need te provide
fresh air solely by a normal office ventilation system

As part of PIC's ESG baseline credentials assessment,
First Street has been awarded an "A’ rating, signifying
best practice in the built environment sector.

£105m

investment
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued
Environment continued

Net Zero Transition Timeline

PIC’s transition timeline sets out a rocadmap for our strategy
of achieving our Net Zero objectives. The timeline details
key activities across the four areas of carbon reduction
commitments, decarbaonising the portfolio, stewardship
and financing the transiticn, from 2021 through to 2050.

The Timeline has heen developed through collaboration
between various business functions. PIC balieves that by

following its strategy tc the best of its efforts, it will be playing

its part In helping the UK attain its own Net Zero objectives.
The full timeline can be found N our ESG report

PIC's climate strategy

The projected growth of the pension risk transfer (“PRT”)
market means large flows of assets ana ligbilities will move
from defined benefit pension schemes into Insurance
companies like ours. As an owner of these funds, we will
have an increasing part to play In driving sustainocle
growth in the economy and at PIC this is done through

o focus on our purpose.

Our gpprroach to climate risk, which forms part of our
investment strategy, looks at how some of the risks posed
by climate change may affect the stability and certainty

TCFD disclosures
we confirm that our
TCFD disclosures are
compliant with the
reguirements under
Chapter 2 of the

FCA ESG Handboock.
we have made our
detailled disclosures in
a separate TCFD report
due to the granular
nature of the metrics
disclosed. Seiected
TCFD metrics can

be found here.

Target

50%

decrease by 2030 from
2019 lavels

PiC is cormnmitted to
decreasing the investment
portfolio’s average ¢carbon
intensity (tons CO;/Em
revenue) by 50% by 2030
from 2013 levels

of our Investment cash flows. We look at industry-wide
macro trends to determineg long-term viability, for example,

with oil and car manufacturers.

Within this approach, cur analysis focuses on the willingness
and ability for inaividual companies to transition to a low

carbon economy.

In the short-term, in order to ynaerstand our total cimate
IMmpact, we are mapping carbon emissicns across our
nvestment portfolio (Scope 3: Financed Emissions) with the
assistance of third parties such as MSCl and the application
of methodology based on PCAF (Partnership for Carbon
Accounting Financials) recommendations for our privately
sourced debt investments. We are continuing our efforts to
reduce our total energy consumption and carbon emissions

{Scope 1 and 2) at our offices

Details on our carbon metrics can be found
within our recently published TCFD repert

Mare detailed information on our climate
targets at a corporate and portfolio level
can be found in the ESG report

PIC’s climate targets and achievements

Carbon neutral
as a business by

2025

We have committed to
being carbon neutral as
a business by 2025

Target

25%

decrease by 2025 from
2019 levels

PIC set an interim target of
decreasing the average
carbon intensity of
investments in publicly-listed
corporate credit by 25% from
2019 levels by 2025

Net Zero across
all emissions by

2050

We have committed to
being Net Zero across all
emissions by 2050

Weighted Average
Carbon intensity
(IJWACI II)

175

tons CO,e/Em revenue

weighted average
carbon intensity of
investment portfolio

The weighted average
carbon intensity of PIC’s
portfolio represents 78% of
investments and thisisa 14%
decrease compared to 2021
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Reduced Scope Tand 2
emissions intensity by

18%

During 2022 PIC reduced
its Scope 1and 2 carbon
emissions per Full Time

Employee (“FTE") by 18%

Temperature alignment of

2.08°C

for public corporate
credit portfolio

PIC’s public corporate credit
portfolio is alighed to @ 2.08°C
temperature rise, with 70% of
reporting corporates on a
trajectory of 2°C or below




ESG
integration
Within all investment
processes including
within manager
selection

Responsible investor

ESG reporting
Manager bespoke
quarterly ESG
reperting, yearly PiC
ESG report, TCFD, UN
PRI transparency
report, Net Zero

PIC portfolio

Stewardship and
engagement
Standalone
Stewardship Palicy,
Engagement strategy

Industry
participant:

UN PRI signatory, Net
Zero Asset Owners
Alliance member, AB}
Climate Change
Working Group

Climate change
decarbonizotion to
Net Zero, TCFD
reporting, Climate
risk management
and climate
scenario testing

Progress Report

Responsible investing

The consideration of ESG within our iInvestments has
always been an inherent part of our process. For both
directly managed investments and those managed on

a segregated basis by our external asset managers, we
ensure that ESG factors are considerad. This means that
from the initial due dilgence phase or manager selection,

relevant ESG questions are asked, and responses assessed.

Cur Strategic Asset Allocation, as well as Country Risk
Framewaork, also take into consideration ESG and these
affect output such as concentration limits.

We feel strongly that investing in o sustamnable manner,
which encompasses ESG factors, helps ensure we can fUlfil
our purpose over the long term.,

participant

ESG in the built envirenment:

In 2022 PIC partnered with Buro Happold, a third party
ESG specialist to help deep dive into our built environment
pipeline and portfolio.

Together, PIC and Buro Happold have developed o three-
stade assessment framework that establishes ESG Baseline
Credentials for cur built environment investments. PIC applies
this bespoke, market-leading framewaork to all potential
investrments and is applying the framework retrospectively

to the suild-to-Rent portfolio.

The initial stage comprises a series of goteway questions
that potential investment partners must satisfy before the
investment is considered viable.

The second stage is the initicl screening list with 28 questions
on ESG themes such as Net Zero Carbon, Biodiversity and
Ecology, Materials and the Circular Economy, Health and
wWellbeing, Social Value, and Policy and Monitoring. These are
then explored further as part of the final stage of 65 guestions.

Once completed, the answers are used to compile an ESG
dashboard with an overall topic rating across Environment,
Social and Governance from which each asset is given an
ESG rating.
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Our people and culture.

Qverview

At PIC, we pride ourseives on creating a
positive and empowering workplace. Qur
people work in line with our values and
with the customer at the forefront of our
actions as represented by our purpose of
paying the pensions of cur current and
future policyholders.

The Company has seen significant growth in recent
years, with employee numbers nearly doubling since 2019
During 2022, 156 new colleagues joined PIC as we continue
to serve the accelerating Pension R.sk Transfer market.

The fundamentals of working life at PIC remain strong. A
highly skilled ana inncvative employee base, a focus on
enhancing oJr colleagJdes’ lives by providing meaningful ana
challenging work in @ rewarding and collegiate atmosphere,
and cormrpetitive compensation and benefits pockages. The
result is a strong ang sugportive environrrent where people
are empowered to excel inaividually and collectively

Qurinvestment in creating an attractive working environment
1s borne out by the results of our empioyee surveys, where
PIC’s scores consistently demoeonstrate high levels of errployee
engagement and alignment to cur purpese ana values. In
aadition, employees corrmrent on the benefits of the internal
ana external mentoring prodramrmes and the significant
traiming anc cevelopment courses that are available to thermr.

Highly skilled and motivatea employees are the foundation
upon which PIC will continue o be successful in fulfilling its
purpose over the decades to come. We are committed to
investing in the development and wellbeing of our people.

Culture

PIC continues to invest in creating a welcoming and

inclusive culture where individuals can thrive. The benefits

of a positive culture are well recognisced and at PIC cur values
provide the foundation for o strong and cahesive culture,

Qur customers are cur pricrity, and we work hard to provide
exceptional customer service that leads tc gooa customer
oJtcomes. We value all aur stakeholders, including cur
employees, and believe in o listen and learn culture.

Following the shift in working patterns because of the
Covia-19 pandemic, PIC has moved to a hybria working
model. Employees benefit from the flexibility of choosing
their aays in and out of the office to better suit their
personal c.reumstances.

Qurstrong cultare was recogrnisea during the year as PIC was
awarded the Investors in People silver accreditation, Investors
in People recognises errployers that are committed to
providing @ grect place to work, including providing strong anc
clecr leagership, ana traning and aevelopment opportJnities.
The assessmentincludea a staff survey ana interviews of
employees from ccross the Company. The results of the
feeabaock gathered founa that 86% of employees believe PIC
has clear values ana 88% believe their behaviour reflects

the PIC vailues. Furthermore, 80% of employees feel they

are encouraged 1@ take initiative in ther role. Cther stand

cut ‘acters nclide the me-tal healt~ frst aders programme,
the Diversity and Inclusion forurmr, ana the facus on early
careers aevelopment.
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Diversity and inclusion (“D&I”) at PIC

A diverse workforce contributes to more successful cutcomes
through diversity of thought. Our approach to encouraging
this is reflected through our values and culture and helps us
deliver our purpose through continucus improvement and
evolution. Emplayees at PIC can expect a safe, cpen, and
transparent work environment, Qur people are valued and
recognised as individuals with the freedom to express and
discuss Issues that matter to them and seciety in an inclusive
and informative way.

PIC’s D&! Forum has three aimrs. These are to engage,
educate and enable all employees to build and own an
inclusive working environment. It does this through activities
such as internal and external events, guest speckers and
sporsership of key diver sily iniliulivos,

Engage - Demonstrate that PIC is ¢ good
corporate citizen by supporting worthwhile
imitictives which alien with our values and role
model best practice as well as engaging with
external partners who align with our values

Educalu ~ Educule, nformand inspire at all
levels on how D& contributes to a successful
business, and promote PIC’s D&l approach
externally to attract talent

Enable - Enable cur current and future people
to reach their full potential by providing
opportunities and removing barriers

2022 highlights

PIC is a corporate member, and founding spansor, of LGBT
Grect having joined the foundation in 2021. This year, two

of our employees were recegnised as LGBT Great Top 100
Gamechangers, which recognises people who are helping
to change the game for LGB™+ diversity, eguity, and inclusion
across the financial services industry.

As one of the founding sponsors, PIC continued its support
of the Actuarial Mentoring Programme for a sixth year. Runin
partnership with the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries, and
run by Moving Ahead, the programme provides early-stage
actuaries with cross-company mentars.

Qur early careers talent programme, PIC Academy, saw

its first intake, with 11 apprentices joining during 2022. The
prograrmme was developed by PIC and aims to develop
long-term cliverse talent pipelines. The PIC Academy

gives participants an oppoerturity to work towards a formal
gualification in business administration and 18 months’ work
experience in a financial services firm [see case study opposite).

We continued to suppaort the #10000Blackinterns campaign
offering 20 interns across 13 departments dunng the year.
PIC alse joinad Women in Banking and Finance, a not-for-
profit membership netwaork that champions women in
finoncial services

Case study: Macie Thorne,
Team Administrator Apprentice

ljoined PIC as the Team Administrator Apprentice

for Internal Audit in September 2021 1 chose an
apprenticeship as it meant that I would be able to
study towards a qualification alongside gaining on the
job experience, an cpportunity that university did not
provide. It's o 18-month contract of which about 80%
of the time is spent working and 20% taking part in
on-the-job learning. This could be anything from
learning something new in a meeting, to complating
the designated apprenticaeship work, which helps

to develop your business knowledge. At the end of
the apprenticeship, l'will goin a Level 3 business
administration gualification, which is the eguivalent
of gaining an extra A-Level

When researching PIC, one key thing that stood out
to me was that PIC is still a relatively young company
in a fast-growing industry and is constantly evolving
This was impaortant to me as it meant that my opinicn
would be valued within my team and in the wider
organisation. Another key thing that stood cut to me
was the emphasis on the friendly culture, and this
couldn't be truer.

Iwas selected to be in the Internal Audit tearm which
suits me because | am naturally inquisitive and | am
glad as it has meant that | hove been able to gain
knowledoe about all the different departments within
FIC and thelr various processes. It has also given me the
opportunity to network and interact with a wide range
of people, and really get a feel for the PIC culture and
understand how o large corporate works.

From my experience, people here are very friendly and
always willing to help. | have had the opportunity to
complete work for different departments and everyone
I worked with was very welcoming and took the time

to explain things to me. The work that | am asked to
complete is a lot more challenging than | was expecting
when | initially applied for the apprenticeship, but | like
this as it means | am aglways learning new things. | have
been given a lot of trust and responsibility with certain
tasks, rather than being hidden away from the maore
complex work, which has massively helped me with
developing my confidence. I've also come out of the
apprenticeship with a full-time job offer, which | couldn’t
be happier about.

If you are looking for a position where you are gaining
experience, whilst studying towards a qualification, and
meeting lots of friendly people, then { would recommend
an apprenticeship at PIC. My apprenticeship has
enabled me to learn alot of things that | may not have
necessarily learnt if | studied for g university degree and
has given me ¢ kick start in my career ot & positive and
empowering cCompany.
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Our people and culture continued

Employee engagement

PIC gathers the views of its peopie through formal and
informol employee engagernent initiatives that toke
place throughout the year. Formally, aur annual employee
engagement survey looks at how our values and culture
are experienced on a day-to-aay basis by our employees.

The survey is also an opportunity to garner feedback from
employees and listen to suggestions for improvement. Questions
are focused on custormer service and experience, strategic
direction, culture and values. 89% of PIC employees took part
in the 2022 survey with results demonstrating that cur customer
focus remains the number one pricrity for cur people.

PIC Is truly customer oriented

91%

| believe strongly in the
goals and abjectives of PIC

93%

| am optimistic about
the future at PIC

88%

lam proud te work for PIC

89%

Rewarding our employees

As one of the leading employers in the pension risk transfer
market, PIC offers competitive remuneration packages and
a generous range of benefits

For example, PIC is one of a limited number of private
companies that offers its people a chance to participate
inacompany Save as You Earn (“SAVE") scheme. SAYE
schemes allow individuals to have a sense of ownership
in the business and benefit from its long-term success.

The PIC SAYE scheme has been in place since 2012 ana
provides employees with an opportunity to purchase

shares following & set savings period. The scheme is apen

to all permanent employees and sets the foundations for

a successful and sustainabie company with employees
anle to share in the long-term vaiue creation of the business.
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Working with our charity partners

PIC continues to provide charitable support to our two
partner charities, Independent Age and Rethink Mental
lness, by helping to raise funds in suppert of the critical
work they do supporting vulnerable members of society.

PIC was delighted to be able to run several successful
fundraising initiatives during the year with company-

widea events run by our charty committee alongside the
individual fundraising efforts of our people. These included
the annual PIC treasure hunt which brings together our
clients, customers and colleagues, a charity quiz night,

o bake sale, participation in the Lord Mayor’s Show as

well as participation in the London Marathon.

In light of the cost-of-liwing crigis and difficult cconomic
circumstances faced by many of our customers, PIC took
the decision during 2022 to make o one-off donation to
Independent Age, of £1.5 million, to help support those

N need {(see case study opposite).

Rethink Mental lliness

Rethink Mental lllness is a charity with over 40 years’
experience of supporting people severely affected by
mental health issues.

Tens of thousands of people rely onits support every
vear to help them get through crises, live independently
and realse they are not clone. The Rethink Advice and
Information Service offers practical information and
support about any aspect of mental health and has
produced o whole range of factsheets, which are
downloadable for free via the link below.

www. rethink.or vice-and-information

Independent Age UK
Independent Age UK is a charity founded over 150 years
ado offering advice and suppeoert for people in old age.

It operates throughout the UK and provides advice and
support across o range of areas including money, housing,
health, personal life, support and care, and future planning.
Its guides and factsheets are downloadable for free via the
link below.

www.in n r ~advi
i i -leaflets

Case study: PIC donates

£1.5 million to Independent
Age to support older people
through cost-of-living crisis

More older people in England, Scotland and Wales
will receive targeted support and advice on how 1o

cope with the cost of living crisis, following o £1.5 million
donation by PIC in November 2022,

£1 million will go towards the charity’s emerdency
grants programme, supporting community projects
that work directly with older people strugghng in the
cost-of-living crisis.

E500,000 of the donation will allow Independent Age to
axpand their helpline by creating now roles for specialist
staff to answer queries and provide advice to older callers

in need of financial assistance. In recent weeks, the helpline

has experienced on increase in the number of callers from
pecple facing tough decisions on how to manage their
household budgets, struggling to heat their homes or
afford groceries.

£1.5m

donated to Independent
Age by PIC

£500,000

of the donation will allow Independent
Age to expand their helpline which provides
practical advice and support to oider people

At a time when those already impacted by
the cost-of-living crisis face further rises in
energy and food prices, these very welcome
funds will allow us to help even more people
in desperate need of support.

Inflation and the cost-of-living crisis are
clearly already having an effect as we

are receiving increasingly distressing calls
to our helpline from older people who don't
know how they will cope during the winter.
A donation of this size will help us support
5o many more people.”

Baroness Julia Neuberger DBE,
Chair of the Board of Trustees
at Independent Age
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued
Our people and culture continued

Gender pay gap report 2022.

The gender pay gap is a measure of the difference between
the average pay of men and women across the Company.

2022 highlights

8.2% 1.0% 5.2%

decrease in PSC's total mean bonus pay gap decrease in PSC's
mean gender pay gap median bonus gap

Pension Services Carparation is the company that provides al! services including staff to PIC and PICG.
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Mean salary pay gap 2022

Pension Services Corporation Limited’s (“PSC”) figure of
10.2% 15 below the financial services indicative average!
{26.5%). PSC's gender pay gap figures remain typically
narrower than competitors across all measures.

Percentage of women at each quartile
On S April 2022, PSC had 400 ermployees

Lower quartile Lower middle quartile

Worren 45% wornen 32%

Men 55% Men 68%

Upper middle quartile Upper quartile

Changes in

2022 2021 lost12 menths Women 29% Women 29%

Mean salary 10.2% 18.4% 8.2% {down) Men 1% Mer %
Meaian salary 12.5% 6.8% 57% {up)

Our gender pay gop is driven by two primary factors:

o Only 34% of our employees are wormnen
s Only 29% of ernployees in the upper pay quartile are
women, flat from the previous year

Bonus pay gap

The reporting for the bonus pay gap must include alt one-off
payments which are subject to PAYE. This includes cash
bonuses and shares at the point of exercise, rather than
oward. Unusually for a private company, PIC runs a share
scheme for all employees. As share exercise is a personal
decision, this contributes to the variability of PSC's bonus
pay gap each year. PSC's bonus pay gap therefore varies
significantly year-on-year due to circumstances beyond cur

control. For 2022 the median bonus pay gap reduced by 5.2%.

As employees in the upper quartile have higher target
bonuses and are more likely to receive share awards, the
median bonus pay gap will remain at a higher level until
we have more women in the upper guartile.

Changesin
2022 2021 last 12 months

1.0% 11%  01% {down)
18.2% 23.4% b.2% (down)

Meaon bonus
Median bonus

Actions we are taking to address the

gender pay gap

PSC continues to target at least 30% of CVs from recruitment
cgencies to be women. PIC recruited approximately 100 new
joiners since the 2020 - 2021 reporting period and of these,
35% were women. At PIC, we focus on early career talent

to develop tolent pipelines including through our Academy
programme, which currently has 16 apprentices working
across the business. PIC has also recently become a member
of Women in Banking and Finance, which provides fermale
colleagues at all levels, with access to development and
networking opportunities, and the business with channels

to recruit more female talent.

Industry-wide figures as at October 2021, [atest availoble.
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Chief Financial Officer’s review

2022 2623
Financial highlights £m £m
Gross premiums written 4,095 4702
Soblvency L ratio (unaudited) 225% 168%
Financial investmeants 40,951 51143
IFRS profit before tax 1,240 393
Adiusted operating profit before tax 388 533
Market consistent embedded value 5,617 5,027

Introduction

2022 was a year of extrerne market voiatility, characterised
by rising interest rates, inflation and the prospect of
recession. Despite this, PIC has delivered strong resuJlts,
further strengthening our balance sheet, measured by our
Solvency Il ratio which Increasea 1o 225% (from 168%). we
wrote £4.1 billion of new business premiums ana significantly
grew IFRS profit before tax, This strong performance positions
us well for the market opportunity to grow the business
further and supports us in fulfilling our purpose: to pay the
pensions of cur current ana future policyholders.

2022 was a strong year for new business with £4.1 billion of
prermiums written (2021 £4.7 billion). The outlook for the UK
pension risk transfer market remrains very positive s higher
Interest rates have heloed recuce definea benefit scherre
deficits, and this improvement in funding positions will see

an acceleration of schemes loox<ing to ce-risk We are
well-placea to take acvantage of these growth oppartunities
thanks to our robust financial fundamentals, operational
expertise, and market-leading policyholder satisfaction.

At the end of the year our Sl ratic increasec to 225%

{2021 168%) with a £4 O billion surplus (2021: £2.7 billion) mainly
ariven by economic performance. Our capital and liguicity
positions have proven resilient guring the turbJdlent market
conditions. We continue to take o prudent approcch

to captel ranagertent supported by ar active

hedging strategy

IFRS profit before tax of £1,240 rrillion (2021: £393 millicn)
benefitted from favourable investment variances. Qur heagding
stratedy is primarily calibratea to stabilise our solvency

Our strong performance in
challenging markets shows
the strength and resilience
of our business which is
well positioned for growth
opportunities.”

Dom Veney
Chief Financial Officer

position rather than the IFRS balance sheet. This better
reflects how we manade the business but can cause short-
term volatility within the IFRS result. Operating profit remained
strong at £388 million {2021: £533 million). Underlying profit grew
by 44% to £654 million (2021: £455 million} from higher returns
on surplus assets and new business profits, but this was more
than offset by £315 million of favourable assumption chandes
which increased AOPBT in 2021 but which were not repeated
N 2022.

At year end our portfolic of financial investments stood at
£41.0 billion (2021: £511 billion) and we had insurance liabilitics
of £33.0 billion [2021: £47.0 billion}, with the decrease on both
sides of the balance sheet mainly driven by rising interest
rates. Qur defensive positioning ensurea that our asset
portfolio performed well despite economic volatility with
imited downgrades, no defaults for the tenth consecutive
year and ¢.99% of our aebt securities rated investment
grade. We continue 1o manage our exposdres carafully.

Group MCEY was £5,617 million at the end of 2022

{2021: £5,027 million), with the rise driven by new business,
returns from the in-force book, and net favourable
market movements.

IFRS 17, the mew accounting standard for insurance contracts,
became effective from 1 Jonuary 2023, We have maae
sipnificant progress in ensJring technicai compliance,
emrbeacing new systems, and establishing the reauirea
operational capablility for the implerrentation of this standard.
Our 2022 results are published on thea exist ~giFRS 4 basis, but
from 2023 healf year onwaras, we will report unaer IFRS 17, IFRS
17 Introauces the concept of deferring new business profits at
inception, resulting in a significant store of future value that will
unwind over time. The new standard represents an accounting
change, so does not affect the unaerlying profitability or
ousiness madel of the Groop, nor dees it imeact our solvency
ratic or our ability to denerate capital

There has also been progress an the UK Government's review

of Solvency lllegislatior. While we welco™e t~e dagree of clanty
received from the Government so far on the future crrection of
travel, we expect that there will be consicerable work te follow
over 2023 once the aetail of the proposal is finalised,
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In light of our long-term financial and operational strength,
the Board has proposed a first dividend to the Group's
shareholders of £100 million, equivalent to 7.50 pence per
ordinary share.

Looking ahead, while the volatile market conditions and
evolving regulatory environment are expected to persist

in the short term, our disciplined approach to underwriting,
prudent investment strategy and robust financial position
mean that we are well positioned for the upcoming market
opportunities. We have made a strong start to 2023, having
recently completed the UK $ single idrgest PRI dedl o

date for estimated premiums of £6.5 billion. Following full
implementation of the transaction, PIC's long-term solvancy
ratio would remain above 200%, based on economic
conditions at 30 December 2022,

We will continue to focus on drowing the value of

the company safely and selectively, through sensible
and proactive financial managemeant, underpinned by
our purpose of paying the pensions of our current and
future policyholders.

iFRS

Our 2022 results are presented on an IFRS 4 basis, consistent
with prior years.

2022 2021
Statement of comprehensive income - highlights £m £m
Gross premiums wiitten 4,095 4,702
Net premium revenue earned 4,021 3,856
Investment returm
{including commissions earned) {12,396} 210
Total revenue (8,375) 4,066
Net claims paid {1,887) (1,785}
Change in net insurance labilities 11,833 (1.601)
Operating expenses (247) (198}
Finance costs (90} (85)
Total cloims and expenses 9,615 (3,673)
Profit before taxation 1,240 393
Tax charge [22%) 182}
Profit after tax 1,011 3N

Premiums

Gross premiums were £4,095 million in the year across

21 transactions {2021: £4,702 million across 14 transactions).
2022 was another strong year for new business, with the
reduction in premium levels reflecting the impact of
higher interast rates.

Net premiums earned represent the gross premiums written
less premiums ceded to reinsurers. Premiums ceded to
reinsurers decreasaed mainly due to the comparative including
the impact of asset bocked reinsurance transactions, which
did not recccurin the current year. In total, eight (2027 seven)
new reinsurance contracts were concluded in 2022.

Investment return

Investment return comprises income received on fixed
income securities, derivatives and investment property,
and unrealised and realised gains and losses on

these investments,

The net movement in the fair value of assets, including
reclised and unrealised items, was a loss of £13,813 million
compared with oloss of £1,029 million in 2021,

Total investment income incredsed to £1,416 million in

2022 (2021 £1,238 million). The 2022 net investment loss was
largely driven by significant increases in interest rates during
the year.

It is important to note that because our assets and liabilities
are broadly matched, the rise in interest rotes has also
muaterially reduced our insurance liabilities, a change also
reflected in the income statement,

Claims paid

Net claims paid comprises gross claims paid, which are
pension payments to our policyholders, less any payments
received from reinsurers. Net claims paid increased to
£1,881 million {2021: £1,785 million), mainly reflecting the
increase in pensiocner numbers due to new business.,

Change in net insurance liabilities

Change in net insurance ligbilities represents the change
in the gross insurance liabilities less the movement in
reinsurance assets.

The change in net insurance liakilities mainly reflects the
impact of market movements, principally the increase in
interest rates, partially offset by the net increase in the
number of policies by 20,600 to 310,200 (2021: 289,600).

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were £247 million {2021: £198 million).
This includes project spend of £58 million (2021: £38 million)
reflecting o higher spend on business-wide initiatives.

Excluding these project costs, the remaining increase in
spend mainly reflects higher maintenance costs to support
the larger book of business.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent the interest payable on borrowings.
Finance costs of £90 million (2021: £8% million) reflect the
Interest payable on the five (2021 five) subordinated debt
securities issued by PIC, the Group's main trading entity.

The RT1 debt issued in July 2019 has been gccounted for as
equity under IFRS and as such interest on these notes is not
included in finance costs and is instead recognised as
dividends when paid.

Our approach to tax

As ¢ UK registered business, the Group pays its full tax
fiability to His Mgjesty's Revenue and Customs {("HMRC™)
ensuring compliance with UK tax laws, regulations and
disclosure requireaments.

The Group ensures transparency in its tax disclosures

and always seeks a constructive relationship with HMRC.

The Group had an effective corporation tax rate of 18%

during 2022 (2021: 21%). During the year, the Group paid a total
of £256 million (2021 £56 million) in respect of corporation,
payroll-related and value added taxes. The increase
comparead to the prior year reflects the increase in 1FRS profits,
and a higher headcount leading to higher payroll taxes.

The 2022 tax charge includes £6 million in respect of tax relief
on our Restricted Tier 1debt, in accordance with IAS12 Income
Taxes. Previously this had been recognised directly within the
Statement of changes in eauity. No adjustment has been
made to the 2021 tax result due to it not being material.
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

2022 2021
Statement of financial position — highlights £m Em
Financial investments 40,951 51143
Derivative assets 22,451 15,018
Reinsurance assets 1199 3,350
Gross insurance liabilities (33,029} {47.013)
Derivative liabilites (25,348} {16,997}
Barrowings (1,5592) (1,580)
Qther net assets 807 554
Total equity 5,439 4,465

At the end of 2022, the Group had total financial investrments
of £41.0 billlon {2021: £51.1 billion). Our investment stratedy is to
select assets that generate cash flows to match our future
claims payments in both timing and amount. Therefore,
although the size of the porticlio has aecreased primarily
aue to the impact of rising interest rates, the value of cur
insurance liabilities has alsc fallen, and they now stand ot
£33.0 billion (2021: £47.0 billion}. Note that our hedding strategy
is primarily designed to stabilise our solvency position, as
noted previously, and conseguently there may be some
short-term volatility in the IFRS resJlt, particularly given
recent volatile economic conditions.

The creait gquality of our investment portfolio s actively
managed and remains strong, ensuring that the Group dig
not experience any defaults for the tenth consecutive yvear.
This demonstrates the resltience of our investment strategy,
which continues to grioritise the management of key risks
to protect the pensions of our policyholders over the
corring decades,

The decrease in the reinsurance assets during the year
primarily reflects the lower levels of insurance liabilities due
to interest rate rises. In 2022, the Group reinsured longevity
exposure on £2.8 billion of reserves {2021: £4.0 billion), anc at
31 December 2022, 87% of the Group's gross longevity relatea
reserves had been reinsureg (2021: 85%). The Group has 14
reinsurance counterparties, all of which have a credit rating
of A or above.

The Group uses derivatives to hedge certain market risks
associated with both new ana existing business. Gross
aerivative assets and derivative liabilities have both increased
during the year, leaaing to an increase in the nat liakbility
position of £518 million (2021: movernent of £425 million). The
netincrease is a resJlt of market movements, in particular
rising interest rates. It should be noted that a significant
proportion of cur derivative contracts are collateralisea
through the use of a custodian, and as such present little
credit risk in the event of a derivative counterporty aefadlt.

As a resuylt of the above movements, total equity has
Increased by £574 million {2021, £298 million).

Adjusted operating profit before tax

In aadition to the statutory results presentation outlined
above, the Group also chooses to analyse its IFRS rasults
on an alternative performance metric (“APM"), AOPBT.

It reflects the Group’s activities which are core to our
Dusiness glongside certain management choices ana
decisions arcund thase activities. This includes the writing
anc mancgement of pension insurgnce contracts anc the
maonagemrent of risk through reinscrance.

AOPEBT for the yvear decredsed to £388 million (2021: £533 million).
Whilst underlying profits have increcsed to £654 million

(2021: £455 millicn) mainly due to the benefit from higher returns
on surplus assets and writing new business, this was more than
offset by favourable assumption changes which increased
AOPET in 2021 but which were not repeated in 2022,

Mare detail on the main components of AGPBT and the
reconciliation to profit before tax are set out below.

2022 2021

Adjusted operating profit befare tax Em £m
Expected return from operations 426 288
New business and reinsurance profit 228 67
Underlying profit 654 455
Changes in valuation assumptions (6} 315
Expernence and other variances (79} (77)
Finance costs (123} {122}
Project costs (58) (38)
Adjusted operating profit before tax 388 533
Investment related variances 819 (173}
Add back: RT1 coupon (treated as a dividend

for statutory purposes) 33 33
Profit before tax 1,240 393

Expected return from operations

Expectea return from operations reflects the expectea returns
arising from the manogement of the Group’s assets and
liabilities. This is derived by using assumptions about returng on
the underlying Investrnent portfolio backing liabilities, and an
the surplus assets of the Group. Expected returnsg of £426 million
were above the prior year (2021 £288 millicn), mainly driven by
the increase in interest rates and higher levels of surplus gssets.

New business and reinsurance profit

Neaw business and reinsurance profit represents the impact on
profit of writing new pension risk transfer contracts based on
target asset mix assumptions, and the impact of entering into
new contracts of reinsurance. New business and reinsurance
profit was £228 million (2021 £167 million), resulting from the
£41 billion of new business premiums written.

Changes in valuation assumptions

Our focus remains on long-term profitability, which is
achievea by setting pruaent assumptions in respect of the
in-force liakilities and new business acquired during the year
Manadement regularly reviews these assumptions to ensure
that they reflect the characteristics of our book ana wider
market practice.

As part of management’s regular review of assumptions in
2022, we updacted several gssumptions resulting in a total
charge of £6 million.

In the year we have made changes to the way we model
pensicn revolyation increases, which contributed to a relagse
of reserves of £62 milion.

Fariongevity, we cacptea CMI_2021, which is the latest version
of the Continuous Mortclity Investigation's (“CMI") projections
mocel, 1o generate future mortality improvements. The impact
of Covia-i2 has also been removed from the dernvation of
current mortality rotes.
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These changes lowered Management’s view of average life
expectancies, and consequently generated o reduction in
reserves of £60 million.

We increased our cash commutation take-up rate to reflect
maore rocent economic conditions and PIC's new [ongevity
assumptions. This generated a reserve relodase of £30 million.

Following an in-depth review in the year, we increased our
raserves by £106 million to reflect Monagement's latest view
of maintaining the cost of our Limited Price Index {("LPI")
neflation lnked wloligulivns.

Finclly, we have updated our maintenance expense
assumptions to reflect the latest expense buddet and policy
count information. This increased reserves by £52 million.

In addition, there were several other smaller assumption
changes made in the year, including an update to our ERM
valuation, reinsurance, investment expense and project
costs assumptions.

in 2021, we updated several assumptions including

those in raspeact of credit defaults, maintenance expenses,
investment management fees, inflation and the IFRS liquidity
premium rate, which together resulted in a total reserve
release of £315 miflion.

Experience and other variances

Experience variances gave rise to a loss of £73 milfion in

the year (2021: loss of £77 million). The lass in the current perod
largely reflects differences between assumptions used for
oricing and reserving on new business. In 2021, the loss largely
related to experience variances on new business, actual
claims experience compared to expectation and the impacts
of data updates from underlying policyholder informaticn.

Finance costs

Finance costs reported as part of AOPBT reflect interest
costs on both the Restricted Tier 1 and Tier 2 debt. The small
increase comparead to the prior year reflects the unwind of
the carrying amount.

Investment related variances

Investment related varionces include the differences between
the expected long-term investrnent return and the actual
nvestment return earned in the period; changes in economic
assumptions on liabilities and the differences between the
short-term actual asset mix against the expected long-term
asset mix on new business transactions.

We carefully manage cur risk to market and other economic
factors and enter inte derivative hedging contracts to manage
these exposures in accordance with our risk appetite, Qur
hedging strategy is primarily designed to actively manage risk
over the long-term in the solvency balance sheet, and there
axists a mismatch between this hedging strategy and the IFRS
balance sheet. This misrmateh, and the resulting volatility, is
included within the investment related variance line. The
impact of changes in credit ratings and timing variances for
asset purchases backing new business are alse included here.

Investment related variances resulted in a gain of £819 million
(2021: loss of £173 million), largely from favourable market
movements and management actions to optimise the risk
profile of our portfolio. The year-on-year improverreant was
mainly driven by higher interest rates, rising inflation and
wider credit spreads.

Expense ratio

The expense ratio is an APM of the Group that measures
the operating efficiency of PICG and reflects annualised
opercting and investment expenses as a percentage

of closing financial investments.

The ratic increased to 0.60% {2021: 0.39%). Mast of the increase
was driven by the 20% reduction in asset values because of
higher interest rates, alongside the incregse in the expense
base to support growth.,

Return on equity

Return on eauity is o further APM which measures the rolling
12-month IFRS profit after tox as o percentage of average
IFRS equity (excluding cur RT1 notes).

Return on equity improved to 21.7% over the yvear (2021: 7.3%)
due to the higher profit after tax. This was driven by higher
new business profit and returns on surplus assets, as well as
favourable investment related variances, partly offset by
favourable assumption changes which increased profit after
tax in 2021 but which were not repeated in 2022. Our hedging
strategy is principally designed to stabilise our solvency
position, and this can lead to short-term volatility in the

IFRS result.

IFRS 17

IFRS 17 — Insurance contracts is o new accounting standard
effective for accounting periods on or after 1 Janucry 2023.
The standard provides a comprehensive approach for
accounting for insurance contracts, including measurement,
income statement presentation and disclosure. It is expectea
to have a significant impact an the reporting of the Group's
IFRS based metrics. Howevaer, it is an accounting change, so
does not affect the underlying profitability or business model
of the Croup.

As gt the date of this publication, the Group is in the process
of finalising the calculation of the opening balance sheet
and the production of 2022 comparative information. For this
reason, it is not currently practicable to accurately quantify
the impaoct of cdopting IFR3 17, but the expected impact on
equity as at 1Januvary 2022 is estimated to be a decrease of
between £100 million and £300 millicn.

Key differences between the measurement of insurance
contracts under IFRS 4 and IFRS 17 include the deferral of new
business profits ot inception as o Contractual Service Mardgin
(*CSM™), which are then recognised over the lifetime of the
contract, alongside the release of the Risk Adjustment {"RA”™),
being the compensation that the Group reauires for taking on
non-financial risk. These offset prudent margins that were
previously recoghnised under IFRS 4. For a growing business
such as PIC's, this means that profit recognition is slower under
IFRS 17 than IFRS 4. The Group expects to recognise o net of
reinsurance pre-tax CSM plus RA of between £2.6 billion -
£2.8 bilion on 1 January 2022, which are expected to be
released to profit over time.

Profit under IFRS 17 is sensitive to short-term investment
volatility {(noting that PIC bases its hedging on a Solvency,
rather than IFRS, position) with the impact differing from that
seen under IFRS 4. For this reason, the Group will continue to
analyse its results on an adjusted operating profit basis. Due
to the slower recognition of profit, the Group AGPBT and
profit hefore tax are expected to initially be lower under
|FRS 17 than under IFRS 4.
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Capital and solvency

PIC, the regulated subsidiary of the Group, is required to
comply with the Solvency Il regulatory framework. Solvency |l
requires firms to follow either a prescribed approach to
calouicting requirea regulatory capital {the standard formula
approach), or to apply to the PRA to use an "internal model”
developed by the Company but subject to comprehensive
review and approval by the regulator. PIC has PRA approval to
apply an interngl maael, which is a better reflection of the risk
profile of the Company’s business than the standard formula
approach. The Company has compliea with the Solvency |l
Capital Requirements s set out In the relevant PRA rules
throughout the year (see Note 22 of the financial statements).

On 17 November 2022, His Majesty’s Treasury published

the results of its consuitation on Solvency 1, signifying the
introciuction of reforms to the sclvency regulatery regime
and providing a dedree of clanty on the future UK regulatory
environment. Review is ongoing 1o assess the potential
impacts before updates are put into UK legisiation and
reflected in the PRA Rulebook.

Solvency Ratio

At 31 December 2022, PIC’'s unaudited Solvency |l ratio
increased to 225% {2021: 168%), with surplus funds of

£4,01 million (2021: £2,701 miliion) in excess of the solvency
capital requirernent ('SCR"). The increase in the year was
largely driven by favourable market movements and returns
from the in-force book, partly offset by the imrpact of writing
new business. The result is net of a recalculation of the
Transitional measure on technical provisions ("TMTP")
performed at 30 June 2022.

2022 2021
Unavdited

PIC solvency £m £m
Own Funds 7,210 6,669
Solvency .| capital requirerments {3,199} (3968}
Solvency [l surplus 4,01 2,70
solvency ratic (%) 225% 68%
Matching adjustment (%} 1.637% 1.040%
Surplus generation (PIC) (unaudited)

2022 2021
Surplus generation £m Em
Opening Surplus 2,701 2,449
Expected surplus generation from
In-force baok 568 400
New business (net of reinsurance) {160} (33)
Management actions and other
operat.~g varnarces (211) 17
Financing and project costs (180} {158)
Operating surplus generation 17 380
Econemic and other non-operating variances 1,293 {128)
Total surplus generation 1,310 252
Closing Surplus 4,01 2,70

Surplus deneration measures the amount of Solvency I
surplus capital generateaq in the year, being the excess of
Qwn Funds over SCR. The key compenents are the expectea
surplus generated from the business written in previous
periods and management actions taken in the year, which
cre usec to funa the capital requirerrent of writing new
business, alondside paying coupons to cur debtholaers

and dividends to oJr shareholders.

Within economic and other non-operating variances are
the impacts of market movemeants, alongside management
cctions relating to our portfolio, and variances between the
actual asset mix on new business compared to that which
was assumed in pricing.

Total surplus generation in the year amounted to

£1,310 million {2021: £252 million). The improvement compared
to 2021 was primarily driven by more favourable economic
variances and higher returns from capital assets, partially
offset by favourable management actions which increased
surplus generation in 2021 but did not repeat in 2022, and
higher new business strain as we invested in more credit
asseats. For further details of the moverrents please refer

to the below analysis.

Expected surplus generated from the in-force book
Expectea surplus seneration comprises the:

v Expected investment return on capital assets
(non-matching fund assets);

s Margins earned on the matching fund assets;

e Rejease of the in-force risk margin and SCR; and

o Amortisation of the Transitional Measure on
Technical Provisions.

In 2022, the expected surplus generation incredsed to
£568 million (2021: £400 million). This was mainly due to
higher interest rates driving a higher return on capital assets.

New business (net of reinsurance}

New business {net of reinsurance) is the expected impact
on surplus of writing new business based on pricing
assumptions, alongside the Impact of relnsuring the in-force
book. Any differences between the actual reserving
requirements and the pricing tasis, including the timing of
reinsurance, are reported as experience varignces within
other operating variances.

New business {net of reinsurance) consumed capital of
£160 million in 2022 {2021: capital consumed of £33 million).
This increase reflects greater investment in credit assets
in 2022 as spreads widenead. 2021 also benefitted from a
number of aone-off items Including the use of quota share
reinsurance which did not repeat this year.

Management actions and other

operating variances

Management actions and other ocperating variances
comprise actions taken by the business, assumption changes
and operating variances. Operating variances represent the
difference between actugi non-econcmic experience and
the non-economic assJmptions Used In pricing new business.

In aggregate, mancgerrent actions and other operating
variances led to c reduction in surplus of £211 millicn in 2022
cormpdared to an increase of £171 million in 2021. The reduction
in the current year includes adverse expense experience

on new schemes and tim ng variances fror not yet naving
reinsJred certain new schemes, alengside the impact of
Jpdating managerent’'s assumptions including those related
to longevity, expenses, cash comrmutations and the cost of
inflation-linked obligations.

In the prior year, there was ¢ benefit from actions to reposition
our capital following cur annual review of the assumrptions
Jsea in the business, leadingd to an overall reduction in capital
reguirements This was portichy offset by the impact of
applying the Sterling Overnight Index Average ("SONIA™)

as the new benchmark GBP nisk-free rate.
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Financing and project costs

Financing and project costs reflect the accrued interest paid
on the Restricted Tier 1 and Tier 2 debt issues coupled with
project and other regulatory costs in the year. This increase
is primarily driven by the higher project expenditure on
business-wide initiatives.

Economic and other non-operating variances
Fconomic and other non-operating variances include the
difference between actual economic movements and the
economic assumptions within expected surplus deneration,
differences between actual asset mix on new busimess
corrpared to the pricing assumption, alongside tax
impacts. The 2022 result clso includes the impact from

the recclculation of the TMTP performed ot 30 June 2022,

Economic and other non-operating variances generated
surpius of £1,293 million in 2022 (2021: consumed surplus of
£128 million). This includes the impact of favourable market
movements, particularly changes in inflation and interest
rates, partly offset by economic variances on asset
purchases backing new business. In 2027, this primarity
refated to movements in inflation, interest rates and asset
trading in the year.

Adjusted equity own funds

2022 2021
Unaudited

PIC - Adjusted equity own funds Em £m
Qwn funds 1,210 6,663
Deduct notional RT1 and Tier 2 own funds (2,050) (2,050)
Shareholder equity own funds 5160 4,619
Add risk margin net of transitionals 692 1,269
Adjusted equity own funds 5,852 5,888

AEOF is another APM of the Group and is o shareholder

view of PIC Solvency Il Own Funds ofter deducting hybrid
debt and remaoving the impact of transitional measures

on technical provisions and risk margin. AEOF was broadly
flat at £5,852 miltion at 31 December 2022 compared to
£5,888 million at 2021. This was due to the benefit from writing
new business and higher returns from the in-force book being
largely offset by the impact of economic movements.

Shareholder eauity own funds, which only deducts hybrid
debt from PIC Solvency | Own Funds, benefits fram the
reduction in risk margin primarify related to rising interest
rates and conseguently increasad to £5,160 million

(2021 £4,613 million).

Key solvency sensitivities
PIC uses various management tools to mitigate the impact
of market fluctuations and managde its financial position:

e New business is only transacted provided it meets the
Group's financial return targets.

s New business is only written if the Group has sufficient
capital resources to ensure on-going financial security
for its existing policyholders.

The Group uses hedging to partially mitigate risk to
the business:

e |nterest rate, inflation and foreign exchange risks are
hedgaed using market instrurments,
® Longevity risk is managed through reinsurance.

The key sensitivities to which PIC’s regulatory Solvency |l
balance sheet are exposed, and their impact on the
reported solvency ratio, are shown below:

PIC = solvency sensitivities (unaudited) 2022 2021
Asreported 225% 168%
100 bps increase in interest rates’ 16.1% 129%
100 bps reduction in Interest rates’ 12.3)% (2313%
100 bps increase in credit spreads’ 201% 94%
100 bps reduction in credit spreads’ (5.5)% (19m%
10% increase in house price index 0,0% n/a
10% decrease in house price index 0.0% n/o
20% credit downgrade? {14.2)% {79)%
5% reduction in base mortality? (4.0)% {71)%

All sensitivities reflect the impact of the TMTP being
notionally recalcuiated in both the base and stress positions.

Notes:

1. For the interest rate and credit spread sensitivities, due to the nature
and size of the impacts the notional recalculation of the TMTP
contributes significantly to the asymmetry of the results.

2. Shows an immediate full letter downgrade on 20% of all assets
where the capital treatment depends on a credit rating,
Downgraded assess are assumed to be immediately traded back
to the origingl credit rating, so the impact is primarily o reduction 'n
own funds from the loss of value on downgdrade. The impact of the
sensitivity depends upon the market levels of spreads and the asset
mix of the portfolio at the balance sheet daote.

3. Equivalent to a 0.4 year increase in life expectancy from 22.7 years
to 23 1years for a typical male aged 65.

Dividend

In recognition of the continued financial strength of the
business, the Board has decided, for the first time, to propose
o dividend to the Group’s shareholders of 7250 pence per
ordinary share (2021: nil). The dividend is driven by financial
performance in 2022 but will be reflected in the Group's
results in 2023,

The Groun's dividend policy is to retain sufficient capital to
invest in future growth opportunities of the UK PRT market,
whilst paying regular dividends to shareholders, based on the
current and future projected capital position of the business.
The implications for solvency, leverage and liquidity are all
considered when considering the appropriateness of
dividend payments.
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Market consistent embedded value results

The Group prepares an embeaded value analysis under
the Eurcpean Insurance CFQ Forum Market Consistent
Embedded VYglue Principles issued in April 2016, The starting
point 1s the Salvency |l balance sheet, to which is gdded an

At 31 December 2022, the Group's embedded value
increased to £5,617 million from £5,027 million at the end of
2021. The increase is largely due to the benefit from writing
new business, returns from the in-force book and favourable

economic variances.

estimate of the after-tax value that is expected to emerge MCEV 2?2 2221
- m m
in the future from the release of the prudent margins built -
into the actuarial valuation of the in-force business. Further Adjusted net worth 7.247 6710
adjustments to the regulatory baiance sheet are maae In Value of in-force business after tax 1183 1,796
respect of the subordinated loan notes, frictional cost of MCEY fair value of Tier 1and Tier 2
capital and cost of residual non-hedgeable risks ("CRNHR") dent Instruments (1,883) (2.381)
to arrive at & more approprate guantification of the MCEV before cost of capital £,547 6125
Group's value. Frictional cost of caprtal {575) (359
Cost of residuai non-hedgeable risks (355} (739]
MCEY net of cost of capital 5,617 5,027
IFRS reconciliation to solvency Il - PICG
Add
amortised Add accrued Unaudited
cost value of interest on Deduct Addrisk Reduction Reduction Solvency Il
IFRS Tier2 Tier2 accrued  madrginnet in in Differences Differences balance
balance subordinated subordinated intereston of technical reinsurance indeferred in other sheet
31December 2022 (Em} sheeat debt debt RTl1notes transitionals provisions assets tax asset values {Em}
Total assets less
cther ligbilities 37,269 1,592 (] (11} - - - (142) (125) 38,613
insurance liabilities/
3est estimate
habilities ("BEL") net
of reinsuronce
assels (31,830) - - - 1,205 {60) - - {30,685)
Risk margin net of
transitionals - - - (692} - - - - (692)
IFRS net assets/
Solvencyllown
funds 5,439 1,592 30 (11) (692) 1,205 (60) (142) (125) 7,236
Solvency ll te EV reconciliation - PICG
Allow for Release (RM
Unoudited differences Recognise the minus
Solvency | between Allow for frictionalcost transitionais),
balance sheet Solvencyll subordinated of required recognise Release MA
31December 2022 (Em} {Em) and MCEV debt capital CRNHR margins Tax on PVFP Tax on PVFP
Total assets less
other ligbilities 38,613
3EL net of
rensurance assets (30,685}
Risk margin net of
transitionals (692)
Solvency !l Own
Funds/Adjusted net
warth 7,236 1 - - - - - 7,247
value of In-force
business after tax - - - - 692 885 {394} 1,183
Cost of residugy
non-hedgedble risks
(CRNHR) - - - - (355) - - (355)
Frictional cost of
required capitql
(FCoC) - - - {575) - - - (575)
subordinated debt - ~ {1,883) - - - - (1,883)
MCEV 7,236 1 {1,883) {575) 337 885 (394) 5,617
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PIC solvency Il (unaudited) and IFRS excess assets
The following table shows the excess assets held to meet solvency and risk margins.
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Risk management

Our approach to risk management

2022 has seen some unprecedented
market volatility, precipitated by
specific events but intensified by
the shadow of Covid-19 and the
crisis in Ukraine.

Inflation has risen significantly, and rapidly, and for much

of the year we have seen a gradual increase in gilt yields

before the shock of the 'mini-budget’ precipitated a rapid
rise and the need for the Bank of England to intervene.

Alat of the focus for risk management over the year has
been to manage this volatility through our hedding strategy.
Our hedging strategy, combined with our risk appetite
framework, particularly our salvency and liguidity risk
appetites, have stooa up to the challenges of these market
movements and allowed Js to weather the storm. Whilst the
Liability Driven Investment ("LDI") crisis in the pension rmarket
oid impact our liguidity as a result of rapidly increasing gilt
yields and the decreasing value of GBP against USD, we
rerrcined within our liquidity and capital nsk appetite limits.

Alongside managing the aay-to-day market volatility, we
have enhanced our risk management capabllities This
Includes significantly improving oJur gsset stress ana scenario
testing capabilities with the implemeantation of a new asset
stressing mocel ana development to cur Risk Appetite
Framework. A particuler focus has been climate change
where we updatea our risk framework to better embeg

the climate change rigks in our nisk taxonomy to allaw us to
develop more granular risk appetite statements ana Iimits.

Alongside managing the
significant day-to-day
market volatility, we

have enhanced our risk
management capabilities.”

Giles Fairhead
Chief Risk Officer

As we look forward into 2023, we need to be prepared for a
busy and potentially volatile year ahead. There dre no signs
that market uncertointy is going to reduce. The combination
of ¢ gradual return to normal after Covid-18 interacting with
the significant geopolitical uncertainty is likely to continue to
bring market volatility and a chance of unexpected market
and opergtional events. At the same time, we plan to
diversify our asset origination and expect there to be o
strong new business pipeline. We have carried out, and will
continue to carry out, a series of market and operational
stress tests to ensure that our business is well prepared,
and as required take action to strengthen our pasition,

We will alse continue to review aur risk appetites in light of
the changing environment. This work will have a particular
focus on climate, liquidity and macro-economnic risks.
Operationally, we will ensure that any new risks are fully
ernbeaded in our regular Risk and Control Self Assessments.
We will continue to manage the key regulatory changes
including new Consumer Duty, IFRS 17 and the Solvency 11
repulatory reform. A key focus of risk managementis to
ensure that in all areas of regulatory and environmeantal
change any new risks are fully understoaa, and manaded,
alongside ongoing review of existing r sks.

Giles Fairhead
Chief Risk Officer
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PIC prioritises its risks by continuously reviewing their materiality and aligns them to three key pillars:

1. Sufficient Financial
Resources

2. Effective and
Resilient Operations

3. Meeting External
Expectations

Please see our principal risks section on p66-71

How we manage risk

Risk management is integrated into the business
via the Enterprise Risk Management Framework,
comprising our systems of governance, our policies,
our Risk Appetite Framework and the application

Risk Management of the Risk Management System:

System
Y » the Governance Framework within which risk

management responsibilities are delegated
and governed, including the Three Lines of

Governance Defence modei;

Enterprise Framework

Risk
Management
Risk Appetite Framework
Framework

Policy
Framework

the Policy Framework through which risk
managdement expectations and reguirements
are embedded ond consistently monitored
across the business;

the Risk Appetite Framework within which the
Company’s risk exposures are controlled and
monitored in fine with the Board's risk preferences
and risk appetite; and

the Risk Management System by which risks are
identified, assessed, mitigated, monitored and
reported throughout the company.

We have implemented three key risk pillars within our business and our risk taxonomy is aligned to these
three pillars. Each risk catepory has statements and appetites to help us monitor and manage the risk to

our business.

Long-term value growth
Generate attractive returns over
the lifetime of the business

Sufficient Financial
Resources

The risk that PIC does not have
sufficient funds to meetits
business objectives

Liquidity Solvency

PIC strategic objectives

Secure and sustainable
business
Optimise internal and
external resources

Effective and
Resilient Operations

The risk that PIC does not deliver its
objectives due to failures in the way
the business is run

People &
Processes
Resources
Systems & Physical
Technology Infrastructure

Cross-cutting risks

Climate change

Responsible corporate citizen
Ensure cur behaviours
reflect our values

Meeting External
Expectations

The risk that PIC fails to meet
the expectations of external
stakeholders

Conduct Strategy

Legal &
Regulatory
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Risk management continued

Mitigating our key risks
We closely manage all risks within our business. The key risks to the business and its strategy for managing those risks are set
out below to page 71. More details are also included in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Risk and wnat it means to us Current impact Outlook How we are managing this

Risk Pillar: Sufficient Financial Resources

Objective: Long-term value growth

1. R High inflation levels are We constantly monitor market
Changeinyear Y

Finanecial markets expected ta persistin the short  conditions and hove risk

Risks associated with The globai economic outlook term and there is a potential appetite imits set for PIC’s
has weakened further through  for further interest rate exposure to market risks. This

changes in values of assets
and liabilities caused by
market movements,
downgrades and defaults.

2022 due to high inflation ana increases. This, together with year, in the current high-risk
low growth rates. Centrai banks  the recessionary environment, enviranment, we have also:
globally are increasing interest  could mean increased credit

rates to combat inflation, which risk and a downwara pressure e assessed how potential

is exacerbated by energy and  on credit ratings. Sustained public credits may respond in
food price shocks. Geopalitical  levels of downgrades and arecessionary environment;
risks are high across the globe,  defaults would impact PIC's s assessed the potential

and in particular the Russian solvency position. solvency impact for a UK
invasion of Ukraine continues, sovereign downgrade; and
which has worsened Europe’s We expect the economic ® Gssessed our private credit
energy security. outlock to remain weak in exposure under the poor

. the sh i : - .
The impacts on PIC of these e short to medium term macro-economic outlook

conditions can be both
positive and negative. On the
negative side, the current
market conditions have
resulted in higher risk of creait
aowngrades and defaults,
and heightened risk overall.

PIC also holds capital to protect
the business against market
maovements, downgrades and
defaults, and we continue to
refine qur methodology far
calculating the amount of
capital to hold.

Rising vields improve the funding
position of pension schemes,
which accelerates their ability to
maove to buyout, which in turn
increases new business
opportunities, Higher yields also
Improve PIC's solvency position.

2. Change in year The outlook for longevity risk We ¢im to retain less than 40%
Longevity and therefore the cost of of our longevity risk through
Risks associated with the If PIC's palicyholders live longer  reinsurance is uncertain, reinsurance [at Fy2022, 87%
pension related liability than was originally assumed driven by impacts of the of longevity expaosure was
payments that PIC makes when pricing new business, Covid-19 pandemic, and reinsured). This reduces the risk
being greater than PIC PIC's liabilities willincrease. compounded by the cost-of-  to PIC of palicyholders living
expects to pay due to living crisis and redyctions in longer than expected as the
policyholders living longer There has been increased public spending, Increase in liabilities is shared
than expected. Jncertainty in relation to life between PIC and the reinsurers,

expectancy due to Covid-19,

although the level of uncertainty In cadition, PIC regularly

has reauced compared with compares actual londevity

2021 PIC generally secks to experience with what was

transfer longevity risk via expectad to ensure its

reinsurance contracts, which assumptions remain appropnate,

sJbstantially reduces our cnd cantinually seeks to enhance

exposJre to this risk. its understanaing of changes to

policyholaer life expectancy.
Where PIC has retainec

longevity risk, this 1s weighted RIC also holas capital to protect
more heovily to younger the business adainst potential
policyholaers, a gemographic mncreases in longeavity.

which has so far been less
overtly affected by Covia-19
than older populations

Key Increased Stable Decreased
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Risk and what it means to us

Current impact

QOutlaok

How we gre maonaging this

3.

Financial
counterparties

Risk associated with the
failure of one or more of
PIC's banking or reinsurance
counterparties.

Changein year

A faiture of one of PIC's
counterparties could result in
financial loss to PIC or to an
increcse in the capital that PIC
is required to hold, weakening
PIC’s balance sheet.

PICs counterparties continue
to demonstrate strong capital
positicning and diverse
business lines, with generally
resilient balance sheets.

There are no material
counterparty default
concerns with our banking
counterpcorties despite the
recent volatility in markets.

While 2022 saw o high level of
natural catastrophe activity,
our reinsurgnce counterparties
have remained resilient.

PIC expects limited negative
change to the credit ratings
of our banking counterparties
in the near term given the
credit strength of these
counterparties.

Despite sorne capital erosion
during 2022, rating agencies
experct that the reinsurance
sector will remain well
capitalised due to a
combination of disciplined
underwriting, increasing
investment income, prudent
capital management and
sophisticated risk
management,

We monitor the strength of our
counterparties on a daily basis,
and can decide to temporarily
stop adding risk exposure with
a counterparty if we view them
as high risk.

Approval from the PIC Board is
required before we transact
with ony new hanking or
reinsurance counterparties.

We dlso hold capital to
protect the business against
counterparty defaults,

4,

Liquidity

Risk associated with PIC's
ability to meet its financial
obligations as they falldue
without incurring excessive
cost. This includes risks
stemming from the lack of
marketability of an
investment that cannot be
bought or sold quickly
enough to prevent or
minimise a loss.

Change in year

PIC's balance sheet is sensitive
to movements in long-term
interest rates, as well as the
dollar/sterling exchange rate.

Both interest and exchange
rates have been volatile
throughout 2022, particularly
during September and Gctober,
when markets experienced
significant movements due to
the 'mini-budget’. As a result,
PIC had to post significant liguid
assets as collateral for some of
our derivative pesitions that are
used to hedpe certain market
risks. However, PIC has
significant liquidity, and can
withstand shocks well in excess
of our liquidity risk appetite. As
aresult, PIC managed through
the market disruption well.

Given the Government has
signalled its fiscal policies, o
repect of the September/
Ocrober market conditions is

not expectad in the near term.

However, markets remain
volatile and other events le.g.
an escalation of the Russia/
Ukraine war or another
change in UK Government)
could drive further market
volatility and heighten PIC's
liquidity risk.

Risk Pillar; Effective and Resilient Operations

Objective:

1.

Business processes
Risks associated with the
adequacy of the design and
implementation of PIC's
business processes

and controls.

Responsibie corporate citizen

Change in year

This risk relates to PIC's internal
processas and controls failing
or not scaling effectively as the
DUSINESS Grows.

During 2022, we made

control process improvements
throughout PIC as the business
has continued to drow. For
example, operational resilience
and chongde manogaement.

As PIC's operaticns continue

to grow in size and complexity,

this risk is expected to
increase in the medium term,
but will be offset by the
continuing imgarovement

in controls

Markets remain more volatile
than in orior years, resulting in
an increased level of risk.

We constantly monitor our
liquidity positicn and will
increase frequency if market
conditions warrant it.

Following the September

and October stress event,
a'lessons learned' exercise
was undertoken and an action
plan implementaed to further
increase PIC's business
resilience to these types

of shocks.

We continuously monitor

the effactiveness of and

risks associated with our

key processes, making
enhancements where necessary.
We have continued to builc out
our operational resilience
framework which focuses on

the maintenance and recovery of
our business processes, incredsing
our overall resilience to both
internal and external events and
overall process effectiveness.
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Risk management continued

Risk and what it means tc us Current impact Outlook

How we are managing this

The recruitment market

is expected to continue to
be challenging during 2023,
with candidates looking for
inflation-beating salaries
and market-leading benefits.

2.

Talent retention

and recruitment

Risks associated with

a failure to attract, train
and retain knowledgeable
and skilled staff.

Change in year

The employee market

over 2022 has been very
competitive, driven partially
by the current economic
climate, and the risk of failing
to attract and retain the staff
required to drive the business
forward has remained o key
risk for PIC to manage.

This could, however, be
tempered by the recession
forecast, in that the candidate
market may soften as other
ordanisations may potentially
PIC faces specific challenges reduce headcount.
N sourcing appropriate

candidates with niche skills

and/or proauct knowledge,

N a tmely manner for the

appropriate rate. This risk is

exacerbated by the current

buoyancy of the bulk annuity

market, creating new business

opportunities but with the risk

of resource stretch and drop in

morale amongst existing staff.

We have undertaken a review
of our culture, ana listenad
and acted on stuff feedback.

We have taken action to
manage the Risks arouna
getting to know new joiners
and developing teamwork in
a nybrnd working environment,
including our all PIC staff
away day.

We continue to review benefits
to make PIC an attractive place
to work and offer flexible
waorking as standard.

Where resource is stretchea,
we recruit temparary cover
where necessary. Our HR team
s focused on stratedic and
tactical workforce planning

n areas of stretch.

We continue to focus on and
invest in staff development
and wellbeing.

3.

Third parties

Risks associated with the
outsourcing of key business
cctivities to third parties.

Third parties will continue

to be of critical importance
w0 the delivery of PIC's
policyholder solutions ana
related activities, particularly
as our portfolic expands.

Change in year

Third party administrators
play a critical role in PIC’s
interactions with its
policyhclders. They help
ensure we pay our
policyholders the right amount
at the right time ana deal with
key communications ana
custormer service. Other key
business processes are also
cutsourced to third parties.

The recruitiment market
remains buoyant and the new
Business opportunities show
no sign of abating, meaning
that these risks coula continue
to increase over the course of
the year

If PICs third parties fail to

delver, PIC runs the risk of

financial loss, policyholder

aetriment, regulatory Dreaches

and reputational damage.

A key risk in the current third
party lanascape 1s that many
of PIC's third parties are also
facing @ tight recruitrment
market, and are facing similar
challenges tc PIC In the face of
a buoyant bulk annuity market,

We maintain robust third
party oversight and on-
boarding processes

and monitor third party
performance against KPIs.

We also undertake regular
reviews of thira parties and the
activities they undertake, and
work with the third party to
implermrent improvement areas.

We work closely with our key
outsourced administrators
on resourcing and optimal
staff mix and, where issues
are ientfied, work closely
opether to resolve these.

Increased Stable Decreased

Key
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Rigk ard what it means to us

Current impact

Outlook

How we are managing thig

4,

Cyber

Risk arising from
vnauthorised access
to PIC's information
systerns and data.

Change in year

A successful cybor altack on
PIC’s information systems
could result in financial loss,
operational disruption and/or
reputational damage.

The primary development in
the cyhear threat lancsanne
this year is the war between
Russia and Ukraine, given
Russia's reputation for
cyber warfare.

Our new Chief Information
Security Officer is expanding
PIC's information security
resourcing, to improve cur
secutily pusilion Lo keep pace
with the evolving threats and
business growth.

As we continue to orow and
increase our use of cloud
servicus, our cyber security
risks will evolve and our cyber
risk management will need to
adaptin line with this.

Risk Pillar: Meeting External Expectations

Objective: Secure and sustainable business

1.

Policyholder
information

The risk that PIC's
business practices,
culture or behavicur
lead to unfair or poor

outcomes for customers.

Change in year

This risk could matericlise
by PIC failng to pay a
policyholder the correct
armount, to the correct
account and at the
correct time,

Communications to
policyholders in cur letters,
on our website, or in
telephone calls could also
be unclear or untimely.

There is also a risk of
vulnerable custemers not
receiving as good an outcome
as all other customers.

These risks have increased due
to market volatility experienced
in 2022 and cost-of-living crisis
as our policvholders are
increasingly concerned

about tharr finances.

This year we have also focused
on meeting the needs of all
policyholders and workshops
have been conducted to
enhance our respense to
pelicyholders, who may be
experiencing vulnerability.

The new Consumer Duty is

placing increased importance
on ensuring firms act to deliver
good cutcomes for customers.

PiC sees this new regulation

as an excellent opportunity

to review our policies,
procedures, and the customer
journey to ensure that all our
policyholders, including those
exhibiting traits of vulnerability,
receive good outcomes.

The regulation intreduces

a higher standard for our
communications, As well

as being 'fair, clear and not
misleading', we must ensure
that communications are
likely to be understoad by
cll our customers.

We maintain awareness of the
latest threats and how these
might impact PIC by engaging
with external advisers.

We maintain o robust T
environment to ensure the
protection of our dota and the
security of our systems and
those of outsourced or third
parties that we work with

The IT environment is regularly
tested internally and externally
to check the effectiveness of
our security controls, including
aur incident response capability.

The project and plan for
completion and implementation
of the new Consumer Duty
regulations has been approved
and is underway.

wWe will be reviewing all our fetters
to ensure they are clear and
easy to understand cnd help
policyholders make decisions

in their own best interest.

We also continue to collect,
listen to and act on feedback
from policyholders.
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Risk management continued

Risk and what it means to us

Current impact

Cutlook

How we are mdnagding this

2.

Regulatory and
political environment
Risk associated with the
regulatory and political
environments in which PIC
operates, including the
ability of PIC to keep pace
with changes in these
environments.

Changde in year

Regulatory change,
supervision and political
changes in policy may reduce
PIC's value proposition or
result in PIC's business model
becoming unviable.

The financial services industry,
and the PRT market, confinues
to see a significant level of
regulatory Tocus and change,
alongsioe fluctuations caused
by poiitical events. This has in
part been driven by the
various risk events that the
Financial Services Industry
has experiencea auring 2022,
as regulators look to firms for
both prudential resilience,
and giving customers o good
oJtcome ahd continuing
growth forecasts for the

PRT market.

During the year, regulatory
change and supervisory risk
has increased, driven by
regulatory reforms {e.g.
Soivency |l reform), political
events driving uncertainty {e.g.
the Septamber "mini-budget”,
and the Conservative
leadership re-election) and
regulatory responses to
rmarket volatility. Specifically,
as a focused insurer far the
pension risk transfer market,
FIC continues to assess and
contribute to Matching
Adjustment and Risk Margin
refarm as part of the HMT
ana PRA's Solvency Il work.

We expect this risk to remain
relatively high over the next
three years, given the General
Election, Solvency Il regulatory
reform, the new Consumer
Duty implementaticn and
other key regulatory cnanges.,

We maintain an open diclogue
with regulators and policyrakers,
closely monitonng discussions
and scanning the horizon for
potentiol regulatory political risks
to the business. PIC continues

to ensure prompt delivery of
regulatory information to assist IN
supervisory activities ana engage
in relevant consultations.

Where changes which pose
a risk to the business are
identified through horizon
scanning and risk identification,
then resource is committea
to focus on o more detailed
dialogue with relevant
stakeholders to influence
change and closely monitor
likely cutcomes. This allows
us to identify key 1ssues early
and to actively manage the
risk on an ongoiNg asis.

3.

Competitive
landscape

Risks associated with the
execution of PIC's business
strategy arising from the
marketpiace in which

PIC operates.

Changeinyear

2022 has been a challenging
year in which to write new
business, with increasea
competition for aeals reaucing
prices and making return
targets harder 1o achiave.

Given the long-term nature of
PIC’s business, the absolute
risks to PIC of lower new
buJsiness volumes ana returns
ina given year are minimal.

PIC's pipeline of new business
going into 2023 is strong and the
supply of new business across
the wider market 1s expected to
ncrease significantly as higher
interest rates have meant that
buy-ins ana buycuts have
become afforcable for more
pension schemes

Whilst competition for new
business 1s expected to
rermrain strong, the increase in
aemond may push up prices
ana make returns targets
more obtainable

We continue to maintain strong
pricing discipfines, allowing us to
retain capital for transactions
where we believe we are likely
to be competitive and also
achieve our return targets.

Maintaining this discipline will
be increasingly important in
the context of a market where
demand for buy-ins and
DJyouts s ncreasing.

Increased

Key

Stable

Decreased
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Risk and what it meansto us

Current impact Outlook

How we are managing this

4.

Climate change

The potential for adverse
consegquences arising from
the impacts of climate
change, including physical
risks arising from climate
driven events, and
transitional risks arising
fram the process of
adjustment to a low-
carbon economy.

The focus on climate change
cand related sustainability
risk will remaimn high given
the continued focus from
key stakeholders.

Change in year

Clinnule Change continues
to be an area of priarity for
the public, insurers and
regulators alike.

Climate change may reduce
the value of PIC's assets,
increase the caost of capital,
offect new business volumes,
cause operational disruption
and have a negative
reputational impact.

Physical risks emerging from
the impacts ot climate
change, which may lead to
increasingly acute weather
catastrophes, longer tarm
changes to resource
availability and societal
changes, could lead to
potential reductions in the
value and availability of
assets PIC invests in, and
disruption to PIC's operations
and counterparties.

The transition to a low-carbon
economy may entail extensive
policy, legal, technology and
market changes to address
climote change mitigation

and cdaptation requirements.
This may impact PIC's asset
portfolic, counterparties

and operations.

In 2022, the treatment of
climate change risk was a
focus areq; we reviewed and
enhanced cur risk appetite
statements and metrics for
climate risk.

We have made progress over
the past year to maonage the
potaential risks arising from
climate change, including

the formalised approach to
achieving Net Zero and further
enhancement of the climate risk
approach, including monitoring,

The ESG Committee and Risk
Committee regularly discuss
climate related risk issues and
policies, including climate risk
scenario testing, which aiso
includes climate and ESG
related horizon scanning.

The Strategic Report on pages 1 to 71 was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

ot

David Weymouth

Chairman
14 Cornhill, London EC3V 3ND

15 March 2023
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Chairman’s introduction to Corporate Governance

| am delighted to introduce the
Corporate Governance section
of this report and accounts.

As | have noted earlier in this document, since joining as
Chairman in October 2022, | have been impressed with the
Group's robust governance structures and processes, as well
as the close working relationship and collaboration between
the Board and management. Together these create ideal
conditions for effective risk manggement, which will ensure
the long-term success of the Company as we help increasing
numbers of trustees move their members’ benefits to the
security of the insurance regulatory framework.

I this section, we detdil our corporate governance
structures and processes, attendance by Board members
at relevant meetings, the Board's composition, and the
Board’s main activities during the year. The Chairs of PIC’s six
Board Committees, Audit, ESG, Investment and Origingtion,
Nomination, Remuneration, and Risk, also provide indivicdual
reports on their activities and initiatives undertaken during
the year. This section explains our adherence to the UK
Carporate Governance Code 2018 (the “Code”), and to the
provisions of 5172 of the Companies Act 2006, including our
focus on our policyholders and wider stakeholders {also
detailed on page 93).

As the scale of our presence across the econemy - detailedin
the heatmaps on pages 4 and 5 of this document - increases,
it is imperative that we remain focused on our purpose and
strategy, both of which are discussed regularly at Board
meetings, Cur growing presence also means it is important
that the Board maintains a close focus on the implementation
of the Group's ESG agenda, as we embed our Net Zero
transition plans within the business.

PIC’s purpose provides
a strong foundation for
continued growth and
robust governance.”

David Weymouth
Chairman

The Board has also focused on the oversight of the large
change initictives of recent years. This includes PIC's now
investment platform, IFRS 17 Implementation, as well as

the completicn of the project to bring in-howse our UK listed
debt portfolio.

Finally, the Board has spent considerable time, assisted by
the Nomination Committee, on executive succession with o
view to further strengthening PIC’s leadership team in order
to deepen the skills, experience and knowledge needed os
the Company continues to grow.

The Board

PICG's Board of Directors is made up of 13 Directors, 7 of
whom are independent. Of the remaining Directors, 5 are
appointed by the main shareholders, and one is the Chief
Executive Officer. PIC’s Board consists of 14 Directors, 8 of
whom dre independent, and two executive managemaont
{Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer).

The biographies of our Directors, including their experience
and relevant expertise, is set out on pages 74 to 79 of this
document. Both Boards have an appropriate balance
between independent Directors and shareholder nominated
Directors, and there is o wealth of knowledge and expertise
to guide, and challenge where appropriate, managernent in
the implementation of the Group's strategy.

David Weymouth
Chairman

15 March 2023
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Board of Directors

Key
Chair

£ Audit Committee

David

Wweymouth
PICG &PIC
Director
Chairman of
the Board

Date of
appeointment:
Davic was
appointed to the
Board in October
2022 and became
Cnhair .n December
2022,

Tracy

Blackwell
PICG&PIC
Director

Chief Executive
Officer

Date of
appeintment:
Appointed to the
Boaord as an
Executive Director
N Juily 201 and
apoointed CEQ In
July 2015

Dom Veney
PIC Director
Chief Financial
Qfficer

Date of
appointment:
Dom wdas
apponted to

the Boarc as an
Executive Director
‘n Decemper 2021,

~  Nominatien Committee

o nvestrent and Ongingtion Comimittee 2 Risk Comrmittee

Background and career: David has extensive chair and non-executive
experience across a range of Financial Services businesses. He has
previously charred Fidelity Investment Services (UK) LTD, served as Senior
Independent Director at Royal London Mutual Insurance Society, inciuaing
as Audit and Risk Chair at @ number of businesses.

He currently chairs the boards ot Mizuha PLC and OSB Group PLC Davia's
executive career included serving as Global Chief Information COfficer at
Barclays and Chief Risk Officer at RSA PLC.

Areas of expertise: David has more than 30 years' experience operating
at execulive and bocrd level noross Barking, irsurance and Asset
Management. He nas deep functional expertise across Business
Transformation, Technology Operations and Risk.

Current external roles: Chair of Mizuho PLC, Chair of OSB Group PLC, NED
and Chair of Risk Committee, Marsh UK,

Qur outgoing Chairman, Jon Aisbitt, stepped down fram the PICG Board
on10ctober 2022 and from the PIC Board on 31 October 2022

Background and career: Tracy joined PIC in 2006 as Chief Investment
Officer and was one of PIC’s founders, Until she became CEQ in 2015,
Tracy was responsible for building up the Company's asset management
function, including airect investment capabilitias into areas such s social
Nousing and student accommodation. Prior to joining PIC, Tracy spent 10
years gt Goldman Sachs, inciuding as Head of Risk Manogement, EMEA
at Goldman Sachs Asset Mancgement, working with pension fund and
Insurance compadny clients on investmentt, risk and strategic issues.

Areas of expertise: Tracy has 30 years' experience in insLrance and

asset management, including o deep knowledde and understanding

of the regulatory iandscape. Areds of particular interes: include: "The
Purpose of Finance”, a project seeking to redefine the sociai contract
with financzial services, and diversity in financial services.

Current external roles: Tracy 1s o member of Welicome Trust's Investment
Committee; an Advisory Council member on the Diversity Project; Trustee
and Honouragble Treasurer of the Elton John Aids Foundation; and a board
member of the Association of Britisn Insurers.

Background and career: Frior to joining PIC, Dom spent more than 15 years
with PwC working across many leading Life insurers including Phoenix,
Pruaential, Legal & General, Standard Life, Swiss Re and HSBC Life.

Do alse led or @ number cf regulatory driven projects maost recently
related to the intraducTion of IFRS 17, for which he coord mated PwC's
glopal response.

Domis a Fei ow of the FacL.ty and Inst'tute of Actua-es. He nolds @
degree in Mathemaotics from warw ck Univers ty.

Areas of expertise: Dom has over 20 yvears' experience in tne feins.-ance
sector ana has an n-depth <nowleage of iMsurance financ a ana cap tal
management, ana regulatory affairs He a.so nas signif cant experence
Infagrce restruClunng pProjects.

Current externalroles: Do serves 1 o gaviso y Ccobacity to tne Financial
Reporting Counci.

5 Rerrunergtion Commritiee £ cnvironmental, Sociat and

Governance Commiitee
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Sally
Bridgeland
PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
appointment: Sally
wias appointed

to the Board in
January 2021

Jake Blair

PICG & PIC
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated by HPS

Date of
appeintment:
Jake was
appointed to the
Board in June 2021,

Judith Eden
PICG & PIC
Director
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
dppointment:
Judith was
appointed to
the Bogrd in
Aupust 2015,

Background and career: Sally's previous roles include Chief Executive
Officer of BP Pension Fund, where she had responsibility for the strotegic,
regulatory and operational matters of the £19 billion UK pensicon fund. Sally
spent seven years in this executive role and stepped down in 2014, She has
extensive Investment consulting experiagnce and has also served as a
Trustee Director of Lloyds Banking Group Pension Trustee Limited, and has
also held Ministerial appointments far the Nuclear Liabilities Fund and NEST
Carporation. Sally is a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries and in 2020 she
received the Award of Honour from the worshipful Company of Actuaries.
Areas of expertise: Sally is an actuary and has over 30 years' experience in
the Uk pensions industry gained from executive and non-executive roles.
Current external roles: Sally 1s Chair of Local Pensions Partnership
Investments Limited and Impax Asset Mancgement plc aswellas a
Non-Executive Director of Local Pensions Partnership Limited, Royal London
Mutucl Insurance Society Ltd and Royal & Sun Allignce Insurance, Sally is an
Honorary Group Captain in 601 Sguadron of the Royal Auxiliary Alr Force.

Background and career: Jake is o Managing Director ot HPS Investment
Partners. Prior to joining HPS in 2007, he served as a Vice President in General
Electric’'s Commercial Finance Distressed Debt Group, where he invested in
distressed leveraged loans and was involved in numerous workouts on behalf
of GE Copital. In 2000, Jake founded Camplnteractive, a Bronx-based
non-profit, where he served as Executive Director for four yvears.

Jake holds ¢ BA from Washington & Lee University and an MBA from
Columbia Business School.

Areas of expertise: Icke has over 20 years’ experience in the financial
services industry, in particular ininvestment manaderment with an
in-depth focus on credit

Current external reles: Jake 1s o Managing Director at HPS Investment
Partners and represents HPS as o board member of Acra Lending
Holdings, Spectrum Automative Holdings, Canaccord Genuity Wealth
Management UK and Nucleus Financial Platfaorms Limited.

Backgreund and career: Most of Judith’s corporate career was spent at
Morgan Stanley in operational, financial and strategic management roles
across both the Institutional Securities and Investment Mangdement
divisions. In 2009, she was appointed a Director and Chief Administrative
Officer of MSIM Ltd, where she oversaw ¢ period of sighificant restructuring
and change In 2013, she additionally became Chief Executive Officer of
MSIM's iInternational cross-border fund management company From 2015,
Judith moved to focus on her non-executive career.

Judith is an alumnus of Price Waterhouse (Fellow ICAEW) and INSEAD
{Corporate Governance Certificate {DP-C).

Areas of expertise: Judith has over 30 years' experience in financial
sarvices gained from both executive and non-executive roles, in particu’'ar
ninvestment management. She has an in-deoth understanding of the
regulatory environment and has helped duide companies through
Business restructuring and change programmes.

Current external roles: Judith is g Non-Executive Director and Audit
Committee Chair of Invesco UK and Senior Independent Director and
Audit Committee Charr of ICBC Standard Bank plc. She is also Non-
Executive Director and Chair of the Remuneration Committee of Flood Re
and a Senior Independent Council Member at the University of Surrey.
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Board of Directors continued

i)

Fay RA
Key

Chair

A Audt Committee

7%

Julia Goh
PICG &PIC
Director
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
appointment:
Julic was
appointed to
the Boara in
October 2021,

Tim Gallico
PICG Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated

by CVC

Date of
appointment;

Tim was appointed

to the Board in
August 2020

Stuart King
PICG &PIC
Director
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
appointment:
Stuart was
appointed to
the 2oarg N
Janeary 2019

Nomination Comrmitiee

investrment and Ongination Commitiee r  Risk Committee

Background and eareer: Julic has over 25 years of broad-based financial
services experience in London. She was a Managing Director at Barclays
Investment Banx from 2010 to 2018 in various senior front-office positions
including as Chief Operating Officer of Global Markets, and was alse Chair of
the Barclays Women's Initictive Network. Prior to that, she was a Managing
Director and the Global Head of Prime Services Risk at Credit Suisse for 11
years, where she was also Chair of the Eguities Diversity Advisory Council.
Julic startea her Markets career at Nomura international as a risk manager.
She is a member of ICAEW and has a Certificate in Company Direction from
the Institute of Directors.

Areas of expertise: Julia has significant senior front-office experience with
specific expertise In Markets (Sales & Trading), Hedge Funas, Structured
Products, Risk Management and internal Controls, especially at times of
business transformations and change

Current external reles: Julic s a Non-Executive Director ana Audit and Risk
Committee Cnair of Schroder AsiaPacific Fund ple, and Non-Executive
Director of The Mercantile Investment Trust pic. She is aiso a Director

of the charity Children of the Mekong ond 's a beard aagvisear of the
Handpbog Clinic.

Background and career: Tim 1s a Partner at CVC Capital Partners, based
inLondon and is focused on the Strategic Oppartun-t.es investmeant
platform. Prior to joining CVC 'n 2008, he worked for Bain & Co. Tim holds o
degree in Social and Political Sciences and Mandadement Studies from the
Yniversity of Cambridde.

Areas of expertise: Tim has over 15 years' experience in the investment
industry as well as experience as a director of both regulated and
unreguiated companies.

Current externdl roles: Tim represents CVC and currently sits on the
bogrds of entities of the following groups: Asplundh Tree Expert LLC, the
RAC Group and Riverstone International. He also acts as a Trustee of
United Wond Schoals.

Background and career: Stuart Nos previousy worked at the Bank of England
before moving to become Heoa of UK Banks Regulation and then Head of
Major Insurance Groups Regulation at tne Financial Services Autnorty ("FSA7)
(predecessor of the Financia. Conguct Authorty). After his time at the FSA,
Stuart necame Managing Director at advisory firm Promontory Financia:
Group and after that Group Compliance Director at Aviva plc.

Areds of expertise: Stuart has over 25 years’ exper.ence workng in tne UK
francial reguigtion inaustry, as botn regulator and at regu ated firms cna
lea the enhanced supervision approach of major Nsurance groups
foiowing the fnanciai crisis in 2007,

Current external roles: He 15 o Commissioner of Guernsey Financ a
Serv'ces Comm'ssion. StLart remains an external adviser to financial
servces frms. He 1s a trustee to a number of cnarit’'es working in the areas
of ecucation, and mentai healtn inc.uding Emerge Advocacy wh'ch assists
young people facing Mmenta: neqitn crises.

p Remunerglion Commities - EZnwironmreantal, Social and
Governance Corrmitiee
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Arno Kitts
PICG &PIC
Director
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
appointment:
Arno was
appointed to
the Board as

an independent
Non-Executive
Director in

July 2016.

Josua

Malherbe
PICG Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated

by Reinet

Date of
appointment:
Jjosua was
appointed to
the Board as a
Non-Executive
Director in
December 2015.

Roger Marshall

PICG &PIC
Director
Senier
Independent
Director

Date of
appgintment:
Roger was
appointed to
the Board as

an independent
Non-Executive
Director in

April 2015,

Background and career: Armno’s previous roles include Managing Director of
BicckRack’s £250 billion UK institutional business, Head of the Henderson
Clobal lnveslurs plokal distribution and Head of JPMorgan's Asset
Management UK institutional business. Arno was o JPMorgan Managing
Director, responsible for institutional and defined contribution business, and
he was the Chief Executive Officer of the JPMorgan Life business. He served
as a director of many investment funds and was a former board member of
the Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association ("PLSA”). Arno is @ Fellow of
the Institute of Actuanes and holds a PhD from Southampton University.

Aredas of expertise: Arno has been Invalven In invastment management
since 1989, including seven years as Head of Investments of an insurance
company. Arno was a member of the Council and Finance & Investment
Board of the Actuarial Profession and has been actively involved in
‘ndustry matters as a member of the PLSA Defined Benefit Council.
Current external roles: Arnao is the founder of Perspective Investments,
an investment management firm. He Is also a Naon-Executive Director of
Wake Trade Technolugies, o member of the investment Committee of
valesco and an adviser to New World Group.

Background and career: Josua qualified as a chartered accountant in South
Africa in 1984, having worked ot o predecessar firm to PwC. He bacame
Chief Executive Officer of VenFin Limited in 2000 until 2006, when he held
the position of Deputy Chalrman VenFin Limited was acquired by Remgro
Limited ond Josug now serves as a Director of Remgro. He holds BCom LLB
from the University of Stellenbosch and o CTA from the University of Cape
Town, and holds the professional gualification CASA}L

Areas of expertise: josua has over 30 years' experience in corporate
finance and has had executive experience at companies since 1993.
Current external roles: Josug is Deputy Chairman of Cormpagnie
Financiera Richemaont S.A. and is a Director ot Remgro Limited and

Reinet Invastmeants S.C.A.

Background and career: Roger spent much of his career in PwC, where

he was an cudit partner in London and Zurich. Roger was Chair of PwC's
Global Audit Policy Board and its global Corporate Reporting Task Force.
He served on the board of Old Mutual pic, where he was also Chair of the
Audit Committee He was Charr of the Accounting Standards Board and o
Director of the Financial Reporting Council. He also served on the board
of the European Financial Reporting Advisary Group and was interim
President. He is o Fellow of the ICAEW and Honorary Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors.

Areas of expertise: Roger's career at PwC and his subsequent non-
executive roles have given him substantial skills and experience in
accounting, risk monagement, compliance and cudit in the financial
services industry.
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Board of Directors continued

N IO

R IO
Key

Chair

A

78

Audhz Commitiee

Jérdme
Maurgue
D'Algue
PICG & PIC
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated

by Luxinva

Date of
appeointment:
Jéréme was
appointed ta
the 30ara asa
Naon-Executive
Director in
November 2018.

Peter Rutland
PIC Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated

by CVC

Date of
appointment:
Peter was
dppoirted to
the Board as a
Non-Executive
Director in
May 2017,

N Nomination Committee

1c

nvestrment and Ongination Committes R Risk Commitiee

Background and career; Jerome halds an MBA from the Wharton School
and a BA from ESSEC. He was previously an Associate at McKinsey &
Company aond Vice President of Morgan Stanley Capital Partners in
Landan. Jérdome was a Partner at private equity firm Englefed Capital LLP.
He has been an employee of Abu Dnaoi Investment Authority ("ADIA")
since 2012, He became Read of Financia' Services in the Private Equity
Department in 2017, Head of EMEA i 2019 and is now the Co Global Head
of Private Equity.

Areas of expertise: sorome nas soent 25 years working in the finanaial
services industry with a strong background in gsset management

Current external roles: J&rdme is currently the Co Global Head of Private
Equity at ADIA and represents ADIA on the boaras of various entities ADIA
has invested 1N,

Background and career; Peter is a Managing Partner and Heaa of CVC's
Financial Services Team and is based 1In Lonaon. Prior to joining CvC in
2007, he worked for Advent International since 2002, Peter has nad
previous roles gt Goidman Sachs in the Investment Banking division. Peter
holds an MA from the University of Cambridge and an MBA from INSEAD

Areas of expertise: Peter has over 20 years' experience in the banking,
investment and insurance industries as well as experience as a director
of nath privata ard listed cormopanies.

Current external roles: Peter represents CVC ana is ¢ member of boards
reprasenting the following groups: Newday, Paysafe, TMF, Riverstone
International and Ethinki.

r RemJneration Committee £ Ervironmental, Social and
Governance Committee

Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annual Repoert and Accounts 2022



Mark Stephen
PICG &PIC
Directer
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Date of
appoeintment: Mark
was gppointed to
LHhe Board ds an
independent
Non-Executive
Director in
November 2014,

Wilhelm

Van Zyl

PICG & PIC
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Shareholder
nominated

by Reinet

Date of
appointment:
Wilhelm was
appointed to the
PIC Boardasa
Non-Executive
Director in May 2015,
and subsequently
appointed to the
PICG Board in
October 2017,

Background and career: Mark has worked in the insurance industry for
over 30 years Fe currently has o portfolio of ndependent non-executive
director roles across the industry Following o degree and research career
n fife sciences, he qualified as a chartered accountant before joining Price
Waterhiouse. As a partner at PwC he led the insurance consulting business
and lotterly was UK Insurance Industry leader. Throughout his career, he
maintained o strong client focus and worked with many of the leading
insurers in the UK, Switzerland and South Africa. He retired from the
partnership in 2013.

Areas of expertise: Mark's experience is in cdvising and working

with imourancs cormpary bucids v ooy uspec by ol business
performance, including how they adapt to the changing regulotory

and business landscape.

Current external roles: Mark serves gs Chairman of TransRe London
Limited and chairs the Investment Cormmittee. He also chairs the Audit
and Remuneration Committees at Howden Group Holdings Limited. In
2021, he was appointed to Openwork Holdings Limited where he chairs the
Audit Committee, and in 2022 as o Director of HGH Finance Limited.

Background and career: Wilhelm is the Chief Executive of Reinet
Investments Manager S A. and Reinet Fund Manager S A. Prior to this he
was group actuary of the financial services group Metropohtan Holdings
from 2001 and hecded up its corporate business from 2006. In 2008, he
was appointed as Chief Executive of Metropclitan Holdings. Following
the listing of MMI Holdings in 2010, resulting from the merger between
Metropolitan and Momentum, he was appeinted as Deputy Group

Chief Executive. Wilhelm holds a BCom degree from the University of
Stellenbosch and is a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries {UK)
and Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.

Areas of expertise: Wilhelm has a strong backeground in the financial
services sector in South Africa and overseas along with experience in
investrment strategy.

Current external roles: Wilhelm serves on the boards of directors of various
Renet and investees entities.
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Corporate Governance report

Governance Code compliance

The Board is committed to high standaras of corporate
governance across the Group and suppeoerts the principles
laid down in the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code) which is available ot the Financial Reporting Council's
website www frc.orguk. During the financial year ended

31 December 2022, the Group was compliant with all of

the principies of the Code and the table below provides
signposting to how we have achieved compliance. However,
as the Group is a private company it does not comply with a
number of provisions of the Code and we explain throughout
the report where we do not comply with the Code or where
the provisions are not applicable. The Board's commitment
to robust povernance means that we continue to work
towards full complionce with the provisians of the Code,
where applicable.

Code Principles explanation references

The table below shows the pages where you can find
cxplanations of how the Group applies the Principles
of the Code.

Principle reference

1. Board Laadership and Company Purpose

>

pages 74-79

pade 81

pagdes 83 and 94-97

pages 38-39, 92-93

pages 50-55

N MO0 ®

. Division of Responsibilities

page 82

page 82

page 86

poge 82

Wi [T|Q]|"

Composition, Succession and Evaluation

pages 85, 101-102

pages 74-79, 84-86

pape 88

&|F|XR|-

. Audit, Risk and Internal Control

pages 95-96

page 95

pages 107-109

Remuneration

cages 103-106

pages 103-106

T|O|T|N|O|Z|2

pages 103-106

Code Provisions that the Group does not apply

Provision

Explanation

18 All directors should be subject
to annual re-slection. The board
should set out in the papers
accompanying the resclutions to
elect each director the specific
reasons why their contribution is,
and continues to be, important
to the company’s lond-term
sustainable success.

The Company's

directors are not supject
to annual re-election.
Major shareholders of
the Group nominate
Directors for appointment
to the Board and can
raise any issues clirectly
with the Chairman.

32. The board shoula establish o
remuneration committee of
indepenaent non-exacutive
directors, with ¢ minimum
membership of three, or in the
case of smaller companies, two.
In addition, the chair of the noard
can only be a member if they

were independent on appointment

and cannot chair the committee.
Before appointment as ¢hair of
the remuneration committee, the
appointee should have served
on aremuneration committee
for at legst 12 morths.

The Committee
comprises six NEDs, four
of whom are regaraed
indepenaent and the
remaining two are
shareholder nominated
directors. The Chair of the
Remuneration Committee
is Independent and meets
the relevant requirements.

The shareholder
nominated directors
monitor and safeguard
the sustainable growth
of the Group through
remuneration oversight
and ensuring the
remuneration is not
encouraging excessive
risk taking kbut promotes
the long-term success
of the Group.

41, There should be a description
of the work of the remuneration
committee in the annual report,
including

e an explangtion of the strategic

rationale for executive directors’
remunerction policies, structures

and any performance metrics;

appropriate using internal ana
external measures, including
pay ratios and pay saps;

s adescription, with examples,
of how the remuneration
committee has addressed
the factors in Provision 40,

¢ whether the remuneration policy

aoperctea as intendeaa in terms

of company performance ard

guantum, and, if not, what

changes are necessary;

what engagement has taken

ploce with sharcholders anc

the imopact this has nad

on remuneration oolicy

and o.tcomes;

e whaot engogement with the
workforce has taken place
o explair how executive
remJneration alighns with wider
company pay policy, ana

s to what extent aiscretion has
been applied to remruneration
cJtcornes ana the reascns why.

reasons why the remuneration is

The content of

the Remuneration
Committee report is
tailored to requirements
for Private Limited
companies. We comply
with the majority of
this Provision and the
Group is developing
further ways of
engagement with

the workforce on the
remuneration maotters.
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Simplified PICG Group structure

@ Holding entities
@ Regulated entity
@ Service entity

Sharehclders

Pension Insurance
Corporation Group
Limited

PIC Heldings Limited

. Pension
Pension .
Insurance Services
Corporation plc Corporation
P P Limited

Leadership and Company Purpose

Pension insurance Corporation Group Limited (“PICG” or
the "Group™) and Pansion Insurance Corporation plc {("PICY)
are each led by a Board of Directors {the "Board”) who

are appointed pursuant to the Articles of Asscciation.

The Group continues to benefit from a simple corporate
structure, as depicted above, and composition ¢f the
Boards is designed to ensure there is an overlap of Directars
between the Boards, as shown in the attendance table

on page 84 and that both Boards are aware of relevant
rmatters which affect either PICG or PIC. Any menticn of the
Board in this report refers to the PICG Board, unless stated
otherwise. The Directors have the benefit of the Group's
Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity and insurance policy.

The current Board members, details of their experience and
the date of their appointment are set out on pages 74 to /9.

The Board believes thaot good governance, strong values

and the right culture enable the Groun to do what is right

for our policyholders, employees, shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Board looks to and applies the principles of
the Code as the basis of how the Group should be governed.

The role of the Board is to promote the long-term sustainable
success of the Company, generating value for sharehclders
and contributing to wider society. The Board also plays a key
role in establishing the Group’s purpose, which is to pay the
pensions of its current and future policyholders. In order to
achieve that tong-term sustainable success and fulfil the
Group's purpose, the Board ensures that the Group operates
within a framework of prudent and effective contrels which
enable risks to be assessed and managed. The Board alse
plays a key role in setting the Group's culture and monitoring
how it is being embedded so that itis aligned with the
Group's values and purpese. The right culture enables the
delivery of the Group’s strategy and business model by
promoting attitudes and behaviours of high ethical standards
and integrity, as set out in the Group's values. The Board sets
the tone through ongoing dialogue with management and
employees, and helds senior management to account
where there is a misalignment of the existing culture with

the Group's purpase and values.

The Board has collective responsibility for setting the Group’s
stratedic goals and providing leadership to put them into
effect through the management of the Group's business
within the Group's governance framework. It does this by
setting Group strategy, ensuring appropriate standards,
contrals, and monitoring and reviewing management’s
performance. Part of this process is ensuring that the right
resources dre in place to enable the Group to deliver on its
stratedic goals and to meet its obligations, This includes both
financial and human resources, ensuring the right levels of
capital are held as well as the appropriate team of people
needed 1o run a growing business whilst managing the risks.

The main pricrities for the Board in 2023 will be to continue to
huild on the work carried out to date by the Board, ensuring
that Directors and executive management have the relevant
skills and experience to continue to provide strong directicn
and leadership for the Group as it continues to grow and
evolve. The Board will continue to work to progress PIC as
aresilient and effective organisation.

Engagement with stakeholders

The Board recopnises that effective engagement with, and
participation from, shareholders and other stakeholders is
fundamental to promoting the Group’s leng-term sustainable
success and to fulfilling its purpose of paying pensicns of the
current and future policyholders. When making decisions,
the Board has regard to the interasts of all of the Group’s
stakeholdears, as well as its broader duties under 5172 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Group's formal 5172 statement can
he found on pages 40 to 43 of this Annual Report and pages
92 and 93 set cut how the Board has taken into account the
views of our stakeholders, the impact of its decisions on them
and any actions which have arisen as a conseguence.
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Corporate Governance report continued

Division of responsibilities

The Board maintains o formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, to ensure there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the Board and executive management, which is reviewed on an annual basis. These reserved matters
include the Group's strategic aims; objectives and commercial strategy; governance ana regulatory compliance; structure and
capital; financial reporting and controls; internal controls and risk management; major capital commitments, major contracts
and agreements; shareholder engpagement; remuneration of the Board ana senior executives; material corporate transactions;
and any changes to this schedule of reserved matters.

The Board agreeas the responsibilities of the Cirectors and the Company Secretary, and these are set cut further below:

Non-Executive Directors

Chairman

David Weymouth

David is responsible for the
leadership and effectiveness of
the Board. He aliso leads on the
development of culture by the
Board as well as the development
and monitoring of the effective
implementation of policies and
procedures for the succession
planning, induction, training and
development of Directors, as well
as evaluating their performance.
Together with the CEQ and
Company Secretary, he sets the
agenda far Board meetings, and he
facilitates open and constructive
diglogue during those meetings.
David also plays an impaortant role
in ensuring the Group maintains
effective communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Senicr Independent Director
(MSIDH)

Roger Marshall

Roger acts as a sounding board

for the Chairman and a trusted
intermediary for the other Directars
and shareholders. He is alsc available
if they have concerns, which contact
through the normal channels of
Chairman, CEO or CFO, has failed to
resobve ar for which such contact is
napproprate. Roper, in his capacity
as 51D, meets with the NEDs at

least once a yedar to appraise the
Chairman's performance and an
such other occasions as are geemed
appropriate. Additionally, in his role
as the Whistleblowing Champion,

he guards the Independence,
autonomy and effectiveness of

the Group's policies and procedures
on whistletlowing,

Non-Executive Directors

Jake Blair; Sally Bridgeland; Judith Eden;
Tim Gallico; Julia Goh; Stuart King;

Arno Kitts; Josua Malherbe;

Jéréme Mourgue D'Algue; Peter Rutland;
Mark Stephen; Wilhelm Van Zyl

Along with the Chairman and
Executive Directors, the NEDs are
responsilsle for ensuring the Board

and its Committees fulfil their
responsibilities. The NEDs combine
broad business and commercial
experience, in particular in the financial
servicas and insurance sectors, with
independent and objective juddement
as well as providing independent
challenge to the Executive Directors.
The balance between NEDs ana
Executive Directors enables the Board
to provide clear and effective
jeadership across the Group.

Chief Executive Officer
(IJCEOH')

Tracy Blackwell

Tracy leads the executives in

the day-to-day managgement

of the business and effective
impiementation of the Board's
decisions. Tracy s supported by o
strong and experienced Executive
Comirittee, and together with her
leadership team Tracy proposes and
develops the Group’s strategy and
overall commercial objectives having
regard to the Group's responsisilities
fo its shareholders, customers,
employees ana other stakeholders.
Tracy cansults regularly with the
Chairman ana the Board on matters
which may have ¢ material impact
on the Group. She is responsible

for the Groop's performance of

its obligations, adoption of the
culture set by the Boara, and
outsourcing arrangements.

Chief Financial Officer (*CFQO")
Dom Veney

Dom is responsible for the financial
and actuarial matters of the Group,
including management, aliocation
and maintenance of capital, funding
and ligJidity. He also manages and
oversees the production ond integdrity
of the Group's financial information
and its regulatary reporting,

Lovise Inward

Louise, through the Chairman, is
responsibie for advising the Board on

all governance matters, ensuring the
Board has the right procedures, policies,
processes and resources it needs o
function effectively. She makes sure
there is a good information flow
between the Board, its Committees,
senicr manogement and NEDs.
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Governance and controf framework

The below chart shows the Group's governance structure. Along with other annual reviews of our governance processes, the
structure is reviewed to make sure that it is fit for purpose and remains as such in the context of the Group's growth prospects.

The membership of the Committees is carefully determined by the Board on recommenddation from the Nomination
Committee 1o ensure there are the right skills, experience and knowledge on each Committee and that there is also a cross
membership between the Committees. Such an approach facilitates appropricte oversight of the entire business and ensures
a good information flow between the Committees.

Audit
Committee
Assists the
Board in its

oversight of the
financial
reporting
process, the
Internal and
externcl audit
process, the
system of
internal
controls, and
complionce
with law and
regulations.

Board
The role of the Board is to promote the long-term sustainable success of the Company, generating

value for shareholders and contributing to wider society. The Board also plays a key role in
establishing the Group's purpose, which is to pay the pensions of its current and future

policyholders. Matters reserved for the Board are described on page 82.

ESG
Committee
Assists the
Board with

oversight of the
Group's ESG
strategy and
activities, the
embedding
and monitoring
of ESG matters.
Recommends
and reviews
ESG policies
and inttiatives.

Investment &
Origination
Committee
Assists the
Boord with

oversight of the
investment
policy and
strategy,
operdtion of
PIC's
investment
portfolio and
origination of
new business
and
reinsurance.

Nomination
Committee
Assists the
Board with a
review of the
Board
composition
and succession
planning for
the Board and
executive
management.

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Committee

Assists the Chief Executive Officer in the overall mancagement of the Group. Proposes strategy and

business plan to the Board and ensures there are sufficient rescurces to deliver those. Implements
the Board approved strategy, cperational plans, policies, procedures and budgets. Ensures the

performance of the Group.

Remuneration
Committee
Recommends
to the Board
the framework
and bread
policy for the
remuneration
of the
Company’s
Chair, Non-
Executive
Directors,
Executive
Directors and
other members
of the
executive
management.

Under authority delegated from the Board, responsible for management of the Group.

Group has appropriate systerrs and controls in place. Monitors operating and financial

Management and Operating Committees
Specialist committeas assisting the executive management in discharging their responsibilities.

Risk Committee
Assists and
advises the

Board in
relation to the
current and
potential risk
exposure and
future risk
strategy and
risk appetite.

Responsible for
the overall

mohitoring of

the

effectiveness
of the Risk

Management
Framework

including
oversight of the
Internal Model.
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Corporate Governance report continued

Delegation

The Board has delegated certain aspects of its
responsibilities to its six Boord Committees to assist
in providing effective oversight and leadership:

the Audit Committee;

the Environmental, Social ond Governance Committeeg;
the Investment and Origination Committee;

the Nomination Committee;

the Remuneration Committee; and

the Risk Committee

The terms of reference for each of its Committees have been
approved by the Board anag are reviewea annually.

The Committee reports are set out on pages 94 ¢ 111

The Investment and Orndination Committee consiaers
matters specific to PIC. The five remaining Committees
consider matters concerning both PICG and PIC, as per
the delegations in their terms of reference. Members
of the Committees are appointad by the Board on
recommendation of the Nomination Committee in
cansultation with the Committee Chairs.

in addition to the Board Committees, there are alsc o
nJumber of management and cperating committeas that
assist senicr management with business management
and oversight of the Group In relation to: the day-to-day
management of the business; investment matters; risk
management frameworks and input into the development
or the nisk strategy; projects and major change initiatives
to maximise PIC's project investment return; and all new
business deals and interaction with policyholders, including
the new Consumer Duty, and overall conduct.

PICG PIC Audit

Director Board Board Committee

Board and Committee meetings

The Board meets formally on a regular basis and also attends
to various matters by way of written resolutions. There is also
regular communication ana interaction with mancagement,
including monthly updates. Prior 1o each meeting, the
Chairman and Company Secretary ensure that the Directors
receive accurate, clear and timely information, to facilitate
focused, rolust and informed discussions and to Gid the
decision-making process.

Board meetings follow ¢ clear agenda that is agreed in
advance by the Chairman, in conjunction with the CEO and
Company Secretary. At each meeting the Board receives
updates from the CEQ and CFO, as well as from other members
of the senior management. These reports cover how the Group
is executing the business plan, policyholder administration,
including details of how we meet our obligation to policyhaolders,
the new business pipeline and assaciated investments, and
Risk’s review of current and emerging risks. The Chairs of each
Board Committee also report back to the Board on each
Committee’s recent activities. The Board is in regular dialogue
with senior management cutside of formal meetings and, in
addition to redular matters, the Board and Committees also
discuss other topics that require their attention. The topics that
the Board discussed cutside of regular reports are aetailed on
pages 94 and M.

Attendance by Directors at Board and

Committee meetings

In 2022, there were six scheduled PICG Board meetings and
seven ad hoc meetings. The PIC Board held seven scheduled
PIC Board meetings and eight ad hoc meetings.

The table below shows the attendance by Directors of both
the PICG and PIC Boards, as well as the Board Committees,
for all scheduled meetings. The table does not cover ad hoc
meatings, but these were also well attended.

Investment and
Qrigination
ESG Committee

Nomination Remuneraticn Risk
Committee Committee Committee

Ol ) Of -

David Weymouth'

Qo @f ) o] ) -

Jon Aisbitt?

©e ©0e -

©e 00 -

Tracy Blackweli

O] :) O] -) O] -

Dom Veney

_ @o _
®©0 O] ) -

Jake Blair

©e

Sally Bridgeland

_ @o _ _ _

®6e ©e -

Judith Eden

©0

Tim Gallico

9] )

——s

Julia Goh @@ -
Stuart King @G @o @9 - - @6 - @9
Arno Kitts @@ @0 - @0 @0 - - @9

Josua Malherbe

O] -]

O] -] 9] )

Roger Marshall

O]

e ©e

Jérdme Mourgue D'Algue

— Ge

0] )

Peter Rutland

- Ol )

e  oe

Mark Stephen

©e

e 0e

Wilhelm Van Zyl

_ @0 - ,

1 David Weymouth was appointed as Jirector to the PICG and PIC Soards on 1 October 2022,
e becarre the Chairman on 19 December 2622 following approval of hus appoiniment by the RedJlator
2 Jon Asbitt stepped down from the P.CG Board on 1 October 2022 and from the P.C Board on 31 October 2022

Key
O Meetings attended
. Scheduled meetings
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Board composition and effectiveness

The Nomination Committee regularly reviews the size,
structure and composition of the Board and its Committees
and makes appropriate recommendations to the Board. The
Board is structured to provide the Group with an appropricte
balance of skills, experience, knowledge and independence
to enable it to discharpe its duties and responsibilities
effectively. Given the nature of the Group’s business,
insurance, actuarial, accounting and financial services sector
experience is clearly of benefit, and this is reflected in the
composition of the Beard and its Committees. More detail

on skills and experience of our Beards is included in the

table below and on pages 74 to 79.

The PICG Board comprises the same Chairman and CES

as PIC, as well s 11 Non-Executive Directors, six of whom

are independent and five nominated by major shareholders.
The PIC Board is currently composed of a Chairman, CEO,
CFO and 11 Non-Executive Diractars, seven of whom are
ndependent and four of whom have been nominated by
major shareholders of the Group. Jon Aisbitt stepped down
from the PICG Board on 1 October and from the PIC Board on
31 Cctober. He was succeeded by David Weymouth, who
joined the PICG and PIC Boards on 1 October 2022, David
assumed the role of Chairman on 19 December 2022,
following approval of his appointment by the PRA and FCA.

During the year, the Chairman (Jon and his successor David)
and the NEDs met without the Executive Directors, and the
NEDs met without the Chairman present. Whilst the Board
increased its diversity in terms of gender and ethnicity
following Director appointments in 2021, it remains awcre
that it currently does not meet best practice initiatives
regarding the percentoge of women on the Board.

The Board will continue to take steps whero possible
toincredse its diversity.

Skills matrix
Knowledge of the business
Corporate Governance
Board experience
Strategic Leadership
Capital Markets and Listing
Corporate Finance
Asset & Liability Management
Operations
Qrigination
Insurance
Capital and Liquidity

Conduct Risk

Skills matrix and Board evaluation

The Board believes that diversity, in its broodest

senseg, including gendar, sccial, educational and ethnic
backgrounds, age, disability, sexual orientation, skills,
experience and diversity of thought and personal attributes,
is crucial in providing a range of insishts needed to support
good decision making and the successful delivery of the PIC
Group's business strategy. In ossessing the balance of skills
and experience, the Board uses g skills matrix and, where
there are gaps, training is provided. The skills matrix is also
taken into account tor Board succession planning.

A Board evaluotion exercise is carried out annually, covering
both the Boord and its Committees, and every three years
the evatuation is carried out by an externdl consultant. An
external evaluation took place in 2020, therefore for 2022
the Board conducted an internal evaluation, which will be
followed by an external review in 2023. The process entailed
the completion of a guestionnaire for the Board and each
Committee, with the results being discussed by the
Nominction Committee and then the Board. The results
indicated that the Beard continued to have a broad and
appropriate range of skills with which to properly challenge
managamaent, as weall as the skills ond experience needed
to meet stakeholder expectations, More detail on the Board
affectiveness review is included on page 88.

100%
95%
93%
93%

B81%
95%
86%

B81%
23%
90%
90%

B88%
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Corporate Governance report continued

Board independence

The independence of the Non-Exccutive Directors {"NEDs")
is reviewed annually In accordance with the criteria set

out within the Code. The PICG Board and PIC Board both
comprise g majority of independent NEDs ("INEDs™) including
the Chairman. On his appointment as Chairman, David
weymouth satisfied the iIndependence criteria set out in the
Code. Sally Bndgeland, Judith Eden, Julic Goh, Stuart King,
Arnc Kitts, Roger Marshall and Mark Stephen are considered
independent. Jake Blair, Jerome Mourgue D'Algue, Tim Gallica,
Josua Malherbe, Peter Rutland and Wilhelm Van Zyl are not
considered independent because they are nominated by
rmajor shargholders of the Group. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2022, the Board has therefore satisfied
the Code requirement that at least half of the Board,
excluding the Chair, comprises Non-ExecJtive Directors
determined to be independent.

Composition and independence

PIC Board PICG Board
Executive 2 Executive 1
Independent Independent
non-executive 7 non-exacutive 6
Non-executive 5 Naon-executive 5

Time commitments

As part of the appointment process and their annuat
review, each NED confirms that they are able to allocate
sufficient time to the Group to discharge their responsibilities
effectively. The external commitments of the Chairman and
the other Directors are ingicated in their profiles on pages 74
to 79 and the Company Secretary maintains a record of all
external appointments heid by the Directors. In addition,
Directars are required to consult with the Chairman as early
as possible on any new external appointment. The Board is
satisfiea thot the Chairmman ana each NED are able to
allocate sufficient time to cnable them to aischarge their
duties ana responsibilities effectively.

Induction and ongoing training and development
Following appointment, all Board members receive a tailored
induction programme, which is monitored by the Chairman
and is the responsibility of the Cormmpany Secretary. The
programme is bespoke and takes into account the new
Director's gualifications and experience. It includes
presentations, briefings, and meetings with Board members,
senior management and external advisers, Specific training,
that has been iaentified during the induction process, is then
provided to new Directors to enakle them to properly
challenge the Executive Directors and sanior manaosement.

The ongong professional development of the Directors is
regularly reviewed by the Board and its Committees. The
Chairman reviews and agrees training and development
needs with each of the Directors annually. Directors also
have the opportunity to highlight specific areas where they
feel their skiis or knowledge would benefit from development
as part of the Board evaluation process and are encouragea
to continue their own professional development through
attendance at seminars and conferences. Directors confirm
annually that they have receivea sJfficient training to fulfil
their duties.

Training sessions are reguiarly provided to Directors for each
round of Board and Committee meetings. Usually, thereis a
training session scheauled for eqgch Board meeting and after
each Investment and Origination Committee and Risk
Committee meeting.

Ongoing learning of the Board

In addition to the mandatory complionce, conduct
risk and ont-rnoney lGundering training, the Directors
ions
stional resilience, the new
Consumer Duty, the Crediit Mode!, ESG considerations
ininvestiments, emerging risks, IFRS 17, hedging and
inflation, diversity and inclusion, and cyber risk

have been provided with thematic teach-in s

and deep dives on
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. . .
David Weymouth's induction

A tailored induction programme was designed for David Weymouth whe, was appointed as the new Chairman. The induction
included reading material to give David an overview of the PIC business and, was followed by general induction ana focused
aeep dive sessions. his induction programme was implemented over a period of two months.

Hoday 21331005

Recding material shared with Daovid which

Reudlf‘! provided o general overview of PIC and

material gave him an insight into the Board work =A
3
(4]
&)
o
General g
introduction o
©
Qrigination Cperations/Pension Investments %
How PIC wins business Schemes Transition Structure of investrents, 3
including pricing, market How scheme members investment overview g
overview and reinsurance become PIC's customers/ and strategy, ESG 8

origination policyholders and how PIC integration, built

looks after its policyholders environment and

investment operations

T
<
N
1
=
=

I
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IT Strategy Compliance and Finance g

IT strategy and Board and executive Data Protection Overview of PIC’s 0,

cyber security management work on Compliance across the financial reporting %

the Group’s strategy business and how PIC T

ensures dota safety T

3

D
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=
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HR Risk Legal Projects 0
Overview of the HR Key business risks, risk Overview of the Group’s Focus on change
function and PIC's cppetite and the Risk legal structure, the Articles initictives across

Remuneration Policy Management Fromework of Association of PICG, and the business

shareholder matters

Focused
sessions
PIC Culture IFRS 17 Policyholders
Deep dive with Learning Focused session QOverview of conduct risk
& Development, HR with the Finance and and Pension Operations
and Corporate IFRS 17 project teams

Communications teams

Internal Mede|
Facused session with Chief
Actuary, Finance and Risk
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Corporate Governance report continued

Perfoermance evaluation

The Board conducts an annual evaluation of its effectiveness in order to identify areas for development. Every threc yaars,
the evaluation is conducted by an external consultant. The last external evaluation was in 2020, therefore in 2022 the
evaluation wos carried out internally. The internal evaluation is implemented by way of a survey, which in 2022 covered five
areas of consideration as shown on the chart below. The Board and standing attendees were asked 1o answer 31 guestions,
using the scale: 1 - Strongly Disadree, 2 - Disagree, 3 - Agree, 4 - Strongly Agree. The Committees used the same method but
with fewer questions tailored to their activities. In addition to using the scale, each section offered Directors and standing
attendees an opportunity to provide caditional “free-text” commentary on any other issues.

The following strengths ond areas for development were identified from the 2022 evaluation:

Step one Step two Step three Step four
Process Implementation Evaluation at Oversight
planning and reporting Board level of progress

The Company Secretary
prepares a survey
covering the following
sections: iy meetings, ii)
composition and
succession, i}
responsihilities, culture
and stakeholdears, iv)
training and development,
and v) role of the Board
Chairman.

Board strengths:
¢ The Board continued to be effective and committed, with the right balance of skills ana experience

s There are clearly defined roles and responsibilities between the Board and its Committees

Following review by the
Chairman, the survey is
circulated for completion.

Results are collated by the
Company Secretary, wha
anaiyses the key themes
and proposes actions.

The Nomination
Committee considers the
results and recommends
the proposea action to
the Boards.

The Boards discuss the
outcomes of the
evaluation and agree the
proposea actions.

Work beging on the
proposed actions.

Regular upgaates are given
to the Boards on propress.

s The Board understanas well the Group’s culture and its stakeholders, and is well informed, therefore able to make

high-guality decisions

The Board is supported by effectively functioning Committees which benefit from a depth of specialist skills and they
provide invaluable suppert 1o the Board as a whole

Areas for development:
e Increase the time spent on the strategic and cultural aspect of the business
s Further focus on succession planning
* The Committees to continue increased oversight on the embeading of ESG matters in the day to day business activities

Areas for Board development from 2021 evaluation

Actions tdken during 2022

Further improve the Board's gender, ethnic ana

wiaer diversity

Three new Directors were appointed in 2021, twao INEDs and one

shareholder nominated Director. The appointments have increased

the Board’s gender and ethnic diversity.

In 2022 the Group appointed its new Chairman. Whilst this appointment
dia not increase the gender or ethnic diversity of the Board, it has
Increased the diversity of experience, skills and knowledge.

Increase the time spent on people and the cultural

Q

spect of the business

The cultural aspect of the business has been discussed at severcl

Committee and Boara meetings. This remains an area of focus, in
particJlar with regara to cultdre measuring and monitoring.

Further review mechanisms and processes around
executive succession planning

The Nominaticn Committee ana the Board hove spent a lot of time

In 2022 or succeassien wnich led to the appointments of the new
Chairman of the Board, the interim Chief People Cfficer and the
Chief Operating Officer.

Succession will rermain on the Boara's agenda ta ensure orderly
succession for INEDs who are coming to the end of their nine-year term

INncorporate technical topics into the Boara's training
programme which were highlightea in the review

The Board ana its Cormmittees benefitea from several tachnical training
sesslons, which are mentionea on page 86 ¢of this report.

&8
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Conflicts of interest

The Board has established a procedure to deal with
Directors’ canflicts of interest which complies with the PICG
and PIC Articles and the provisions in 5175 of the Companies
Act 2006. Schedules of a Director’s actucal or potential
conflicts are compiled based on disclosures macdie by the
Director and reviewed on an annual basis. Additiondally,

any conflicts or potential conflicts are considered at the
beginning of each Board and Committee meeting.

Accountability

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committees, receives
reports regarding the Grouw's risk management and internal
control systems. These reports comprise a verbal update

from all Chairs of the Board Comrmittaes and are supported
by the Integrated Assurance Report and an annual attestation
process. Collectively, these lead to an annual opinion and
written assessment on controls, risk management, governance
and culture which allow the Boord to assess the effectiveness
of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control. The Audit Committee facilitates for the Board the
review of the Group's relaticnship with its auditor, the details
of which are set out in the Audit Committee report on pages
94 tc 97. The Board also reviews financial and business
reporting at each scheduled meeting.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Group has a Modern Skavery Statement, which

is reviewed and approved by the Board annually. The
Madern Slavery Statement is available on the Group’s
website: www.pensioncorporation.com/about-us/
modern-slavery-statement.

The Group fully supparts the aims of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015 and seeks to ensure that modern slavery or human
trafficking do not feature in any part of its business or
supply chams. It has a zero-tolerance apperoach to any
form of slovery and human trafficking within the Group or
its suppliers, and acts responsibly and ethically in business
relaticnships to ensure humaon trafficking and slavery do
not appear anywhere in its business operations.

There were no instances of modern slavery reported during
the year and the Group, through its rebust approach to internal
policies and their implementation, continued 1o manage its
suppliers through o robust third party management processes.
The Group expects the same high standards from all of its
contractors, suppliers and other business partners. As part of
its contracting processes, it ncludes specific obligations to
comply with modern slavery and anti-bribery legislation and
to have appropriate peolicies and procedures, and 1t expects
that 1ts suppliers will hold their own suppliers to the same high
standaords. PIC undertakes ondoing due dilisence to identify
potential risk areas in its supply chains and ways to mitigate
the risks. Modern slavery and other human rights issues are
also considered cs part of PIC's investment process.

Anti-bribery and corruption

The Group operates an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy to
prevent and prohibit bribery, in line with the Bribery Act 2010
The Group will not tolerate any form of bribery by, or of, its
employees, agents or consultants or any person or body
acting on its behalf, ond no such incidents occcurred in the
financial year ended 31 December 2022, Senior management
is committed to implementing effective measures to prevent,
monitor and eliminate bribery. The policy covers:

s the mamn areaqs of kabitity under the Bribery Act 2010;

s the responsibilities of employees and associated persons
acting for, or on behalf of, the Group; and

s tho consequences of any breaches of the policy.

Whistleblowing arrangements

The Group has a policy which enables and encourages
employees to report in confidence any possible improprieties
in either financial reporting or other maotters. The SID guards
the independence, autonomy and effectiveness of the
Group's policies and procedures on whistleblowing,

Remuneration

Detcils of the Directors’ remuneration and the waork of the
Remuneration Committee can be found on pages 103 to 106.
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Corporate Governance report continued

Board activities.

Each year the Board approves an annual Board calendar

of matters which it considers important to oversee, debate
and review. The table below shows these regular matters; the
topics which were of particular focus in 2022 are highlighted at
the top of the table. The Board, in its considerations, took into
account its obligations arising from s.172 of the Companies Act
2006 as outlined on pages 40 to 43.

Strategy

Customers/Policyholders

Risk management
and Internal Model

Key highlights from Board activities in 2022

s Approved refreshed strategic
objectives and KPls.

* Approved PIC Sustainability Strategy,
and updated the ESG Policy.

» Approved PIC's Operational
Resilience Self-Assessment including
Important Business Services and
Impact Tolerances in respect of PRA
PS6/21 and FCA PS21/3.

» Considered implications of the new
Consumer Duty for the Group and
approved the implementation plan.

Carried out increased oversight

and monitoring of PIC's hauidity and
solvency position, ensuring that it was
robust and resilient to exceptional
market conditions.

Routine matters considered as part of the annual Board calendar

* Approved the five-year business plon.

» Considered the Group's strategy and
further opportunities for growth.

e Approved new asset classes to be
added to PIC’s portfolic.

* New business transactions above o
defined threshold recuire Boara
approvdl, and the Board considered
and approved a number of new
business transactions.

s Continued to discuss the Group's
culture in the context of how it
affects the Group’s strategy.

e Consiaered the Group's pricing

assumptions against Investment

outcomes.

Continued to provide oversight of

the Group-wide, comprehensive

wrogramime of change focusing on
the initictives being handed over to
business as usual.

e Continued to closely oversee PIC's
opearations with particular facus on
administration services outsourced to
ensure excelient service provided to
PIC’s policyholders.

s Redefined the various customer
initigtives into an overarching
Customer Programme which covers:
the new Consumer Duty, policyhalder
communications and vulnerable
customers.

Closely oversaw PIC's portfolio and
received regular updates on any
de-risking carried out by the
Investments tecm.

Approved risk appetite with
particular focus on climate change.
Approved the Own Risk ana Solvency
Assessment.

Provided oversight of the
implermentation of the Group's
hedging strategy.

Received reports on the progress of
regulatory stress and scenario testing
to ensure the business remainea
resilient and robust in challenging
times ana there wos no adverse
impact on policyholders, workforce
ang other stakehclgers.

Received an annual report on the
Internal Model validation,
Continuea its focus on PIC’s
regulatory engagement.

Approvec the updated recovery
and resolut.or plan.

Received an annual cyker

security cenchrrark.,
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Employees and remuneration

e Worked closely with the Nominaticn
Committee on executive succession
and approved the appointments of
the new Chief Operating Officer, and
the interim Chief People Officer
Approved annual bonus and Long
Term Incentive Plan {"LTIP"}
scorecards, metrics and ranges.

Financial reporting and controls

e Approved the full year Annual Report
and Accounts.

s Monitored the Group's progress
in respect of the implementation
of IFRS17.

Corporate governance

+ With assistance from the Chair
Search Committee established by
the Nomination Committee and an
external recruitment consultant,
undertook a search for a new Chair
of the Board, and appreved the
appeintment of David Weymouth
as the new Chairman.

Received regular updates from the
CEO and Chief People Officer on
resourcing and wellbeing of staff, and
evolving working arrangements.

s Approved the launch of the Group’s
share schemes for the year as an
impoartant way for the Graup to
engage with its employees,

s An employee survey was completed,

with the Board discussing the results

and what their siohificaonce 1s for the

Group's culture and strategy as well

as the future ways of working,

Received a report on the gender

pay gap.

e Approved annual remuneration

parameters and NED and senior

management remuneration, taking
into account all stakeholders’
interests and business priorities,

e« Regularly received and reviewed the
Group’s performance reports.

¢ Reviewed and approved the
integrated gssurance plan and noted
updates against the planin reports
from the Audit Committee.

» Approved the Whistleblowing Policy
and reviewed the Whistleblowing
report.

s Approved the Modern Slavery
Statement.

e+ Reviewed the Annual Opinion from
the Head of Internal Audit on the
effectiveness of the Group controls,
risk rmanagement and dovernance
processes, and culture.

® Reviewed the compositicn of the
Board and Committees.

s Considered the results of an internal

Board effectiveness review in 2022
as disclosed in this report.

» Monitored any governance actions
which had arisen from the 2021
Board evaluation.
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Corporate Governance report continued

Stakeholders and the Board

PIC's aim is to provide secure and stable retirement incomes
through best-in-class customer service, comprehensive

risk management and excellence in asset and liability
management. The Board recognises that the needs and
relevance of different groups of stakeholders can vary over
time, and as such the Board seeks to understand the needs
and priorities of each stakeholder as part of its decision
making, This can only be achieved through engagement with,
and consideration of, all stokeholders, including our suppliers,
employees, policyholders, shareholcers and debt holders,
trustees, investment counterparties and reguiators.

Pages 38 to 39 of the Strategic Report set out who our
stakeholders are, how we have engaged with them as a
business, and how stakeholaer needs are at the core of
our decision making.

Further detail on how the Board engaged with our
stakeholders during the year to fulfil its duties under 5172 of
the Companies Act 2006 is included in further sections below
and on pages 40 1o 43.

Supporting the Board’s commitment

to stakeholders

PIC ensures that the interests of its stakeholaers are
embedded and intrinsic to any decisions maade by the Board,
Executive Committee and senior manadement. Bodard papers
include a section outlining how the interests of stakeholders
are affected by a particular decision to assist Directors take
5172 factors into consideration in ther decision making. An
flustration of where the interests of our stakeholders have had
an impact on some of the Board's key decisions is covered in
examples on pages 40 to 43 in the 5172 statement of this
Annual Report.

The Company has a schedule of matters reservea for the
Board which ensures that certain material and/or strategic
aecisions can only be made by the Boara and may not be
delegated tc Executive Committees or senior management.
More aetail on the matters reserved for the Board can be
found on page 82 in the section "Division of responsibilities”.
This schedule helps the Group ta make sure that decisions
are made at the right level and that stakeholder impacts
are a fundamental part of the decision-making process.
Tne Board s suppored in its work by six Board Committees,
whose responsibilities are aelegated by the Board and are
describeo on poge 83.

Embedding stakeholder interests within our culture
Through informea discussion at Board level, our executive
team carries forward stakeholder consideration into ana
throughout the business as described on pages 38 to 39.

PIC operates a culture of openness and transparancy, with
management at all levels working amangst their operational
teams, ensuring that the tone from the top is well embedded
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and therefore
stakeholder interests are evidenced in PIC's culture,

Valuing our stakeholders

As a business, we know that we can only be successful

and sustainable in the long term :f we take into account our
stakeholders, their views and needs. The Board places the
utmost importance on our stakeholders ana takes an active
role in engaging with them, inciuaing at our Pelicyholder Days,
which continue to be held in person and virtually. The main
activities of the Board with regard to stakeholder engagement
are shown on pades 38 to 3% and poge 93.
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Stakeholder

Outcome of our business model for our stakeholders

Suppliers

The Board recognises the importance of its suppliers, which are identified and managed in
accordance with PIC’s Third Party Management Policy which forms part of a PIC-wide policy
frumework approved by the Board. A risk assessment is carried out on each supplier and the
service provided to identify and prioritise critical relationships along with the applicable due
diligence, whilst setting the frequency of ongoing reviews. This process is integral to any Board
decision in respect of critical suppliers and outsourcers.

The Beard and its Committees regularly discuss commercial performance of PIC's suppliers,
investment managers and key cutsourcers, including an update on relationships. s key for the
Board that PIC fosters these relationships so that they are mutually beneficial sustainable, and
theretore in the best interest of PIC's policyhaoldears.

Shareholders
and debt holders

The Annual and Half Yearly Reports, Solvency and Financial Conditicn Report, Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures report, the Environmental, Social and Governance report,
and RNS updates are available throughout the year and these provide information on the
Campany’s activities and financial infermation. The Board and its Committees are part of the
process ensuring this information is accurate, fair, balonced and accessible to our stakeholders.

Majar shareholders’ views are voiced to the Board and manadgement through their nominated
Directors on the Board. Further, the Board has ongoing interactions with employees who are the
largest group by number of shareholders.

Regulators and
policymakers

PIC is subject to regulation and supervision by regulatory autherities in the UK, most notably the
FCA and the PRA. The Board and its Committees are kept updated on PIC's interactions with the
regulators. Throughout the year Directors ond mancagement met with the PRA, with management
providing updates on major developments at PIC. PIC seeks to engade with regulators proactively
to focilitate diologue on the regulatory landscape, either by taking part in a formal consultation
process or through meetings. Where appropriate, consulting in advance with the regulators is part
of the Board’s decision-making process.

Policyholders

Directors meet with policyholders during the Company’s policyhoider avents, which this year
in¢luded one Palicyholder Hour, four Policyholder lunches and one Policyholder Day. PIC's
policyholders were also part of the Lord Mayor's Show in Londen, attended by PIC, and
participated in the topping out ceremony of Manchester New Victeria.

The Board continued to receive regular reports on PIC's customers, and considered an
overarching Customear Programme which covers vulnerable customers, policyholder
communications and the new Consumer Duty.

A number of NEDs attended workshops which focus on the implementation of the new
Cansumer Duty.

Employees

The Board has regular interactions with PIC's workforce, including mentorship provided by NEDs
to the Executive team, attendance by employees at Board and Committec meetings and
engagement outside of meetings on ¢ variety of initiatives.

The Executive Board members hold regular Town Halls with all employees which facilitate a two
way dialogue between the Executives and PIC's workforce, and feedback is communicated
back to the Board.

There is alsa a Senior Leadership Forum which provides channels of communication between
the Executives and the wider employee group.

The Board receives regular updates from the Chief People Officer, which inciude any employee
issues as well as updates on the results of the annual employee survey. The views and feedback are
taken into cecount by the Board in its decisions offecting employees, e.g, in respect of remuneration
ond benefits, approval of the budget and the business plan, and the ways of working.

Defined benefit
pension scheme
trustees and
sponsors

The relationship PIC has with trustees, and their expectations, is discussed alongside each deal
considered by the Board. Feedback received from the trustees and consuftants is factored into
the Board's strategic discussions ground new business and underpins the Board's approval of
the husiness plan.

Direct
investment
counterparties

PIC works with numerous counterparties and provides financing for a variety of projects which
enable the development of new homes for social rent, and development of renewable projects.
The Board is part of the approval of any new strategies and the ongoing oversight of direct
investments to ensure they provide good outcomes for communities, for PIC and for its
pclicyholders. The projects PIC invests in create opportunities for local communities through
funding of the projects but also additiongl initiatives such as funding of local charities, and
opportunities for younger generations to work in the construction industry via apprenticeships.
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Audit Committee report

Committee role and membership

The Audit Committee (the "Committee”) is responsible
for oversight of financial reporting, the effectivenass
of internal controls, risk management systems and
processes as well as compliance matters. The
Commitiee therefore reviews and challenges the
consistency of accounting policies and methodologies
wsed for transactions as well as the information
presented within the financial statements. The
Committees is dlse responsible for overseeing the
effectiveness of internal controls and the Risk
Managerment Framework and reviews whether
management has discharged its duty to maintain
effective systems, processes and controls.

Pursuant to the Code, the Committee comprises four
INEDs. The Board has confirrea that it s satisfieq all
Committee members are independent and possess
recent and relevant financial experience across
various industries.

Other regular ottendees gt Committee meetings
during 2022 included: Chairman of the Board, CED, CFO,
CRO, Chief Actuary, Actuariai Function Holder, General
Counsel, Head of Internal Audit and Wilhelm van Zyl,
shareholder nominated Director.

The Cammittes held private sessians without Executives
or KPMG present and ciso met privately with the Heaa
of Internal Audit.

More detail on the skills ang experience
of the Cammittee members can be found
on p74-79

Meetings held in 2022

Scheduled  Meetings

meetings  attended

Roger Marshall {Chair) INED e @
Sally Bridgeland INED 6 @
Stuart King INED e &
Mark Stephen INED e @

We remained focused on overseeing
the integrity of PIC’s financial reporting
and internal controls.”

Roger Marshall
Chair of the Audit Committee

| am pleased to present this year's Audit Cormmittee report,
which gives insight into the work carried out by the Committee
and our discussions Juring 2022.

The Committee fulfils a vital role in the Group's governance
framework by providing valuable independent challenge and
oversight across all financial reporting and internal control
procedures. it ensures that our shareholders’, polcyholders’
and wider stakeholders’ interests are protected.

The backdrop of this year continued to be the implications of
market volatility and uncertainty in relation to inflation and
interest rate movements. The Committee received regular
updates from the Chief Financial Officer on the implications
to our key metrics and, as a result of the substantial increase
in GBP interest rates, the Committee approved the
recalculation of the TMTP at half year 2022

Aswas the case in 2021, the Committee has continued ta
aedicate a considerable amount of time and focus to the
implementation of IFRS 17, by receiving regular project
updates, reviewing and challenging implementation plans
and also approving key accounting palicies ana reviewing
sighificant judgements to support the transition to the new
standard. The Committee members, along with KPMG,
attended a session to gan an in-depth understanding

of the implications for the opening palance sheet.

As part of our regular duties, we oversee the relationship
with and performance of the external guditor. In 2022, we
providea oversight of the change in the lead Audit Partner,
who finishad his term on the PIC account. We will continue
to work with the new Audit Partner closely to ensure the
external auditor’'s work remains effective and improvements
are maae, where needed.

In my role as Chair, | remain committed to ensuring the
Commrittee Is effective and cajusts its geliberations in line
with reguiatory changes and evolving business needs.

More detail on the Committee’s other activities can be found
an the foliowind pages.
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Committee focus during 2022

itis important for the Committee Chair to understand fully
the topics of concern to fucililule meaningful discussion
during the meetings. To support him in fulfilling this role,

the Chair met regularly on a one-to-ane basis with the CEQ,
CFO, Head of internal Audit, and the lead Audit Partner from
KPMG. The Finance and Actuarial teams also provide support
to the Committee by moking recommendations in relation
to the Group's key accounting policies, stress testing and
methodis and assumptinns heing asod in the valuation of thie
technical provisions under Solvency Il and sugdested basis
including prudential margins for techmical provisions under
IFRS for PIC and the Group.

In 2022, the Committee remained focused on the
implementation of IFRS 17 and the financial impact on the
Group's reporting, and held several additional sessions on
these matters. The Committee has continued to monitor the
implementation of systems, processes, and the operating
modei to suppeort the new financial reporting requirement.
The discussions also centred arocund understanding and
challenging the IFRS 17 methodologies, fair value calibrations,
default assumptions and the impacts on the balance sheet.
The Committee, along with KPMG, also attended a session on
the IFRS 17 opening balance sheet te understand the impacts
and sensitivity comparisans with IFRS 4.

The Group continued to strengthen its non-financial
controls and governance arrangermeants and throughout

the year the Cormmittee approved a number of policies

that fall within its remit. The Committee haa oversight of the
Group’'s compliance, whistleblowing policy and procedures
for detecting fraud as well as the prevention of bribery

and market abuse. In addition, the Committee focused on
information security, cyber security, cloud security as well as
physical assets security and challenged the outcomes of an
audit in these areas. This will remain ¢ focus for 2023 and the
Committee has a training session scheduled for 2023,

During the vear, the Committee spent time reviewing the
Group's quarterly operating performance updates, half year
and full year finoncial staterments, and remained conscious
of macro-economic factors impacting the Group. The
Committee approved the proposed changes to the credit
default assumption, following Moody's default report issued
in February 2022, and alsc reviewed the Group's assessment
of going concern and viakility of the business, which the
Committee is required to review under the Group's and the
Company's Reporting and Disclosure Policy.

Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following:

Approved the PICG half year report, and the Solvency

and Financial Conditicn Report

e Reviewed the 2021 Annual Accounts and recommended

to the PIC and PICG Bogards for approval

Reviewed and approved the half year 2022 Transitional
Measures and Technical Provisicns recalculation
assessment

Reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s key
accounting policies, issues and significant judgemeants
related to the financial statements as well as half year and
year end valuation basis and assumptions

Reviewed the process and stress testing undertaken to
support the Group's viability and doing concern statements
Approved the 2022 year end methodologies and
assumptions

Approved the 2023 annual Compliance Meonitering Plan

Approved the 2023 Integrated Assurance Plan and internal
Audit Plan

®» Reviewed the Money Laundering Reporting Officer's report
Reviewed and received regular reports from the
Compliance function in relation to financial crime,
whistleblowing and data protection

Received reports and updates from the Actuarial Function
Holder in respect of validation of technical provisions and
yvear end basis and assumptions

Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the adequacy of the Group's
whistleblowing policies and procedures, ensuring that such
arrangements allow propaortionate and independent
investigation of such matters and appropriate follow-up action.
The Committee was satisfied that these remain adequate.

Fair, balanced and understandable statements

The Committee considered, satisfied itself and recommended
to the Board that the processes and procedures in place
ensure that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information
nacessary for the shareholders and stakeholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business model and
stratedy, and the business risks it faces.

To make this assessment, the Committee received capies
aof the Annual Report and Accounts, to review during the
drafting process to ensure that the key messages were
aligned to the Group’s position, performance and strategy,
and that the narrative sections were consistent with the
financial statements and tables. The Committee provided
feedback and the Annual Report was omended accordingly,
chead of final approval.

Internal audit and integrated assurance plan

The Committee monitors the activity, role and effectiveness
of the Group's Internal Audit function and is responsible for
the appointment or removal of the Head of Internal Audit.

The Committee meets regularly with management, the Chief
Risk Officer, the General Counsel, and the Head of Internal
Audit to review the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and compliance processes. Each year an
annual integrated cssurance plan, which covers the Internal
Audit Plan, the Compliance Monitoring Programme and Risk
Reviews, is presented to the Committee, which reviews and
challenges, if necessary, hefore recommending it tc the
Board for approval. The annual integrated assurance plan
helps the Board in discharging its responsibilities of oversight
of the Group’s systems of controls and risk management.

Towards the end of the year, the Committee reviewed and

approved the 2023 Internal Audit Plan and the 2023 Annual

Compliance Monitoring Plan; it alse recommended the 2023
Integrated Assurance Plan to the Board.
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Audit Committee report continued

Internal Audit effectiveness review

Tailored online
questionnaire

The guestionnaire is
based on the Internai
Audit Code of Practice

Stakeholders

s Members of the
Audit and Executive
Committees
s Stakeholders liaising
with Internal Audit as
part of internal audits

Results

The report was shared
with the Committee
and discussed in
a private session

QOutcome

The Committee reviewead
the results and concluded
that the Internal Audit
function is effective and
that its strategy 1s intine
with best practice

I accordance with the Internal Audit Code of Practice and
the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Committee reviews
the effectivenass of the Iinternal Audit function annually. The
review is conductea by o tailored online queastionnaire which
is completed by relevant stakeholders.

The Committee considerea the results of the review and
15 satisfied the Internal Audit function had the relevant
experience and expertise for the Group and engages well
with the wider business. It was recognised that additional
Internai Audit resource would be raguired to keep up with
the growth of the Group.

External avditor

The Audit Committee has the overall responsibility for
overseend the relationship, performance and fees of the
external auditor, KPMG. This includes making recomrmendations
to the Boara in relation to its appeintment, re-appointment and
remaval In 2022, there has been a rotation of the Audit Partner
and the Committee oversaw the transition.

The Committee has confirmed that it was satisfied that
KPMG remained independent and objective throughout
the year.

During 2022, the Committee reviewed the external auditor's
plan, for the auait of the Group's financial statements,
which included key areas of scope of work, key risks on the
financial statements, and the proposed avait fee and terms
of appointment

Tenure and effectiveness
KPMG has been the external auditor for the Group for the
last 16 years, with a tendering process last completad in 2016.

The effectiveness of our external guditcr s gssessed in
accorgance with a process agreed by the Audit Committee,
which involves the completion of a questionnaire by
targetea group that have regular interactions with KPMG.
The targeted group include: the CEQ, CFO, Cnief Actuary,
Financial Controller, and individuals from the business.

The Committee was providea with a summary of responses
and held a private session o discuss the results to assist with
its own considerations. Feedback aemonstrated thot KPMG
was performing largely as expected. However, some areas
for improvement were highlighted ana discussed with the
new Audit Partner.,

Non-audit fees

To ensdre the continued independence of the external
auaitor, the Group has pJt in place a Non-Auait Services
Policy, which is reviewea annually by the Committee. The
policy places a 70% cap on non-audit services relative to

the statutory acdit fees, with any Tees over £25 000 reguinng
cpproval from the Committee.

The Committee is satisfied that the Group was corrplant
with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical and Auditors
Stanaards and the UK Corporate Governance Coae in
relation 1o the scope anca maximum permittea level of
fees incurred for non-audit work oy KPV.G during the yvear.
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Other disclosures

The Chair of the Committee meets pericdically with the Group's regulator, the PRA.

Significant issues throughout the year were dealt with as follows:

Arec of focus

Actions taken by the Committee

IFRS 17 methodology
and calibration

The Committee reviewed progress made in IFRS 17 preparation and progress on the technical
development of IFRS 17 methodology and calibration. It assessed high-level financial impacts on
PIC's opening balance sheet and approved tranches of accounting methodolegies in suppoert of
a senes ot "Dry Runs” anead of the effective date of 1 January 2023,

Valuation basis and
assumptions

The Committee continued to review and approve the valuation basis and assumptions for
financial reporting. In-depth discussions were held on inflation, longevity and MCEV cost of capital
Proposed changes to the valuation assumptions and methodology were approved in May 2022 and
November 2022,

TMTP methocology

The Committee has reviewed and chalflenged the proposed changes to the TMTP methodoiogy and,
in June 2022 approved the Group's application to the PRA to recalculate TMTP at half year 2022.

Internal controls

The Committee received quarterly reports to allow for the evaluation of the effectiveness of controls
and to highlight any failings or weaknesses. The reperts on financict and non-financial controls
ussured Lhe Commitlee that the controls remained within the tolerances and provided an update
on the status of progress against the 2022 Integrated Assurance Plans.

The Committee also receives quarterly reports on current and emerging legal and regulatory matters,
and any potential impacts on the Group's and Company'’s financial statements.

Committee performance

The Committea’s performance was reviewed as part of the
2022 internal Board evaluation process. Further information
can be found on page 88.

Looking forward to 2023

The focus of the Committee during 2023 will be to cversee
the first-time publication of the 2023 half yeor IFRS 17 results,
which will include 2022 half year and full year comparatives.
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Committee role and membership

The Investment and Crigination Committee (the
"Committee”) is responsible for overseeing the
manodemeant of the investrnent policy and investment
strategy for PIC, and to provide oversight of the operation
of PIC's investment portfolics within the strategic and risk
frameworks. In practice, this Involves reviewing proposals
of investments including new asset classes, approving
entry intoc new transactions, and overseeing the use of
both internal and external fund managers as well as

the use of custodians. The Committee also ensures the
integration of ESG risks, including climate change,

within the investrment policy.

Jake Blairand Jjulia Goh were appointed to the
Committee on 1 Jonuary 2022. Dovid Weyrmouth joined
the Committee on 1 October 2022 and Jon Aiskitt
stepped down on 31 Cctober 2022,

The Committee corrprises seven NEDs, three of whom
are regardea as independent pursuant to the Code
and who the Group considers to be free of any
relationship that would impact their impartiality in
carrying out their responsibitities. The remaining four
NEDS are shareholder nominated.

Other regular attendees ot Committee meetings during
2022 incluaed: CEQ, CFQ, CRO, Chief Investrnent Officer,
Chief Qrigination Officer ana the General Counsel.

More detail on the skills anc experience
af the Committee memibers can be found

on p74-79
Meetings held in 2022
Scheduled Meetings
meetings dttendad
Arno Kitts (Chair) INED
Joke Blair NED
Jutia Gah INED

Jérdbme Mourdye D'Algue  NED

0000000
0O

Peter Rutiand NED
David Weymouth INED
Wilhelm van Zy| NED

Jon Aisbitt stepped down from she PIC 8oard and fromr the
Committes on 31 Gotobear 2022, He attended 3/4 meetings.

Investment and Origination Committee report

PIC’s overall public and private credit
exposure and portfolio stability are
central to our considerations.”

Arno Kitts
Chair of the Investment and
Crigination Committee

As Chair of the investment and Crigination Comimittee,
| am pleased to present its report for the year ended
31 December 2022.

During the year, the Committee's core auties remained
unchanged and the usual activities relating te investment,
new business and rensurance grigination remained in

place. Whilst market challenges arising from Cowvid-19 haa
dominated the prior yvear, the backdrop of this year continued
to be the characteristics of market volatility ana uncertainty.
In particular, navigating macro-economic factars such as the
Russian invasion of Ukraine, inflation, the autumn LD crisis
alongside hedging and liguidity were all key components of
aiscussion. The Committee monitored elevatea inflation and
the reversal of monetary policy in respect of PIC’s overoll
public and private credit exposure ana portfolio stability.

The Committee members, together with the entire Board,
attendeda a deep dive session on inflation.

To support its ongoing work to assess whether the assets
rermained appropriately invested and are in the best interests
of policyholders, the Committee reviewed and approves

the Investment Policy and updated delegations within the
Group's governance framework. The Committee considered
the contributicn to the portfolic pertormance from both
strategic asset allocation and active investments undertaken
inthe year

Despite the market conditions, the origination pipeline
throughout the year continuea to grow and the Committee
provided oversight and challenge of the core value metrics
to proposed prolects. Throughout the year, Committee
members attended ad hoc meetings to review and discuss
in detall asset stratedies for larger transactions. Eacr
transgction was scrutinised anda where applicable,

the Committee anproved the gsset strategy for
recommendation to the Board.

The Committee continuea to support the Group's ESG
strategy towards meeting its Net Zero comrmitrment by
gpproving a transition strategy for portfolic decarbonisation.
Further information on PIC’s ESG strategy can be found on
pages 44 to 55. We ¢lso spent time on overseeing prograss
made by PIC in embedoing ESG inta the doy-to-day activities
which are under the oversight remit of the Committee.
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Committee focus during 2022

The Investment and Origination teams provide the Committee
with significant support to help it discharge its responsibilities.
The Investrment team makes recornmendations regarding the
Investment Policy and strategy, PIC’s hedging exposure, and
pricing portfolios for decls. Meanwhile, the Origination team
recommends entry into new origination transactions as well
s the pricing aspects.

In 2022, the Committee dedicated time to consider the
integration ot PIC's ESG investment approach and strategy
to achieve its Net Zero carbon commitmeant. In July 2022, the
Committee approved PIC's Stewardship Policy. The policy
sets out PIC's approach to stewardship within its investment
portfolio, including the responsible allocation of capital to
create long-term vaive. The Committee alsc approved the
transition strategy for portfolic decarbonisation to support
the appreoach that climate change waos not only a risk, but
also an investment opportunity.

Anocther focus of the Committee during the year was
supporting the strategy for PIC to become a manufacturer of
long-term income-praducing assets. As part of the strategy, the
Committee recommended to the Board the capital stratesy
and the formation of two new asset classes. The Committee
considered in detail the Affordable Housing strategy to support
the provision of safe, secure homes that people can afford to
ive in and that will have o lasting impact on current and future
penerations. Further infermation on built environment and
Affordable Housing can be found on pages 8 to 13.

As arasult of the global macro events, the Committee

received regular updates in relation to the Group’s liquidity
position, including collateral and stress and scenario testing

of liguidity. The Committee reviewed the appropriatenass

of PICs liquidity stresses, but remained comfortable that,
despite the challenging conditions, the portfolios were resilient
in accordance with the Group's liquidity fromework. The Group
will be undertaking a fuller review of the liguidity framework
and the Committee will continue to focus on liquidity matters
n 2023,

High on the Committee’s agencda was also monitoring the
progress of insourcing management of PIC's GBP credit
portfolio, which it approved last vear. The Commrittee has
received quarterly updates in relation to the migration of
assets and the recruitment process.

Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following:

» Reviewed the Chief Investment Officer and the Chief
Origination Officer Management Information

s Reviewed regular updates on GBP public credit nsourcing

s Reviewed the Trading Policy as part of the Prudent Person
Principle regulations

e Assessed the impact of UK inflation on PIC's balance sheet

e Received guarterly updates on the Diversified Capital Fund
performance estimates, activity and pipeline, and the DCF
new business allocation

s Approved the Investment Policy

e Approved the Stewardship Policy

o Approved the transition strategy for portfolio
dcocarbonisation

s Recommended to the Board for approval the new asset
class of Senior Living

® Recommended to the Board for gpproval the asset
strategies for larger transactions

& Recommendead to the Board for approval the new asset
class of Affordable Housing

Committee performance

The Committee's performance was reviewed as part of the
2022 internal Board evaluation process. Further information
can be found on page 88.

Looking forward to 2023

In 2023, the Committee will continue to focus on navigating
the portfolio through a macro-econcmic envircnment of
variable interest rates and potenticlly negative growth. The
Committee will continue to monitor hedging and liquidity, and
will focus on the development and integration of the Group's
ESG capabilities.
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Nomination Committee report

Committee role and membership

The Nemination Committee (the “Committee”}

is responsible for keeping the size, structure and
composition of the Board and its Committees under
review, assisting the Board with developing robust
succession plans for Board and senior executive paositions,
evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity, ensuring that there is a sufficient pipeline of
talent toc achieve the Group's strategy and stay withinits
risk appetite. The Committee leads the process for Board
oppointments and makes recommendations to the
Board. It clso works closely with the Company Secretary
to ensure that arrangements are In place for a formal
induction for new gppointees to the Board and identifies
ongoing fraining needs. The Cormmittee assists the Board
with its annual evaluation of effectiveness process ana
more detail on the process can be found on page 88,

During the year, David Weymouth joined the
Committee on 1October 2022 and Jon Aisbitt stepped
down on 31 October 2022

The Committee comprises five NEDs, three of whom
are regarded as independent pursuant to the Code
and who the Group considers to be free of any
relationship that would impact their impartiality

in carryind out their responsibilities. The remaining
two NEDs are shareholder nominated.

Other regular attenaees ot Committee meetings
dunng 2022 includea: General Counsel, Chief
People Officer, Head of Learning & Development
and externgl consultants.

More detail on the skills ana experience
of the Comrmittee members can be founa
on p?4-79

Meetings held in 2022

Scheduled Meetings

meetings attended

David Weymouth (Chair}  INED 1] @
Stuart King INED s ] @
Josua Malherbe NED e ©),
Jéréme Mourgue D’Algue  NED e @
Mark Stephen INED 9 @

Jon Aisbitt stepped down from the PIC Board and fromr the
Committee on 31 Ociober 2022 He artended 4/4 meetings.

The Board and executive succession
was our key focus this year.”

David Weymouth
Chair of the Nomination Committee

| am pleased to present the Nomination Committee report
for the year ended 31 December 2022, | would like to thank
Jon Aisbitt, who chaired the Commrittee for much of the year
until he stepped down from the Boord in October 2022, | have
assumed chairing of the Committee in November 2022 and
will build on the work Jon has dene.

The key focus of the Committee during the year was on the
Board and executive succession. The report gives detalled
insights into the process the Group followed which resulted in
my appointment as the Chairman of the Board, and which
was led by our Senior Inaependent Director, Reger Marshall,
As part of the overall succession planning, the Committee
continea to monitor the Board's tenure and identified that
several INEDs are nearing the nine-year term. Serving beyond
a nine-yeadr tenure is considered in the Code as being one of
the reasons for which a director's Independence could be
impacted. Therefore, a search for successors has aiready
commenced and will continue into 2023,

Considerable time was spent by the Committee on execdtive
succession, which led to the appointments of Dara McCann
as the interim Chief People Officer and Lance Deluca as

the Chief Operating O*ficer. The Committee also provided
feedback on the monagement's proposal of an updatea
talent and succession management programme alongdside
anew leadership capability framewaork. The Committee
considers this an important element which will helg us
furtner develop a structured approach to identifying a strong
pipeline of future leaders. We will continue to closely oversee
this work in 2023.

The Committce alse attendea to other matters, such as
approval of various policies, the Commrittee’s terms of
reference and assisting the Board with the Boord and
Committees’ evaluation process. We also carried out our
annual review of the Board Diversity Policy and Board
diversity targets ond recommendea 1o the Boards that
these are still appropriate, out we will cantinue to discuss
how to improve Board diversity in 2023 when we consider
appointments for any arising vacancies

Further details on matters considered by the Committee are
provided on the following poges
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Committee’s focus during 2022

Board composition and succession

Moch of the Corrmittee’s tme in 2022 wds spent on assisting the Board with finding a successor for the Chairman of the

Board, Jon Aishitt, who, at the end of 2021, announced his intention to step down from the Board. We take this oppartunity to

provide some detailed insights into the search process leading to the appointment of the new Chairman, as outlined on the

chart below.

Succession planning -
appointment of the new Chairman

2021

The Bourd is notified by Jon Alsbitt of
his intention to step down from the
Beard and its Committees.

March 2022

Allong list of candidates is presented to

the Chair Search Committee including
diversity considerations.

April 2022

Interviews are carried out and the Chair

Search Committee reviews feedback
on various candidates.

December 2022
The PRA approves David Weymouth's
appointmeant as the Chairman of the

PIC and PICG Boards.

An induction process is carried out to

assist David in sattling into his role. Maore

information on induction can be found
on pagdes 86 and 87,

January 2022

The Nomingation Committee selects

a group of Directors to focus on the
search for o new Chair (Chair Search
Committee). The group is led by the
Senior Independent Director, Roger
Marshall. The current Chairman excuses
himself from the mestings considering
the search for the new Chalir, as
required by the Code.

February 2022

Russell Reynolds is selected

as a search agency. A Rosition
specification is prepared and the
Chair Search Committee discusses
the interview process.

May 2022

The search narrows down the
candidates to two. Further interviews
are held.

The Chair Search Committee makes
recommendation to the Boards to
oppoint David Weymouth as the
Chairman of PIC and PICG.

June 2022

On recommendation from the Chair
Search Commitiee, the Boards appoint
David Weymouth as the new Chairman
of PIC and PICG Boards.
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Nomination Committee report continued

Board composition and tenure

The Committee assisteda the Board with the annual self-
assessment ana as part of this process reviewed the Board's
composition, including the tenure of Directors. More on the
evaluation process can be found on pade 88. This review
indicated that several INEDs will be coming 1o the end of their
nine-year term, as shown on the Boord tenure chorts below,
therefore the Committee has already commenced planning
their succession. The skills matrix, which can be founo on
page 85, is used to support the planning process and is
overlaid with considerations arouna future skills and
experience which the Board will need to successfully

lead the Group.

PICG length of tenure
(Chairman and Non-Executive Directors)

PIC length of tenure
{Chairman and Non-Executive Directors)

1 6 1 4
Key

Less than a yeaor 1-3 years 3-5 years 5-7 years
Gender diversity
PIC PICG

YWomen 4=28.6% WwWomen 3=2310%

Men 10 = 71.4% Men 10 = 76.9%

Executive succession

Along with progressing the search for the new Chairman, the
Committee also had its attention on executive succession
planning. The Group has a succession pian in place for senior
monogement ond the Committae reviews this regularly and
reports ta the Board. The need for changes in leadership was
recognised ds part of overoll strategy considerations and
planning for the further growth of the Group. In 2022, the
Committee, assisted by an external search consultancy,
considered candidates for the interim Chief People Officer
{"CPC" and the new Chief Gperating Officer {"COC").
Following an extensive search and o rigorous recruitment
process, the Committee made recommenddations to the
Board to approve Dara McCann as the interim CPO and
Lance Deluca as the new COO. Dara joined the Group in
September 2022, bringing aiverse expearience from various
industries, and Lance started In Octaber 2022, bringing o
wealth of experience from the financial ingustry.

The Committee also spent time reviewing management’s
proposal for an vpdated talent and succession managernent
programme atongside a new leadership capability
framework. This work aims to help the Group identify future
leaders. The implementation of those proposals will be
closely overseen by the Committee in 2023,

Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following,

e Approved the Board Diversity Policy and Boara

Diversity Targats
¢ Approved the Fit and Proper Persons Policy
» Approved the Gender Pay Gap results
s Reviewed the Board tenure of NEDs and recommended to
the Board to extend Roger Marshall’'s contract until August
2024 to allow for orderly succession and finding his
replacement as the Chair of the Audit Comimittee
Reviewed and approved the Committee terms of reference

Committee performance

The Committee’s perfarmancs was reviewea as part of the
2022 internal Board evalugtion process. Further information
can be found on page 88.

Looking forward to 2023

The Committee will focus on an external effectiveness
review of the Board and its Committees, assisted by an
external consultant. As mentioned previously in the report,
an external evaluation is carried out every three years,

as recommended by tne Code. The Committee will

also cedicate its tme and attention 1o gvarseaind tna
implementation of the new approach to executive talent
and success on plannirg and o new leadership capability
framewark. It witl also continde its work on finding successors
for iNEDs who qre due to rotate off the Boards.
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Remuneration Committee report

Committee role and membership

The Boord of the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee (the "Committee”) which
oversees the establishmeant and implementation of

a Remuneration Policy for employees and Directors,
designed to support long-term business strategy and
values of the Group as a whole, as well as promeote
effective risk managemeant and comply with applicable
legal and regulatory reguirements.

The Committee also oversees the ongoing
appropriateness and relevancy of the Remuneration
Policy and other workforce policies so that it does not
encourage excessive risk-taking. To assist the Committea
in fulfilling its responsibilities, it has access to a number
of resources including the CRO, Chairs of the Risk and
Audit Committees, external remuneration consultants
and input from relevant subject matter experts within
the Group.

David Weyrmouth joined the Committee on 1 October 2022
and Jon Ajsbitt stepped down from the Committee on
31 Octoher 2022

The Committee comprises six NEDs, four of whom are
regarded as independent and the remaining twao are
shareholder nominated Directors. Following a refresh

of the Committee membership from 1 January 2022, the
Committee has progressed towards cemplicnce with
the Code, and it is now majority independent.

Other regular attendees ot Committee meetings during
2022 included: the CEQ, the Chief Peaple Officer and
the Head of Cornpensation and Benefits.

More detail on the skills and experience
of the Committes memers can be found
on p74-79

Meetings held in 2022

Scheduled Meetings

meetings  attended

Judith Eden (Chair) INED (s ] G
Stuart King INED [ ] €)
Josua Malherbe NED e @
Peter Rutland NED s ) @
Mark Stephen INED 9 @
David Weymouth INED o @

Jon Aisbitt stepped down from <he PIC Board and from the
Commmittee on 31 October 2022, He attended 4/4 meetings,

Continued improvement of the
risk adjustment framework linked to
remuneration remained high on our agenda.”

Judith Eden
Chair of the Remuneratiocn Committee

| am plecsed to present the Remuneration Committee report
for the year ended 31 December 2022

As anticipated in last year's report, the Committee continucd
to spend its time on the management incentive structure, the
financial performance scorecards for 2022 and continued
improvement of the risk adjustment framewaork linked to
remuneration. We deliberated on how the application of the
scorecards could be expanded across the Group as part of the
employee annual review process. The Committee’s attention
remained on the link between pay, financial and non-financial
performance, and risk metrics as well as considerations for
further incorporating ESG within performance metrics as
appropriate. We remained mindful of the Group's overall
performance when discussing and approving incentive
outcomes, especially in light of the market volatility and

global macro-economic events.

The Committee also worked closely with management on
agreeing remuneration packages for the newly appointed
Executive Committee meambaers. We have considered the
Chairman of the Board and the CEQ's proposals in relation
to the NEDs' fees, and we have made recommendations
in respect of both to the Board for approval.

We also spent some time on reviewing the benefits offered
to employees, supported by the use of independent external
benchmarking data. As a result, the Committee approved
enhancements to some benefits provided to employees.
This remains on our agenda as part of an ongoingd review

of benefits as we want to ensure the Group remains
appropriately competitive with its peers.

As the number of employees continues to grow, our share
ownership has also increased and, during the yvear, the
Committee carefully considered the valuation of the Group
for the share-based incentive awards, exercise, and liguidity
purposes. We obtained input from independent advisers

to support ocur recommendations to the Board

The Committee is also responsible for leading on employee
engagement and diversity and inclusion. We received regular
reports from the Chief People Officer, which provided the
basis for our oversight of the Group's overall headcount
changes, turnover trends and whether these pose any

risks to the stability of the Group, as well as diversity and
inclusion initiatives.

As part of our routine cctivities, we have alsc reviewed
and approved various policies within the Committee’s
remit (e.g., Remuneration Pelicy and Remuneration Policy
Statement) to ensure these continue to be updated for
legislative and regulatory changes ond rermain reflective
of current practices within the Group.
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Remuneration Committee report continued

Committee focus during 2022

A number of teams, including Hurnan Resources ("HR"), Risk,
Finance and Company Secretariat, supported the Committes
to discharge its responsibitity, including supportin relation to
Incentive structures (including further cascading the use of
incentive scorecards across the Group), further operationalising
frameworks implemented with the support of external advisers
(e.g, risk adjustrent framewaork), continued alignment of pay to
overall Group and individual performance, the NED Expense
Policy, and the grant of options, for recommendation to

the Board

In 2021, the Group announced that Jon Alsbitt had expressed
his wish to retire as Chairman in late 2022, and thot following
a compreheansive internal and external evaluation process
by the Nom.nation Committee, David Weymouth would be
appointed as his successor. To enable a smooth transition,
David was appeinted to the PICG and PIC Board on 1October
2022 as Chairman designate. The Committee recommendead
to the Board the Chairman’s fee, having considered external
benchmarking data as well as the time commitment expected
of David. In aadition, the Committee alse determined the
remuneration package for other senior appointees, which
was set in line with the current Remuneration Policy, including
pension arrandements in line with thase available to the
wider workforce.

Another focus of the Committee durning the year was to review
and approve the propesed changes to the management
incentive metrics and assurance measure scorecards for
2022. The intention of the incentive 1s to reward management
commensurately for delivering across ¢ basket of financial
and nen-financial metrics. The Committee also discussed in
depth the integration of ESG factors within the performance
framework and rolling this out Company-wide will be o

focus for 2023

During the year, the Cornmitiee dedicated time to consider
PIC's benefit offering to employees to ensure that the Group
and Company's approach to benefits remains competitive
against the talent market from which we recruit. The
Committee reviewed an external benchmarking exercise
completed by Willis Towers Watson and agreed to approve
changes tc a number of benefits provided to employees.
Further reviews and changes are expected to take place
during 2023.

Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following

Conducted an annual remuneration review, incluaing
reviewing Group performance, risk metrics ana bonus poci
availability, ana made recorrmenaations to the Board
Approved changes to a number of employee benefits
Discussed and recommenaed the share valuation for the
Company’s share schemes suppartea by incependent
Corrpany valuation
Approved the Rermnuneration Policy
Approvea and recormmended to the Board the Remuneration
Policy Statermment
Reviewed Bodara dna Executive remuneration proposals,
and made recommendctions 1o the Board
» Approved ana recormenaged to the Boara the

NED Expense Policy
s Reviewed the results of the pender pay gap analysis
and assooigted reporting
Revigwed the Chief People Officer
Management information

Remuneration consultants and advice

to the Committee

During the year, the Committee was assisted Inits deliberations
on the management incentive programme by Deloitte, and on
the valuation of the Group for vesting of various Group share
schemes and management Incentive plans by PwC.

The Committee alsc abtainea aavice from Deloitte in
benchrmaorking its remuneration structures and packages.
The Committee exercised independent Juagement when
evaluating aclvice from externai consultants.

NED remuneration

The table below sets out our Policy for NED remuneration
as per the Group’s NED Expense Policy. The Policy was
approved in December 2022 and is reviewed annually.

The CEC and Senior Independent
Director will review the Chairman's
fees on an annual basis and will
recommend them to the Committee
for review. Once approved by

the Committee, the Committee

will recommend to the Board

for cpprovail.

Chairman’s
fees

Fees are reviewea annually by

the Chairman of the Board, with
support from the CEO and the
Human Rescurces team, who submit
their proposals to the Committee for
review. The Committee considers
these and makes appropriate
recommendations to the Board for
approval, This process ensures that
NEDs are not involved in setting their
own remuneration package.

Non-Executive
Directors’ fees

Additional fees are paid for

Additional unaertaking extra responsihilities of:

fees e Board Chairman;
® Senior Independent Director; and
s Committee Chair.
In accordance with the NED

Benefit Expense Policy, the Group will
reimburse NEDs for all expenses
reasonably incurred in the proper
performance of their duties
as Directors.

Share n/o

ownership

Diversity and inclusion

Throughout the year. we've continued to take actions that
further promote D&l at PIC. The Cormrmmittee receivea regular
upaates from the Chief People Officer on D&l and the
Diversity and Inclusion Forurr.

Further information relating tc D&l can be founa on pages 50
to 55.

LTIP

LTIP participants receive nil cost share options subject ta the
achievement of performance targets assessea on a three-
year perforrmance perica. Any vestea awards are subject to
a holding period of up 1o two years,
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UK Corporate Governance Code

in determining the remuneration arrangements, the Committee aims to ensure that they support the execution of our
strategy and promote its long-term sustainable success. The Committee also reviews Executive remuneration so thrt itis
aligned to tho Group’s purpose and vulues. It doing so, the Committee takes into consideration the wider employees’

remuneration and emerging best practice.

The Committee believes that our remuneration arrangements are clear and transparent. Further infermation on cur

Remuneration Pelicy can be found on page 106.

The Committee is mindful of the Code’s six principles when determining the Grouvp’s Remuneration Policy.

Clarity

» Our Remuneration Policy supports the financial and strategic objectives of the Group and aligns

the interests of Executive Directors to those of our shareholders.
& YWe gre committed to transparent communication with all stakeholders, including shareholders
{see "Engagement with Shareholders” section)

Simplicity * We operate a simple remuneration structure comprising fixed pay elements along with short- and
long-term variable elements. The annual bonus and LTIPs are focused and suitably stretching,
whilst being rewarding against key metrics of success for the business.

» The structure provides transparency to Executive Directors, shareholders and the wider workfarce.

Risk s Our rermuneration packages ensure risk events are reflected in remuneration outcormes. During the
year, the Committee approved the Remuneration Policy Statement, which is intended to be consistent
with and promote sound and effective risk management. It does not encourage risk taking.

s LTIPs were introduced in 2021 to incentivise senior executives ta deliver long-term sustained
rerformance consistent with the Group’s risk appetite.

Malus and clawback provisions apply to Deferred Bonus Share Pian awards and LTIP awards.

* As part of the mid year and full year appraisal process, the entire workforce is assessed against

risk manasement objectives.

Predictability ® The range of possible values of rewards 1o individual Birectors and any other limits are explained

at the time of approving the pelicy.

Proportionality s Ingividuai owards are hased on performance against a range of non-financial and financial
measures, including risk performance and achievement of key strategic objectives during the year.

The Committee has the discretion to adjust the incentive elements of remuneration packagdes.

Alignment to culture e Qur incentive schemes drive behaviours consistent with Company purpose, values and stratesy.

Engagement with shareholders

Having shareholder nominated Directors on the Committee
allows these shareholders to monitor and safeguard the
sustainable growth of the Group through remuneration
oversight and ensuring that remunerdation does not encourcge
excassive risk taking but promotes the long-term success of
the Group. The shareholder nominated Directors provide
feedback and challenge on the Remuneration Policy, which
feeds into the development of the updated policy, annually.

Engagement with the workforce

Managerent seek employee feedback through formal
engogement surveys as wall as through the Senior Leadership
Forum and the D&l Forum. Relevant insights and updates are
shared with the Committee, and are typically presented by HR.

Employee feedback and insights are appropriately taken into
account when considering réviews and changes to the Group’s
Remuneration Policy and practices.

The waorkforce is also able to participate in the all employee
Save As You Earn scheme.

Gender pay gap

The gender pay gap is a measure of the difference between
the cverage pay of men and women dcross the Company.
It does not consider the ratio of men and women, different
levels of seniority or those working part-time.

The PSC median gender pay gap for the year 2022 was 12.5%,
which is up 5.2% on last year. The PSC mean gap for the year
is 10.2%. Our gender pay gap is driven by two primary factors:

e Only 34% of our employees are women
e Only 29% of ernployees in the upper quartile are women

wWe relegsed our UK Pay Gap Report 2021in March 2022

and it can be found ot PIC Gender Pay Group 2021
{pensioncorporation.com).
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Remuneration Committee report continued

Remuneration Policy

The Group's Remuneration Policy is designed to enable the Group 1o recruit, retain and motivate employees of the
appropriate calibre to deliver its strategy over the long term. The policy is intended t¢ be consistent with and promote scund
and effective risk management, and te ensure that it coes not encourade risk taking that exceeds the tolerated risk appetite
of the Company. A description of the aifferent rermmuneration elements for 2022 is set out below.

Base salary Salaries are reviewed annually and are set to be market competitive, taking into account the
individual's skills, as well as the size and scope of their role and that of the Group.

Salaries are set at such a level that emplovees are not overly aependent on variable pay and to
allow the Group to operote o fully flexible bonus policy.

Benefits The following benefits are offered to all permanent employees: private health cover; annual travel
insurance; interest-free loans (up to £10,000) for season tickets; Cycle to Work scheme, parental
leave and participation in the SAYE scheme.

Pension Allemployees who meet the minimum criteria are autornatically enrolfea in the Stakeholder Pension
scheme. Employees who have reached their lifetime or annual allowance limit for pensions for tax
purposes may receive a cash alternative in lieu of the Group’s contribution thot otherwise would
have been made undet the Stakeholder Pension arrangement.

Annual bonus The annual bonus plan provides participants with an opportunity to receive a cash amount, subject
to performance measured in respect of the relevant financial year. All employees are eligible to be
invited to participate in the plan. Awards are based on the achievement of annual objectives
assassed against financial, customer sarvice ana risk management measures.

Far material risk takers, individual bonus payments are determined by the Remuneration Committee
based on a review of both financial and strategic measures and assessment of individual
performance over the year, including a review of individual performance by the CRO

For Solvency Il staff in assurance functions, at least 75% of the annual bonus award is based on the
achievement of ohjectives related to the indivigual's assurance function. The remaining 25% reiates to
the performance of the Group. Awards for this population are subject to a prevailing affordability
unaerpin, and no bonuses will be paid if overall financial performance is not sufficient to fund cwards,
The CRO, with input fram the Chair of the Risk Committee and the Char of the Audit Committee,
assesses the performance of the year against the Group's risk appetite and behaviours and attituge
to risk and compliance. If the performance has been achieved by exceeding the risk appetite of the
Group, as stated and approved by the Boara and the Board Risk Committes, the bonus pool and/or
individual outcomes may be adjusted downwards, potentially to zero Performance against all of the
above measures is assessad by the Remuneraticn Committee in the round.

The bonus opportunity is expressed as a percentage of saiary and depends on an individual’s role
and responsibitities. The annual bonus comprises a cash element and an award of nil cost options.
While the cash element of the bonus is paid upfront, for material risk takers ot least 40% of annual
bonusesis in the form of nil cost options which are subject to deferral over a three-year periog using
the Deferred Bonus Share Plan ("DBSP"), as detailea below.

Deferred Bonus Share The DBSP seeks to align the long-term interests of the Group for all senicr mancgement and other

Plan key individuals through bonus deferral. The deferraed element is awarded in the form of nil cost
options which vest after three years. For Sclvency Il ldentified Staff, @ minimuom of 40% of any bonus
award is deferred

Long Term Incentive Selected senior individuals are invited, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, to receive
Plan LTIP share awards. Thase indiviauals are those tasked with delivering PIC's long-term strategic godals
ang to generate long-term shareholder value.
LTIP awards vest after a three-year period, sulbject to the achieverment of performance condaitions,
ana a solvency and risk management underpin. Awards to the Executive Committee members
would also have a further retention period of up to two years,
Malus, cilawback and Any bonus including annual bonus, aeferrea bonus share plans and the LTIP can be acjusted by the
in-year adjustment Rermuneration Committee by applying malus, clowback and in-yeaor adjustment provisions as
cetermined in the rules. This incluaes, but 1s Not limitea 1o
e an event of significant financial losses or material misstatement of the accounts;
« material failure of risk managpement;
s discovery of a material error in relation to the assessment of annual performance on which an
oward was based; or
reasondble evigence of any act or omrission by the participant which has contributed 10 material
losses or serious reputational damagde to the Group or any business areq; or has amaunted (o
sericds misconauct, fraud or misstotement,

Committee performance
The Committee’s performance was reviewed as part of the 2022 internol Boara evaivation process, Further information can
be founc on pade 88,

Looking forward to 2023

The Committee’s focds auring 2023 will be on the further alignment of errpicyee poy to perfarmance {including financial ana
non-financial metrics). In adaition, the Committee will continue with the ongoing review of benefits and the introcuction of the
new Consumer Duty into remuneration considerations
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Risk Committee report

Committee role and membership

The Risk Committee (the “Committee”) is responsible for
providing oversight of and advising the Board in relation
to the current and potential risk evnosure of the Croup.
This includes recommending to the Board the risk
appetite and overall monitoring of the effectiveness

of the Risk Manadement Framewaork, which includes
oversight of the Internal Model. The scope of the
Committee's work is designed to help the Board in
delivering the Group's strategic objectives of long-term
value growth, being o responsible corporate citizen, and
making sure the Croup is secure and sustainable.

The Committee comprises six NEDs, five of whom are
regarded as independent pursuant to the Code and
who the Group considers to be free of any relationship
that would impact therrimpartiality in carrying out their
responsibilities. The remaining NED is shareholder
nominated. There were na chandes to the membershio
of the Committee during 2022,

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during
2022 included: Chairman of the Board, CEC, CFO, CRO,
Chief Investment Officer, General Counsel, Chief Actuary,
Actuariai Function Holder and Head of Internal Audit.

More detail on the skills and experience
of the Committee members can be found
on p74-79

Meetings held in 2022

The Committee held five scheduled meetings and
several od hoc sessions which were either deep dives,
technical sessions or informal briefings on o variety

of topics.

Scheduled Meetings

meetings  attended

Sally Bridgeland (Chair)  INED 5 ) &
Judith Eden INED o &
StuartKing INED 5] G
Arno Kitts INED [ ] &)
Roger Marshall INED 5 ] )
Wilhelm Van Zyl NED (< ] @

The Committee’s primary role was
particularly important in times of
heightened volatility of the markets.”

Sally Bridgeland
Chair of the Risk Committee

I am pleased to present the Risk Committee report for the
year ended 31 December 2022

The Cormniillee continued to focus on its primary rofe of
providing oversight and advising the Boord on the current
and potential risk exposure of the Group and ensuring that
the Group’s Risk Management Framework is effective and
robust. This was particularty important in times of heightened
volatility of the markets and the extreme movements in

gilts yields in reaction to the UK Government’s "mmi-budget”
in September.

We have also carried out further work on embedding ESG
INto our routine considerations and will continue this work in
2023, In 2022, we formally incorporated climate change risk
inte the Group's Risk Maonagement Framework.

The Committee has carried out its usual work on the Internal
Model, which involves a review of the validation resuits and
validation plan, and o review of any minor adjustments. The
Committee was satisfied that the Internal Model continues to
be appropriate and compliant with the relevant Solvency Il
requirements and produces an appropriate amount of
capital in aggregate. We have also continued to spend o
considerable amount of time on the oversight of the re-
development of the credit module of the Internal Model. We
have held additioncl technical sessions to review progress
and receive updates on the calibrations of this module.

| am pleased to say that we have also seen further
improvements 1o the Group's stress and scenario testing
[“SST") capabilities, and the Committee is looking forward
to receiving some enhanced outputs of the S8Tin 2023,

The Group continued 1o adapt to changes in the regulatory
landscope, which in 2022 brought in the new Consumer Duty.
The Committee will continue to provide oversight of prodress
of the implementation of the new Consumer Duty in 2023,

The Committee also assisted the Remuneration Committee
inits recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
process. We ensured that risk management was properily
considered in the setting of performance objectives within
the incentive structure and properly taken into account

in the Remuneration Policy and awards.

The further parts of this report list our other activities

and additional information on PIC's approach to risk
management can be found on pages 64 to 71.
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Risk Committee report continued

Committee’s focus during 2022

Operational resilience

The Committee continued to dedicate its time to the operational resilience work and its
focus in 2022 was particularly on the regulatory requirement for an Operational Resilience
Self-Assassment, including categorisation of important business services and inmpact
tolerances. The Committee reviewed these and recommendead them to the Board for
approval. The Commrittee reviewed any thernes arising from the operctional risk incidents.

Internal Modei —
credit module

One of the key responsibilities of the Committee is oversight of the Group's Risk Management
Framework, which includes aversight of the Internal Model. in addition to the routine Internal
Model work, much of the Committee’s time and attention was dedicated to the re-
development of the credit module of the Internai Model. We are looking forward to
completing this review in 2023

QRSA and stress and
scenario testing

The Caommittee cansiders annually the output from the Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment ("ORSA") process. The report provides an gssessment of the effectiveness

of the Group’s Risk Management Framewaork, aflowing the Board to challenge where
further enhancements can be made. Additionally, it undertakes the forward-looking

risk assessment and an overview of key areas of rnisk for PIC's business model, and the
potenticlimpoct of these. In 2022, the Committee focused on overseeing PIC's work on
improving its 55T capability, in particular in relation to the asset stressing model. The
Committae provigea feedback on tha nion-financial stress testing scenarias and reviewad
the output of that work.

Recovery and
Resolution Plan

The Committee considered a number of changes to the Recovery and Resolution Plan and
Future Management Actions Plan, and recommenaed these for approval by the Boara.
Further enhancerrents will be introduced in phases and the Committee will continue to
oversee this work.

Liquidity mahagement

The Committee provided oversight of the liquidity risks throughout the year and whilst
PIC's liquidity was in a very strong position throughout the year, the market turbulence
which occurred in reaction to the UK Government's budget in September required
aaditional attention from the Board and its Committees. The liquidity risk oppetite
was closely monitored during that period and was not breached, but the Group took
a prudent approach and decided to carry out ¢ full review of liquidity management
processes. The Committee has considered initial findings and will continue to provide
scrutiny of this work in 2023,

ESG and climate risk

The Committee continued its work on embedding ESG related matters into its routine
discussions. As part of the Environmental component of £SG, the Group made progress on its
approach to climata change risk and the Caommmittes recommended {o the Board to formally
incorporate the climate change risk inte the Grour’s Risk Managemeant Framewaork. The
Committee's recommendations were accepted and approved by the Board in December.

Emerging risks

The Committee continued to discuss emerging risks and their potentiol systemjc impact.
The Committee reviewed and suggested further refinements to the Group's emerging
risks dashboard.
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Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following:

Risk Strategdy, Appetite and Policy

Reviewed PIC's Risk Appetite Framework and made
recomrmendations to the Board on its continuved evolution.
Consigered Strategic Risk within the Risk Appetite
Framewacrk and provided feedback to management.
Recommended to the Board the Recovery and

Resoluton Plan.

Risk Oversight and Monitoring

Recelved regular updates from the CRO which covered the
risk appetite dashboard and enterprise risk dashboard.
Received an overview of emerging risks and supgested
further refinements to the Group’s emerging risks dashboard.
Received regular updates on PIC's material cutsourcing to

counterparties and agreed an elevated monitoring framework.

¢ Receved a deep dive un counterparty risk,

Reviewed risk incidents and established that there were no
systemic issues and the integrity of risk rmanagement
systems has not been compromised.

Reviewed the Actuarial Function's opinion on the 2022
Underwriting Policy and the adeguacy of the 2022
reinsurance arrangements of PIC's insurance undertaking.
Received regular updates on regulatory developments and
interactions with the Regulators.

Provided oversight of the Risk and Control and Self-
Assessment precesses.

Internal Mode!

s Reviewed the Internal Model Validation Report and the
Internal Madel Consolidated Annual Report, Internal Model
drift analysis.

» Reviewed and provided challenge to the updates to the
Internal Model Change Policy.

Governance

* Reviewed and approved Risk Function strategy and plans
for 2022 and 2023 which link to the overall Integrated
Assurance Plan.

e Reviewed the performance of the Risk Function and the
CRO, and was satisfied thot both the CRO and the Risk
Function continue to operate effectively and in
cccordance with the Risk Function Mandate.

s Reviewed the Committee’s terms of reference and
recommended them to the Board.

s Approved the Risk Function Mandate, Actuarial Function
Mandate and various policies which are within the
Committee’'s remit and are subject to annual review.

s Reviewed the CRO report to the Remuneration Committee
on risk matters to be considered in reviewing annual
remunergtion review and bonus pools.

Committee performance

The Committee’s perfarmance was reviewed as part of the
2022 internal Board evaluation process. Further information
can be found on page 88.

Locking forward to 2023

The Committee continues to focus on its core activities
with enhanced oversight of the key initiatives, such as
implementation of the new Consumer Duty, review of the
liquidity management methodology, ESG embeddedness
and finalising work on the re-development of the credit
module of the internal Model.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Committee report

10

Committee role and membership

The Environmental, Secial and Governance Committee
{the “Committee”) is responsible for providing oversight
in relation to the Group's ESG strategy and activities. It
determines how the Group should embed the monitoring
of ESG intc aoy-to-day activities as well as ensuring
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
including Industry standards. In practice, this involves
maonitoring cJdrrent and emerging ESG trends, relevant
imterngtional stanaords, and legislotive requirements,
The Corrmittee Is involved in setting appropriate
strategic goals, ensuring they remain fit for purpose and
holding the Group accountable against the action plans
and targets. The Committee has been dedicated to
evolving 1ts approach and ensuring that the Group has a
carbon neutral business that delivers for all stakeholders,

The Committee comprises five NEDs, alt of whom

are the Chairs of the other Board-level Committaes.
The overlap in membership aflows the Committee to
work closely with the Boord ond other Commitiees (o
oversee the identification, mitigation and opportunities
retating to ESG matters.

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during
2022 included: Chief Investment Officer, CRO, General
Counsel, Head of Responsible Investing ana Head of
Regulatory Risk Affairs.

Mare agetail on the skills and experience
of the Commitice members can be found

on p74-79
Meetings held in 2022

Scheduled Meetings

meaetings attended

David Weymouth (Chair) ) O]

Sally Bridgeland 1) @)

Judith Eden 4] D)

Arno Kitts o @

Roger Marshall Q @

Jon Aisbitt stepped down from the P'C Soard and frem the
Committee on 31 October 2027, e aslended 3/3 meelings

Delivery on our climate commitments
is very important in our discussions.”

David Weymaouth
Chair of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee

As Chair of the ESG Cornmittee, | am pleased to present its
report for the year ended 31 December 2022,

We established the ESG Committee to ensure that the Group
embeds the risks from ESG ana chimate change considerations
into its governance arrangements, financial risk managerent
practice, investment processes as well as the overall

Group strategy.

During the yedr, the Committee’s focus has been to monitor
cngoing delivery against the objectives ana targets for our
main priority areas: deliver on our climate cormnmitments of
becoming carbon neutral as a business by 2025 and Net Zero
across all emissions by 2050, disclosing our progress towards
such goals through support and publication of our TCFD
report, defining and launching gur Sustainability Stratedy,
and drafting and publishing standalone Stewardship and
ESG Policies. We are pleased with the strong progress made
across cll these areas. Further information on our climate
initiatives can be founa on pages 44 to 49 of this report and
in more detail within our TCFD report.

The Cormmittes has recopmised the importance of managing
and mitigating the Group’s impact on pecple and the planet,
through our investrment portfolios, as well gs the risks and
oppartunities that the Group faces directly from climate
changa. In February, the Committee attended a deep dive
session, facilitated by Sustainatytics, on integroting ESG anag
corporate governance factors into investment processes,

as well as to gain further insight into ESG risk ratings.
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Committee focus during 2022
The Responsible investing team provides the Committee

willh significant suppart 1o help it discharge ifs responsiilities,

The Responsible Investing team makes recommenaations
regarding the Group’s transition to Net Zero, Its entity-level
climate initiatives, the transition timeline, ESG & Stewardship
Policy, and PIC's overall exposure to ¢climate risk.

In 2022, the Committee remained focused on strategic
positioning and moving towards Net Zero. It considered o
number of Company policies that are vital to achieving that
goal. Firstly, the Committee reviewed PIC's transition tmeline,
including the proposed dctions to decarbonise the investment
portfolios. The Committee reviewed dnd challenged the
proposed methodology, targets and ambitions, and the final
timeline was recommended to the Investment and Origination
Committee (the "1OC™), where it was approved in September
2022 The Committee also challenged and collaborated on
enhancing the proposed Corporate Sustainability Strategy,
which was approved by the Board in September 2022

In addition, the Committee reviewed the Stewardship Policy,
which sets out PIC's gpproach to stewardship within its
investment portfolio, including the responsible allocation,
management and oversight of our capital to create long-term
value for society and all our stakeholders. The implementation
of the Stewardship Policy was recommended to the IOC and
approved in July 2022.

The Committee also reviewed and contributed to PIC's ESG
Policy, which outlines our commitment and drive to building
a long-term, sustainable business which will grow, provide
employment, and generate economic benefitinan
environmentally and socially responsibie manner. The ESG
Policy was appraoved in Cctober 2022 by the Board.

Committee activities during 2022
Other activities of the Committee in 2022 included
the following:

Approved PIC's transttion timeline to Net Zerc approach
Approved the 2022 TCFD report {for publication in 2023)
Recommended to the Board for approval the ESG Policy
Recommended to the Board for approval the Corporate
Sustainability Strategy
s Recommended to the [OC for approval the
Stewardship Policy
* Recommended to the IOC for approval the decarbonising
paortfolio strategy timeline
s Reviewed the UN PRI 2021 Assessment
¢ Received quarterly updates on the ESG
regulatory landscape

Committee performance

The Committee's performance was reviewed as part of the
2022 internal Boord evaluation process. The review found
that the Committee was considerad to be operating weill
and that there was good information flow between the
Board and the Cormmittee.

Further infoermaotion can ke found on page 88.

Locking forward to 2023

In 2023, the Committee will look Lo cuntinue monitoring
progress towards its stated climate commitments, at both
an entity and portfolio level. It wiil also ook to review and
propose for approval PIC’s Engagement Strategy and
support enhanced stewardship and engagement action.
The Committee promotes transparency of disclosures,
and will promote further progress in that area.
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Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance statement

The Board and the executive management are committed to the principles and high stondards of the Corporate Governance
Ceode as they believe these underpin the success of the Company and are for the benefit of its shareholders and stakehaolders,
including policyholders. For this reason, the Company applies all the principles of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code.

In addition, the Group's subsidiary, Pension Insurance Corporation plc, has listad securities in 1ssue and complies with the
applicable sections DTR71and DTR7.2 of the FCaA Handbook. Further mformation on the Company's governing body and its
Committees is included in the Corporate Governance report on pages 74 to 111,

PICG Directors and their interests
The Birectors who served auring the period and Up to the date of the approval of these financial stotements were:

Name Pos.tion Appointed/Resigned

David Weymouth Chairman Appointed 1 October 2022
Jon Aisbitt Chairman Resignec 1 October 2022
Roger Marshall Senior Independent Director

Tracy Blackwell Chief Executive

Jake Blair Director

Judith Eden Director

Tim Gallico Director

Julia Goh Directar

Stuart King Director

Arno Kitts Director

Josua Malherbe Director

Jerdme Mourgue D’Algue Director

Mark Stephen Director

Withelrn wvan Zyi Director

One Director who held office curing the financial year is a beneficiary of the Company's share-based gwara schemes, details
of which are given in Note 7 to the financial statements. This Director recerved 566,583 ordinary shares of the Company upon
vesting of certain schemes during the year (2021: one Director received a total of 892,472 ordinary shares}

Share capital and major shareholders

Details of the Company's share capital, nclucing changes during the year in the issued share capital and detalls of the rights
attaching to the Company's ordinary shares, are set out i Note 19 to the financial statements. The following are the yajor
shareholders of PICG as ot 31 December 2022

~No of ordinary shares % of the 1ssue ordmary

held as ot share capital as at

31 December 2022 37 Cecember 2022

Reinet PC Investments (Jersey) Limited on behalf of Relnet Investments 3.C A. 660,381,700 49.49
Luxinva 5.4, on behalf of ADIA 245,710,540 18.42
Blue Grass Holaings Limited on behalf of CVC 231,825,250 17.37
MP 2019 K2 Aggregator, L.P. on behalf of HPS 136,508,422 1023

Own shares
At 31 December 2022, 5,481,028 crainary shares of the Comrpany were held in an Employee Benefit Trust (2021, 5,261,772), In
acccorgance with the accounting policy in Note 7 to the fincncial stgtements.

Dividends
The Cirectors of the Company proposed a aviaend for the year of 7.50 pence per share (2021 nil}

Statement on the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
Information on how the Directors have had regard to the need to foster effective business relationships with suppliers,
custemers and others, incluaing aetaill on how they have discharged therr adty under 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006,
18 included i the Strategic Repart or pages 20 ta 43,

Any poyments 1o suppliiers ore mace through the service corrpany PSC and the required aisclosures on policy ana proctice
on payment of creaitors are incliaed in the PSC Annuaol Report ana Acccunts
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Political contributions
The Company made no political contributions during the year {(2020: £nil).

Qualifying third party indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company provide for the Directors and officers of the Company to be indemnified

in resoect of liabilities Incurred as a result of thelr office. The Company alse provides certain forms of protection for its
Directors and senior managers of companies within the Group against personal financial expesure that they may incur
in their capacity as such. During the year and gt the time the Directors’ Report was approved under section 234 of the
Companies Act 2008, this protection included aualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined under section 234
of the Companies Act 2006) in force for the benefit of the Company’s Directors.

Going concern

After making enguiries, including specific consideration of regulatory solvency, the Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adeauate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this recson,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Financial instruments
The information relating to the Company's financial instruments is included in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Future developments
The information that fulfils the reporting reguirements relating to the likely future develocpments in the businass of the
Company is included in the Strategic Report, which is separate to this Directors’ Report.

Material contracts
During the year, PSC, a UK limited company that is an indirect subsidiary of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited,
continued to provide management, staff, IT and office services to the Group under a defined service agreement.

Internal controls and risk management system

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management and internal controls, and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Group has o risk management and internal controls system in place which is designed to manage and reduce rather than
eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives. It can only provide the Board with reasonable, and not abisolute,
assurance ggainst material misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee and the

Risk Committee for monitoring this system and reporting on its effectiveness to the Board. Each year, the Board approves

an integrated assurance plan which is intended to provide the Board with assurance that the internal controls and risk
managemeant systems work effectively. The plan, which is effectea by the Internal Audit, Compliance, Risk and Actuarial
functions within the Group, is overseen by the Risk and Audit Committees as part of their delegated authority from the Board.
The overlap in membership of those two Committees ensures that all areas of the systern are adeguately covered.

Financ.al reporting Responsibility

Delegated authority An established management structure operates across the Group with clearly defined levels of
responsibility and delegoted authorities.

Financialreporting The Group has a robust system for reporting of the financial results to the Board. During the yeaor,
monthly and guarterly financial results are produced, which include comparison with forecast and
prior year. The Board, Audit Committee, Risk Committee and executive management review the
Group's performance throughout the year and monitor the operation of budgets and long-term
business plans. The reports ensure that variances are investigated and acted upon.

Internal contrals, The Group has farmal written procedures and controls in operation which are designed to facilitate
processes and effective and efficient business operation, robust financial reporting and compliance with laws and
procedures regulations. Procedures, processes and controls are updated regularly to ensure they are effective

and in compliance with best practice. As part of the requirements of DTR 7.1.3 of the FCA Handbook,
the Board, in line with the delegated authority to the Audit Committee, specifically moniters the
financial reporting proceass and the statutory cudit of the annual financiol statements through
reporting provided by management and reporting received from the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee meets regutarly with members of executive management and the internal and external
auditors to review the annual financial information and internal control matters, and to satisfy
themselves that the internal control systems are operating effectively. The Audit Committee also
reviews any follow-up actions to correct identified weaknesses. All Board members receive minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings.
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Directors’ Report continued

Financiai reporting Responsibility
Internal Audit The Audit Committee oversees the Group’s Internal Audit function, which is managed by the Head of
assurance Internal Audit using a co-sourcea model and has a direct reporting line to the Audit Committee. The

Audit Committee approves an annudl internal Audit Plan which is designed to review key areas of
risk. Regular updates on progress of the Internal Audit Plan are provided to the Audit Committee by
the Head of Internal Audit, who is a standing attendee at the Audit Committee’s meetings. Progress
reports include resulis of individual audits. The Head of Internai Audit provides an annual report and
opinion on the Group's internal controls, risk management, dovernance processes and culture,

The annual opinion is informed by the control attestations which reqguire each Executive Committee
member to confirm compliance of their business areas with the Group's risk and control framework
and provides information to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee and the Board on
managermneant’s opinien on the application of the framework, risk manadement, control effectiveness,
monitoring and information and compliance with key policies.

Externat qudit The work of the externcl auditor provides further independent assurance on the internal

ASSUrance control environment, as described in its reporting to the Augit Comm:ttee. Furthermore, the Audit
Committee reviews and monitors the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the statutory
auditor and consiaers the relationship with the Group as part of its assessment, incluaing pravision
of non-audit services.

Risk Management The Board has established arisk management and compliance system which includes a process
Framework {more for identifying, evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group. The Risk Committee works
informationisincluded closely with the Audit Committee and provides oversight and advice to the Board with regard to
on pages 64 to 71) the Group's currant and likely risk expasures, risk tolerances and appetite, risk measurement, risk

management performance, and its risk policies, proceaures and risk controls. All Board members
receive minutes of the Risk Committee meetines. Procedures are in place to ensure the
employment, retention, training and developmen? of suitably gualified staff to manage activities.

The Board has reviewed the effectivenass of the system of internal controis, iIncluding risk management, for the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of signing of these financial statements and the Annual Report. It has not identifica any
weaknesses sufficient to cause material misstatement or loss which reguires disclosure in the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no retevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps
that ought to have been taken as a Director to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s
auditor is aware of that infermation.

Auditor
In accordance with section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and KPMG LLP will
therefore continue in office.

Employee engagement
The Company is committed to keeping employees well informed of the performance of PIC and this 1s achieved through
reguiar vpdates from the CEQ and senior management.

The Group also operates an annual SAYE scheme to encourage greater employee involvemens. The scheme s available to
all employees are provides the opportunity to acguire the Company’s shares at o favourable price. Further information can
be found on page 52.

Diversity and inclusion

PIC’'s Diversity ong Inclusion Policy 1S5 to promote ¢ consistent and fair approach to employment, and this sterms from ocur
values and capability framewaork. All of our training ana learming and development policies are in place for all emplcyees
to access regardless of gerder, race, age or disabilty. PIC is committed to providrg a warking enviro~ment fraee fraor
harassment and aiscrimination and a place where our empioyees are proud to work.

As our cpproach Is to go beyond the requirerrents of the Equality Act 2010, PIC wants o ensure everyone has the opportunity

to develop and prograss in their careear with the Company. PIC recruits and promaotes the best nerson for sach role, based on
objective job related critena with due regarg for their qualifications and experience PIC is also committed to making reasonable
ogjustments for the hiring of employees with aisabilities and having regard to their particular cptitudes ana abilities.

PIC actively encourages all employees to take aavantage of the learning and developrrent opportunities available to help
maintain, aevelop or Increase knowledge, for the purpose of maintaining a high standard of professional practice. All employees
are required to complete a minmuam of ten hours of Continuing Professional Developrmient ["CRDY) every 12 months.

PIC's Diversity and Inclusion Forum, which is maae Jp of employees cna HR representatives, continued to work in 2022, The

Forum meets on a regular basis and its key objective 1s to organise learning events on diversity and inclusion topics and
represent employees in making recommenaations to senior management on potenticl changes to policy.
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Employees with disabilities

In the event that an employee becomes disabled during employment, PIC will actively make reasonable adjustments to
tre working envircnment and/or practices so aryone can be supported in carrying out their role and responsibilities to their
full potential.

In some instances, PIC may seek third party advice around how the Company can maoke these reasonable adjustments;
this could include the use of an occupational health provder,

Overseas branches
PIC does not have any branches outside the United Kingdom.

Greenhouse gas emissions

In accordance with Companies {Directors’ Report) and Limited Liakility Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations
2018 and Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations, we are required to report on our GHG
emissions including our UK encrdy use and carkbon emissions.

The infonmation in the table below reprasents our CHC and cnergy use for which PIC is responsible:

Current reporting penod 2021 reparting period

(UK and offshore) {UK and offshore)

Total energy consumption used to calculate emissions in kKWh 974,288 893,748
Emissions from combustion of gas in tCOze (Scope 1) 81.7 319
Emissions from purchased electricity in tCO-ze (Scope 2, location-based) 1019 94.8
Total gross tCOze based on above 183.6 176.7
Intensity ratio: gress tCOze/flocr area 0.04 0.04
Intensity ratio: gross tCOXe/full-time equivalent Q.4 05

Reporting terminology definitions
Scope 1: Direct emissions that are owned and controlled by the Company.

Scope 2: Emissions that are a consequence of the operations of the Company.

Intensity ratio: GHG impact per unit of physical activity or unit of economic value.

Reporting period

Qur GHG reporting periad is the same as our financial year: 1 January to 31 December 2022,

Methodologies

The data detailed in this table represents emissions and energy use for which Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited

is responsible. To calculate our emissions, we have used the main requirements of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate
Standard along with the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2022, We have calculated our
emissions for 2021 and 2022 in line with our financial years. Any electricity estimates included in our totals are derived from
actual data in the sarre reporting period, which hos been extrapolated to cover any missing periods. Natural gas consumption
is estimated based on our floor area and the Real Estate Environmental Benchmark from the Better Buildings Partnership. We do
not have any fuelused for company travel to report.

Actions

As the site has already undertaken a significant number of measures, including installing LEDs and PIRs throughout and using
efficient laptops, there are limited options for savings within the building. Pension Insurance Corporation Limited works to shut
down floors when they are not occupied due to staff working from home under the new hybrid working system as an energy
efficiency measure in the reporting period detaiied above.
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Directors’ Report continued

Longer-term viability statement

1. The assessment process

The longer-term viabk.lity process is primarily carried out by strategic and financial planning. Tne Group's strategy {see poges 18
to 23), and year-on-year activities, combined with a focus on material factors which may impact the Group in the foreseeable
future, are central to the assessment that the Group can be reasonably expectea to continue In operation and meet 1ts
liabilities as they fall due. The Group's business plan is preparad annually and covers a five-year period on a rolling nasis. The
plan covers projected performance and related profitability, cash and value gereration and the capital position of the Group
over the period. The plan is designea within the Group's Risk Appetite Framework, which forms an integral part of the business
planning process. The plan s tested against the risk appetite set for the Group by the Board. This includes a number of stress
scenarios, which consiaer the Group’s resiience and capacity to respond to relevant stresses and shock events, which may
potentially impact the Group. The Group alse evaluates various management actions aesigned to maintain and restore key
capital and solvency metrics to within the Group’'s approved risk appetite over the planning period and takes into account the
cost of these actions to the Group’s Solvency Surplus and their potential impact on the Group's Market Consistent Embedaed
Value and IFRS profits.

2. The assessment period

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group by reference to the five-year planning period to December 2027, which
nos been chosen gs opprooriate because it reflects the Group's busness model and the dynamics of the pension nsk transfer
market as coveraed by the Group's five-year business plan.

3. Assessment of viability

In considering the viakility of the Group, the Directors have cssessed the key fociors relating to the Group’s business mode),
strategy and the basis upon which its regulatory capital stress tests are carried aut. This has included consideration of the
uncertainty surrounding the macro-economic enviranment and its potential impact on the Group, the potential impact of
climate change related risks and the ongoing regulatory change affecting the financicl services industry. The Directors have
also carried out an assessmant by refarence to the Group’s risk appetite and financial forecasts from December 2022 1o
December 2027. The Directors discussed the business strategy, market opportunity and potential future strategic objectives.
They considerea the draft business plan which was supported by the assessment of key risks to the successful execution of
the business plan. The Directors alse considered the Group's principal risks and how these are managed, as detailed on pages
66 to 71.

The risk assessment included stress testing of key assumptions, and horizon scanning to consider the key risks to the business
over the business planning horizon and the potential impact of these on the business plan objoctives. The key risks considered
N the risk assessment incluaed:

the risks to PIC's operations if the plan is achieved, focusing on the adeguacy of PIC's systems, processes and controls, and
on the risks relating to recruiting and retaining the staff required to grow the business in line with plan;

PIC’s ability to source high-quality assets with appropriate vielas to support PIC's pricing model, and access to capital and
reinsurance;and

* the risks arising from the external environment, including ongoing volatility in the financial markets, regulatory change, aGna
increased scrutiny from regulators as PIC grows.

This year, the Board olso continued 1o assess impacts arising from the ongoing economic uncertainty caused by instability in
the geopolitical environment. The Boara discussed how these could cause solvency or liquidity declines on PIC’'s balance
sheet from creait downgrades and continued volatility of rates/inflation ana foreign exchange The Board discussed these
risks throughout 2022 and management incorporatea their consigerations into the business planning. The Boarg also
continued to assess management actions available to mitisate risks arising fram those adverse scenarios ond the cost to the
Group of those actions.

As well as risks arising from the macro-economic environment, a number of operational scenarios were performed during
2022. These considered the impacts of a cyber security ransomware attack, a aate theft event from an internal threat actor,
and a terrorist attack on the City of London.

4, Viability statement
Based on the results of the assessrment of the Group's prospects and viabllity, the Drrectors confirm that they have a reasoncble
expectation that the Group will continue to operate and meet its liabilities as they foll due in the five-year assessment period

On kehalf of the Boaro

ol Wt

4

David Weymouth
Chairman
14 Cornhill, London EC3V 3ND

15 March 2023
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the Group and
parent Company financial statements in accordance wilh applicalile laow and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the Group and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
ana tarr view of thu stule ul ulfars of the Creup and parent Company and of the Group's profit or loss for that period. In
preparing ecch of the Group and parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» maoke judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

+ assess the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as @ going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concarn; andl

* Use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alterndtive but to do so.

The Directers are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company
and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for toking such steps as are reascnably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website. Legislation in the UK doverning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ

from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board
7««1‘ Wegsak4;
N

David Weymouth

Chairman
14 Cornhill, London EC3V 3ND

15 March 2023
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pension
Insurance Corporation Group Limited ("the Company”)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise

the Statement of Comperehensive Income for the Group,
Statement of Finanaial Position far the Group, the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the Group, the Group Statement of
Cosh Flows and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and faoir view of the
state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group's profit for the
vear then ended;

s the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006;

e the parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in confarmity with the requirements
of and as applied in cccordance with the provisions of, the
Companies Act 2006; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the reauirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)Y"} and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including
the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for
our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the fincncial statements on the
going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as
they have concluded that the Group and the Company's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also
concluded that there are no matericl uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over their ability to
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the financial statements {"the going
concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors” conclusions, we considered
the inherent risks to the Group's business model and analysed
how those risks might affect the Group and Company’s
financial resources or ability to continue cperations over the
going concern period.

Qur conclusions based on this work:
« we consider that the directors’ use of the gong concern

basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropricte;

« we have not identified, and concur with the directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Group or the Company’s ability
to continue as o going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions
and as subseguent events may result in cutcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the
tirme they were made, the above conclusions are not a
guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue

in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -

ability to detect

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud
(“fravd risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit froud ar provide
an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

» Enguiring of directors, the cudit committee, internal audit
and inspecticn of policy documentation as to the Group's
high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud, including the Group’s channel for “whistleblowing”,
as well as whether they have knowledge of any actudal,
suspected or alleged fraud.

s Reading Board, Audit Committee, Risk Committes and
Credit Rating Committee minutes.

s Considering remuneration incentive schameas and
performance targets for management/directors.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit
tearm and remained alert to any indications of froud
throughout the cudit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking inte account
possible pressures to meet profit targets, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override of
controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a
position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the
risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as
valuation of insurance contract liabilities and harder to value
investments. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk relagted to revenue recognition because thereis nc
significant management judgerment or estimation involved
in recording the revenue streams and the amounts are
contractually derived.

In order to address the risk of fraud specifically as it relates
to the valuation of insurance contract liabiities and the
valuation of harder to value investments we involved
specialists to assist in our challenge of management. We
challenged management in relation to the selection of
assumptions and the appropriateness of the raticnale for
any changes, the consistency of the selected assumptions
across different aspects of the financial reporting process
and comparison to our understanding of the business,
trends in expenence, palicyholder behavior and economic
conditions and also by reference to market practice.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited

To address the fraud risk as it relates 10 manogement
overricge, we aiso performed proceduras incluging

L

Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test
based on risk critena and comparing the identifiea entries
to supporting documentation. These included those posted
by unauthorised user, approved by unauthorised approvers,
those posted @nd approved by the same user, those
Including specific woras based on our criteria, those journals
which were unbalanced, those with no descriptions or user
IDs, those posted to seldom used accounts, unusual journal
entries posted 1o cash and auplicates.

Assessing whether the judgements made In accounting
estimates including assessing valuation of insurance
contract liabilities for bias.

Assessing whether the judgements made to determing
internal credit ratings, within the overall valuation of harder
to value investrments process, contain bias,

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws
and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial staternents fram our general commercial and
sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management {as required by auditing standards),
and from inspection of the Group’s regulatory and legal
correspondence and discussed with the airectors and
other management the policies and proceduras regarding
compliarce with lows and regulations.

We communicateo identifiea laws and regulations
throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance throughout the auait

The potential effect of these laws ond regulations on the
financial statements varies consiaerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that
directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legisiation (including related legistation),
gistributable profits legislation, and taxation legislation and
we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our proceaures on the relatec financial
statement items.

Seconaly, the Group is subject ta many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compeliance
coula have o material effect on amounts or disclosures in the
financiol statements, for instance through the imposition of
fines or titigation. We iaentifies the following areas as those
most likely to have such an effect. regulatory capital and
ligquidity recuirements, GDPR compliance, Health and Safety
legisiation, Employment ana Social Security legislation, Fraug,
corruption and briery legislation, Misrepresentation Act,
Environmental protection legislation, incluaing emissions
tracing & Climate Chonge Act 2008 onag certain aspects of

GrouJp legislation recognizing the financial nature of the
GroJp's activities and its tegal form. Auditing stondards limit
the required cudit procedures to identify non-compliance
with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if
any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not
disclosed to Us or evident from relevant correspendence,
an audit will not detect a oreach.

We discussed with the audit committee matters relatea to
actual or suspected breaches of laws or repulations, for
which disclosure 1s not necessary, and considered any
implications for our audit.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud
or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, cven
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
inaccordance with auditing standards. For example, the
further removed non-compliance with lgws and regulations
is from the everts and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forpery, intentional omissions, misreprasentations, or the
override of internal controls. Cur audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and regulations.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and

the directors’ report. Qur opinion an the financial statements
does not cover those repoerts and we ao Net express an audit
opinien therean.

Qur responsibility 1s to read the strotegic report and the
directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, basad
on aur financial statements audit work, the information
therein is materally misstatea or inconsistent with the
financial statements or cur audit knowledge. Based solely
on that work:

* we hove not igentifiea material misstatermeants in the
strategic report and the directors' report;

s in oJr opinion the information given inthose reporis for the
financial year is consistent with the financial staterments;
ana

» N our opinion thase reports have been preparedin
accordance with the Comrpanies Act 2006.
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Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting recorrs howe not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adegquate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the parent Company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accountind records and returns; or

+ cartoin disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are nol made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained maore fully in their statement set out on page
117, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enaple the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
froud or error; assessing the Group and parent Company's
ability to continue as a doing concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as g whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
ond toissue our opiIMion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an cudit conducted in accardance with

1SAs (UK} will always detect o material misstatement when

It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, Individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the ecenomic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at www frc org uk/auditorsresgonsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom

we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertoken
noy that we might state Lo Le Cornpany's members those
matters we are required to state to them inan auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
pormitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report,

or far the opinions we have farmed.

Lol oo,
Ao

James Anderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Charteraed Accountants

15 Canada Sguare
Canary Wharf
London

14 5GL

15 Maorch 2023
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Statement of comprehensive income for the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Revenue
Gross premiums written 4,095 4,702
Dutward reinsurance premiums 15 (74) (B46)
Net premium revenue earned 4,01 3856
Investment return 2 (12,397) 209
Commissions earnead 1 1
Total net revenue {8,375) 4,066
Expenses
Claims paid - gross {1,919) {1.844)
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 15 33 59
(1,881) (1,785)
Decrease/(increase} in insurance liabilities — gross 13,984 {2178}
{Decrease)/increasea in reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 15 {2,151} 577
11,833 (1607)
Acguisition expenses 3 {76) 177)
Other operating expenses 4 (171) (121)
Finance costs 6 (90) (89)
{337) (287)
Total net expenses 9,615 (3.673)
Profit before taxation 1,240 393
Tax charge 8 (229) 182)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 1,01 3n

The amoJunts shown above are in respect of continuing operations.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 126 1o 161 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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- . - -
Statement of financial position for the Group o
5]
as at 31 December 2022 i
S,
a
&
Q
2022 2021
Note £m £m
Assets
Property, plant and eguipment 1 1
Right of use cssets 10 4 17 T
Investment propertiog il 244 173 4
Financial investments 12 40,951 57,143 -
Derivative assets 13 22,451 15,018
Deferred tax assets 14 5 4 I}
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 15 1199 3350 §
Prepayments 112 104 s
Receivables and other financial assets 12 474 284 g
Cash and cash equivalents 12 201 9o | &
Total Assets 65,642 70,293 %
g
Equity a
Share copital 15 2 2 ®
Share premium 21 873 873
Treasury shares 21 {20) 119) .
Merger reserve 21 34 34 N
Tier 1 notes 20 444 444 L
Capital reduction reserve 21 1,055 1,055 ~
Share-based payment reserve 21 20 21
Retained profit 21 3,031 2,055 -
Total Equity 5,439 4,465 3
)
=3
Liabilities "
Gross insurance liabilities 15 33,029 47013 §
Borrowings 16 1,592 1,550 g
Lease liabilities 10 9 20 e
Derivative liabilities 13 25,348 16,997 fre
Deferred tax liabilities 14 - 1
Current taxation 27 38
Insurance ond other payables 12 45 47 -
Accruals 12 153 122 2
Total Liabilities 60,203 65,828 !\-.é
Total Equity and Liabilities 65,642 70,293

The accounting policies and notes on pases 126 to 161 form an integral part of these financicl statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2023 and were signed cn its behalf by:
-q—pb%‘-- - te a

Tracy Blackwell

Director
Registration number: 09740110
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Statement of changdes in equity for the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Share-
Capital based
Share Shore Treasury Merger Tier1 reduction payment Retoined
capitat  premjum shares reserve notes reserve reserve profit Total
31December 2022 Note Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 2 873 19 34 444 1,055 21 2,055 4,465
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1,011 1,011
Transactions with owners
Tier 1 note coupon 20 - - - - - - - (33) (33)
Exercise of share-based
payrment schemes 21 - - 9 - - - (9 - -
Share-based payment charge 721 - - - - - - 8 - a8
Share purchases and share
scheme contributions/
settlements 21 - - (10} - - - -~ {2) [12)
Atend of year 2 873 (20} 34 444 1,055 20 3,031 5,439
Shara-
Capital based
Shore Share  Treasury Merger Tier® reduction  poyment  Retamnedq
copltal  premium shores resarve nafes reserve reserve profit Total
31 December 2021 Note £m £rm £m £m £m £m £rm £rm £
At baginning of year 2 870 (25} 34 444 1,055 4 1773 467
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the yvear -~ - - - - - 3Mn 3an
Transactions with owners
Sale of treasury shares pal - 3 3 - - - - - 34
Tier 1 note coupon 20 - - - - - - (33} (33)
Tier 1 coupen tax relief 8 ~ - - - - - 6 6
Exercise of share-basea
payment schemes 21 - - o - - - (%) {1 -
Share-basea poyment charge 721 - - - - - - 12 - 12
Share purchases and share
scheme contributions/
settlements 2 - - 31 - - - m (32)
At enc of year 2 873 (1% 34 444 1055 21 2,055 4,465

The cccounting policies ana netes on pages 126 to 161 form an integral part of these financicl statements.
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Group statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £m £fm
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 1,011 E1ll
Adjustments for:
lvestine il ineun e 2 (1,416) {1,238)
Finance costs 16 20 89
Depreciation charged on right of use asset 10 3 3
Tax expense 8 229 a2
Fquity settled share-based payments 7 8 12
(1,086) (1,052)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in investment properties M (71) (82)
Decrease in property, plant and equipment - 1
Decrecse in fingncial iInvestments including derivative assets 2,759 5,423
Decrease/(increase) in reinsurers’ share of insurcnce liabilities 15 2,151 (577)
{increcase)/decrease In prepayments {8} 3
Increase in receivabies and other financial assets 12 {179} (&)
Increase in accruals N 17
{Decrease)/increase ininsurance liabilities 15 {13,984) 2778
increase/(decrease) in financiol liabilities including derivative liabilities 13 8,353 (7.343)
(Decrease)/increase in insurance and other payables (2} 27
{950) (35%9)
Cash flows used in operating activities (1,025} (1,100)
Interest income received 1,208 1,060
Other investrment return 196 184
Taxation paid (242) (37)
Net inflow from operating activities 137 107
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease ligbilities 10 (2} {3)
Share scherme purchases and contributions/settlements (12} (32)
Sale of treasury shares - 34
Interest paid on subordinated debt (88} {88)
Coupon on Tier 1notes 20 (33) {33)
Net outflow from financing activities (135) (122)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 (15)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 199 214
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 201 199

The acccounting policies and notes on pages 126 to 161 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom. Both the Company's financial statements and the Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared
In accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) in conformity with the reguirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Management have conducted a detailed
assessmant of the Group’s going concern status based on its cdrrent position and forecast results, and have concluded
that the Group has adequate resources to operate for at least the next 12 months from the approval of these

financigl statements.

in making the going concern assessment, management reviewed the forecast salvency and liquidity positions, stress

and scendrio testing of key assumptions, and haorizon scanning to consider the kay risks to the business and the potential
impact of these risks on the business plan objectives, Mitigating actions were also considered ana dre set out in the Risk
management section of the Strategic Report on pages 64 1o 71. The key stress tests, scenarios and sensitivities include a
change in interest rates, an incraase in inflation, widening of credit spraads, downgracaes ana asfaults, iquidity stresses,
and rensurance and capital availability. The principal sources of forecast information were the 2023 businass plan and tre
Group's ORSA, both of which are expected to be approved by the Board in March 2023, Details on our financial position and
solvency can be found in the Chief Financial Officer’s review on page 56 to 63.

In publishing its own financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption In section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement
and related notes that form a part of these financial statements.

The Group has applied all IFRS and interpretations that are adopted by the UK ana are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

Management consioer that the Group consists of one operating sedment, which operotes in one gecgraphical location
{the United Kingdom) and has one line of business {the provision of insurance annuity products to UK def.ned benefit
occupational pension funds and their members).

Revenue concentration items have not been disclosed because the nature of the Group's husiness s that it conducts a
relatively small number of one-off individual transactions each year.

In preparing the financical statements, climate change has not been a significant area of accounting jJudgement or estimation,
please refer to Note 17(f) for further detajls

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise those of the Company and its subsidiary companies. For the purposes
of conschdation, the accounting pol.cies of subsidiary compan.es have been aligned with thosa of the Company.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commencas to the date that control ceases. Intra-group transactions and outstanding balances are eliminated in the
preparation of the consolidated finonciol statements of the Group and ony non-controlling interests in the net assets

of subsidiaries are idennfed separately from the Group’s equity.

The functional currency of the Group and all subsidiaries is GBP sterling, These financial statements have been presented in
millions of GBP sterling (Em) unless otherwise stoted. Monetary assets ana hobilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translatea into the functional currency at the fareign exchangde rate ruling ot the ena of the finoncial year. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the historical rate All revenue and expense items

are reflected n the Statement of Comprehens.ve Income for the Group ct the rote effective at the date the transaction
took place.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements recuires the use of certain accounting estimates ana assumptions that affect the
reported assets, ighilities, iIncome anc expeanses. It also regquires management to exercisg judeemeant in applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas invelving o higher aegree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions are significant

o the consclidated financial staterments, are set out nelow and in more detal in tre related notes. Insurance Lakilities and
finoncial Instrumrents are the areas where there is more risk of o matericl adjustment to the carrying amoJnts within the
next firarcal vear,
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Judgements:

Contract classification

Contracts written by insyrers are classified as either insurance contracts or investment contracts, depending on the level
of insurance risk transferred. The Group has classified all its policyholder contracts and reinsurance treaties s insurance
contracts. Please refer to Note 15 for further details.

Restricted Tier 1 notes
Classification of financialinstruments as debt or equity is dependent on whether the terms impose an obligation to deliver cash or
other financial assets. The Group's Restricted Tier 1 nates have been classified as equity. Please refer to Note 20 for further details.

Estimates:

Insurance liabilities

Insurance liabilities are valued using projected cash flows of future retirement income and the cost of administrating
payments to policyholdears. The key assumptions relate to future mortality, expenses, discount rates and inflation. Please refer
to Note 15 for further detaiis.

Financial instruments

Where an active market does not exist for a financial instrument, the Group uses financial modelling to ascertain fair value. The models
consider the anticipated future cash flows expected to be derived from the assets or paid in respect of the liabilities and discounts
them to reflect the iming of payments and, for debt assets, the likelihood of default given the relative senionty of the holding in crder of
repayment. Where aninstrument is neither traded on an active market or internally modelied, the Group uses valuations provided by
independent fund managers. For equity release mortgages {("ERMs”), key inputs also include assumptions relating to property prices
and credit spreads. The relevant fair value disclesures are set out in Note 12,

Investment properties
The market vatue of the investment properties held at foir value is determined based on a valuation approach which applies
an investment yield to the rental income. Please refer to Note 11 for further details.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has cansistently applied its accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements. The
application, in 2022, of “kReference to the Conceptual Framework” {Amendment to IFRS 3), "Property, Plant and Equioment
- Proceeds before Intended Use” (Amendment to 1AS 16), “"Cost of Fulfilling a Contract” (Amendment to 1AS 37), and “Annuai
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020" have had no impact on the Group.

Significant new standards or amendments to standards which are not yet effective
Thea following standards are only mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1January 2023 and have not been
adopted early by the Croup:

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” - effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
The Group is required to adopt IFRS 17 for its financial year beginning on 1 January 2023.

The standard provides @ comprehensive approach for accounting for insurance contacts, including measurement, income
statement presentation and disclosure. It is expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s metrics. Under IFRS 17,

insurance contracts are aggregated into groups for recognition and measurement purpoeses.

The key differences between measurement of insurance contracts under IFRS 4 and IFRS 17 are as follows:

IFRS 4 1FRS 17
Fulfilment Insurance contracts are measured at  Insurance contracts are measured at the present value of future
cash flows the present value of future cash flows  cash flows plus an allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
plus @ margin for prudence. and an explicit Risk Adjustment {"RA") for nan-financial risk.

Acquisition ¢casts are expensed.

Profit atinitial  Any day one profit (i.e. excess of Any new businass profits at inception are deferred as a contractual
recognition premivm over fulfilrment cash flows) service margin ("CSM") on the Statement of Financial Position.
is recognised immediately in profit : }
and Iofs ‘ : ‘ yinp If a group of contracts is onercous (l.e. the fulfilment cash flows exceed
' the premium payable), a loss is recognised immediately.
Measurement The impact of all assumption The CSM is released into the Statement of Comprehensive Income

subsequentto changes are recognised immediately  as Revenue over time Qs services are provided.

initial in profit and loss.

recognition The impact of financial assumption changes {e.g. interest rates,
inflation, figuidity premiums) are recognised immediately and have
no impact on the CSM. To the extent that contracts remain
profitable, non-financial assumption changes (e.¢. longevity
and expenses) are spread over time via the CSM.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Accounting policies continued
IFRS 17 discloses more gquantitative and qualitative information than IFRS 4, including the reconciliations of CSM, RA and
present value of future cash flows.

IFRS 17 - key methodology and accounting palicies

Given the long-term nature of our business, the Group will be applying the General Measurement Model to ¢ll contracts in
scape of the standard. The Group's insurance contracts will not include any distinct investment components reguiring
separation ¢s d financial instrument under IFRS 9. The Group will also elect to continue to account for ERM contracts as
financial instruments under IFRS G,

On transition to IFRS 17, the Group will apply the fully retrospective approach unless impracticable. For contracts entered into
rior to 2076, retrospective application is impracticable and therefore the Group will apply the IFRS 17 fair value approach for
these contracts at 1January 2022, Under the fair value approach, the CSM is determined as the difference between the foir
value of o group of insurance contracts, measured in accordance with IFRS 13, and its fulfilment cash flows at the transition date.

Under IFRS 17, only cash flows that will be directly related to the fulfilment of an insurance contract will be includea within
fulfilment cash flows, which wiil generally be narrower than the view currently taken for internal costs under IFRS 4. However,
under IFRS 17, the Group will lse amend its accounting policy in relation to the treatment of deoling and hedging costs related
to financial investrments. These are currently presented within investment return under IFRS 4, but will be treated as insurance
acauisition costs under {FRS 17 if they relate to assets backing insurance liabilities, or other expenses if they relate to other
assets. Expenses will only be considered directly attributable if they are incurred for the clear purpose of selling anc fulfiliing
obligations under insurance contracts, inciuding performing investment activity (e.g. origination, claims handling and policy
administration, investment acguisition and servicing costs). Support function and other overneads will also be included when
they are incurred to directly support these acguisition and maintenance activities.

The rate used to discount the present value of future cash flows will be set using the top-aown methed, based on a portfolio of
assets that mateh the lighilities (excluding prudent margins). The IFRS 17 discount rate will be calculated using the vield on this
portfolio of assets, adjusted for the impact of credit risk ana any remaining cash flow mismatches. This 1s similar to the approach
taken under IFRS 4. The Group has taken the accounting policy choice to recognise all finance income or expenss in profit or
loss, rather than disaggregate the income or expense that relates to financial assumptions into other cornprehensive income.

The RA, reflecting the compensation the Group reguires for taking non-financial risk {precominantly longevity and expense
risk) will be set as a percentile, representing the probability that the fulfilment cash flows could increase by the amount of the
RA over the next year.

For contracts where the fair value approach will be applied, the fair value will be calculated based on the estimated bulk
annuity market premium that would be paid to accept the insurance liabilities and related reinsurance at the transition date.
The approach to calculate the premium will be based on PICs internal pricing models, agjustea to reflect the perspective of
wider market participants. Key assumptions incluae consideration of how much Solvency capital is required to be set asiae
and the pricing of the business to earn an appropriate retJum.

The C5M will be recognised as revenue based on the number of coverage units provided in the period, in line with annuity
payments made to policyhaolders ana amounts that represent the benefits that the Group is providing to policyhalders that
have not yet retired (2. aninvestment return service and potential spoJuse annuities that might come INto payment).

IFRS 17 ~ impact

As at the daote of this publication, the Group isin the process of finalising the calculation of the opening balance sheet anc the
proauction of 2022 comparative information. For this reasan, it is not currently practicable to accurately cuantify the impact of
aaopting IFRS 17, but the expected impact on equity as at 1 January 2022 is estimated to be o cecrease of between £100 million
to £300 mrillicn. This 1s net of the recognition of a ceferred tax asset for the reversal of previously taxed profits on transition. Relief
for these losses is then spread over a ten year period. The Group expects to recognise a net of reinsurance pre-tax CSM plus RA
of between £2.6 billion to £2.8 billion on 1 January 2022, which is expected 1o be released to profit over tire.

PIC's profit recognition will be slower under IFRS 17 than IFRS 4, due to recognition of the CSM, anais less sensitive to non-
financial assumption chandes. Profit unaer IFRS 17 15 sensitive to short-term investment velatlity {(noting that PIC bases its
heaging cn ¢ Solvency, rather than IFRS, position), with the impact differing from that seen unaer IFRS 4. For this reason, the
Group will continue to choose to analyse its results on an "acjustea operating profit” basis. Due to slower recognition of profit,
the Group adjustea operating profit and profit before tax cre expectea to be lower uncer IFRS 17 than snoer IFRS 4.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” — effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

The acoption of the stanaara will not have a material impact an the resdlts of the Group, as the financial instruments held
by the Group will remain classified as fair value trrough profic and loss. Although this standard s now effective, the IASE
publishea Amendments to IFRS 4 "Extensicn of the temrporary exemption from applying IFRS 97, which incluaes an optional
temporary exemption from apolying IFRS G until IFRS 17 15 adopted. This exempticn 1s available to insurance ennities whose
activities are “predominantly connectea with insurance” by meeting certan eligibility criteria.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group met the eligibility criteria and will defer the adoption of IFRS @ to 1January 2023,

The disclosure of the fair value of the Group's financiat assets, showing the amounts for instruments that meet the “Solely for
Payment of Principal and Interest” ("SPPI¥) criteria separately from all other financial assets, as required for entities applying
the temporary exemption, is provided below. Note that financial assets classified as held for trading, or that are manaoged,

and whose performance is evaluated on a foir value basis are not required to be assessed under the S| test and are ‘%
reported in all other financial assets. )
As at 31December 2022 As gt 31 December 2027
Financial Alt other Financicl All other
assets passing finaneial acssets passing financial Q
SPP| test’ assets SPP! test! assets 3
£m £m £m £m &
<
. . o
Receivables and other financial assets?? 474 - 284 - 3
Financial investments - 40,951 - 51143 0]
Derivative assets - 22,451 - 15,018 %
3
1 For financial assets which passed the SPPItest as at 31 Decemiber 2022, there wos a change in the fair value in the year of £nil {2021 £ni). g
2 For the credit rating split of receivables and other financial assets, please see Note 17. ]
3 Includes £267 million (2021 £256 millicn) of accrued interest on financial investments that will be reclassified from other receivables to ®
the related financial investment baiance on the adoption of IFRS 9. This is considered to be ¢ more appropriate presentation, as the
interest receivable is considered to be an integral part of the financial investment managed ot fair volue
E
2. Investment return i
J

Invaestment return comprises all interest income on financial investments and derivatives at fair value through profit and
loss, rental income and unrealised and realised gains and losses.

-
Redlised gains or losses represent the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price or, In the case of 3
investments valued ot amortised cost, the latest carrying value prior to the date of sale. 3

2
Unrealised gains and losses on investments reprasent the difference between the fair value of investments held at the end @
of each financial year and their purchase price. The net rmnoverment recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income a
reflects both unreafised gains and losses recognised during the year and the reversal of any prior cumulative period g
unrealised gains and losses which have been realised in the current accounting period. @
;:_5;

2021

2022 Em

£m {restagted)”

Investment income

- Investments designated as fair value through profit or loss on initicl recognition 1,271 1,064

- Investments classified as held for trading 143 166

- Rental income 2 8

Total investment income 1,416 1,238

Net realised (losses)/gains on investments

- Investments designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition {1,428) 442

- Investrments classified as held for trading 992 {(135)

Net realised {losses)/gains {436} 307

Net unrealised {losses)/gains on investments

- Investments desipnated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition (12,467) 1,757)

- Investrments classified as held for trading (901) 409

Net unrealised losses {13,368) {1,348)

Net realised and unrealised (losses)/gains on investment properties 9 12

Investment return {12,397) 209

" Redlised and unredlised gains/(losses) have been restated to separate out investment properties from investments designated as fair
value through wielit ur luss wrinitial recognition,
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Acquisition expenses

Acquisition expenses comprise all direct and indirect costs of obtaining and processing new business. Indirect costs consist

primarily of management, staff and relatea overhead costs.

As acquisition expenses relate to single premium business, with all revenue recognised immediately on initial recognition
of the contract, a deferred acquisition cost asset has not been estabhished n the Statement of Financial Position.

2022 2021
£m £rr
Acquisition expenses 76 77

4. Other operating expenses

Investment charges and related expenseas comprise:

s fees payable to investment managers: Performance fees are payable to certain investment managers that exceed

relevant targets measured over a number of financial years. The Group recognises the costs of such agreements during

the life of each contract. No provision is made for fees on potential cutperformance of targets in future yvears. All othe
fees payaoble to investment managers are recognised on an accruals basis; and

« explicit transcction costs on financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss.

r

2022 2021
Em Em
Investment charges and related expensas 58 az
Project costs 58 38
Share-based payments 13 12
Other expenses 42 29
171 121
5. Auditor's remuneration
2022 2021
EOOO £000
Fees poyable to the Group's auditor for the audit of the Group's annual accounts 36 21
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associotes for other services:
Audit of accounts of subsidiaries 2,273 560
Auait related assurance services 168 153
All other services 66 150
Total fees paid to the auditar 2,543 884

During the year, gudit fees of £1.4 million were incurred in relation to the implementation of IFRS 17 (2021 £nil)

6. Directors’ remuneration, employee costs and headcount

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Pension Services Corporation Limited operates a defined contribution pensicn plan into which PSC contributes 8% if the

employee makes ¢ minimum contribution of 2% of qualifying salary. Obligations for contributions to aefinca contribution

plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the penco donng
which the related services are renacred by employees

The costs of Directors and employees of the Group for the year were as follows:

2022 2621

£m
Wages andg salcries 58 48
Socicl security costs 8 &
Other pension Costs 3 3
69 57
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The 14 Directors (2021: 13) who saerved in the Company during the year received total remuneration of £3 million (2021: £2 million)
for their services to the Group. This includes £3 mrillion (2021: £2 miltion) in respect of services provided to other Group companies.
All Directors were employed by or contracted by the Group’s service provider.

One Director was provided a cash alternative in relation to @ money purchase pension scheme where their lifetime or annual
allowance limit had been reached {2021 cne), cne Director of the Company was awarded share options during 2022 {2021
one}l and one Director exarcised share nptions duting 2022 {2027 ong).

The amount of remuneration recefved by the highest paid Director was £1.6 miflion {2027: £1.4 million). This includes £1.6 million
(2021; £1.4 million) in respect of services provided to other Group companies. In addition, the highest paid Director received
shares in the Company on maturity of certain share plans and exercised share options during 2022.

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors of the Company} duringd the year, analysed by
category, was as follows:

2022 2021

Number Numiber

Employees 415 350
Directors 13 12

7. Share-based payment arrangements

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value on the grant date of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to Directors and employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with @ corresponding increasea in eguity, over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards
for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such thot the amount
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the relevant service conditions and non-market
performance conditions at vesting date.

Any ordinary shares required to fulfil entitliements under the share-based payment awards are provided by the Pension
Insurance Corporation Group Employee Benefit Trusts ("EBTs"). The EBTs are trected as branches. Any shares purchased by
the EBTs to fund these awards are held at a peried end date and accounted for as treasury shares within the Company
and Group shareholders’ equity.

When the awards vest and new shares are issued, the proceeds received, net of transaction costs, are credited to
share capital {par value) and the balance, if any, to share premium. Where the shares are already held by the EBTs,
the net proceeds are credited against the cost of thase shares, with the difference between cost and proceeds being
taken to retained earnings. In both cases, the relevant amount in the share-based payments reserve is then credited
to retained earnings.

Emnployet's national insurance contributions in relation to the equity settled schemes are treated as cash settled
transactions, with the fair value recognised as an expense over the peried that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the related equity award, Until the liability s settled on exercise of options, it is remeasured at fair value, with
any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Analysis of expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

2022 20
£m Em

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Deferred Bonus Share Plan 7 12
Long Term Incentive Plan

Total expense recognised for equity settled share-based payments 8 12

During the year cash settled employer’'s social security costs of £5 million (2021 £nil) were incurred by the Group, and as at
31 December 2022, total lighilities in relation te cash settled employer's social security cost were £3 million (2021 £nil).

All schemes contain clawback provisions which allow the PIC Remuneration Committee to reduce or extinguish awards in
certain specified circumstances.

131

lioday s1BsI0Nns

J2URWIBA0Y d)niodio)) 1Z-1d

L-ged

n
5
Q
3
o,
o
w
PA
5]
Q
o
3
o
3
=
w




Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

7. Share-based payment arrangements continved
Share Growth Plan 2017

The commercial objective of this plan was to deliver to participants (Directors and senior management of Group companies)

a proportion of growth in the value of the Comrpany above the value of the Company on implermentation of the plan
{“Initicl Company Value”).

The fair value of the Growth Plan at inception was calculated to be £1.6 miliion, which was fully paia by the participants.

As @ result, no expense has been recognisad In the Statement of Comprehensive iIncome in respect of this plan.

The Growth Shares, initially issued as 2,000 C shares at inception of the plan, vestea on 1 January 2021 and were subseguently
converted into 2,000 ordinary shares. An additional 3,208,330 orainary shares were also 1ssued to the participants as

settlement of the plan.

Partcipants are able to sell their ordinary shares over the perioa 2021-2023.

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")

This plan is designed to incentivise key individuals to grow the business and build a sustained and successful future for the
Group by rewarding and retaining them through g long-term incentive arrangement. The plan has been in place since 2021
and awards are made on an annual basis, at the Company’s discretion. All awards to aate are nil cost options, with vesting

dependent on performance against a Group MCEV target, with o Solvency Il coverade underpin. The awards vest at the end
of a three-year performance period and become exercisable after o further two years

2022 2021
Number tumber
of options of options
Outstanding at 1 January 1,149,455 -
Awarded 1,197,238 1149455
Lapsed/forfeited (65,384) -
Remaining at 31 December 2,281,309 1149,455
Exerciseable gt 31 December - -
Weighted-qverage share price ot grant/exercise (£) 3.70 365
weighted-average remaining contractual life (years) 9.35 970

During the year to 31 December 2022, LTIP awards were mode on 1June 2022 and 1 Decenrber 2022. As these are nil cost

optlons with non-market-based performance criteria, the key input to determine the falr value of the awards far the

IFRS 2

share-based payment charge is the share price at grant date of £3.70 which was cetermined with the assistance of third

party valuation specialists,

Deferred Bonus Share Plan (“DBSP”)

This plan is designed to incentivise key individuals to grow the business and build a sustained ana successful future for the
Group by rewarding and retaining them through o long-term incentive arrangement. The plan has been in place since 2013

and awards are maae on an annual basis, at the Company's aiscretion,

The awards under the DBSP are in the form of o nil cost option over o number of the Company’s ordinary shares.

2022 2021
Number N.Ther

of options cf cptons

Outstanding at 1 January 7,875,195 7,733,236
Awarasd 1,368,354 1933,596
Lapsea/forfeiteq (52,510) (249513)
Exercised (2,711,590) {1,542124)
Remaining at 31 December 6,479,449 7875195
Exerciseable at 31 Decemper 1,126,964 1,441,537
Weighted-average share price ot grant/exercise (£) 3.70 365
Welghted-avercge remaoining contractual life (yecrs) 7.58 767

2022 awaras unger the DBSP were made on 1Jdne 2022. As these are nil cost options with no soecific performance criteng,
the key input to getermine the fair value of the awcras for the [FRS 2 share-based payment charge s the share price at grant

date of £3.70 which was determinec with the assistance of thira party valuation specialists.
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8. Corporation tax

Current tax is the expected tax poyable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of the Statement of Financial Position together with adjustments to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and ligkilties for financial reparting purpeses, and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

I he Lroup’s tax charge for the year is:

2022 2021
£m £Em

Current taxation
Corporation tax payable for the current year 231 77
Prior year adjustment - 7
Total current tax 231 84
Deferred taxation
Tax transitional adjustments and timing differences (2) {2)
Total deferred tax (2) {2)
Tax charge 229 82
The effective tax charge for the period of 18% (2021: 21%) is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United
Kingdom of 19% {2021: 19%). The differences are explained bealow:

2022 2021

£m Em

Reconciligtion of total income to the applicable tax rate
Profit before taxation 1,240 393
Corporation tax at 19% (2021 19%) 236 75
Effects of:
Prior year adjustment - 7
Non-deductible expenses 1 2
Tier 1 coupon tax refief (6) -
Deferred taxaticn movement (2) (2)
Tax charge 229 82

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Current taxation is provided on taxable profits at the corporation tax rate ruling in the year they are earned. The Group's
tax chorge is primarily based on the profits of PIC. The current UK corperation tax rate is 19%. From 1 April 2023, the rate of
corporation tax will increase to 25%.

9. Dividends

Final dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they have been approved by
shareholders of the Company.

On 15 March 2023, the Board proposed a final dividend for 2022 of 7.50 pence per ordinary share (2021 nil). Subject to approval
by shareholders, the dividend will be paid on or around 11 May 2023, It will be accounted for as an appropriation of retdined
2arnings in the year ended 31 December 2023 and is not included as a liability in the Group Staternent of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2022
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

10. Leases

The Group applied IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. On transition, the Group electea 1o use the practical expedient to apply IFRS
16 only to contracts that were identified as leases under 1AS17.

The Group recognises G right of use asset and d lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right of use assets are
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial gmount of the lease liabllity adjusted for any lecse payments made

at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of restoration costs, less any
lease incentives received.

A right of use asset is depreciatea on a straight line basis over the lease term

Non-financial assets that are measJrea at amortised cost are reviewed for impairment whenever events or chandes
In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may ot be recoverable. An impairment loss Is recognisea for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

A lease ligbility is initially measured as the value of expected future lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental barrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate is determined vsing interest rates from various external
financing sources, which are adjusted to reflect the terms of the lease.

Ledse llabilities are measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group leases consist of office buildings and office eguipment. Information about the leases for which the Group is
alessee s presented below.

The Group leases office space and office eguipment to enable it to carry out its operations. The leases for the office space
expire N February 2028 but include an option to terrrinate in July 2024, The lease term was reassessed during the year and as
at 31 December 2022, the calculations of the right of use asset and lease assume cessation in July 2024 as the Group is not
reasonably certain thot the termination options will not be exercised.

Right of use assets

2022 2021
Office Office

buildings buidings

Em Erm

Balance at 1 January 17 20
Reassessment of lease term (10) -
Depreciation charge for the year (3} {3)
Balance «t 31 December 4 17
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Lease liabilities
2022 2021
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 20 22
Reassessment of lease term {10) - T,
Lash oUtTIOW Tol ledse pdyriienls ™ (3 é
Interest on lease liabilities 1 1
Balance at 31 December 9 20
0
o}
=
e
2022 2023 s}
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows Em £m §
[
Less than one year 6 4 o
One to five years 3 5 ¢
Mare than five years - 4 %
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 9 23 g
Balance at 31 December 9 20 @
The Group's potential undiscounted cash flows relating to the lease term beyond the termination cption date are £12 million
{2027: Enil). These have not been included in the 31 December 2022 liabilities above. %
)
11. Investment properties ~

Investment properties are not for occupation by the Group, but are leased 1o third parties to generdte rental income.
Investment properties are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. In the early period of construction of an investment property, where fair value is not reliably measurable, the
investment property is measured at construction cost until fair value becomes reliably measurable.

Properties are valued annually by professional external valuers using the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors {("RICS™)
guidelines. The RICS guidelings apply separate assumptions to the value of the land, buildings andl tenancy associated with
cach property.
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The external valuers also consider changes in market conditions and the status of the tenants in determining whether a fuli
physical inspection s required each year. Irrespeactive of such considerations, each praoperty is fully iInspected as par? of
the valuation process at least once every three years.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Investment properties continued

2022

2022 At fair 2022

At cost valve TJotal

£m £m £m

AL beginning of year a7 126 173
Additions 82 60 142
Disposals’ - (74) (74}
Transfer of properties under construction from cost to fair value (74) 74 -
Change in fair value during the year - 3 3
At end of year 55 189 244

1 Rewting to a portfolio of retail croperties disposed of in the year. The loss on disposal, net of transactions costs, was £14 million,

202
2020 At farr 2021
At cost value Total
£rm £m Erm
At beginning of year 19 72 91
Additions 75 - 75
Transfer of properties under construction from cost to fair value {47) 47 -
Change in fair value during the year - 7 7
At end of year 47 126 173

The Group’s holchings in iInvestment properties relate to retall, office and residenticl properties neld via Guarnsey registered
property unit trusts ("GPUTs") or UK-based limited partnershios. all properties are located in tne United Kingdom.

The market value of the investrment properties held at fair value is determined based on a valuation approach which applies
investment yield to the rental iIncome. The investment yield is derived from available transactional evidence of simiiar rental
units considering the property-specific factors such ¢s its location, the unexpired term, current rent, size of the unit and other
factors. For investment properties under construction, the estimated valuation upon completion is aajusted for future costs
to compiete and a risk mara:n. Due to the unobservable nputs, investment properties are classified as Level 3.1n the far
valuye hierarchy

Significant assurmptions used in the valuation of our investment properties include:

2022 2021
Investrment yiela Range from 5.46% to 6.04%  Range from 4.25% to 2.75%
Rental value per square foot Range from E27.40 to £31.63 Range from £14.85 to £31.95

The following table shows the effect of assumption changes aon the fair value of investment properties.

2022 202"
Change in Changein Charge:n Charge n
fair value fair value ‘air vaive fair value
Sensitivity £m Em £m £rm
+/- 50 bps change in Investment yield (35) 43 18) 23
+/- 10% change In rental value per square foot n (32) 14 {14)

Rental ncome received in relat'cn to these properties of £2 miflion {2027 £8 mllicr) 1s shown within investment return in Note 2.
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12. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss {"FVTPL) and classified as held for trading,
All other financial assets and financial labilities, with the exception of borrowings, short-term assets and liabilities, and

cash and cash equivalents are classified as FVTPL on initial recognition. _?_.
~J
Financial investments are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition where they are managed on a fair value —
basis in accordance with risk management and investment strategies, and infermation is provided internally to
key managemaeant personnel on that basis. Financial instruments at FYTPL are initially recognised at far value in o
the Statement of Financial Position, with transaction costs and any subsequent change in fair value taken directly Q
to the Statement of Comprehansive Incame. 8‘
a
Joint ventures are entities in which the Group has an investment where it, along with one or more other shareholders, has ©
contractually agreed to share control of the business and where the major decisions require the unanimous consent of the 8’
joint partners. Investments in joint ventures that are manaded ot fair value as part of the Group’s portfolio of financiai ®
investments, and are unrelated to the Group's core insurance businass, are classified as financial investments at FVYTPL. gl
a
Assets held as collateral ®
In order to meet its contractual obligations, the Group receives and pledges collateral in the form of cash and non-cash
assets in respect of certain derivative contracts. The armount of collateral required is determined by the valuation of each
contract on a mark-to-market basis and the type of collateral to be deposited is specified within the agreement with each oA
counterparty. Collateral pledged in the form of cash and non-cash assets, which are not legally segregated from the E
Company, continue to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position within the appropriate asset classification, as b

the Group retains all risks and rewards relating 1o these assets. If the Group relinguishes the economic risks and rewards
of ownership when pledging the assets, it deracognises the asset and recognises a corresponding receivable for its return.

Collateral received in the form of cash and non-cash assets is not recognised as an asset in the Statement of Financial
Position unless the Group acguires the economic risks and rewards of ownership. Where such assets are recognised, the
Group recognises a corresponding financial liability.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurment. Financial
assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or if either the
Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset are transferred to another party. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at the trade
date. Finoncial iabilities are derecognised when the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged
or cancelled.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances that are repayable on demand and are integral to the Group's cash
management, including any overdrawn balances, and deposits held at call with banks with less than 90 days’ maturity
from date of ccquisition. As at 31 December 2022, the total balance in overdraft was £nil (2027: £nil).
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

12, Financial assets and financial liahilities continued

2022 202"
Fairvalue Fair value
through profit Amortised through profit Armortised
and loss cost and loss cost
£m £m Em £m
Financial assets
Financial investments
Debt securities
- Government bonas 13119 - 17965 -
- Corporate bonds 15,07 - 18,627 -
- Private investments 6,557 - 2.021 -
MBS and ABS 259 - 328 -
Equity release mortgages 1,013 - 1,082
Deposits with credit institutions 901 - 824 -
Participation in investrment schemes 4,031 - 3,296 -
Total financial investments 40,951 - 51143 -
Derivative assets 22,451 - 15,018 -
Loans and recevabies and other financial assets
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operaticns - 126 - 6
Other debtors - 81 - 22
Accrued interest - 267 - 256
Total receivables and other financial assets - 474 - 284
Cash and cash eguivaients - 201 - 199
Total financial assets 63,402 675 66161 483
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities 25,348 - 16,997 -
Insurance ana other payables - 45 - 47
Borrowings - 1,592 - 1,590
Accruals - 153 - 122
Tota! financial liabilities 25,348 1,790 16,997 1,759
Amounts aue to be received after more than one year in the above table are os follows:
2022 202
Em £mr
Financial assets designated as fair value throush profit or loss 58,183 61,586

Allamounts relating to insurance and other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

Deposits with credit institutions

Deposits with credit institutions include £22 million (2021: £22 mrillion) in two bank accounts operated by PIC which are
designatea fee collateral bank accounts. These accounts were established unaer deeds of charge aated 9 July 2012

and 11 Secember 2012 between PIC and MUncherer Ruckversicherungsgesellschaft {"Monich Re”) In respect of longavity
rensurance agreenents. The amount aeposited in each account represents a proportion of PIC's lability for the payment
of “ees due over the Iife of eac~ agreement {"fee collateral amount”] ana 1s subject to annoal review by each narty.

PIC retains control of the cash deposited in these accounts; hawever, it must maintain a balance ot least equal to the adreea

fee collateral amount and Munich Re has ¢ fixea first charge over the accounts, which gives 1t the right to withdraw an amount
eauivalent to its outstanding fees aue under the agreement, on the occurrence of certain specified default events.
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Assets pledged as collateral

Derivatives and lending arrangements

As exploined in Note 13, the Group uses derivative financial instruments as part of its risk management strategy. Most over the
counter derivative transactions reauire collateral to be received or pledged by the Group or its counterparty to mitigate the
counterparty credit risk. The Group has collateral agreements with each counterparty based on standard ISDA master
netting agreements, which specify minimum thresholds, asset class and craedit quality of collateral and the frequency of
valuation. While each party to the contract has o legal right to the collateral received if the counterparty does not meet its
obligations, there is no right or intention to settle on a net basis and, therefore, these agreements do not meet the criteria for
offsetting under |AS 32.

The Group returns/receives the collateral received/pledged upon contract termination or settlement. The amount of
collateral received/pledged fluctuates due to the changdes in fair value of the derivative subject to the minimum thresholds.

The Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership in respect of financial assets which have been pledged
as security under the terms of derivative contracts and consequently none of these assets have been derecognised in the
financial statements. The Group also does not acguire substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership in respect of the
transferred assets received as collateral and consequently none of the assets are recognised in the financial statements.

Under securities lending arrangements, the Group lends/borrows an adread debt security to a counterparty and receives/
pledges collateral in the form of eligible, investment grade debt securities as o security against potential counterparty default.
In all cases, the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership in respect of the transferred assets and
conseguently none of these assets have been derecognised in the financial statements. The Group is aiso not exposed to the
risks and rewards of cwnership of any assets received and, consegucently, none of these assets have been recognised in the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group pledged assets of £9,388 million (2021: £4,224 million) and received £5,041 million
{2021: £1,854 miltion) in debt securities and cash as collateral None of the collateral held was repledged (2021: £nil million).

Buy-ins

In 2014, PIC concluded ¢ pension insurance buy-in transaction to underwrite approximately £1.6 billion of pension liabilities.
Under the terms of the agreement, a security structure was put in place which required PIC to transfer legal title to certain
assets back to the Trustee as collateral against PIC defauit.

Under the terms of the security, the Trustee is free 1o use the assets without constraint; however, it is obliged to deliver
cquivalent assets ([defined as “on asset of the same type, nominal value, descripticn and amount”), as well as the income
earned and gains or losses incurred on these assets to PIC. PIC retains the right to replace any of the assots with assets
of similar nature.

Collgteralis returned to PIC as it services the insured pension liabilities under the policy. This, in theory, exposes PIC to
counterparty credit risk, which is, however, fully mitigated as PIC has a contractual right to offset its obligation to pay under
the policy in the event of default by the Trustee. PIC retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershipin respect
of the transferred assets and accordingly PIC continues to recognise the assets which it has pledged under title transfer
security in its financial staterments. At 31 December 2022, this totalled £1.1 killion {20271: £1.6 billion).

Reinsurance

In 2022, the Group has £507 million of financial assets which have been pledged as collateral under the terms of certain
reinsurance contracts (2021 £795 million}). At 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged cash of £27 million (2021: £371 million)
as collateral under the terms of certain reinsurance contracts. The Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership in respect of the transferred assets and consequertly none of these assets have been derecognised in the
financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

12. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only

when thare s an unconditicnal and a legally enforceable nght to offset the recognised amounts ir all circumstances and
there is an Intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise tne asset and settle the liability simultanaously. Realisation of a
finrancial gsset and settlement of a financial hability are treated as simultanaous only when the settlements are executed
at the same time, or within a single settlement process or cycle, resulting in no or insignificant credit and liguidity risk.

The Group has ne financial assets and financial ligbilities that have been offset in the Statement of Financial Position as at
31 Decembar 2022 {2021 £nil).
The table below contains disclosures related to financial assets and financiai liabilities that are subject to enforceabie master

netting arrangements or similar agreements ds reguired by IFRS 7. Securities lending arrangements do not result in the
derecognition/recognition of assets exchanged and are not includea in the tables below.

Related amaunts not offsetin the

Gross Netamounts . . .
amounts of as recognised Statement of Financial Position
recognised Amounts inthe Financial cash
financial offsetin Statementof  instruments collateral Derivative
assets/ accordonce Financial {received)/ {received)/ (liabilities)/ Net
{liabilities) withlAS 32 Position piedged® pledged” assets amount
31December 2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivatives 22,451 - 22,451 (732) (509) (19,574) 1,636
Financial ligbilities
Derivatives {25,348) - {25,348) 189 4,934 19,574 (651)
G ‘ Related cmounts not offset in the
ross Net amounts
5 Statement of Financ.ol Position
amaunts af as recagnised
recognised AMmounts inthe Financial Cash
fincncial offsetin  Statement of instruments collatera: Dervative
assets/ accordance Financial {receved)/ (received)/ (lapiities)/ Net
{laoilities) with IAS 32 Position piedged” pledged” assets amount
31 Decernber 2021 £Em £m £m £m £rm Em Em
Financial assets
Derivatives 15,018 - 15,018 (431 {657} (14106) (176}
Financial ligbilities
Derivatives (16,997) - (16597) 3,453 - 14706 562

Not al. collateral receved/pledged s recognised in the Statement of Financiai Position. See the Dernvatives section of this note for
further infermation.

Measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The Group's financial assets and liobilities have been valued using the following methods in accoraance with 1AS 39
"Einancial instruments”

The fair values of investments guotea in an active market are based on their bid market prices. For unlistea securities and

all cther financial assets for whicn there 1s no active market, the Group establisres farr value using appropriate valuation
technigues. Thase includic the use of recent arm’s tength transactions, reference tc other Instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, counterparty and broker valuations, ana option pricing models. These assessments
are basea largely on observable market data.
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The specific valuation technigues used for the main classifications of financial assets and liabilities cre:

(a) Investments in debt securities

The fair value of debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting date. Instruments quoted
on o recognised stock exchande are generally considered to be Level 1 and instrurnents priced based on recent broker
quotations and afternative pricing sources in reasonahly fransporent markate ara gonorally considarced te be Lovel 2.

Fair values for debt securities, where quoted prices from third parties are not available, are estimated as the present

value of future cash flows, discounted at risk-free rate plus a spread based on comparable quoted bonds, adjusted, where
applicable, for illiquidity and idiosyncratic risk. These include infrastructure loans, income strips and other private investment
loans in respect of capital projects. Where unobservable inputs do not significantly impact the fair value, these are classified
as Level 2 within the fairr value hierarchy. Otherwise, they are classified as Level 3.

The credit spreads used to derive the discount rates for the private investments portfolio ranged from 0.0% to 6.4%
(2021: 0.2% t0 5.7%).

(b} MBS and ABS

The fair value of mertgage backed and other asset backed securities is determined by reference to their quoted market price.
Due to the types of markets in which these instruments are traded, such instruments are usually classified as Level 2 within
the fair value hierarchy.

Included within MBS and ABS investments are credit linked notes, which are classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of these notes is determined using a discounted cash flow moedel taking into account the cash
flows, the capital structure and risk profile of each note and avallable market date such as recently traded prices for
comparable notes.

(c) Equity release mortgages

ERMs are loans secured against property that are repayable on death or entry into long-term care of the borrower. The fair
value of ERM assets is determined using ¢ mark-to-model cpproach based on discounting projected future cash ftow arising
from the toans. In addition to market observable inputs {such as interest and inflation rates), key inputs to the model also
include assumptions relating to property price growth and volatility, equivalent spread, mortality, morbidity and early
repayment rates, which are not market cbservable. Due to the significant estimation uncertainty involved in deriving the
values, the ERMs are classified as Level 3 assets within the fair value hierarchy. Principal assumptions underlying the valugtion
of ERM assets are set out below and sensitivities of the valuations to changes in the key unabservable inputs are disclesed on
oage 144,

+ The loan-by-loan equivalent spread is solved at the point of each loan’s inception to equate the present value of the
expected cash flows to its foce value. Subseguently each loan’s equivalent spread s updated in line with changes in the
spread of areference corporate bond index.

s Projected property values reflect future property growth in line with the Retail Price Index and property volatility of 15%
(2021: 15%). These assumptions affect whether the No Negative Equity Guarantees ("NNEG") bite, which restrict the amount
recoverable by the Group on repayment of the mortgage to the net sale proceeds of the property.

s Early repayment rates are assumed to be between 2% and 6.5% p.a. (2021: 0.5% and $%) depending on the projection term,
and the loan’s term since inception,

« Mortality assumptions are derived using the Continuous Mortality Investigation (*CMI”) 2021 mortality improvements
(2021 CTMI_20719 rrortality improvements) and ¢ multiple of the PXA16 mortality tables (2021 PXA08 mortality tables).

s The valuction medel allows for dilapidotion and sales costs, both of which are set as o combined assumption of 12%
(2021 12%) of the value of the property ot the point of sale.

(d) Deposits with credit institutions

The fair value of deposits held with credit institutions represents their cash value in current terms. All deposits are short
term and consecuently no discaunting adjustment has been made at the year end. Deposits with credit institutions are
classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

(e} Participation in investment schemes
Investment schemes are valved based on fund manager statements and classified os either Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3
depending on the classification of the underlying asset.

Participation in investment schemes includes an investment in a retirement living joint venture with a carrying value of £22 million
at 31 December 2022 {2021: £nil). The investment is categorised as a joint venture as, whilst the Group has a majority stake, the
key relevant activities that influence returns require unanimaous consent of the joint partners. Both partners also have significant
variable returns and are acting as principal in ther decision making. The investment has been classified within fingncial
investments on the basis that itis munuged ul Tui value as part of the toroup's portfolio of financial investments.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

12. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued

The fair value of the joint venture is based on the underlying fair value of the retirerment living property assets and, due to

unobservable inputs, 1t is classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Measurement of fair value

The following table analyses the Group’s financial investrrents according to the basis of measurement required by IFRS 13

“Fair Value Measurement™

Levell Level 2 Level3 Total
31 December 2022 £m £m £m £m
Delbt securities
- Government bonds 9,391 3,728 - 13119
- Corporate bonds - 15,024 a7 15,071
— Private investments - 3,080 3,477 6,557
MBS and ABS - 259 - 259
Equity relecse maortgages - - 1,013 013
Deposits with credit institutions 90 - - 901
Participation in investrment schames 1,953 1,441 637 4,031
Financial investments 12,245 23,532 5174 40,951
Derivative assets - 22,451 - 22,451
Financial assets 12,245 45,983 5,174 63,402
Derivative ligbilities - (25,348) - (25,348)

Levei _evet 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2021 £m Em £m £m
Debt secunties
- Government bonds 10,772 7193 - 17965
- Corporate bonds - 18,543 84 18,627
- Private investments - 2,698 6,323 5021
MBS cnd ABS - 328 - 328
Equity release mortgoges - - 1082 1,082
Deposits with credit institutions 824 - - 824
Participation in investment schemes 1,614 9G2 590 3,296
Finagncial investments 13,210 29,754 8179 51143
Derivative assets - 15,018 - 15,018
Financial assets 13,210 44,772 8179 66161
Derivative liabilities - (16,997) - (16997)

Level 1 assets are those assets for which the fair value has been measured Jsing aucted prices, without adjustment, inan

active markat.

Lavel 2 assets are those assets for which the fair value has been measurad using observable inputs other than auoted prices

included in Level 1.

Level 3 assets are those assets for which no observable gata exists inrelation to a significant element of the fair

value measurement.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

For recurring fair value measurements, the Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels
at the end of the year in wrich the event or change ir circumstances that caused the transfer nas occurred

Transfers between Level 2 and Level 3

During the year, £171 million of financial investrments were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 (2027 £92 million) and £1,616 milion
of fincncial mvestreents weare transferred out of Lavel 3 t¢ _evel 2 12027 £384 rmillion)

Trensfers into and out of Level 3 relote to debt securities which are valued using aiscounted cash flow maodels, wWithin the
model, interest rate, inflation rate ana creait risk assarrptions are denved from market cata with cajustrrents appled to
ensJre they are relevant to the debt securities hela by the Group. Where the impact of the adjustments on the value of the
debt securities become significant, these securities are classified as Level 3 ana transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 at the end
of the year. Conversely, where the impact becames less significant, the securities are classifliea as Level 2 and transferred out

of Level 3o Level 2,
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Movements relating to Level 3 assets during the reporting period are analysed as follows:
Participation
Deht ininvestment
securities ERM schemes Total
31 December 2022 £Em £€m £m £m T,
1
Opening balance 6,407 1,082 690 8,179 o
Unreclised gains or losses (1,860) {345) ] (2,199)
Acguisitions in year a62 276 az m Q
Transfers into Level 3 171 - - 171 3
Transfers out of Level 3 (1,583) - (33) (1,616) g
Disposals in year (73) - {59) (132) T
Closing balance 3,524 1,013 637 5174 g]
3
=
Participation %
Dalbt ininvestment g
securittas ERM schemaeas Total
31 December 2021 £m £m £m £m
Opening balance 5,754 534 463 6,751 .
~J
[N
Unredlised gains or losses (256) (13) {77} (346) b
Acguisitions in year 1,338 561 304 2,203 ~
Transfers into Level 3 92 - - 92
Transtfers out of Level 3 (384) - - (384) n
Disposals in year 137) - - (137} 2
3
Closing balance 6,407 1,082 690 8179 g.
The investment return within the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes the following income and investment gains §
and losses relating to Level 3 assets: o
2
C 3
Participation o
Debt in investment
securities ERM schemes Total
2022 £m £m £€m Em
Investment income 94 87 26 207 T
Realised gains or losses a {78} 47 27) ‘?"
Unreclised gains or losses (1,860) (345) 1) {2,199) @
s
Investment return on Level 3 assets {1,762) (336) 79 {2,019)
Participation
Debt in Investment
securities ERM schemes Total
20 £m £m £m £rm
Investment income g3 46 - 139
Redlised pains or losses 1 (62) 105 44
Unrealised gains or losses 1256) (13} (77) {346)
Investment return on Level 3 assets 162) (29) 28 1163)

As aiscussed previousty, the valuations of financial assets classified as Level 3 are, under certain circumstances,
measured using voluation technigues that Incorporate assumptions based on uncbservable inputs which cannot
be evidenced by readity avallable market information.

143
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12. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued

The following table shows the effect on the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments from changes in unobservable

iNnput assumpilons.

Current Changein Changein

fair value fair value fair value

31December 2022 Sensitivity £m £m £m
Debt securities +/- 100 bps credit spread 3,524 (500} 637
ERM +/- 100 bps credit spread 1,013 {103) 18
+/-5% change in mortality assumption - 4 (4)

+/-20% change in property prices - 1 (20)

+/- 1% chonge in property growth assumption - 10 {14)

+/-10% change in voluntary redemption assumiption - 6 (6)

Participaticn in investment schemes +/-10% change in valuation assumptions 637 64 (64)
5174 (508) 647

Current Changein Changein

fair value farr value fair value

31 Decembear 2021 Sensitivity £m [alz a8 £m
Debt securities +/- 100 bps credit spread 6,407 (1.067) 1,405
ERM +/- 100 bps credit spreca 1,082 (11 79
+/-5% change in mortality assumption - - -

+/-20% change in property prices 27 {50)

+/- 1% change in property growth assumption - 4 (8}

+/-10% change in voluntary redemption assumption - - m

Participation in investment schemes +/-10% change in valuation assumptions 690 69 {69)
8179 {1,078) 1,356

13. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are inttially recognised at foir value on the dote on which a aerivative contract 1s entered into and are

subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts, futures ana swaps

are based on market prices, where available. For swaps, market prices are calculated using discounted cash flaw

techniques basca on adjusted market data such as composite curves derived from a number of market counterparties.
Whilst derivative contracts may not be readily tradeable, the valuations are based on market observable INputs and
have consequently been classified as Level 2 assets within tne farr value hierarchy.

All derivatives are carriea as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair vaiue is negative. Net
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative financiol instruments are recognised immediately
in *he Statement of Comprehensive Income within the heading investrmeant return.

The Group enters into a number of inflation rate and interest rate swap agreements during the ordinary course of businass

as part of its nsk management strategy 10 hedge its solvency position cgainst changes in interest rates and inflation Currency
swaps and forwerd contracts are entered into to eliminate the majority of the currency risk on financial assets invested in
non-sterling-basea asbt securities where liabilities are dencminated in sterling.

31 December 2022

3" Decemuper 2021

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabl ties

£m £m £ £m

Interest rate swaps 18,485 (19,388) 1906 (13,640)
Inflation swaps 3,329 {2,357} 2,026 {1,800)
Credit default swaps 12 (15) 14 (30)
Currency swaps 522 {3,339) 955 {1,509}
Faoreign exchange forward contracts 36 (13) 12 17)
Total return swaps 67 (236) 101 {1)
Total derivative position 22,451 (25,348) 15,013 (16,997)
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14, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes, and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates ruling at the

datc the timing difference is exipected to rowvorso. k2
1
~J
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they are regarded as recoverable, that is to the extent thaot, -
on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that sufficient future taxable profits will
be ovalable against which the asset can be utilised. a
s}
At 31 December 2022, the Group's deferred tax balances calculated in accordance with IAS12 “Income Taxes” were 8
as follows: ]
@
Q
Asset Liability Total 2
£m £m £€m o]
]
31December 2022 g
Timing differences 5 - 5 a
31 December 2021
Timing differences 4 M 3
g
The movement in the deferred tax balance during the year was as follows: ™
3
2022 2021
£m £m
At beginning of vear 3 1
Change In net deferred tax asset due to temporary timing differences 2 2
At end of year 5 3

A net deferred tax asset of £5 million (2021: £3 million) has been recognised primarily in respect of temporary timing
differences on equity settled share-based payments.

jut
3
a
3
a,
Q
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b
a
a
@
3
@
3
2
wn

Following the January 2013 change in the taxation regime for insurance companies, the benefit of the differences between
IFRS retained earnings and taxable profits as at 31 December 2012 reversed over o period of ten years. Consequently, ten
yecars later, the Group no longer has a deferred tax liability at 31 December 2022 (2021 £1 millicn) as there is no longer @ timing
difference (2021: £4 million).

The Group has £nit other timing differences or tax losses carried forward as af 31 December 2022 (2027: £nil) which may
give rise to reduced tax charges in future periods.

&sL-8L1d

The corporation tax rate will increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023, as per the Finance Act 2021. The Group has
considered when the timing differences are expected to reverse and used the gopropriate tax rate In calculating the
cdeferred tax.
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15. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities

Contract classification

IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts” reguires policyholder contracts written by insurers to be classified as either insurance
contracts or investment contracts depending on the level of insurance risk transferred. Insurance controcts are defined
as those confrocts containing significant 'nsurance nskof, and only if, annsured event could cause an insurer to make
significant additional payments in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance, at the iInception
of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance contracts untl all nghts and obligations are extinguished or exgire.

Policyholder contracts which do not transfer significant insurance risk to the insurer are classified as investment contracts.
The Group has cltassified all its polcyholder contracts as insurance cantracts and does not unbundle and separately
account for any investment components of these contracts.

Insurance liabilities

Insurance llabilities are determined by the Group's internal actuarial department, Using recognised actuarial methods and
assumptions approved by the Directors. The liabilities are calculated using assumptions which are denerally eguivalent to
those used for reporting under Solvency |l but with the addition of prucent margins in somre instances and an alternative
methodology for the discount rate. The liabilities are then agjusted to remove certain items which are not reauired to be
recognised as insurance lakilities under IFRS 4.

Insurance liabilities comprise the present value of future annuity poyments to current policyholders, increased to take
due account of investment expenses and future administration costs associatea with the maintenance of the in-force
business. Estimates of future chligations to policyholders allow for the impact of mortaiity in line with the bases set
out below. These bases have been derived having regard 1o recent UK general population mortdiity expenence, the
demogdraphic profile of the Group’s in-farce business and the Group's own internal mortality experience, and include
an allowance for improvements in longevity In the future

The interest rate used for discounting future claims payments and the associated expenses is derived from the yield
on the assets held to back those habilities and includes an allowance for risks, including credit risk, associated with holding
these assets.

Premioms

Premiums are received in consideration for completing an insurance policy with the trustecs of the pension scheme. They
are recognised and valued on the day risk is accepted. Any adjustments to premiums following work performed during
the transition of a scheme are recognised and vaiued ct the date they become payable or receivable by the Group.

No taxes or duties are payable on premiums

Claims

Claims and benefits payable consist of regular annuities paid to policyholders, pension scherme members and
beneficiaries, and surrengers which consist of full settlements of transfers out and partial settlement of tax-free cash
components of pension benefits. Annuities and surrenders are recognisea when due for payment. Death claims are
accounted for when notified, at which time the policy ceases to be included within the calculation of the insurance
contract liabilities. If the terms of the policy enable a spouse or dependant to receive a benefit, then the policy record
will reflect this tc ensure the continuing spouse benefits are paid.

Prepdayments
Prepayments include annuity payments made to pension schemes in advance of the Statement of Financial Position aate

to ensure settlement of the following month's annuity payments to policyholders on a timely basis.

The Group’s ilabilities in relation to future policyholaers” benefits are:

2022 2021
£m £rm
Future policyholders’ benefits
Gross 33,029 47,013
Reinsurance {1,199} {3,350
Net 31,830 43663

The reinsured llakitities include labilities ceded unaer longevity reinsurance contracts with external counterparties ana
immedicte and ceferrea annuity payments ceded unaer external quota share arrangements,
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(a) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The Group's insurance liabilities represent contracts that provide immedicte annuities for current pensioners and deferred
annuities for members who are not yet drawing pensions. Annuities in deferment and in payment can be level, subject to
fixed increases or increases linked to inflation or o mixture of the three, and in many cases are also subject to defined caps
and floors on the incraases that can be applied. The insurance liakiiities also include member options, such as the option
to commute part of the pension tor o tax-free cash lump sum on vesting, and annuifies payable 1o spouses or other
dependants on the death of the main member.

The Group's insurance contracts are o mixture of “buy-in” policies, where the policyholder is the pension scheme and the
insured ligbilities cover defined benefits within the scheme, and “buyout” policies, where the policyholder is an individual.

Insurance liabilities are calculated as the present value of future annuity payments and expenses. The principal assumptions
used in the calcuiation are set out below.

(b) Principal assumptions used in the preparation of insurance liabilities

Mortality assumptions

The base mortality assumptions as at 31 Decembrer 2022 inherent in the projected cash flows used in the valuation of
insurance cantract fiabilities are set with reference to the $S3 series mortality tables published by the CMI, a research body
with strong links to the Institute and Focuity of Actuaries in the UK.

Adjustments are applied to these according to a number of factors including, but not limited to, an individual’s sex, age,
pension amount, occupation and place of residence.

The assumption for future improvements to mortality is medelled using the CMI_2021 model (2021: CMI_2G19 model).

Mortality improvements tables for rolling up mortality rates to the valuation date, and for projecting future mortality rates,
weere updated in 2022, No changes were made to the base rmortality tables.

Valuation rate of interest ("VRI")

The VRlis derived from the yield on the assets held to back insurance contract liabilities and includes an allowance for risks, including
credit risk, associated with holding these assets which are not reflective of risks in the liabilities. The risk adjustment is applied via g
fixed basis points default allowance by asset, based on histeric levels of default and downgrade with prudent margins.

The rate calculated Inaccordance with these adjustments as at 31 December 2022 was 5.08% for both index-linked liabilities
and non-linked liabilities (2021: 1.77% combined rate}.

inflation

The assumption for expected future Retail Price Index ("RPI") inflation is based on a curve derived from the market prices

of inflation-tinked swap contracts. The Consumer Price Index (“CPI") inflation assumption is alse derived from this curve but
additionally allows for the expectad gap ("wedge”) between CPIlinflation and RPI inflation. For Limited Price Index ("LPI") linked
annuities, which are subject to maximum and minimum percentage annual increases, a mark-to-model approach is used

to allow for the inherent aptiondlity, as there is currently no deep and llquid market in appropricte swap contracts. Around
three quarters of our gross benefit payments are linked to inflation, of which the substantial majority have a cap or floor

on Indexation.

Expenses

The internal costs of maintaining the existing insurance contracts, the fees paycable to third party administrators engaged

to manage payments due under the in-force policies, fees due to reinsurers and investment manadement expenses are
factored into the calculation of ligbilities by adding appropriate cllowances, ond include an estimate of the impact of future
inflation where this is applicable. No allowances are included for expenses incurred in relation 1o the generation of new business.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

15, Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities continued

(c) Movements

The following table analyses the movement between the net insurance liabilities at the beginning and the end of the year into
its major components, The main reascns for the decrease are the chonges in underlying economic assumptions, particularly
due to higher interest rates, which more than offset the impact of new business written in the year.

Gross  Reinsurance Net
2022 £m £m Em
At beginning of year 47,013 {3,350) 43,663
increase in liability from new business 4,343 - 4,343
Impact of reinsurance entered into in the year - {93) (93)
Reduction in liability from claims (1.979) 87 {1,892)
Impact of investment volatility (16,734) 1,834 {14,900)
Changes in valugtion gssumptions (326) 315 (11)
Other movements 12 8 720
At end of year 33,029 {1,199) 31,830

Gross  Remsurgnce Net
2021 £m Em £m
At beginning of year 44,835 (2,773) 42,062
Increase in ligbility from new business 5,088 - 5,088
Impact of reinsurance entered into in the year - {998) (998)
Reduction in liability from clairms {1,886) 3 (1,773)
Impact of iInvestment volatility (257 200 (51
Changes in valuation gssumptions (410) 48 {362)
Other movements {363) &0 (303)
At end of year 47,013 (3.350) 43,663

The movements during the year relating to economic ana non-economic assumptions, gs shown in the above table, comprise
the following items:

Impact of investment volatility
Valuation interest rates and prolectea cosh flows are affected by the moverment in long-term interest rates, inflation
expectations and credit spreads.

The main drivers of the movements are higher interest rates ana the widening of credit spreads which reduced net liabilitics,
partly offset by higher inflation which increased net liabilities.

Changes in valuation assumptions
The movements during the year relating to valuation assumptions comprise the following items:

Longevity assumptions were updated to reflect the Iatest version of the CMI projections modet {CMI_2021) which generated
a release of reserves. The impact of Covig-19 has been removed from the derivation of current mortality rates.

Maintenconce expense assumptions were upaated to reflect current buagets and business volumes, leading to an overall
small increcse 1N reserves.

s The gliowance for the cost of LPI-linked obligations was updated following an in-depth review, leacing tc an overall
Increase in reserveas,

» The approach to medelling pension revaluation increases was alsc ypaated during the year, leading to a release
of reserves.

s Cash commutation assumptions were updctea following a review of the assumptions in ight of chaonges in economic
conditions, generating a release of reserves.

+ Afl other assumptions were reviewed and upaatea where necessary to reflect current operating conaitions.
Other movements
Other movements primarily comprise the vnwind of the valuation rate of interest (increasing reserves) anc the reduction in

reserves from expected expenses and fees, all partially offset by the impact of asset tracing ana transfers (recucing resarves
via an increase to the yield on assets backing reserves) and minor one-off data and other changes that recuced reserves.
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(d) Anaiysis of expected maturity of gross and net insurance contract liabilities

The table below indicates the net insurance contract liabilities analysed by duration, showing the discounted values of the

policy cash flows estimated to arise during each period.

Jodsey DIEeieas

Within In In Over -
1year 1-Syears 5-15 years 15years Total T
£m Em £m Em Em ~
Deferred annuities
Gross 89 794 2,058 3,661 6,602
Reinsurance (11 (59) (204) {607) (881) g
As at 31 December 2022 78 735 1,854 3,054 5,721 g
a
o
Annuities in payment g)
Gross 1,887 6,585 11,043 6,912 26,427 (‘g
Reinsurance 63 187 - (568) {318) S
o
As at 31 December 2022 1,950 6,772 11,043 6,344 26,109 3
o
Within In al Over
1year 1-5years 5-15 years 15 yaars Total o
Em £m Em £m £m ;,4
|
Deferred annuities 3
Gross 93 793 2,447 7.344 10,677
Reinsurance 17} {89) {333) {1.658) (2,097)
As at 31 December 2021 76 704 214 5,686 8,580 %1
g
0,
Annuities in payment =}
Gross 1,773 6,768 14196 13,599 36,336 E
Reinsurance 54 159 (136) (1.330) (1,253} z
As at 31 December 2021 1,827 6,927 14,060 12,269 35,083 %
=
w

(e) Sensitivity analysis

In accordance with IFRS 4 and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, the Directors have considered the effect on
profits and equity at 21 December 2022 resulting from changes in o number of key assumptions. The effect of each of the
assumption changes is considered inisclation on the basis that all other key assumptions remain unaltered. The net impact

of this sensitivity analysis on financial nstruments and insurance contract liabilities 1s set outin the table below.

2022 2021

Post-tox Post-tax

Pre-tax change in Pre-tax change in

change in profitand chande in profit and

profit equity orofit equity

31 December £m Em £m Em
100 bps increase in interest rates {53) (43) 100 81
100 bps decrease in interest rates {35) (28) (369) (299)
50 hps increase in inflation 27 22 (227) 184)
50 bps decrease in inflation 31 25 3 260
Base mortality {72) (59) 193) (157}
Mortality improvements (31) (25) (98) (80)
Renewdal expenses (125) {102) {16%) (137)
Exchange rates 2 1 (10} (8)
Credit spreads increase of 100 bps (192) (155) 13 1
House price index increase of 10% 2 2 n/a n/Q

The movement in the sensitivities compared to the prior year prirnarily reflects the much higher interest rates as at

31 December 2022 compared to 31 December 2021, as well as other econamic conditions and the different osset portfolios.
In particular, the interest rate and inflation sensitivities are the net result of significant and broodly offsetting movemeants in
lichilities, assets backing liabilities and surplus assets. PIC hedges the Solvency I position rather than the IFRS result, so the

positioning of the hedaging pertfolio at a given point-in-time can lead to consequential volatility in the IFRS result.
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15. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities continued
The base mortality sensitivity is based on a 5% reduction in the base mortality rates This is equivalent to a 0.4 year increase
in life expectancy from 22.7 years to 23.1 years for a typical male aged 65.

The mortality improvements sensitivity is based on a 0.1% increase in annual mortality improvement rates. This is equivalent
to a 0.2 year increase in life expectancy from 22.7 years to 22.9 years for a typical male aged 65.

The expense sensitivity is based on an increase in annual maintenance expenses (including thira party administration costs) of 15%.

The exchange rate sensitivity is based on the weakening of the US dollar and Eure adainst sterling by 1%. The impact on assets
and liabilities is broadly linear to further weckening of the exchange rates.

The sensitivities to credit spreads and the house price index as at 31 December 2022 are broaaly symmetric to the equivalent
decrease in credit spreads and the house price index.

The key assumptions, methodclogy ana limitations of the sensitivity analysis are as follows:

*» The effects of the specified changes in factors are determined based on the year end financial instrument values. The
level of movements in market factors on which the sensitivity analyses are based were determined based on economic
forecasts and historical experience of vaniations in these factors. The sensitivity analysis is based on the risks to which the
Group is exposed at the end of the reporting period, and reflects the changes in relevant risk variables that are reasonably
possible at this date and over the next reporting period. The sensitivities used are basea oround the core assumptions in
the financial statements rather than considering more extreme scenarics.

» Each entry in the sensitivity table demonstrates the effect of a change in a single key assumption while other assumptions
remain unchanged. However, the cccurrence of o change in a single market factor will often lead to changes in other
market factors. In particular, the Group's use of derivatives is designed to ensure that its exposure to interest and inflation
risks is carefully managed.
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(f) Reinsurance results
Amaounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts covered under each of the
in-force reinsurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of ecch reinsurance contract.

All reinsurance entered into by the Group is with external counterparties.

LZ-1d

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts are recognised os reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, together with longer-term receivables thaot are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.

The Group has two types of quota share reinsurance arrangements. The first type are quota share agreements

with external reinsurers covering all policyholder benefit payments for u proportion of the business reinsured. This
proportion varies hetween 50% and 100% for certain discrete blocks of business. The second type is a tail-risk quota
share arrangement with an external reinsurer under which 100% of alt benefit payments ofter a fixed period (sukject
to certain treaty-specific limits) are covered in return for an initial single premium.

The Group has also entered into a number of longevity reinsurance contracts with external reinsurers under which it has
committed to pay the reinsurer a schedule of fixed payments in respect of expected claims relating to defined tranches of
nolicyhclder benefits and in return the reinsurer undertakes to reimburse the actuat cost of claims on those tranches to the
Group. Separately, there is also a reinsurance fee on each of these controcts for which the Greoup is liable. Settlement of
the contract is on a net basis. The amounts receivable from or payable to reinsurers are recognised within Reinsurers’
share of insurance liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

20UDUIBACE 83010dI07)

Lll-Zid

Premiums payable for reinsurance ceded are recognised in the pericd in which the benefit of the reinsurance treaty is
recognised within insurance contract liabilities.

Premiums payable under quota share reinsurance contracts are recognised ot the inception of each reinsurance contract.
In cases where the amount of premiums due to the reinsurer has not been finalised at the end of a reporting period, an
estimate is made in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Subseguent adjustments to the premium
payable are accounted for in the period in which the adjustment arises.

Fees paid in respect of certain longevity reinsurance contracts which are contingent on surplus levels under the histerical
solvency regime are recognisad as incurred and are included under ocutward reinsurance premiums.
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Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same pericd as the related claim is incurred.

The Group impairs its reinsurance assets if there is objective evidence, as o result of an event that occurred after initial
recognition of the reinsurance asset, that not all amounts due to it under the terms of the contract will be received and
the impact of the event on the amount to be received from the reinsurer can be reliably measured. Animpairmeant loss
is recognised for the amount by which the reinsurance asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amaunt.

691L-gLId

The effect of reinsurance contracts entered into by the Group on profit befare taxation is as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m

Cutward reinsurance premiums (74) (846)
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 38 59
Changes in reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities (2,151} 577
Net effect of reinsurance contracts on profit before taxation (2187) (210)

The reinsurers’ share of insurance tiabilities decreased during the yaear, mainly due to changes in underlying economic
assumptions, particularly due to higher interest rates. Reinsurance premiums decreased because there were no contracts
entered into during the year that required premiums to be paid upfront.
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16. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially ot fair value, which is the cash consideration received net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings classified as licbilities are subsequently stated ot amaortisea cost. The difference between the net groceeds
and the redemption value is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the borrowing period using the
effective interest method.

2022 2021
Carrying carrying

valuve Fair value value Fair value
Loar nctes £m Em £m £m
E£300m notes maturing 2024 299 299 298 333
£250m notes maturing 2026 249 259 249 317
£350m notes maturing 2030 348 316 347 418
E300m notes maturing 2031 299 25 299 332
£400m notes maturing 2032 397 302 397 410
Total 1,592 1,427 1,590 1,810

On 3 July 2014, the Group’s main subsidiary entity, PIC, issued £300 milllon subordinated loan notes due 2024 with a fixed
coupon of 6.5% paid annually in arredrs. The notes were issyed ot 99.107% of par.

On 23 Novermber 2016, PIC issued a further tranche of £250 million subordinated loan notes due 2026 with o fixed coupan
of 8.0% paid annually in arrears. These notes were issued at $8.916% of par.

On 20 September 2018, PIC 1ssued @ further tranche of £350 million subordinated loan notes due 2030 with a fixed coupon
of 5.625% paid annudlly In arrears. These notes were issued at 99.693% of par.

On 7 May 2020, PIC issued a further tranche of £300 millicn subordinated loan notes due 2031 with o fixed coupon of 4 625%
paid annually in arrears. These notes were issuad at 99.554% of par.

QOn 21 October 2020, PIC issued a further tranche of £400 million subordinated loan notes due 2032 with a fixed coupon
of 3.625% paid annually in arrears. These notes were issued at 99.129% of par.

All notes represent direct, Unsecured and subordinated obligations of PIC, and are classified as guclifying dated Tier 2
securities for the purposes of regulatory capital requirements. The notes are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The fair value is the guoted price of the loan notes. The loan notes have been classified as Level 2 in the fair valye hierarchy
Finance costs mainly comprise of the interest expense on borrowings, which is calculated using the effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, transaction and mterest expenses of £90 million (2021: £89 million) were recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the notes

152 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited | Annual Report and Accounts 2022



17. Risk management
As a provider of insurance solutions to defined benefit pension schemes, the Group's business involves the acceptance
and management of risk to achieve its strategic objectives.

The principal risk factors which affect the Group’s operating results and financial condition include financial risks such as
sclvency (market risk, crodil risk und insurance risk) and liquidity risk, and ofher rigke such as operational risk, regulatary risk,
conduct risk and strategdic risk (including reputational risk).

Insurance risk is implicit in the Group’s business and mainly arises from exposure to longevity in respect of annuity payments.
Reinsurance is recegnised as a key tool in manading this risk to an appropriate level.

Regulatory risk stems principally frem the risk of changes to the regulatory environment in which PIC operates. The main
reputational risks relate to the need to maintain o good reputation with trustees of pension schemes and their advisers in
order to attract new business and with its own policyholders through treating them fairly and delivering good customer
outcomes. Maintaining a good internat culture is recognised as G kay tool in mitigating these risks.

The Directers have overall responsibility for the management of the exposure to these risks. They are supported through

the formal committees of the PIC Board including the Investment and Origination Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Cormmittee, Risk Committee and ESG Committee, The membership of these committees is mainly
comprised of Non-Executive Directors. Executive Directors and relevant senior management attend meetings s regquestad.
The Board retains direct responsibility for reputaticnal risk. The PIC Board has instigated @ cocrdinated approach between
the Risk, Compliance, Actuarial and Internal Audit functions to provide integrated assurance in the monitoring of the internal
risk and control environment.

The managgement and controt of the Group's risks Is a significant focus area for the Board, as an uncentrelled and unmanaged
development in various risks may affect the Group's performance and caopital adeguacy. The Group's risk preferences define
the Board's appetite towards taking different types of risks which the Group may be exposed to in pursuit of its strategic
objectives. Risks are categorised as those the Group actively seeks, those the Group accepts and those the Group seeks to
minimise. The Group aims to minimise its exposure to risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk, which cre expected to
carry little reward for the Group over the long term.

The Group uses derivatives for the purpose of efficient portfolio management or to reduce risk in aspects of the Group's
investment activities such as the implementation of tactical asset allecation chonges around the strategic benchmark,
the nedaing of cash flows and the control of the risk profile of an identified strategy. The Group Uses Cross cCurrency-swaps,
forward exchange cantracts and futures for these purpeses. It also uses interest and inflation rate swaps for the purpose
of matching assets and liabilities, and credit default swaps to manage credit risk.

(a) Market risk

The Group is exposed to market risk as a consequence of changes in values or returns on assets and liabilities which are
influenced by one or more external market factors. These include changes and volatility in interest rates, credit spreads,
inflation expectations, currency exchange rates and property risk,

The Group is exposed to intarest rate risk through mismatches in the value of, or income from, specific assets and liabilities
that grise from changes ininterest rates. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is concentrated in the investment
portfolio and its insurance obligations.

Inflation risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of, or income from, specific assets and liakilities that arise from changes in
the rate of inflation. Exposure to inflation occurs in the Group’s assets and liabilities with index linkages.

Credit spread risk is the risk of fluctuations in the volue of the Group's debt investment portfolic, arising from changes in
market perception of default, downgrade and illiquidity risk.

Currency risk arises from fluctuations in the value of, or income from, assets denominated in foreign currencies, from relative
or absolute changes in foreign exchange rate. Exposure to currency risk arises from the Group’s investment in non-sterling
dencminated assets.

Property risk arises from fluctuations in property prices. Exposure to property risk arises from direct holdings in investment
property and indirect exposure through the provision of ERMs. ERMs are indirectly exposed to residential house prices through
the NNEG. The NNEG provides that upon maturity borrewers do not have to repay mare than the value of the property against
which their loanis secured. PIC's ERM portfolio is therefore exposed to the risk of long-term house price growth beind below
expectations. This risk s managed through underwriting criteric and by restricting loan sizes relative to the value of the
underlying property {Loan To Value ~ ("LTV 7). PIC typically writes very low LTV loans, and as such, has a relatively low

exposure to residential property nrices. At 31 December 2022, the average LTV for PIC's portfolio waos 25%.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

17. Risk management continued
Short-terrm investment property risk is mitigated by entering into long-term ledse arrangements. The Group performs regular
reviews of both the movement in the property market specific 1o these properties and the financial status of the tenants.

The Group manages market risk through an asset liability management {(“ALM") framework that has been developed to
closely mateh the investment portfolio duration and income 1o its ohligations under insurance contracts.

Within the context of the ALM framework, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce market risk. interest rate
and inflation swaps are entered iNto to improve the matching of asset and hability cash flows, and ensure that nsk driver
sensitivities are aligned across the maturity spectrum. The quality of the interest rate and inflation matching strategies is
carefully monitored by management, and 1s operated within tightly defined limits. Currency forwards ana swaps are entered
into to eliminate the majority of the currency risk on financial assets invested in non-sterling-based debt securities where
ligbilities are denominated in sterling

Further asset exposures include investments in hedge funds, insurance linkad funds and puklic finance initiative related debt,
including social housing. Where gppropriate, the management of these alternative exposures is delegated to specialist fund
managers, in line with defined investment manadement mandates. In all cases, the Group ensures regular aversight of the
investment management activities, and maintains detailed risk models for all investment types, incorporating analysis

of alternative investments in its risk and capital assessment.

{b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the default of another party in performing its financial obligations to the Group.
The Group 15 primarily exposea to credit risk through its iInvestment in debt secJrities.

Credit risk also arises in respect of derivative contracts ta the extent that there is the potenticl for the counterparties to
default on their obligations.

The Group manages exposure to credit risk by placing limits on exposures to individual counterparties as weil as groups of
counterparties. Counterparty risk on derivatives is controlled through establishrment of collateral agreements and master
netting agreements on interest rate and currency swaps. To further manage credit risk, the financial condition of
counterpariies is manitored on a regular basis.

The table below sets out the credit risk exposure and ratings of financial assets which are susceptible to credit risk. The ratings
used have been scurced from S&P, Moody’s or Fitch, or have been assigned internally where the ratings from these agencies
were not available The remaining unratea assets are not classified by $&P, Moody's, Fitch or internally.

BB or
AAA AA A BBB* below Unrated Total
3 December 2022 £m Em £m £m £m £€m Em
Financial investments
Debt secunties’
- Government bonds 573 11,018 611 N7 - - 13,119
- Corporate bonds 1191 1,083 5,317 7178 42 260 15,071
— Private investments 127 2,095 2,759 1,408 160 8 6,557
MBS and ABS? 20 3 212 24 - - 259
Equity relecse mortgages - - - - - 1,013 1,013
Deposits with credit institutions - 603 272 - - 26 g1
Participation in investment
schemes? 1,954 - - - 167 1,910 4,01
3,865 14,802 9171 9,527 369 3,217 40,951
Other assets
Derivative assets - - - - - 22,451 22,451
Receiables and other financial
assets 30 41 65 13 2 205 474
Cash and cgsh ecuivalents - - - 201 - - 201
30 41 65 332 2 22,656 23,126

1 Within Deot securities there are £130 mion AAA rated, £1,552 miaon AA rateq, £2,514 million A -ated, £1,454 milion BBB rated

ana £5%9 mlan BB rated securities, woich ~ave been ratea usitg .nter-clly cssessea credt ratings.

Within MBS and ABS there cre £5 milion A rated securnties whn cn have been ratea using internally assessed cred t ratings.

With'n Part.cipat-on ininvestrnent scnemes there are £17 minon AAA rated and £167 m 1 ion BB rated schemas, whigh have been -ated
using Internally assessed credit ratngs.

4 Within the BBB rated financial investments there are £1,083 milion of BBB- ratea assets.

[¥ERu N
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AAA Al A BegB? below* Unrated Totaf
31 December 2021 {restated) Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial investments
Debt securities'
— Government bonds [028) 15,167 718 1.0R7 - 17965 -?-
- Corporate bonds 1,606 1,580 6,820 8,331 13 257 18,627 =
- Private investments 138 3,250 3,659 1,837 137 - 9021
MBS and ABS? - 1 287 30 - - 328
Equity release mortgages - - - - - 1,082 1,082 g’
Depaosits with credit institutions - 550 231 - - 43 824 -
Participation in investment schames 1614 - - 181 1,501 3,296 g
=
4,051 20,858 n1s 11,305 33 2,883 51143 %
Qther assets g
Derivative assets - - - - - 15,018 108 S
Receivables and other financial g
assets 23 47 74 139 1 - 284 @
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 199 - - 199
23 47 74 338 1 15,018 15,501
Rel
~J
1 Within Debt securities there are £138 million AAA rated, £2,516 million AA rated, £3,426 million A rated, £1,967 million BEBB rated i
and £72 million BB rated securities, which have been rated using internally assessed credit ratings. __:5
2 Within MBS and ABS there are £5 million A rated securities which have been rated using internally assessed credit ratings.

3 Within the BBB rated financial investments there cre £1,224 miltion of BEB- rated assets.
4 BB or below has been restated to include assets rated B or below which were previously included in Unrated.

m
3
Althcugh the derivative asset instruments themselves are unrated, the ultimate issuing party for maost derlvative assets does g
have a credit rating. Additionally, the derivatives are fully coliateralised with highly rated instruments, so as to mitigate any g-
credit or counterparty risk. Applying the issuer ratingd to the assets held at 31 December 2022 produces the following split: n
b4
&
BBor 3
AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total o
31December2022 £m £m £ £m £m £Em £m é
Derivative assets - 5,035 17,161 - - 255 22,451
BB or
AAN AN A BBB below Unrated Total
31 December 2021 £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Derivative assets - 3,689 11,350 75 - 4 15,018

These assets are included with regular stress testing undertaken by the Group which assesses the impact of @ number of
scenarios an the Group's sclvency position.

Reinsurance counterparties

The Group has reinsurance contracts in place with 14 external reinsurers {2021: 14 external reinsurers) with an exposure of
£1,399 million at 31 December 2022 (2021: £3,350 million). Measures are in place with respect to the reinsurance cantracts to
manage counterpdrty exposure, including collateral arrangements and other protections. The credit rating of each reinsurer is
reported to management on a monthly basis. The credit rating of each reinsurer was A- or higher at 31 December 2022 {A or
higher at 31 December 2021).

Impaoired assets
The Group did not have any impaired or past due dote assets at 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil).
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Notes to the financial statements continuved
for the year ended 31 December 2022

17. Risk management continued

(c) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group may not have liguid ussets availabie at the right times to be able to pay ¥s liabilities,
despite the fact that it meets its regulatory solvency requirements. This would typically arise if derivative contracts to
managde inflation and interest rates reguirea collateral to be posted, a large propartion of deferred policyholders opted

to take transfer values, or if alarde proportion of assets were invested in @ssets which are not easy or straightforward

1o lguidate.

In order to manage this, projecteda cash flows for oll new policy liabilities taken on are determined as a part of the new
business origination process to identify the expeacted profile of liability payments, including expected mortality experience.
This is then used to dentify appropriate assets which provide matching cash flows at an acceptable price.

The Group's risk policies define a minimum propaortion of its assets to be held in highly liquid cash and gilts, which can be
reddily converted to cash or used s coliaterai adainst movements in its derivative contracts. We maonitor our liquidity position
by reviewing Liguidity Caverage Ratio over various timeframes, and Medivm-Term Cagsh Covercge Ratio on o weekly basis,
and more frequently if market conditlons warrant it, to ensure that we have sufficient headroom in the levei of liguidity we
hold above Board risk cppetite. Stress testing is also conducted to ensure that there are sufficient liguid assets at all times to
meet potential demands from derivative movements under axtreme scenarios.

The projected cash flows are updated regularly, and assumptions are updated at least annually, taking intc account factors
such as mortality experience and how this affects the required cash flows in the future.

The following table sets out the contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities. Ail amounts for non-derivative liabilities
are on an undiscounted basis, including interest where applicable, so will not always reconcile to the amounts disclosed in
the Statement of Financial Position. Derivative llabilities relate primarily to inflation rate and interest rate swaps to hedge the
Group’s solvency position,

Carrying Within In1-5 In5-15 Qver
vaive 1year years years 1S years Total
31December 2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 20 20 - - - 20
Other creditors 25 25 - - - 25
Accruals 153 153 - - - 153
Borrowings 1,592 1:] 822 1,236 - 2146
Derivative liabillities 25,348 650 1,731 6,759 16,208 25,348
27,138 936 2,553 7,995 16,208 27,692

Carrying Within In -5 in&~-15 Qver
value Tyear years Yeors 1S years Tota,
31 December 2021 £m Em £m £Em £m £m
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 19 19 - - - 19
Other creditors 28 28 - - - 28
Accruals 122 122 - - - 122
Borrawings 1,590 28 86l 1,285 - 2,234
Derivative liahilities 6,997 178 659 2,717 13,403 16,957
18,756 435 1,560 4,002 13403 1940Q

Allamounts que to other creditors are expected to be paia in the next financial year.

The armounts aisclosea in more than 1year columns in the above table are expected to be settlea more than 12 months after
the reporting aote.

(d) Insurance risk
Longevity nsk is the risk that the mortality experience of the Group's pohlcyholders is ishter than assumen, thus requiring
pensions to be paid for a longer period than anticipatea, resulting in a higher than expected cost to the Group.

In order to help minimise this nisk and glso uncertainty ars.ng through ‘uiure londevity exper ence, the Group adopts an active
approach 1o reinsuring these risks where .t is economic to do so. This reirsurance can e classified into two broad catedaries:
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Longevity only reinsurance

This provides longevity cover in respect of certain peolicyholders. Under these contracts, the Group has committed to pay
the reinsurer a schedule of fixed cash flows for specified sets of llabilities relating to members/former mambers of particular
pension schemes. The reinsurer undertakes to reimburse the actual cost of claims to the Group. Separately, there is also
areinsurance fee for which the Group is llable. Settlement of the contract is on a net basis. These contracts alse transfer
the contingent longevity risk relating to any ¢ligible dependants of relevant poiicyholders.

Quota share reinsurance — longevity reinsurdnce via the transter of assets

Under such contracts, in return for an initial single premium, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse the actual cost of future claims
to the Group In respect of an agreed set of policyholders. These contracts also transfer the contingent risks relating to eligible
dependants of relevant policyholders.

The Group monitors the levels of its counterparty risk and actively seeks to reinsure with ¢ wide range of providers to help
mitigate its exposure fo any one such entity.

Mortality assumptions

One aspect of deriving overall best estimate longevity assumptions is to establish the “current” or "initial” rates of mortality.
These assumptions are set by applying appropriate mortality factors to each individual member/policyholder. Individual
variations are subject to a number of factors including, but not limited to, an individual’s gender, age, pension amount,
occupation and place of residence.

The other aspect is the allowance for future improvements in mortality. The pattern in which mortality is expected to improve
over time is an important but complex assumption for cash flew and liability calculations. This is regularly reviewed in the light
of a number of factors including evolving methedologies for these projections together with views from industry and
professional bodies on the factors driving mortality chande.

Whilst longevity risk is the fundamental risk relating to its insurance licbility portfolio, the Group clso considers the
following risks:

Risk arising from a specific insurance contract
The Group considers, as part of its risk management process, the risk attached to each new contract accepted and the
mitigation of such risk.

Exposure to changes in financial market conditions
The Group prepares information based upon a range of possible market conditions to assess the patential impacts on the
balance sheet and the management actions available to help mitigate these.

(e} Operational risk

Operational risk is the potential for loss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. The Group's internal control processes are supported by an operational risk committee, the maintenance
of a central risk register, the Risk and Control Self-Assessment process, and an independent internal audit review. The risk of
internal fraud is managed through a number of processes including the screening of staff at recruitment, regular compliance
training, segregation of duties and whistleblowing policies.

The Graup has significant outsourcing arrangements in respect of pension administration and other functions. These
arrangerments are subject to agreements with formal service levels, operate within agreed authority limits and are subject
to regular review by senior management,

Emergency and business continuity plans have also been established to counter adverse accurrences.

(f) Climate change risk
The Group's asset portfolio can be exposed to climate change through both:

e transition risks from moving to a low-carbon economy and the impact this has on the value of the assets
and the economy; and
s physical risks from the long-term impact on asset holdings due to severe climate change.
Climate change risk is minimised via integrating climate change considerations throughout the organisation's decision-making

processes. Environmental factors are ceonsidered when reviewing any investment opportunity and the Group works closely
with external osset managers and private debt issuers to ensure climate related risk is actively engogea on,

As the Group’s assets are generally valued based on market sourced prices or by qualified external valuers, the valuations
reflect current market sentiment in respect of climate risk.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

18. Related party transactions

Transactions with Directors and key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise Directors of the Company and members of the Executive Committee.

2022 2021

£m £Em

Short-term employee benefits 9 9
Share-based poyrnents 4 5
Total 13 14

The Group had no other transactions with Directors ana key management personnel during the period other than in relation
to awards made under the Share Growth Plan, which are detailed in Note 7.

Capital transactions
During the year, the Group nvested £22 millien into joint ventures; please refer to Note 2 of PICG’s parent Company financial
statements for further details.

Other related party transactions

On 8 June 2021, PIC subscribed to €150 million of 1.48% senior notes in Capital Investors Europe PRI Limitted, o comzany within
the CVC Group. Another member of the CVC Group is a significant shareholder of PICG. investment income during the period
amounted to £2 million {2021 £1 million) and the carrying value of the investment at 31 December 2022 was £87 million

(2021: £126 miflion).

PIC holds investments in funds managed by HPS which i1s o member of a group that i1s a significant shareholder of PICG. During
the periog, there were net capital distributions of £33 milhon (2021: net capital contributions of £12 million) and investment
income amounted to £14 million (2021 £7 million). As at 31 December 2022 the carrying value of the investments was

£166 million (2021: £176 rmillion).

19. Share capital
The authorised, issuea and fully paid share capital of the Group is as follows:
2022 2021
Number Number

of shares £m of shares £rm
Ordinary shares
Authorised, issued and fully paid
At beginning of yvear 1,334,205,407 2 1,330595,077 2
Shares issued in the period - - 3,208,330 -
C shares converted into ordinary shares - - 2,000 -
Shares at the end of the period 1,334,205,407 2  1,334,205,407 2
C shares
At beginning and end of year - - 2,000 -
C shares converted into orainary shares - - {2,000) -

Shares at the end of the period - - _ -

The rights attaching to each class of shares existing at 21 December 2022 are as follows:

Ordinary shares

Voting rights are only conferred on the holders of ordinary shares, except when a resolution relates to o chanpe of rights or
privileges of canvertible deferred shares or the winding up of the Company. Ordinary shares are the only class entitlec to
divigenas or distributions of income unless otherwise determined by the Board.

Conversion of C shares to ordinary shares
Following the vesting of the 2017 Growth Share Plan on 1 January 2021, 2,000 C shares were converted into ordinary shares.
An adaitional 3,208,330 ardinary shares were also 1ssLad 1o the participants as settlement of the plan.
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20, Restricted Tier 1 notes

In 2018, PIC issued £450 million RT1 notes. After considering and analysing the terms of the notes against the debt and
equity classification reguirements of 1AS 39, the notes have been classified as equity. It was determined that the notes
did not impose any obligation on PIC to deliver cash or other financial assets to the holders of the notes because:

e}
s the notes are perpetual, with no fixed redemption or maturity date; 1
s interest is payable and cancellable at the sole discretion of PIC; and
e interest is non-cumulative. o
o)
The interest payments arising are recognised In equity upon payment, g
8
=
w
2022 2021 g
£m £m <
i
Restricted Tier 1 notes 444 444 g
3
On 25 July 2018, PIC issued E450 million of RT1 debt capital loan notes with o fixed coupon of 7.375% paid semi-annually in 8
arrears, In 2022, the total coupon paid was £33 millicn (2021: £33 million).
21, Reserves T,
Group N
Capital Share-based ~
Share Treasury Merger reduction payment Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve profit
31 December 2022 £m £m Em £m £m £m m
3
At beginning of year 873 {19} 34 1,055 il 2,055 g
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 1,01 g
RT1coupon - - - - - (33) -
Exercise of share-based payment schemes - - - - {9) - :_é:
Share-based payment charge - - - - 8 - g
Share purchases and share scheme @
contributions/settlements - {10} - - - (2} E
At end of year 873 (20) 34 1,055 20 3,031
Capital Share-based
Share Treasury Merger reductian payment Retained
prem'\um shares resarve reserve reserve DI’DfIT
31 December 2021 £rmn £m Em £m Em Em
At beginning of year 870 (25) 34 1055 14 1773
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 31
RT1coupon - - - - _ (33)
Tax on RT1 coupon - - - - - &
Sale of treasury shares 3 31 - - - -
Exercise of share-based payment schemes - 6 - - {5) (1)
Share-based payment charge - - - - 12 -
Share purchases and share scheme
contricutions/settlements - {31) - - - 1)
At end of year B73 {19} 34 1,055 21 2,055

Treasury shares relate to the shares purchased by EBTs in respect of the Company's share-based payment awards.

A capital reduction reserve was established on 21 October 2016, when the Company reduced the nominal value of its ordinary
shares from £1 to £0.00161678179673884 in accordance with the relevant Special Resclution.

The Group carried out a group reorganisation in Decernber 2015, which led 1o a recognition of a merger reserve of £34 million
in respect of the amount by which the book value of the Pension Corporation Group Limited ("PCG”) exceeded the nominal
value of shares issued by PICG to acqguire the PCG Group.

A share-based payment reserve is recognised in respect of the equity settled share-based payment awards in accordance with
the accounting policy in Note 7 The relevant disclosures in respect of the share-based payment schemes are provided in Note 7.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

22. Capital resources

The Board's policy is to maintain a streng capital base to protect policyholders’ and creditors’ interests and ensure
compliance with the relevant financial services regulations, whilst creating shareholder value. The Group's capital
resources comprise equity and deot capital. The details of the Group's equity capital rescurces are provided in Notes
19 ta 21. Details of the Group's debt capital resources are provided in Note 16,

The Group’s main subsidiary, PIC, is required to measure and manade its capital in accordance with the requirements

of the EU Solvency Il Framework Directive ("Solvency i"), as adopted by the PRA and retained under LK low. There are

certain valuation differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the Sclvency ll balance sheet, for example betweean

IFRS nsurance liabilittes ana Solvency |l technical provisions. Also, under Solvency Il, PIC treats the suncrdinated debt referred
to in Note 16 as regulatory capital. PIC has complied with the capital requirements under Solvency Il throughout the year.

PIC currently has sufficient capital resources available to meet ali its present capital reguiremeants

2022 2021

unavdited unaudited

£Em £m

Own Funds 7,210 6,669
Solvency I} capital requirermnents {3,199) (3.968)
Solvency ll surplus 4,01 2,70
Solvency ratio 225% 168%

PIC's ebjectives in managing its capitai are:

= to maintain Solvency Il capital In excess of the Solvency Capital Reguirement ("SCR");

= to match the profile of its assets and liabilities closely, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;

» to maintain financial strength sufficient to support new business growth in line with PIC's business plan;

« to satisfy the contractual entitlements of its policyholders and the requirements of its regulators;

+ to ensure financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and occess to a rande of capital markets;

s to allocate capital efficiently to support growth;

* to manage exposure to changes in interest and inflation rates by way of a comprehensive hedding programme; and

e 1o Manage exposure to movements in exchange rates.

Under Solvency |, PIC uses an Internal Model to set its statutory solvency capital reguirement. This evaluates market risk,

Insurance risk, operational risk, expense risk and counterparty risk. in addition, PIC produces an Own Risk Sclvency
Assassment ("ORSA") report annually, which provides an analysis of the risks facing PIC and 1ts copital resources.

PIC mandpees its business according to the risk strategy, appetite and tolerances set out in its risk policies. In accordance
with this, PIC defines risk appetite limits for solvency and a target level of capital that it wishes to maintain, which PIC
regularly monitors anc reports. Capital volathty is managed through risk management technigues, including the use of
inflation rate, interest rate and currency hedging instruments to reduce exposure to potential adverse market movements.
PIC 15 also able to manage its capital position through the level of new business 1t writes and its broader investment and
reinsurance strotegies.

PIC focuses on hedging its Sclvency |l balance sheet through hedging its technical provisions and salvency capital
requirerment to nterest rates ana inflation rates. PIC aims to remove all foreign exchange risk through cross-currency hedging
Longevity nsk 1s managed through reinsurance, wrere 87% of exposure has been transferred as at 31 December 2022,

based on best estmate licbilities (2021: 85%).
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23. Financial commitments and contingencies

Other commitments

During the year, the Group executed transactions to purchase partly funded securities relating 1o private investmeants.
The Group expects to pay a further £952 millicn in the coming years (2021: £571 million), £376 million of this being due within
12 months of the financial reporting date {2021 £389 millicn).

1oday oi88ipas

A
4
2022 2021
£m £m

Within 1 vear 376 389 0O
In1-5 years 565 182 S
I 5-15 years 5 - g
QOver 15 years 6 - a
@
952 571 Q
Q
®
At 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum commitment under contractual obfigations tc construct investment property 5
is £380 million (2021: £216 million). The obligations cover a period of up to approximately four years, g
[2]
()]

At 31 December 2022, the Group's maximum commitment under joint venture agreements (see Note 12(e}} is £4 million.
Contingent liabilities o
The Group has certain reinsurance agreements, which include fees that are contingent on occurrence of specific events. Iﬁ
Such fees do not meet the definition of o liakility, ond therefore are not recognised on the Staterment of Financial Position. 5

At 31 December 2022, the estimated value of the contingent fees payabie was £5 million {2021 £8 million). The Group considers
that there were no other events which could lead to contingencies in the ordinary course of business.
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Parent Company financial statements
Statement of financial position for the Company
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 1,952 1952
Receivables and other financial assets 4 35 33
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1 6
Total Assets 1,988 1991
Equity
Share capital 2 2
Share premium 873 873
Treasury shares {20) (19
Merger reserve 34 34
Capital reduction reserve 1,055 1,055
Share-based payment reserve 20 21
Retcined profit 19 23
Total Equity 1,983 1989
Liabilities
Other payables 2
Total Liabilities 2
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,988 1991

The accounting policies and notes on pages 165 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directars on 15 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

= o et t
[@

Tracy Blackwell

Director
Ragistered number: 06740110
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Parent Company financial statements
Statement of changes in equity for the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022

20UBWIBADS :DI0dI0D

Share-
Capital based
Share Share Treasury Merger reduction payment Retained
capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve profit Total
31December 2022 £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 2 873 (19) 34 1,055 21 23 1,989
Total comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - - 2 (2}
Transactions with owners
Exercise of share-based payment
schemes - - 9 - - {9) - -
Share-based payment charge - - - - - 8 - 8
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions/settlements - - (10) - - - (2) (12)
At end of year 2 B73 (20) 34 1,055 20 19 1,983
Shicrre-
Capital based
Share Share Tredsury Merger  reduction payment Retained
capital premium shares reserve resarve reserve profit Total
31 December 2021 £m £m £m £rm £m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 2 87C (2%) 34 1,055 14 25 1,975
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - -
Profit for the year
Transactions with owners
Sale of treasury shares - 3 31 - - - - 34
Exercise of share-based payment
schemes - - 6 - - (5) ) -
Share-based payment charge - - - - - 12 - 12
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions/settlements - - (31 - - - ) (32)
At end of year 2 873 (19) 34 1,055 21 23 1,989

The accounting policies and notes on pages 165 to 167 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Parent Company financial statements
Company statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year {2) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables and other financial assets {2) (4)
Increase/{decrease) in other payables 3 {4}
1 8)
Cash outflow from operating activities {0 8]
Financing activities
Share repurchases and contributions 12) (32)
Financing of share-based payment schemes 8 12
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares - 34
Cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities (4) 14
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5) &
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 6 -
Cuash and cash equivalents at end of year 1 6

The accounting policies and notes on pages 165 10 167 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Parent Company financial statements
Notes to the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Accounting policies

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. The Company's accounting policies are aligned with those of the Group, as set out in the relevant notes

to the Group's financial statements, with the only exception to this being tnvestments in subsidiaries, which are not relevant at
Group level.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried ¢t cost less, where appropriate, allowances for impairment in the Company’s financial
statements. Where indicators of impairment exist, the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary is compared against
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use, with any resulting impairment
recorded in the income statement.

There were no other material critical accounting estimates used or judgements made by management in the preparation
of these financial statements.

The Company has applied all IFRS and interpretations that are adopted by the UK and are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, The Company has also consistently applied its accounting policies to all
periods presented in these financial statements. The application, in 2022, of "Reference 1o the Conceptual Framewoerk”
{(Amendment to IFRS 3), “Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use” (Amandment to IAS 16), “Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract” (Amendment to |1AS 37), and "Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020" have had no impact
on the Company.

Disclosures in relation to the Company’s share capital and other reserves are provided in Notes 19 and 21 of the Group's
consolidoted financial staterments. The disclosures required by IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment” are provided in Note 7 of the
Group's consolidated financial statements. The total expense borne by the Company in relation to share-based payments

was £nil (2021 £nil),

2. Investments in subsidiaries
The Company's investments in subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

2022 200
£€m £m
Cost
At the start and end of the year 1,952 1,952
Net book value
31December 1,952 1,952
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Parent Company financial statements

Notes to the financial statements of the Company continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Investments in subsidiaries continued

Country of % of

Subsidiary undertakings Principal activity incorperation equity held Share elass

PIC Holdings Limited’ Holding company England 100% Ordinary shares
Pension Insurance Corporation plc Bulk cnnuity insurance England 100% Qrdinary shares
Pension Services Corporation Limited Service company England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC ERM 1 Limited? Investrment activity England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Properties GP Limitea?® General partner Engfand 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Properties Limited Partnership? Investment holding entity  England 100% Partnership

PIC New Victoria GP Limited? General partner Englond 100% Ordinary shares
PIC New Victoria Nominee Limited? Nominee company Englana 100% Crdinary shares
PIC New Victoria Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

PIC New Victoria Limitea Partnership? Investrment activity England 100% Partnership

PIC Wiltern GP Limitec? General partner England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Wiltern Nominee Limited? Nominee company England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Wiltern Unit Trust Investment activity Guermnsey 100% Unit tryst

PIC wiltern Limited Partnership? Investment activity England 100% Partnership

PIC Bowback GP Limited? General partner England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Bowtack Nominee Limited? Nominee company Engtand 100% Qrdinary shares
PIC Bowback Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

PIC Bowpack Limited Partnership? investment activity England 100% Partnership

PIC One Eastside GP Limited? General partner England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC One Eastside Nominee Limited? Nominee company England 100% Qrdinary shares
PIC One Eastside Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

PIC One Eastside Limited Partnership? Investment activity England 100% Partnership

PIC Real Estate GF Limited General partner England 100% Ordinary shares
PIC Reql Estate Limited Partnership Investment activity England 100% Partnership

PLE Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

STH Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

TBW Unit Trust Investrment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

TNT Unit Trust investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

WOR Unit Trust Investrnent activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

BSF Unit Trust Investrnent activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

CVT Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

GLS Unit Trust Investment activity Guernsey 100% Unit trust

1 Denotas investment held directly by the Company at 31 December 2022,

2 Denotes entities that have clamed exemption from audit by virtue of either section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, or Regulation 7
of the Partnersnips (Account) Regulations,

Subsidiaries incorporated in England are registered at 14 Corhill, London EC3V 3ND.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Guernsey dre registered at Western Sute, Ground Foor, Mill Court, La Charroterie, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY11E..

3.Investmentsin joint ventures
INnvestments in joint ventdres are held inairectly by subsidiaries of PICG,

Country of % of
Joint venture Principal activity incorporation equity held Share class
Senior Living Investment Partners
(Genergal Partner) Limitea? General partner Englana 49% Ordinary shares
Senior Living Investment Partners
Limitea Partnership? Investment activity Englana 99% Partnership

3 Regstered at 6th Floor, 33 Holborn, London, United K ngdom ECIN 2HT
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4. Financial assets and financial ligbilities
All of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are valued at amortised cost as detailed below:
2022 2021
Amortised Amortised
cost cost i<
£m £fm IL.J
Financial Assets
Receivables and other financicl assets 35 33
Cash and cash equivalents 1 6 Q
Total Financial Assets 36 39 3
a
1
Financial Liabilities o)
Other payables 5 2 %
Total Financial Liabilities 5 p) 3
- >
. L - . o]
Included within receivables and other financial assets are amounts totalling £4 million (2021: £2 million) due to be received o
after more than one year. All amounts relating to other payables are expectad to be settled within one year.
5. Related party transactions T,
{a) Transactions with certain Directors and key management personnel iR
Share-based payment transactions with the key management personnel are detailed in Note 18 of the Group =

financial statements.

- T . m
(b) Balances with subsidiary companies 5
During the year, the Company had the following halances with subsidiary companies: g
L9
g
Transactions dunnd the yeor Balonce at 31 December w
2022 2021 2022 2021 %
£m £m £m £m 3
Amounts owed by Group undertakings {3) T 30 33 g
n
Armmounts owed to Group undertakinds - - (2) (2)

(c) Capital transactions with subsidiary companies
During the year, the Company had the following capital transactions with subsidicry companies:

2022 2021
£m £m

Share-based payment charge recharged to subsidiary undertakings 8 12
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Glossary

Annvuities

A type of Insurance policy that pays out regular amounts

of penefit ta tha policyhelder for the remainder of the
insured individual's Ifetime and, In certain cases, that of their
spouse and/or dependants. The payments may commence
immediately (“immedicte annuity”) or may be deferred

to commence from a future date, such as the date of
retirement {"deferred annuity”). Immediate annuities and
aeferred annuities may be purchased for an individual and
his or her dependants or on @ bulk purchase basis for groups
of inaividuals.

Buy-in

An annuity policy bought by trustees that is an asset of
the scheme and helps manage their ongoing liabilities
The trustees and scheme remain in piace and the
agministration remains the responsibility of the trustees.

Buyout

Annuities bought in bulk, covering oll the scheme's ligbllities.
The scheme typically winds up ana members become

PIC policyholders. We also take on responsibility for
ongoing adrmmstration alongside payment of
policyholders’ pensions.

Carbon neutrality
The focus on not increasing carbon emissions and
of achieving carpon reduction through offsets,

Contractual service margin (“CSM”)

A componeant of the carrying amount of the asset or
liabiiity for o group of insurance contracts representing
the unearned profit that the Group will recognise as it
provides insurance sarvices under the insurance contracts
N the group.

Cost of residual non-hedgeable risks (“CRNHR")
Under the market consistent embedded value ("MCEV"),
aliowance far the cost of holding copital in respect of non-
hedgeable risks. Market risks are assumed to be hedgeable
and 50 o Gost s allowed for any capital that might be held
under the regulatory solvency regime. Longevity risk in respect
of deferred annuities i1s treated as non-heageable except to
the extent that it has actually been hedged, typically using
reinsurance. Pensiorer longevity Is treated as reinsurable and
hence hedgeable regardless of whether it has actually been
reinsured or not.

Defined benefit (“DB") pension plan

An employer-sponsored retirement benefit plan where the
benefits promised to the rmembers of the plan are defined
accorging to a formuic typically basea on factors such as
salary history and auration of employment. Investrment risk
and portfolio management are entirely under the control
of the trustees of the pension plon and not the employee
or employer.

Derivatives

Derivatives are securities that derive their value from an
underlying asset or benchmark. The Group uses derivatives
to hedge out certain market risks, in particular infiation,
interest rates and currency risks associated with both

new and existing business.

Financial investments

Represents cll assets actively managed or administered
by or on behalf of the institution, Including those assets
managed by third parties.

Frictional cost of required capital (“FCoC”}

The cost associated with the assets used to suppoert required
capital under MCEV, principally in respect of investment
management fees and tax on investment income.

Fulfilment cash flows

An explicit, unbiased and probability-weighted estimate

of the present value of the future cash cutflows minus the
present value of the future cash inflows that will arise as the
entity fuifils insurance contracts, including a risk adjustment
for non-financial risk.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Cash flows arising from the costs of selling, underwriting and
starting a group of insurance contracts {issued or expected
to be issued) that are directly attributable to the portfolio of
insurance contracts to which the group belongs. Such cash
flows include cash flows that are not directly attributable t©
individual contracts or groups of insurance contracts within
the portfolio.

Internal Model

A risk management system developed by PIC to analyse
1ts overall risk position, to guantify risks and to determine
the capital reguired to meet those risks. PIC has abtained
appropriate approval from the PRA to use its Internal
Model to calculate its solvency capital requirement
under Solvency Il

MSCI

Finance company and global provider of equity, fixed
income, real estate indexes, multi-asset portfolio analysis
tools, ESG and climate products.

Net Zero

The focus on actively regucing greenhouse gas emissions

to the maximum nossible level so that the residual emissions
can be neutralisea by carbon offsetting as a last resort.
Offsetting is used o countergct remaining emissions

after allreducticn in tiatves ~ave been mplemented.

Present value of future profits ("PVFP"")
Represents the present value, after tax, of the future
release of regulatory marging, such as risk margin

Prudential Regulation Authority ("PRA")

The PRA is a part of the Bank of England and I1s responsible
for the prudential reguiation of deposit-taking institutions,
insJrers and major investrrent firms.
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Risk adjustment for non-financial risk (“RA")

The compensation an entity requires for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash
flows that arises from non-financial risk as the entity fulfils
insurance contracts.

Risk margin (“RM”'})

Life insurance companies hold technical provisicns (rescrves)
calculated on actuarial bases to ensure they have sufficient
funds avadilable to pay their technicat ligbilities when they

fall due. The technical provisions comprise a BEL and an RM.
The RM calculation, which is prescribed under the Solvency |l
regulations, is Intended to represent the amount that a notional
third party, a reference undertaking, would require in order to
take over the ligbilities and have sufficient capital to support
them over their future lifetime.

Scope 1 emissions
Emissions that are directly generated by the Company.

Scope 2 emissions

Emissions that are created by the generation of the
electricity or heat needed by the Cornpany to sell its main
products or provide its main services {indirect emissions).

Scope 3 emissions
Emissions caused by the entire value chain
{indirect ermnissions).

Solvency i

An EU-wide regulatory regime which intends te align solvency
capital to aninsurer’s risk profile. Sclvency 1

was implemented on 1 January 2016.

Solvency Il best estimate liability (“BEL"”)

The best estimate liability represents the value of future
liability and expense cash flows. It is based on realistic
gssumptions with no prudent margins (other thanin the
defoult and downgrade assumptions stipulated for the
calculation of the valuation discount rate) and is calculated
using well-established actuarial and statistical methods.

Printed on GalerieArt Satin,

an FSC certified mixed sources paper.
Frinted by DG3 Leycol, an FSC and
1ISO 140001 accredited company.

Solvency capital requirement (“SCR"}

The SCR represents the capital that the Company needs to
hold in order to be able to survive a 1-n-200-year risk event over
the 12 months following the balance sheet date. PIC calculates
its SCR using o Company-specific model {the Internal Model)
which has been approved by the PRA. The main components
nf the &CR frr PIC Ara marlaat ricl and insuraneae risle, but the
Internal Model also covers counterparty default risk, expense
risk and cperational risk.

Standard formula

A risk-based mathematical formula used by insurers
to calculate their solvency capital requirement under
Solvency Il. The standard formula is intended for use
by most EU insurers, although they may use an internal
medelinstead, subject 1o regulatary approval

Technical provisions (“TP")
The value of technical provisions on the Solvency 1l basis
is equal to the sum of the BEL and an RM.

Temperature alignment
The projected temperature rise by 2100 frem
pre-industrial levels.

Transitional measures on technical provisions
{("“TMTP")

PIC uses a transitional measures deduction on technical
provisions in its Schvency 1l balance sheet. The TMTP allows
companies to smooth the transition from the previous
regulatory regime to the Sclvency |l appreach, for example
in having to set up the risk margin. The TMTP only applies in
respect of business that was in force at 31 December 2015,
and it runs off linearly to zero over 16 years.

Value of in-force (“VIF”})

This Is the discounted value of after-tax profits expected
to emerge from the in-force business over time, and is used
in the embedded value calculation.
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